Albrecht, Sarah B. (HHS/OCR) /O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=USERA956839A <Sarah.Albrecht@hhs.gov>

Stampul, Barbara {HHS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=aba3e5fc28844f3399581d12fbecdfcb-Stampul, Ba
<Barbara.Stampul@hhs.gov>;

Crabbe, Emily (HHS/OCR) /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=e57d5410600240e6837bf63ad 1a5fede-Crabbe, Emi
<Emily.Crabbe@hhs.gov>

From:

To:

FW: BREAKING: Students in Florida won't have to report their menstrual history to be allowed to play
sports

Date: 2023/02/10 15:02:09
Priority: Normal

Subject:

Type: Note

From: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/0OCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>

Sent: Friday, February 10, 2023 3:01 PM

To: Albrecht, Sarah B. (HHS/OCR) <Sarah.Albrecht@hhs.gov>; de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR)
<Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>; Noonan, Timothy (0S/OCR) <Timothy. Noonan@hhs.gov>

Subject: FW: BREAKING: Students in Florida won't have to report their menstrual history to be allowed
to play sports

From: Caitlin Panarella <action@nwlc.org>

Sent: Friday, February 10, 2023 2:46 PM

To: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/0CR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>

Subject: BREAKING: Students in Florida won't have to report their menstrual histery to be allowed to
play sports

Fighting for gender justice in the courts, in public policv, and in our society.
Justice for her. Justice for all.

NATIONAL

O WOMEM'S
v LAW CENTER
National Women's Law Center
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Dear Melanie,

Florida student athletes will NOT be required to submit their menstrual history in order to

play school sports.

We asked you to submit messages to the Florida High School Athletics Association (FHSAA)
Board of Directors demanding they not implement this harmful and dangerous policy.
Because you acted so quickly. we delivered more than 5,000 messages in less than 48 hours

to the FHSAA Board of Directors, which held an emergency vote on the policy on Thursday.

Thank you for taking action against Florida's gross attempt to force the collection of

student menstrual data. But the fight’s not over yet.

Even though the FHSA A Board decided against requiring students to submit their menstrual
history, they quietly moved from asking about a student’s sex to specifying that students must
attest their “sex assigned at birth.” The Board couldn’t be more clear: at the root of the
proposed requirement was an attempt to monitor trans students and violate their bodily

aufonomy.

So much is still at stake: we need to stay outraged and protect trans, nonbinary, and intersex

students who just want to play sports alongside their peers without bullying and exclusion.

This work would not be possible without our state partners fighting against these violations.

Please consider supporting Progress Florida Education Institute, which organized on the

ground against the FHSAA’s harmful policy proposal and following Equality Florida for

more ways to support LGBTQI+ youth.

Even though Florida students will not be required to report their menstrual history. any attack

on trans and nonbinary students is an attack on gender justice. We’ll never stop fighting for

the rights of women. girls. and LGBTQI+ individuals.

Thank you for joining us in this fight.



In solidarity,

Caitlin Panarella
she/her/hers
Campaigns Associate

National Women's Law Center

0 000

Please forward this email to your fiends and co-workers and encoiirage them fa sign up (&

receive NWLE emailsin their own inboxes and sign up for tex{ updates!

Privacy Pohey |

Mational Women's Law Cental’
Il Dupont Cirele NW, Sutte 8001
Washington, DC 20036
United States

Albrecht, Sarah B. (HHS/OCR) /O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=USERA9568394 <Sarah.Albrecht@hhs.gov>

Stampul, Barbara (HHS/OCR} /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=aba3e5fc28844f3399581d12fbecdfcb-Stampul, Ba
<Barbara.Stampul@hhs.gov>;

Crabbe, Emily (HHS/OCR) /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=e57d5410600240e6837bf63ad 1a5fede-Crabbe, Emi
<Emily.Crabbe@hhs.gov>

Sent Date: 2023/02/10 15:02:06

Sender:

Recipient:
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Delivered Date: 2023/02/10 15:02:09



de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=0BDEC12AD0974EACABABED32F2B37C91-DEKERVOR, D>

Schuham, Aaron (HHS/OGC) <Aaron.Schuham@hhs.govs;
Wiggins, Audrey (HHS/OGC) <Audrey.Wiggins@hhs.gov>

Rainer, Melanie Fontes (OS5/0CR) fo=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=9¢7242f10a494d45bab7 2c45 2ecd9f80-Rainer, Mel
<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>;

Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR) /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=dc5a273e16824884903f0d2afcBcb225-Jee, Lauren
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>

Subject: State Medicaid docs
Date: 2022/08/31 08:53:00
Priority: Normal

From:

To:

CcC:

Type: Note

Hi Aaron and Audrey,

Please find attached as background two documents drafted by our amazing intern Vatsala.[®)®)

(0)(5)

b)(5)

Thanks,
Dylan

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esqg., MSW (she/her) | Senior Advisor to the Director
Office for Civil Rights

U.5. Department of Health &Human Services

200 Independence Ave. S.W., Room 532E

Washington, D.C. 20201

Phone: (202) 699-1884

Email: dylan.dekervor@hhs.gov

Upcoming leave:; Sept. 30— Oct. 4

de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=0BDEC12AD0974EACABABEO32F2B37C91-DEKERVOR, D=

Schuham, Aaron (HHS/OGC) <Aaron.Schuham@hhs.gov>;

Wiggins, Audrey (HHS/OGC) <Audrey.Wiggins@hhs.gov>;

Rainer, Melanie Fontes {OS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=5c7242f10a494d45bab72c452ecd9f80-Rainer, Mel
<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>;

Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR) /fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=dc5a273e16824884503f0d2afc8cb225-Jee, Lauren
<lLauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>

Sent Date: 2022/08/31 08:53:39
Delivered Date: 2022/08/31 08:53:00

Sender:

Recipient:
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(0)(5)

b)(5)




Evaluation Only. Created with Aspose.HTML. Copyright 2013-2020 Aspose Pty Ltd.P
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=0BDEC12AD0974EACABABEQ32F2B37C91-DEKERVOR, D>

To: Gelman, Laurie (CRT) <Laurie.Gelman@usdoj.gov>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities
Date: 2023/01/19 11:07:00
Priority: Normal

From:

Type: Note

No rush, I’'m here.

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esqg., MSW (she/her)
Senior Advisor to the Director

Phone: (202) 699-1884

Email: dylan.dekervor@hhs gov

From: Gelman, Laurie {CRT) <Laurie.Gelman@usdoj.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 11:07 AM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>; Lareau, Alyssa (CRT)
<Alyssa.Lareau@usdoj.gov>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

Stuck on call done in one min

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 11:02 AM

To: Lareau, Alyssa (CRT) <Alyssa.Lareau@usdoj.gov>

Cc: Gelman, Laurie {CRT) <Laurie.Gelman@usdoj.gov>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

Sounds good — thanks AL!

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esqg., MSW (she/her)
Senior Advisor to the Director

Phone: {202) 699-1884

Email: dylan.dekervor@hhs gov

From: Lareau, Alyssa (CRT) <Alyssa.Lareau@usdoj.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 11:00 AM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Ce: Gelman, Laurie {CRT) <Laurie.Gelman@usdoj.gov>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] RE: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities



mailto:Laurie.Gelman@usdoj.gov
mailto:Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov
mailto:Alyssa.Lareau@usdoj.gov
mailto:dylan.dekervor@hhs.gov
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
mailto:l.i.lurie.Gelman@usdoj.gov

Hey all - | am going to skip the call since you have the expert (LG) and | have another deadline that | am
working on. Let me know if there’'s something that is unresolved that | can help with but | sericusly
expect Laurie will have the answers.

On Jan 19, 2023, at 9:43 AM, de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>wrote:

Thanks. Trying to get out of my 11am — will keep you posted!

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esg., MSW (she/her)
Seniar Advisor ta the Director

Phone: (202) 699-1884

Email: dylan.dekervor @hhs.gov

From: Gelman, Laurie {CRT) <Laurie.Gelman@usdoj.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 $:42 AM

To: de Kerver, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>; Lareau, Alyssa (CRT)
<Alyssa.lareau@usdoj.gov>

Subject: RE: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

yep

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 $:37 AM

To: Gelman, Laurie {CRT) <Laurie.Gelman@usdoj.gov>; Lareau, Alyssa (CRT) <Alyssa.Lareau@usdoj.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

Any chance you're free at 17

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esg., MSW (she/her)
Senior Advisor to the Director

Phone: (202) 699-1884

Email: dylan.dekervor@hhs.gov

From: Gelman, Laurie {CRT) <Laurie.Gelman@usdoj.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 $:35 AM

To: de Kerver, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>; Lareau, Alyssa (CRT)
<Alyssa.Lareau@usdoj.gov>

Subject: RE: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

| will after my 10 am, scheduled to end 11

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>
Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 8:32 AM
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To: Lareau, Alyssa (CRT) <Alyssa.lareau@usdoj.gov>; Gelman, Laurie (CRT) <Laurie.Gelman@usdoj.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] FW: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

Any chance either or both of you have 10 min for a program or activity question?

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, lanuary 18, 2023 9:24:30 PM

To: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/OCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR)
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>; Noonan, Timothy (0S/OCR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen,
Marissa {HHS/OCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

The request asks for a breakdown of how many people were prescribed puberty blockers,
hormones or hormone antagonists, or underwent a medical procedure.

By ANDREW ATTERBURY
01/18/2023 06:07 PM EST

TALLAHASSEE, Fla. — The DeSantis administration is requesting a trove of
information on individuals who receive gender-affirming treatments at Florida
universities, furthering its practice of questioning or scaling back treatment for
transgender people.

In a blanket request to 12 state universities, top officials with Republican Gov. Ron
DeSantis are seeking data on the number of individuals who have been diagnosed with
gender dysphoria or received treatment in campus clinics across Florida. It’s unclear
what exactly DeSantis intends to do with the information, but his administration says it
involves “governing institutional resources and protecting the public interest.”

“Our office has learned that several state universities provide services to persons
suffering from gender dysphoria. On behalf of the Governor, I hereby request that you
respond to the enclosed inquiries related to such services,” wrote Chris Spencer, director
of the Office of Policy and Budget for DeSantis, in a Jan. 11 memo to schools that was
released Wednesday.

The request from DeSantis poses a list of questions for universities, such as asking them
to provide the number of students or individuals who received gender-affirming
treatment, including surgical procedures, spanning the last five years and where the
treatment was sought. Tt also asks how many of those cases were “first-time” visits for
treatment or were referred to other facilities.

The DeSantis administration also wants to know how many students were diagnosed
with gender identity disorders under a medical classification. Additionally, the request
asks for a breakdown of how many people were prescribed puberty blockers, hormones
or hormone antagonists, or underwent a medical procedure.
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Gender dysphoria refers to the feelings of discomfort or distress some transgender
people experience when their bodies don’t align with their gender. The American
Academy of Pediatrics and the American Medical Association support gender-affirming
care for adults and adolescents.

DeSantis in the past has made several statewide decisions on gender-affirming care,
such as passing rules restricting children from receiving treatments despite medical
associations supporting care. Florida under DeSantis also banned health care providers
from billing Medicaid for gender-affirming medical treatments.

Equality Florida, an LGBTQ advocacy group, called the request by DeSantis “incredibly
disturbing.”

“This is another example of DeSantis using his office to attempt to intimidate colleges
and universities into becoming less inclusive of their students for his political gain,”
Brandon Wolf with Equality Florida said in a statement. “Those institutions should
continue providing affirming services for all students despite the governor’s attempts to
intimidate them.”

This move by DeSantis is similar to his administration’s request earlier this month for
data from colleges regarding spending on diversity, equity and inclusion programs. With
his budget request set to be released sometime in February, these actions could play a
significant role in shaping state funding in Florida’s upcoming legislative session as state
conservatives continue to rail against “wokeness” and “indoctrination” in schools.

The data is due to the DeSantis administration by Feb. 10.

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esqg., MSW (she/her) | Senior Advisor to the Director
Office for Civil Rights

U.S. Department of Health &Human Services

200 Independence Ave. S.W., Room 523E

Washington, D.C. 20201

Phone: {202) 699-1884

Email: dylan.dekervor@hhs gov

de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) </0O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=0BDEC12AD0974EACABABEO32F2B37C91-DEKERVOR, D>

Recipient: Gelman, Laurie (CRT) <Laurie.Gelman@usdoj.gov>
Sent Date: 2023/01/19 11:07:33
Delivered Date: 2023/01/19 11:07:00

Sender:
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de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) </0O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=0BDEC12AD0974EACABABE(O32F2B37C91-DEKERVOR, D>

Rainer, Melanie Fontes {GS/0CR) fo=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
To: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=9¢7242f10a494d45bab72c452ecd%f80-Rainer, Mel
<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>

From:

Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR) /o=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
CC: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=dc5a273e16824884903f0d 2afcBcb225-Jee, Lauren
<Lauren.Jeel @hhs.gov>

Subject: Medicaid and GAC
Date: 2022/08/30 18:21:00
Priority: Normal
Type: Note

Hi Melanie,

Please find attached the Medicaid memo Vatsala and the write up she did on FL {I have removed the
recommendation portions). | will use these two as the basis for the options memo.

(0)(5)

Thanks,
Dylan

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esq., MSW (she/her) | Senior Advisor to the Director
Office for Civil Rights

U.S. Department of Health &Human Services

200 Independence Ave. S.W., Room 532E

Washington, D.C. 20201

Phone: (202) 699-1884

Email: dylan.dekervor@hhs.gov

Upcoming leave: Sept. 30— Oct. 4

de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=0BDEC12AD0974EACABABEO32F2B37C91-DEKERVOR, D>

Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0OS/0CR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=9¢7242f10a494d45bab72c452ecd4f80-Rainer, Mel
<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>;

Jee, Lauren {HHS/OCR) /o=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=dc5a273e16824884903f0d2afcBcb225-Jee, Lauren
<Lauren.)Jeel @hhs.gov>

Sent Date: 2022/08/30 18:21:37
Delivered Date: 2022/08/30 18:21:00

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

Rainer, Melanie Fontes {GS/OCR) fo=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
To: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=9c7242f10a494d45bab72c452ecd%80-Rainer, Mel
<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>

From:

Subject: RE: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities
Date: 2023/01/19 09:24:00

Priority: Normal
Type: Note

I’ll try to find time today or tomorrow to look into it.

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esg., MSW (she/her)
Senior Advisor to the Director

Phone: (202) 699-1884

Email: dylan.dekervor@hhs.gov

From: Rainer, Melanie Fontes {(OS/OCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 5:09 AM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR)
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>; Noonan, Timothy (0S/OCR} <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen,
Marissa {HHS/OCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: Re: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

(0)(5)

Get Qutlook for iI0S

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 9:06:38 AM

To: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/0CR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR)
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>; Noonan, Timothy (OS/OCR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen,
Marissa {HHS/OCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: POUTICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

(b}(5)

Happy to chat through.

Dylan Nicole de Kervar, Esq., MSW (she/her)
Senior Advisor to the Director

Phone: (202) 699-1884

Email: dylan.dekerver@hhs.gov

From: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (OS/0OCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>
Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 9:05 AM



mailto:Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov
mailto:dylan.dekervor@hhs.gov
mailto:Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov
mailto:Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov
mailto:Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov
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
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>; Noonan, Timothy (0S/0CR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen,
Marissa (HHS/OCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: Re: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

(D)5}

Get Qutlook for i0S

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 8:37:58 AM

To: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/0OCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren {HHS/OCR)
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov=; Noonan, Timothy (05/0CR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gerdon-Nguyen,
Marissa {HHS/OCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

b)(5)

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esq., MSW (she/her)
Senior Advisor to the Director

Phone: {202) 699-1884

Email: dylan.dekervor@hhs.gov

From: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/0CR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, January 18, 2023 9:26 PM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren {HHS/OCR)
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>; Noonan, Timothy (05/0CR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen,
Marissa (HHS/OCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: Re: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

b)}(5)
L et’s look into this.

Get Qutlook for i0S

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, Jlanuary 18, 2023 9:24:30 PM

To: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (05/0CR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR)
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
treatment was sought. It also asks how many of those cases were “first-time” visits for
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

Rainer, Melanie Fontes {(0OS/OCR) fo=ExchangelLabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
Recipient: (FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=9c7242f10a494d45bab72c452ecd9f80-Rainer, Mel
<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>

Sent Date: 2023/01/19 09:24:05
Delivered Date: 2023/01/19 09:24:00
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From:

To:

cC:

Subject:

Date:

Importance:
Priority:

Type:

de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR} </Q=EXCHANGELABS/QU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT}/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=0BDEC12AD0974EACABABEQ32F2B37C91-DEKERVOR, D>

Rainer, Melanie Fontes {O5/0CR) fo=ExchangelLabs/cu=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF235PDLT }/cn=Recipients/cn=8c¢7 242f10a494d45bab72c452ecd 9f80-Rainer, Mel
<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>;

Jee, Lauren {HHS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT }fcn=Recipients/cn=dc5a273e16824884903f0d 2afcBcb225-Jee, Lauren
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>;

Perez, Luis (HHS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT ) cn=Recipients/cn=eb4f62687d764a40a5c4e5294b8354a-Perez, Luis
<Luis.Perez@hhs.gov>

Besaw, Rebecca (HHS/OCR) fo=ExchangeLabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPLLT Y cn=Recipients/cn=6bdf80b%ec8a47bbb2d86b558bd8bc31-Besaw, Rebe
<Rebecca.Besaw@hhs.gov>

TODAY: WH/HHS Listening Session @ 3pm - background materialg
2023/04/10 11:09:00

High

Urgent

Note

Good morning Melanie, Lauren, and Luis,

Today at 3pm is the first of four joint WH/HHS Listening sessions with families impacted by state bans on
gender affirming care for minors. | am very sorry | won’t be able to join due to an external appointment
that | cannot reschedule. | hope this will be an informative, and will no doubt be an impactful,
discussion.

The remaining three sessions and state participants are below:

e e Group 2:4/11 at 2:30 pm

o e UT

O

o *MS

® |A

e « Group 3: 4/13 at 12:30 pm

o * GA

o

o e 5D
o *TN

s KY

s * Group 4; 4/14 at 10:30 am
« WV

o

o]
o]
o]

¢ |D
s [N

o MT

Please find attached the run of show, participant list, and background. Apologies for getting this to you
so close to the call. | am going to try to get you paper for the remaining three today.

Best,


mailto:Besaw@hhs.gov
mailto:Luis.Perez@hhs.gov
mailto:Lauren.Jee1@hhs.gov
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

UPCOMING LEAVE: May 29 — July 8, 2023

de Kervar, Dylan (HHS/OCR) </O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP

B (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=0BDEC12AD0974EACABABED32F2B37C91-DEKERVOR, D>
Rainer, Melanie Fontes (OS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=9¢7242f10a494d45bab72c452ecd9f80-Rainer, Mel
<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>;

Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR) /o=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=dc5a273e16824884903f0d2afcBcb225-Jee, Lauren
s <Lauren.]Jeel @hhs.gov>;
Recipient:

Perez, Luis (HHS/OCR) /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=eb4f62687d764a40a5c4e52f94bB354a-Perez, Luis
<Luis.Perez@hhs.gov>;

Besaw, Rebecca (HHS/OCR) fo=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6bdf80b%ecBad7b6b2d86b558bd8bc31-Besaw, Rebe
<Rebecca.Besaw@hhs.gov>

Sent Date: 2023/04/10 11:09:52
Delivered Date: 2023/04/10 11:09:00
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WH/HHS Listening Sessions {first of four)
Session 1: April 10, 2023 B 3:00-4:00pm

Zoom:l(b)(ﬁ)

RUN OF SHOW

WH open callf/intros (3 min)

HHS intros/ opening remarks {~5 min)

Overview of landscape from each state/families tell their stories {10 min for each state}
Open discussion/opportunity for HHS folks to ask questions (10-15 min)

Closing remarks from HHS/WH {5 min)

White House Participants

Hannah Bristol, Senior Advisor at The White House Office of Public Engagement
Jamie Keene, LGBTQ|+, Domestic Policy Council
Megan Mohr, Senior Advisor

HHS Participants {Office for Civil Rights only}

Melanie Fontes Rainer, Director
Lauren lee, Chief of Staff (7}
Luis Perez, Deputy Director, Enforcement Division

State Participants

Texas
o Ricardo Martinez, Equality Texas [MELANIE — YOU have met with Ricardo in-person in
Austin.]
o Rachel, parent of a 12-year-old trans daughter Libby who may join as well
Florida
o Nikole Parker, Equality Florida
o Caitlin: mom of a 6-year-old trans girl.
o Layne: nonbinary parent of a nonbinary child
Missouri
o Katy Erker-Lynch, PROMO
o Shira Berkowitz, PROMO
o Anne and Becky, parents of a trans kid, Anne works at PROMO but is participating fully in
her capacity
o Debi, parent of a 15-year-old trans kid



BACKGROUND:

» The White House asked us to hold a series of listening sessions with advocates and impacted
families from states that have {or are close to} banning gender affirming care for minors.

» The listening sessions are designed to be small, to allow for an intimate conversation where families
can feel comfortable sharing highly personal and traumatic information.

e The states included in today’s call represent those where the executive branch has taken action to
prohibit or limit gender affirming care for minors:

o Texas:In March 2022, Gov. Greg Abbott directed the state’s Department of Family and
Protective Services to investigate certain gender-affirming care for transgender children as
possible child abuse. Private litigants sued, and the order is currently enjoyed with regard to
the plaintiffs only. Texas Senate just advance Senate Bill 14, “a sweeping ban on cross-sex
hormone therapies, puberty blockers and gender-affirming surgeries for minors”; SB 14 is
expected to pass and then move to the Texas House.

o Florida: The Florida board of medicine rule banning gender affirming care for transgender
youth who have not yet begun treatment went in to affect March 16, 2023. One bill
currently advancing through the state Senate would make providing care to minors a third-
degree felony.

o Missouri: On March 20, 2023, Missouri AG Andrew Bailey announced that he was “issuing
an emergency regulation clarifying that, because gender transition interventions are
experimental, they are covered by existing Missouri law governing unfair, deceptive, and
unconscionable business practices, including in administering healthcare services.” The rule
has not been promulgated yet, but once it is the emergency regulation will last 30 legislative
days or 180 days, whichever is longer. The Missouri Senate advanced SB 843 to prohibit
gender affirming care for minors on March 21, 2023.



de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR}) </0=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT}/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=0BDEC12AD0974EACABABEQI2F2B37C91-DEKERVOR, D>

Roman, David (OS5/0OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT }/cn=Recipients/cn=user5d5a5775 <David. Roman@hhs.gov:>;

To: Section 1557 (OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=fde70138c07442e5ab7a347fb520b10b-df73f6bo-26
<5ection15570CR@HHSGOY.onmicrosoft.com:»

Subject: RE: Florida Department of Health releases guidance against gender-affirming care for minors
Date: 2022/04/21 08:50:00

Priority: Normal

From:

Type: Note

Sigh. Now we wait for a governor's order to follow...

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esq., MSW (she/her)
Phone: {202) 699-1884
Email: dy an.dekervor@nhs. gov

From: Roman, David {(OS/OCR) <David.Roman@hhs.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, April 20, 2022 6:22 PM

To: Section 1557 {OCR) <Section15570CR@HHSGOV.onmicrosoft.com>

Subject: Florida Department of Health releases guidance against gender-affirming care for minors

News

Florida Department of Health releases guidance against gender-
affirming care for minors

WLRN 91.3 FM | By Jim Saunders - News Service of Florida
Published April 20, 2022 at 12:30 PM EDT
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Jake Crandall
/
The Montgomery Advertiser Via AP
The guidance comes amid debates in other states about such treatment. Pictured: Protestors in support
of transgender rights rally outside the Alabama State House. The Alabama Senate on Wednesday, Feb.

23, 2022, approved legislation that would prohibit transgender minors from being given treatments to
affirm their gender identity.

The Florida Department of Health on Wednesday released guidance that said treatment
such as puberty-blocking medication and hormone therapy should not be used for
transgender youths, clashing with federal officials over the issue.



The guidance came amid debates in other states about such treatment and is the latest
move by Gov. Ron DeSantis’ administration and Republican leaders to target
transgender issues. As an example, DeSantis last month signed a controversial law that
restricts instruction about gender identity and sexual orientation in public schools.

A news release from the Department of Health said the guidance addresses treatment
of gender dysphoria, which the federal government defines as clinically “significant
distress that a person may feel when sex or gender assigned at birth is not the same as
their identity.”

The state news release said “current evidence does not support the use of puberty
blockers, hormone treatments or surgical procedures for children and adolescents.”
Florida Surgeon General Joseph Ladapo also issued a statement blasting federal
directives that backed treatment for transgender youths.

"It was about injecting political ideology into the health of our children,” Ladapo said.
“Children experiencing gender dysphoria should be supported by family and seek
counseling, not pushed into an irreversible decision before they reach 18."

But the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services last month issued guidance
that said its Office for Civil Rights “will continue working to ensure that transgender and
gender nonconforming youth are able to access health care free from the burden of
discrimination.”

“The Department of Health &Human Services stands with transgender and gender
nonconforming youth and their families — and the significant majority of expert medical
associations — in unequivocally stating that gender affirming care for minors, when
medically appropriate and necessary, improves their physical and mental health,” the
federal agency’s statement said. “Attempts to restrict, challenge or falsely characterize
this potentially lifesaving care as abuse is dangerous. Such attempts block parents from
making critical health care decisions for their children, create a chilling effect on health
care providers who are necessary to provide care for these youth, and ultimately
negatively impact the health and well-being of transgender and gender nonconforming
youth.”

Among medical groups that have supported such treatment are the American Academy
of Pediatrics.

“AAP (the academy} policy states that youths who identify as transgender should have
access to comprehensive, gender-affirming and developmentally appropriate health
care that is provided in a safe and inclusive clinical space in close consultation with
parents,” said a post this month on the academy’s website.

Issues about treatment of transgender youths have led to fights in states such as
Alabama and Texas. Alabama Gov. Kay Ivey this month signed a measure that would



make it a crime to provide treatment such as puberty-blocking medication and hormone-
replacement therapy. The measure quickly drew a legal challenge.

The Florida Department of Health guidance said, in part, that people under age 18
“should not be prescribed puberty blockers or hormone therapy™ and that gender
“reassignment surgery should not be a treatment option for children or adolescents.” It
also said that “social gender transition should not be a treatment option for children or
adolescents.”

“The department crafted this guidance using published and peer-reviewed data that
calls into question the motives of the federal HHS,” the accompanying news release
said. "Guidance of this magnitude requires a full, diligent understanding of the scientific
evidence.”

But the LGBTQ-advocacy group Equality Florida issued a statement that said the
DeSantis administration "seeks to replace science and the safety of young people with
political propaganda."

"The Florida Department of Health has released non-binding guidance opposing
science-backed health care resources for parents of transgender children,” the Equality
Florida statement said. "This guidance demonizes life-saving, medically necessary care
and asserts that the government, not parents, knows best when it comes to health care
for our children. And, once again, DeSantis wants the government to intrude into
doctors’ offices to pander to extremists in service to his political ambitions."

Sent from Mail for Windows

de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR} </0=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT}/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=0BDEC12AD0974EACABABEQ32F2B37C91-DEKERVOR, D>

Roman, David (O5/CCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT }fcn=Recipients/cn=user5d5a5775 <David. Roman@hhs.gov:>;
Recipient: Section 1557 (OCR) /fo=ExchangeLabs/cu=Exchange Administrative Group

(FYDIBOHF235PDLT }/cn=Recipients/cn=fde70138c07442e5ab7a347fb5a%b 10b-df 73f6b6-ab

<Section15570CR@HHSGOV.onmicrosoft.com>

Sent Date: 2022/04/21 08:50:33
Delivered Date: 2022/04/21 08:50:00

Sender:
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de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) </0O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=0BDEC12AD0974EACABABEO32F2B37C91-DEKERVOR, D>

Noonan, Timothy {OS/OCR) /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=12eb3eeBcedB4516902ac690558270ef-Noonan, Tim
<Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>;

Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/0OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=9¢7242f10a494d45bab72c452ecd9f80-Rainer, Mel
<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov:>;

Jee, Lauren {(HHS/OCR) /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=dc5a273e16824884903f0d2afcBcb225-Jee, Lauren
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>;

Gordon-Nguyen, Marissa {(HHS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT )/cn=Recipients/cn=df972908cd4c4422545243f7db2 18a8f-Gordon-Nguy
<Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities
Date: 2023/01/19 08:58:00
Priority: Normal

From:

To:

Type: Note

Many thanks.

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esq., MSW (she/her)
Senior Advisar to the Director

Phone: (202) 699-1884

Email: dylan.dekervor@hhs.gov

From: Noonan, Timothy (OS/0OCR) <Timothy.Necnan@hhs.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 8:50 AM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>; Rainer, Melanie Fontes (OS/OCR)
<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR) <Lauren.Jeel @hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen, Marissa
{HHS/OCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

Yes, we can do that.

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 8:48 AM

To: Noonan, Timothy (OS/OCR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Rainer, Melanie Fontes (OS/OCR)
<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR) <Lauren.Jeel @hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen, Marissa
{HHS/OCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

Thanks, Tim!
Worth flagging for your FERPA colleagues at ED?

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esq., MSW (she/her)
Senior Advisor to the Director
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Phone: (202} 699-1884
Email: dylan.dekervor@hhs.gov

From: Noonan, Timothy (O5/0OCR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 8:47 AM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>; Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/OCR)
<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/0OCR) <Lauren.Jeel @hhs.gov>; Gardon-Nguyen, Marissa
(HHS/OCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

Hi,

We'll start gathering information. Couple of notes for awareness:

(0)(5)

Thanks.

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 8:38 AM

To: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/OCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR})
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
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From: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (O5/0CR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, Jlanuary 18, 2023 9:26 PM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>; lee, Lauren {(HHS/OCR)
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>; Noonan, Timothy (OS/OCR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen,
Marissa {HHS/OCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: Re: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

G
()5} Let’s look into this.

Get Qutlook for iOS

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, January 18, 2023 9:24:30 PM

To: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/0CR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR)
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>; Noanan, Timothy (05/0CR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen,
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

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esg., MSW (she/her) | Senior Advisor to the Director
Office for Civil Rights

U.S. Department of Health &Human Services

200 Independence Ave. SW., Room 523E

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

Noonan, Timethy (OS/0OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ocu=Exchange Administrative Group
{(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=12eb3eeBced84516902ac690558270ef-Noonan, Tim
<Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>;

Recipient: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/OCR) /o=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=9c7242f10a494d45bab72c452ecd9f80-Rainer, Mel
<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>;

Jee, Lauren {HHS/OCR) /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

Sender:


mailto:Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov
mailto:Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov
mailto:dylan.dekervor@hhs.gov

{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=dc5a273e16824884903f0d 2afcBcb225-Jee, Lauren
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>;

Gordon-Nguyen, Marissa (HHS/OCR) /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=df972908cd4c4422945243f7db218a8f-Gardon-Nguy
<Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Sent Date: 2023/01/19 08:58:01
Delivered Date: 2023/01/19 08:58:00
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Rainer, Melanie Fontes {OS/OCR) /O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
From: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=9C7242F10A494D45BAB72CA52ECDIF80-RAINER, MEL
<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>

de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/QCR) fo=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
To: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=0bdec12ad0974eacababe032f2b37c51-Dekervor, D
<Dylan.deKervor@hhs.goy>

Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
CC: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT )/ cn=Recipients/cn=dc5a273e16824884903f0d2afcBch225-Jee, Lauren
<Lauren.Jeel @hhs.gov:>

Subject: RE: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities
Date: 2023/01/19 11:50:16
Due Date: 2023/01/18 19:00:00
Priority: Normal
Type: Note

Sounds good, though, could we task to the region?

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 11:47 AM

To: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/OCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>

Cc: Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR) <Lauren.Jee1@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

Hi Melanie,

(0)(3)

Thanks,
Dylan

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esg., MSW (she/her)
Senior Advisor to the Director

Phone: {202) 699-1884

Email: dylan.dekervor@hhs.gov

From: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (05/QCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>
Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 9:09 AM
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
mailto:L..auren.Jee1@hhs
mailto:Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov
mailto:Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov

<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>; Noonan, Timothy (05/0QCR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen,
Marissa (HHS/QCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>
Subject: Re: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

(0)5)

Get Qutlook for iOS

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/QCR} <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 9:06:38 AM

To: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/0OCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR)
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov=; Noonan, Timothy (O5/0QCR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen,
Marissa {(HHS/QCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

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

Email: dy an.dekervor@nhs.gov

From: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (OS/QOCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 9:05 AM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/QCR} <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren {(HHS/QOCR)
<lLauren.Jeel@hhs.gov=; Noonan, Timothy (0S/OCR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen,
Marissa {HHS/QOCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: Re: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

()5}

Get Qutlook for i05

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 8:37:58 AM

To: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/QOCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR)
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>; Noonan, Timothy (05/0CR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen,
Marissa (HHS/QCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

b))
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Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esq., MSW (she/her)
Senior Advisor to the Director

Phone: (202) 699-1884

Email: dylan.dekervor@hhs.gov

From: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (OS/0CR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, January 18, 2023 9:26 PM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR)
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>; Noonan, Timothy (0S/0OCR) «Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen,
Marissa (HHS/OCR) «Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: Re: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

(D)5} Let’s look into this.

Get Outlook for iOS

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, lanuary 18, 2023 9:24:30 PM

To: Rainer, Melanie Fontes {(OS/OCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren {HHS/OCR)
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
Academy of Pediatrics and the American Medical Association snpport gender-affirming
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
and universities into becoming less inclnsive of their students for his political gain,”
Brandon Wolf with Equality Florida said in a statement. “Those institutions should
continne providing affirming services for all stndents despite the governor’s attempts to
intimidate them.”

This move by DeSantis is similar to his administration’s reqnest earlier this month for
data from colleges regarding spending on diversity, equity and inclusion programs. With
his bndget reqnest set to be released sometime in Febrnary, these actions conld play a
significant role in shaping state funding in Florida’s upcoming legislative session as state
conservatives continne to rail against “wokeness” and “indoctrination” in schools.

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

Rainer, Melanie Fontes (OS5/0CR) fO=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUFP

Sender: v BOHF235PDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=0C7242F10A494D45BAB72CA52ECDOFB0-RAINER, MEL


mailto:dylan.dekervor@hhs.gov

<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>

de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT )/cn=Recipients/cn=0bdec12ad0974eacababe032f2b37c91-Dekervor, D
<Dylan.deKervar@hhs.gov>;

Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR) /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=dc5a273e16824884903f0d2afcBcb225-Jee, Lauren
<Lauren.Jeel @hhs.gov>

Sent Date: 2023/01/1% 11:50:15
Deliverad Date: 2023/01/19 11:50:16

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

Noonan, Timothy (QS/0CR) /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=12eb3eeBcedB4516902ac690558270ef-Noonan, Tim
<Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>;

de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=0bdecl2ad0974eacababe032f2b37c81-Dekervor, D
<Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>;

Jee, Lauren {HHS/OCR) /o=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=dc5a273e16824884903f0d2afcBcb225-Jee, Lauren
<Lauren.Jeel @hhs.gov>;

Gordon-Nguyen, Marissa (HHS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=df972908cd4c4422945243f7db2 18a8f-Gordon-Nguy
<Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: Re: POLITICG: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities
Date: 2023/01/19 09:20:59
Priority: Normal

To:

Type: Note

Thanks.

Get Qutlook for 108

From: Noonan, Timothy (0S/0OCR) <Timothy.Nocnan@hhs.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 9:19:37 AM

To: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/0OCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR)
<Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren {(HHS/OCR) <Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen, Marissa
(HHS/OCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

A university hospital generally would be covered by HIPAA, as university hospitals generally don’t
provide health care services to students for the university, so the records would not fall under the FERPA
exception to HIPAA. University hospitals generally provide health care services without regard to
whether the patient is a student at the university, and not on behalf of the university.

We'll gather information to be clear to whom the request for information was made and what laws
apply.

From: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (OS/0CR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 9:04 AM

To: Noonan, Timothy (O5/0CR) <Timethy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR)
<Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren {HHS/OCR) <Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen, Marissa
{HHS/OCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: Re: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

A hospital that is a university hospital isn’t covered by HIPAA?

Get Qutlook for iOS
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From: Noonan, Timothy (0S/OCR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 8:47:16 AM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>; Rainer, Melanie Fontes (QS/OCR)
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

We'll start gathering information, Couple of notes for awareness:

(0)(5)

Thanks.

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 8:38 AM

To: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0OS/OCR) «Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR)
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

From: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/OCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, January 18, 2023 9:26 PM
To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/QCR) <Dylan.deKervar@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR)
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<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>; Noonan, Timothy (0S/0OCR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen,
Marissa (HHS/OCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>
Subject: Re: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

b} ’ ;
Let’s look into this.

Get Outlook for iOS

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, lanuary 18, 2023 5:24:30 PM

To: Rainer, Melanie Fentes (0S/0OCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR)
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>; Noonan, Timothy (OS/OCR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gerdon-Nguyen,
Marissa {HHS/OCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Flerida universities

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
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A Ensuring elder representation in the country’s largest

PLEDGETO TAKE THE trans and non-binary community survey
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e

\V’ The 2022 U.S. Transgender Survey will launch shortly, and we
"

need to make sure the perspectives and experiences of trans and
non-binary (TGNB) elders are represented. Of the 28,000 people
who took the survey when it was last conducted in 2015, just 16%
were 46 years old and over. It's time to make sure TGNB elders
get the visibility they deserve in this crucial data. The data from
this survey is used to inform media, educators, pelicymakers, and
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the general public about the experiences of TGNB people when it comes to health conditions,
access to healthcare and employment, income, and more. If you are a TGNB elder, we need your
input so the data collected truly represents TGNB people of all ages. Show that TGNB elders refuse
1o be invisible, visit ustranssurvey.orq to take the pledge to participate in the 2022 survey!

Inclusive services continue to improve the lives of = R .
LGBTQ+ elders as they age
Finding an
From heightened rates of loneliness and social isolation, to LGATG: Inclusive: e
Long-Term

challenges in finding welcoming care, LGBTQ+ elders confront
unique experiences every day — with resilience. As SAGE CEO
Michael Adams is quoted in a recent article in USA Today, "We're

Care Community

talking about elders who've lived through decades of oppression,
discrimination, invisibility, viclence, and who have not only
survived, but continued to thrive." SAGE is proud to offer services
and resources that LGBTQ+ elders want, need, and deserve, whether it's the volunteer weekly
phone call program SAGEConnect, or the recent guide released with the HRC Foundation on how to
find inclusive and welcoming long-term care facilities. SAGE's top priority is making sure LGBTQ+
elders continue to have access to services that support us, communities that welcome us, and
opportunities to be given the respect and visibility we deserve. Read more about SAGE’s impact
here.

Overcoming financial challenges in the new year

Last year, older LGBTQ+ people saw a major victory when
surviving same-sex partners who had previously been denied
Social Security Survivor's Benefits could finally receive their
deserved benefits. Because many LGBTQ+ elders depend on this
source of income as they age, this decision provided financial

security to many members of the community who are more likely
than their non-LGBTQ+ counterparts {0 experience poverty and
financial instability. You can visit Lambda Legal's website to find
more information on how to access these benefits. Additionally, for help improving your overall
financial wellness, you can access programs like SAGECents that offer financial assistance
specifically curated for LGBTQ+ elders. With more than 1,000 users across the country, SAGECents
provides LGBTQ+ people with the financial literacy and freedom they deserve as they age. Sign up
for SAGECents to start off the new year confident about your finances.
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Celebrate Black History Month with SAGE

Throughout Black History Month this February, follow SAGE on
social media to watch videos, read blog posts, and hear stories
about and from the LGBTQ+ movement's Black pioneers. SAGE
Centers in New York will also be offering a number of programs

and discussions that highlight Black joy in culture, media, and as a
form of resistance from passionate LGBTQ+ elders and leaders in
the community. We are always looking to hear from our
trailblazers, so if you have a story to share for Black History
Month, please email us at infe@sageusa.org!

Updating SAGE’s organizational language to LGBTQ+

As an organization committed to equity, SAGE continues to evolve and adapt to represent the
breadth of identities among the communities that we serve. This is why, in response to direct
feedback from LGBTQ+ elders across the country, SAGE has updated our organizational language
to use LGBTQ+ (lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, queer and questioning, and other sexual
orientation and/or gender identities) when referring to our community. Read our full statement here.

Save the Date!

Equality Florida 2022 Lobby Days

February 7 &8 (in-person), February 9 - 11 {virtual)

As anti-equality forces in Florida introduce a whole slate of bills that target the LGBTQ+ community —
especially LGBTQ+ elders — we must do everything we can to stand up and fight back. Equality
Florida is hosting their 2022 Lobby Days Program, where YOU can meet with your lawmaker and
make a difference. Sign up here!

Stressed about your finances? SAGECents can help you:

+ Receive accurate information and resources

Sa ( C E N . / Access free tools to improve financial literacy

¥ Increase your financial stability & reduce stress

Sign-up now! sageusa.org/SAGECents

Connect on Twitter | Friend on Facebook | Follow on Instagram | Browse our YouTube
blank
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DELIBERATIVE

DATE: July 22, 2022
TO: Melanie Fontes Rainer, Director, Office for Civil Rights
CC: Dylan de Kervor, Section Chief

FROM: Vatsala Kumar, Intern

SUBJECT: INFORMATION MEMO - Florida Proposed Rule 59G-1.050

1. Background

In June 2022, the Florida Agency for Health Care Administration proposed amendments to
Florida Administrative Code Rule 59G-1.050, the General Medicaid Policy. 48 Fla. Admin. Reg.
2461-62 (June 17, 2022). The proposed rule states that certain gender-affirming procedures are
not covered under Florida Medicare. /d.

This memorandum will first detail the content and timeline of the proposed rule, as well as the
report used to justify promulgation. It will then explore the current status of the proposed rule
and developments since its original publication. It will also note the work of Florida
organizations on this rule, before turning to next steps on the proposed rule.

a. Timeline and Contents

The Florida Agency for Health Care Administration proposed an amendment to the Florida
General Medicaid Policy in June 2022. The proposed amendment adds the following text:

(7) Gender Dysphoria

(a) Florida Medicaid does not cover the following services for the treatment of
gender dysphoria;

1. Puberty blockers;

2. Hormones and hormone antagonists;

3. Sex reassignment surgeries; and

4. Any other procedures that alter primary or secondary sexual characteristics.
(b) For the purpose of determining medical necessity, including Early and
Periodic Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment (EPSDT), the services listed in
subparagraph (7)(a) do not meet the definition of medical necessity in accordance
with Rule 59G-1.010, F.A.C.

48 Fla. Admin. Reg. 2461-62 (June 17, 2022). As rulemaking authority for promulgating this
amendment, the agency cites Florida Statute § 409.919 and § 409.961, which some commenters
have challenged as being insufficient for this proposal. See infra Appendix. Sections 409.919 and
409.961 both include the same language surrounding agency rulemaking. Both state that the
agency “shall adopt any rules necessary to comply with or administer” Medicaid “and all rules
necessary to comply with federal requirements.” Fla. Stat. § 409.919 (2021); Fla. Stat. § 409.961
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(2021).

The Florida Agency for Health Care Administration held a hearing on this proposed rule on July
8, 2022. Written comments were due to the agency on July 11, 2022, and they reportedly
received approximately 1,200 total public comments. Forrest Saunders, Agency for Health Care
Administration Set to Decide on Medicaid Coverage of Gender Dysphoria Therapies, WPTV
(July 11, 2022), https://www.wptv.com/news/lgbtqg/lgbtg-advocates-decry-possible-end-of-
medicaid-coverage-for-gender-dysphoria-treatments. No further developments have yet ensued
on the rule.

b. Florida Medicaid Report

In order for services to be covered under Florida Medicaid, they must be “medically necessary.”
Agency for Health Care Admin., Florida Medicaid: Definitions Policy 7 (2017),
https://ahca.mytlorida.com/medicaid/review/General/59G 1010 Definitions.pdf. Part of this
definition includes being “consistent with generally accepted professional medical standards”
and not being “experimental or investigational.” /d.

Shortly before the proposed rule was published, the Division of Florida Medicaid issued a report
(“Florida Medicaid Report”) concluding that gender-affirming care is not medically necessary
because it is not “consistent with generally accepted professional medical standards™ and it is
“experimental or investigational.” See Div. of Fla. Medicaid, Florida Medicaid: Generally
Accepted Professional Medical Standards Determination on the Treatment of Gender Dvsphoria
(June 2022),

https://www.ahca.myflorida.com/letkidsbekids/docs/ AHCA GAPMS June 2022 Report.pdf. In
making this conclusion, the report opened the door for the Medicaid exclusion. The Florida
Medicaid Report incorporates literature reviews on the etiology of gender dysphoria, desistance
of gender dysphoria and puberty suppression, cross-sex hormones as a treatment for gender
dysphoria, sex reassignment surgery, and the quality of available evidence and bioethical
questions. Id. at 1. It also explores coverage policies domestically and in western Europe, and
includes several attachments, including articles in support. /d. at 1-2.

The Florida Medicaid Report claims that “[a]vailable medical literature provides insufficient
evidence that sex reassignment through medical intervention is a safe and effective treatment for
gender dysphoria” and that studies focusing on the benefits “are either low or very low quality
and rely on unreliable methods.” Id. at 2. It claims that current evidence around gender-affirming
care shows that it “cause[s] irreversible physical changes and side effects that can affect long-
term health.” Id. From the literature reviews conducted, the report states that “Florida Medicaid
has determined that the research supporting sex reassignment treatment is insufficient to
demonstrate efficacy and safety.” Id. at 3.

Numerous critiques have been levied against the Florida Medicaid Report, both in public
comments as described infra Part 2 and in external documents. Most comprehensively, faculty
members from Yale and other universities' drafted a report reviewing the Florida Medicaid

! Faculty members were from Yale Law School, Yale School of Medicine Child Study Center, Yale School of
Medicine Department of Psychiatry, Yale School of Medicine Department of Pediatrics, University of Texas

2
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Report (“Critical Review”). See Meredithe McNamara et al., A Critical Review of the June 2022
Florida Medicaid Report on the Medical Treatment of Gender Dysphoria (July 8, 2022),
hitps://medicine.vale.edu/lgbtgi/research/gender-affirming-
care/florida%20report%201final%205uly%208%202022%20accessible 443048 284 55174 v3.p
df. The Critical Review states that the Florida Medicaid Report “purports to be a review of the
scientific and medical evidence but 1s, in fact, fundamentally unscientific” as it “makes false
statements and contains glaring errors regarding science, statistical methods, and medicine.” /d.
at 2. The Critical Review is structured in five parts. It argues that “medical care for gender
dysphoria 1s supported by a robust scientific consensus, meets generally accepted professional
medical standards, and is neither experimental nor investigational™; that the Florida Medicaid
Report is “a flawed analysis that ignores the scientific evidence and relies instead on pseudo-
science” including experts who have been disqualified in court; that the Florida Medicaid Report
“makes unfounded criticisms of robust and well-regarded clinical research and . . . cites sources
with little or no scientific merit”; that the Florida Medicaid Report’s “linchpin” is an analysis
which is “extremely narrow in scope, inexpert, and so flawed 1t merits no scientific weight at
all”; and that the Florida Medicaid Report “erroneously dismisses solid studies as ‘low quality,
which if followed regularly would mean that widely-used medications and common medical
procedures would also have to be denied coverage. Id. at 3.

]

The Agency for Health Care Administration responded to the Critical Review, stating that it is
“another example of the left-wing academia propaganda machine arrogantly demanding you
follow their words and not the clear evidence-based science sitting right in front of you™ and that
it 1s a “hodgepodge of baseless claims™ without authority or credibility. Dara Kam, Expert
Report Condemns Florida’s Plan to Ban Medicaid Coverage for Transgender Care, Palm Coast
Observer (July 17, 2022), https://www.palmcoastobserver.com/article/expert-report-condemns-
floridas-plan-to-ban-medicaid-coverage-for-transgender-care.

2. Current Status
a. July 8, 2022 Hearing

The Florida Agency for Health Care Administration held a lively public hearing on July 8, 2022
on the proposed rule. The hearing consisted mostly of public comments, a comprehensive
summary of which is attached in the Appendix. The full hearing can be viewed online. 7/8/22
Agency for Health Care Administration Hearing on General Medicaid Policy Rule, Fla. Channel
(July 8, 2022), https://thefloridachannel.org/videos/7-8-22-agency-for-health-care-
administration-hearing-on-general-medicaid-policy-rule/.

The hearing included a “panel of experts” consisting of Dr. Andre Van Mol, Dr. Quentin Van
Meter, and Dr. Miriam Grossman. Dr. Van Meter has been found by a court unqualified to be an
expert on the subject of gender-affirming care. See Stephen Caruso, 4 Texas Judge Ruled This
Doctor was Not an Expert. A Pennsylvania Republican Invited Him to Testify on Trans Health

Southwestern, and University of Alabama at Birmingham. See Meredithe McNamara et al., A Critical Review of the

June 2022 Florida Medicaid Report on the Medical Treatment of Gender Dysphoria (July 8, 2022),

https://medicine.vale.edu/lgbtgi/research/gender-atfirming-
care/florida%20report%e20final%20julv%208%6202022% 20accessible 443048 284 55174 v3.pdf.
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Care, Penn. Capital-Star (Sept. 15, 2020), https://'www.penncapital-star.com/government-
politics/a-texas-judee-ruled-this-doctor-was-not-an-expert-a-pennsylvania-republican-invited-
him-to-testify-on-trans-health-care/. He is also the president of the American College of
Pediatricians, an advocacy group whose primary focus is to advocate for conservative policies in
medicine, which has been categorized by the Southern Poverty Law Center as a hate group. See
American College of Pediatricians, Southern Poverty L. Ctr., https://www.splcenter.org/fighting-
hate/extremist-files/group/american-college-pediatricians (last visited July 22, 2022). Dr. Van
Mol is also a member. Andre Van Mol, Pub. Discourse,
https://www.thepublicdiscourse.com/author/andre-van-mol/ (last visited July 22, 2022). The
panelists spoke at several times during the hearing, primarily to point the audience towards the
Florida Medicaid Report. See Appendix.

Over the two-hour hearing period, fifty public commenters spoke. Forty-two of those
commenters supported the proposed rule and eight opposed it. Of the forty-two in support, two
formerly identified as transgender but have since detransitioned, eight were representatives of the
Christian Family Coalition, and at least ten mentioned God or the Bible as part of their rationale.
Many supporters also raised concerns that children and teenagers are not mature or
knowledgeable enough to choose these procedures, or that they are being unduly influenced by
their peers and may later regret transitioning. Notably, the proposed rule would apply to gender-
affirming care for individuals of all ages, not only youth. 48 Fla. Admin. Reg. 2461-62 (June 17,
2022). Several supporters also cited the Florida Medicaid Report as being well-researched and
providing a strong basis for the rule; some opponents of the rule noted criticisms of the report
including those raised by the Critical Review.

b. Florida Organizations and Individuals

The university faculty who wrote the Critical Review also wrote a significant public comment on
the proposed rule. See Letter from Anne L. Alstott et al. to Simone Marstiller & Tom Wallace re
Rule No. 59G-1.050: General Medicaid Policy (July 8, 2022),
hitps://medicine.vale.edu/lgbtgi/research/gender-affirming-
care/alstoti%20et%20al%20tull%20comment%20proposed%20rule%20re%20gender%20dysph
oria_443049 284 55174 v3.pdf. The letter highlights similar concerns, noting that the
“complete absence of scientific foundation for the Proposed Rule renders it an arbitrary and
capricious use of rulemaking power” and that it “cannot [be] characterize[d] . .. as a valid
interpretation of the existing Florida regulations on generally accepted professional medical
standards, because the [Florida Medicaid] Report fails to satisfy Florida’s own regulatory
requirements for scientific review.” Id. at 2. It reiterates concerns about the Florida Medicaid
Report, including the cited experts’ bias and lack of expertise, errors about scientific research
and medical regulation, and lack of scientific weight. /d. passim, 20.

Disability Rights Florida submitted a comment also opposing the proposed rule. See Letter from
Peter P. Sleasman to Simone Marstiller re Proposed Amendments to Rule 59G-1.050,
https://disabilityrightsflorida.org/images/uploads/DRF Gender Aftirming Care Comment -
Final Signed.pdf. The letter focuses primarily on how this proposed rule “will cause
unnecessary and disproportionate harm to individuals with disabilities living in Florida,”
especially those who are low-income. /d. at 1. It notes that transgender individuals “are more
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than twice as likely as the general population to live in poverty,” and transgender individuals
with disabilities are four times as likely. /d. at 2. Disability Rights Florida goes on to raise
concerns about the agency’s “apparent failure to take even minimal steps to ensure that the
rulemaking workshop . . . is accessible to the very people with disabilities it will directly
impact,” citing to the lack of accommodations, contact information for seeking accommodations,

and response regarding livestreaming. /d. at 3.

As did the Endocrine Society. See Letter from Ursula Kaiser to Agency for Health Care
Administration re 59G-1.050: General Medicaid Policy (July 8, 2022),
https://www.endocrine.org/-/media/endocrine/files/advocacy/society-letters/2022/july-
2022/response-to-tl-medicaid-nprm.pdf. They note that their guidelines, “while not standards of
care that clinicians are legally bound to follow, . . . provide a framework for best practices, and
deviations must be justified.” /d. at 1-2. They expound on how their guidelines were
developed—using a “robust and rigorous process that adheres to the highest standards of
trustworthiness and transparency” and with a “systematic review of the evidence that supports
[clinical] questions”—in contrast to the Florida Medicaid Report, which “did not include
endocrinologists with expertise in transgender medicine,” “makes sweeping statements against
gender affirming medical care that are not supported by evidence or references provided,” and
“does not acknowledge the data showing harm reduction and improvements in behavioral health
1ssues” that result from gender affirming care. /d. at 2-3. The letter goes on to state that this
proposed rule would cause irreparable harm to transgender youth, including putting their lives at
risk. /d. at 6.

Equality Florida advocated against the rule as well. Equality Florida, Press Release, Equality
Florida Decries Proposed Rule to Eliminate Medicaid Coverage for Gender Affirming Care
(June 17, 2022), https://www.eqfl.org/proposed-ahca-rule-2022. They note that this will affect
approximately 9,000 transgender Floridians insured with Medicaid, and that “major medical and
mental health associations recognize the critical importance of gender affirming care.” Id.

The Florida Coalition for Trans Liberation has also put together a short policy brief around the
proposed rule. See Fla. Coal. for Trans Liberation, Stop Rule 59G-1.050 (2022),
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1 1CH]VMOOIi_8altdaE jKacf-xOK5akA/view. They note that
this proposed rule contravenes all major medical advice, pushes a political agenda, and can be
life-threatening. /d.

Florida Policy Institute also submitted a comment. See Letter from Anne Swerlick to Thomas
Wallace re Proposed Rule 59G-1.050, Florida Administrative Code (July 7, 2022),
https://www.dropbox.com/s/1d918vzo6 I xrxac/FPl gender-affirming-

that the proposed rule would “bar transgender patients from accessing essential care and reverse
current Medicaid policies which have been in effect for years. /d. at 1. They also point out that
this is counter to established standards of care, inconsistent with antidiscrimination laws, and
exacerbates the challenges that transgender individuals already face. /d. It closes by noting that
this rule seems to be “weaponiz[ing] [the Medicare program] as a tool for promoting a particular
political agenda.” /d.
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While the majority of public comments during the July 8 hearing were in support of the rule, few
comments posted online seem to be, and Florida Medicaid has not made all of the comments
publicly available. Christian Family Coalition, who was also heavily represented at the July 8
hearing, did make a public statement, stating that this rule was “important and necessary” to
protect Floridians, “especially minors, from harmful transgender surgeries, hormone blockers,
and other unnatural therapies.” CFC Florida to Testify in Support of DeSantis Administration
Rule Banning Medicaid Funding for Transgender Surgeries and Puberty Blockers, Best Things
Fla. (July 8, 2022), https://bestthingsfl.com/news/cfc-florida-to-testify-in-support-of-desantis-
administration-rule-banning-medicaid-funding-for-transgender-surgeries-and-puberty-blockers-
3140322 7-tallahassee-tl. html.

3. Next Steps

Several nonprofit groups in Florida are prepared to push back against the proposed rule. Lambda
Legal, the National Health Law Program, the Florida Health Justice Project, and Southern Legal
Counsel issued a statement criticizing the Florida Medicaid Report and stating that they “stand
ready to defend the rights of transgender people in Florida.” LGBTQ Groups to Fight Florida
Over Medicaid Ban for Trans Treatments, CBS Miami (June 6, 2022),
https://www.cbsnews.com/miami/news/lgbtg-groups-fight-florida-medicaid-ban-transgender-
treatments/,

One potential avenue for doing so may be seeking an administrative determination. Florida law
says that any person “substantially affected by a . . . proposed rule may seek an administrative
determination of the invalidity of the rule on the ground that the rule is an invalid exercise of
delegated legislative authority, Fla. Stat. § 120.56 (2022). If a complaint is properly filed, the
state must assign an administrative law judge (ALJ) to conduct a hearing within thirty days. /d. at
(1)(c). The ALJ may declare the proposed rule wholly or partially invalid, and the rule then may
not be adopted unless the judgment is reversed on appeal. /d. at (2)(b).
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Appendix: Summary from July 8, 2022 Hearing

This appendix will detail the public comments made at the July 8 hearing regarding the proposed
changes to 59G-1.050. There 1s no readily available transcript of the proceedings, so please note
that names below may be missing or misspelled. Each speaker was met with audience applause
at the end of their remarks, but any audience reactions during remarks are noted below.

The meeting opened with introductions of the panelists and representatives and a brief summary
of the rule before opening the floor for public comments. Public commenters were asked to state
their name and organization and to limit comments to two minutes, focusing only on the
proposed rule language. The agency also noted that comments could be submitted via email.

The first speaker was Chloe Cole, a 17-year-old detransitioner from California. Cole began
medical transition at the age of 13. In retrospect, she states that she was not becoming a man, but
was just “fleeing from the uncomfortable feeling of being [a] wom[a]n.” Chloe states that she
“really didn’t understand all of the ramifications of any of the medical decisions that [she] was
making” when she chose to undergo a double mastectomy at the age of 15. She lamented that she
will never be able to breastfeed, has blood clots in her urine, cannot fully empty her bladder, and
does not know if she can ever give birth.?

The next speaker was Sophia Galvin, also a detransitioner. She states that she had a history of
mental illness, including self-harm and suicidal ideation, and that her desire to transition was “all
in an effort to escape the fear of being a woman in this society.” Galvin stated that she had no
support when she chose to detransition; her doctor told her to stop taking hormones but she did
not see a mental health counselor. She said that “this is not good for children” and she “was
harmed by this, and it should not be covered under Medicaid.”

Next, the mother of a transgender boy spoke. She said that a physician gave her son testosterone
at the age of 16 without her consent or knowledge, and that Medicaid covered her son’s double
mastectomy, hysterectomy, and vaginoplasty. She states that her son had private insurance but it
was bypassed. She said that it is “impossible to change one’s biological sex™ and that doctors
should not be affirming the “lie that biological sex is changeable.” She characterized these lies as
“child abuse,” at which point the crowd began to applaud, and said that “amputating the healthy
body parts of a child whose brain has not reached full decision-making maturity is simply
criminal.” This lead to more applause. She further characterized gender-affirming care as a
“medical experiment.”

The next speaker, Jeanette Cooper, spoke on behalf of Partners for Ethical Care. Cooper stated
that “we need to make space in the public sphere for ethical therapists by removing the medical
treatment option™ and characterized gender identity affirmation as a “poisoned bandage on the

2 Several news sources also reported on Chloe and her testimony. See, e.g., Tyler O'Neil, California Ex-Trans Teen
Backs Florida Ban on Medicaid Funds for Transgender Medical interventions, Fox News (July 10, 2022),
https://'www.foxnews.com/health/california-ex-trans-teen-backs-florida-ban-medicaid-funds-transgender-medical-
interventions. In one article, she urged individuals to “wait until you are a fully developed adult” prior to
transitioning. /d. Notably, the Florida proposed rule is not only a prohibition on gender-affirming procedures for
minors, but prohibits Medicaid funding for any gender-affirming procedures regardless of age.

T



https://ht1ps://w,vw.foXI1ews.com/healtb/california-ex-trans-1een-backs-fl

DELIBERATIVE

skin of children causing permanent psychological and physical harm.” The audience applauded
when Cooper said “everyone knows what a woman is, but some people are afraid to say it.”
Cooper went on to state that “the state has no business using taxpayer funding to turn children
into permanent medical patients” and “assisting doctors in selling disabilities to vulnerable
suffering children.” She further said that gender-affirming care is “not real healthcare” and that
the state should instead fund “legitimate care™ that addresses trans children’s “actual needs.” She
likened the satisfaction children get from gender-affirming care to “a street drug that needs to be
injected every day.” Cooper closed by stating that the medical is “failing these families™ and that
her organization supports the proposed rule.

Donna Lambert, on behalf of Concerned Parents, also supported the rule. She said that “the
healthcare professionals are presenting many [parents] with a false and painful choice: accept
what we know will permanently harm our children, or lose them to suicide.” She stated that
“there is no data to prove that medically transitioning minors prevents suicide” and that parents
lose their children down this “dangerous medical path permanently harming their healthy bodies
with off-label drugs and experimental surgeries.” Lambert said that transgender children
“become angry and hostile and resentful; they begin lashing out at anyone who will not agree
with their newfound identity.” She described this as a “destructive social phenomenon™ which
“cuts parents out of the equation.”

A Christian pastor spoke next, stating that the Bible teaches that “God makes people made and
female” and to try and transition people *“is a sin” and “should be a criminal abuse of children,
especially when they’re not at the age when they can properly process what they’re doing to
themselves.” He said that the “one goal” of doctors who provide gender-affirming care is to
“cut[ ] back on the birth rate.” He supported the proposed rule and said Florida should “go
further” and classify aiding in this case as “extreme child abuse.”

Brandy Hendricks stated that gender-affirming procedures “have been shown to be extremely
harmful, especially to minors.” She lamented that children are being allowed to “change their
genders before they’ve even reached puberty or shortly after.” She said that pharmaceutical
companies are advertising puberty blockers to children and unethically enriching themselves.
She too characterized gender-affirming care as “child abuse™ and as “experimental.”

Sabrina Hartsfield, an alumna of Florida State University and a born-again Christian, spoke
against the rule. Hartsfield said that “without gender-affirming healthcare, transgender and
gender nonconforming individuals will die.” She said that, “according to every major legitimate
medical organization, gender-affirming care is the treatment for gender dysphoria.” She said
gender affirming care is “medically necessary and lifesaving treatment™ that should not be
decided by big government overreach. An audience member shouted something indiscernible at
this point in Hartsfield’s comment. Hartsfield went on to state that the proposed rule violates the
Affordable Care Act and Medicaid Act’s nondiscrimination provisions. She noted that denying
gender-affirming care can be life-threatening.

Simone Chris, an attorney and the director of the Transgender Rights Initiative at Southern Legal
Council, “vehemently oppose[d]” the proposed rule. She stated that her organization’s
experience working with hundreds of transgender individuals has evinced *“the tremendous
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benefits that access to [gender-affirming] care provides.” Chris went on to state that “the
insidiousness of this rule 1s exacerbated by the fact that it places in its crosshairs the individuals
in our state who are already disproportionately likely™ to face poverty, homelessness, poor health
outcomes, and limited access to healthcare. She noted that every major medical association
supports gender-affirming care, and that the proposed changes would “cause significant harm™
by depriving individuals of “critical, lifesaving medical care.” Chris went on to state that the
changes to the rule substitute the state’s judgment for that of the patient and their doctor, and that
it is a “shameful waste of state resources.” She cited to nationwide litigation which has struck
down similar laws as inconsistent with the guarantees provided by the Medicaid Act, the Equal
Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment, and the Affordable Care Act, and noted that
Florida will undoubtedly face similar challenges, wasting taxpayer money.

The next speaker, Matthew Benson, a pediatrician and pediatric endocrinologist, agreed with the
proposed changes, stating that the data used to support gender-affirming care “is not scientific.”
He cited to a Swedish study from 2016 which found that the mortality rates of transgender
individuals who received gender-affirming care were three times that of the general population,
and that they attempted suicide five times more often than the general population. He also cited a
similar study from Denmark wherein 10 percent of the study population died over the 20-year
study period. Benson said we need better data and longer-term trials “to justify these kinds of
very aggressive therapies.”

Karen Schoen, a former teacher, spoke on behalf of Florida Citizens Alliance. She opened by
stating that she would like to know “why 0.03 percent of the population is dictating to 99.97
percent of the population™ that their elective surgeries should be paid for. This was met with
audience applause. Schoen said that “kids change their minds™ and that they become fearful of
maturing. She lamented that thirteen-year-olds cannot drive a car, have a drink, or shoot a gun,
but are “in charge” when it comes to changing their gender. This was met with audience laughter
and applause.

The next speaker was Bill Snyder. Snyder first told a story about “reality disease,” stating that
“the further we move from reality, the further we move from morality™ and that “the further we
move from virtue, the more secular we become.” Secularity leads to less freedom, he said, and
then urged Florida to approve the changes to the rule.

Avery Fork with Christian Family Coalition, a college counselor, also spoke in support of the
proposed rule. She characterized gender-affirming procedures as “unnatural therapies being
promoted by radical gender ideals and with no basis in science.” She said the proposed rule
would prevent taxpayers from having to pay for “highly unethical and dangerous procedures.”

Richard Carlins also spoke in support of the rule. He said that our Constitution was founded on
“biblical principles.” Carlins said children are being indoctrinated through commercials, Disney
World, Coca-Cola commercials, and restaurants, and that gender-affirming procedures are a
“horrendous evil.” He said that “God raises up nations and he brings down nations,” which was
met with audience vocal support, and that this is a recent phenomenon. He said we’ve been
“living in Judeo Christian principles™ for 1500 years, and “it’s just recently that we’re throwing
any mention of God [or] the Bible under the bus.”
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Amber Hand with the Body of Christ grew up with two queer parents. She said she had been
considering gender transition for most of her life, but that “we have to teach these kids right from
wrong” and that it is wrong to teach children they can make these decisions. Hand said that she is
glad she never transitioned because she recently realized she wanted children. She went on to
quote the Bible and that it’s “not okay to change your identity.”

The next speaker, Ms. Hazen, also supported the rule. She said that children are being pressured
at a young age to identify as transgender, and that much of the pressure comes from the internet.
She cited a follow-up study of individuals who transitioned, which found that the suicide rate in
those individuals was twenty times the general population. She said that this evinces the “deep
regret” they face after “mutilating™ their bodies. She said that children “don’t understand that
they will never be able to procreate ever again” when we “mutilate these children’s bodies at an
early age.”

Leonard Lord also spoke in favor of the proposed changes. He said that he was also
uncomfortable in his body as a child but was able to get comfortable by becoming closer with
God. The audience murmured in approval. He said that “either we’re playing games, or we really
believe there’s a God and the Bible is true,” and that this “problem™ happens because we don’t
believe in God. Lord said that, with regard to mental health issues, “God’s spirit is the answer to
what’s missing in their lives,” again leading to audience applause and cheers. He said that by
taking God, the Bible, and prayer out of schools, we are removing ourselves of power, love, and
a sound mind. The audience again applauded. He said the “devil is the author of confusion™ (the
audience cheered) and that “if you spend your life trying to figure out if you’re a man or a
woman you’ll never know why you’re here” (again, audience applause).

The next speaker, Pam, also supported “stopping Medicaid from paying for children and
teenagers to have such changes.” She said that children are “confused” and likened gender-
affirming procedures to “paying for [children] to have furry animal body parts,” to which the
audience cheered. She said she is thankful that Florida will “stop the madness” for “the sake of
the children.”

Jon Harris Maurer, the public policy director for Equality Florida, spoke next against the
proposed rule. Maurer said that the proposed changes are without scientific or legal basis and are
“clearly discriminatory.” He cited to numerous experts and organizations who endorse gender-
affirming care. Maurer also said that the agency “lacks the specific delegated rule-making
authority to adopt the proposed rule” and that the statute cited “grants no authority” for the
agency to usurp the role of healthcare providers. He said the rule is discriminatory and targets the
transgender community, and that it would harm the 9,000 transgender Floridians on Medicaid.
An audience member began to shout, and the audience began to speak over Maurer. He said that
the proposed rule is politically calculated and urged them to reject the rule.

Anthony Verdugo spoke on behalf of the Christian Family Coalition as the Executive Director.
Verdugo supported the rule. He said that “they call it gender-affirming care” but “they don’t
care, and it’s not affirming.” He called Chloe Cole and Sophia Galvin “heroes,” and said that this
1s a “war on children and this 1s a crime against humanity.” Verdugo said that “groomers™ are
pressuring children to undergo gender-affirming procedures. He cites to the warning label on a
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package of hormones which states that emotional instability is a side effect. He said that the
organizations Maurer listed “have been discredited” and cited to “more renowned™ organizations
who believe that “the suppression of normal puberty, the use of disease-causing cross sex
hormones, and the surgical mutilation and sterilization of children™ are “atrocities” and “not
health care.”

The next speaker, a veteran and police officer, said that doctors, parents, teachers, and scientists
have been wrong before, but that detransitioners are the “evidence” we need. He said we need to
“stop being ignorant” and that churches are bigger than any organization and in support of the
proposed change. The audience met this with cheers and applause throughout.

Michael Haller, a doctor and professor of medicine at the University of Florida, spoke on his
own behalf. After establishing himself as an expert, he said that this proposed rule makes
“numerous false claims, uses biased reviews of the literature, and relies on more so-called
experts who actually lack actual expertise” in caring for transgender youth. He said that the
state’s assertion that gender-affirming care is not safe or effective is “patently false” and that
nearly every major medical organization supports this care. He says the state is “either unwilling
or willfully chooses to ignore the totality of evidence for gender-affirming care.” He said that the
state’s experts are unqualified. Haller noted that the proposal is “poorly-conceived,” likely to
cause harm, and should be rejected.

At this point, a member of the panel, Dr. Van Meter, made a comment. He said that the
Endocrine Society guidelines are not standards of care, but merely guidelines, drafted by
“ideologues™ from the World Professional Association for Transgender Health. He said that this
group excluded “world renowned experts in the field” and did not include their input “on
purpose.” He said that we “have to stop using the term ‘standards of care® when there are
absolutely no standards of care in this instance that have been addressed.”

Robert Youelis spoke next, lamenting that gender-affirming care was not on anyone’s radar even
five years ago. He said that this is man “proclaim[ing] himself as God” and that there is only one
truth. Youelis said we are “philosophically and morally” going down a slippery slope when we
start considering gender-affirming care. He said that brains are not fully developed until the age
of twenty-five, and children cannot make other decisions in life, so we should not be educating
anyone about gender identities until they are in twelfth grade.

The next speaker, Keith Claw of Florida Citizens Alliance, spoke next. He said that children in
public schools are “purposefully confused, desensitized, and even pressured into abnormal
sexual behavior” and that “gender idealogues are coaching kids to be into this dysphoria.” He
said that there is ongoing debate as to whether gender dysphoria is biological or psychological.
He said that taxpayers should not have to pay for gender-affirming care.

Robert Roper spoke next, also in support of the rule. He said that it “serves to protect the
children.” He said “gender confusion is the only disorder that comes with a false assertion that a
child can be born in the wrong body™ and that it is “impossible” to become the opposite gender.
He went on to say that gender dysphoria is the only “disorder [where] the body is mangled to
conform to the thoughts of the mind” and where “the child actually dictates his or her medical
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care . . . instead of the other way around.” He called this a “social media epidemic manufactured
by social media influencers making a lot of money off the very vulnerable element of our
society.” He likened gender-affirming procedures to giving drugs to a drug addict or alcohol to
an alcoholic and cited to a Reddit post where 35,000 individuals expressed regret of
transitioning.

Karl Charles of Lambda Legal spoke against the proposed rule. He said that this care is
“essential and in some cases lifesaving,” “clinically etfective,” “evidence based,” and “widely
accepted.” Charles said that exclusions such as this one cause “serious immediate and irreparable
harm™ to those who already experience “well-documented and pervasive stigma” and barriers to
healthcare. He said that he is particularly concerned by the agency’s characterization of this care
as “experimental and ineffective,” and that this is contrary to available medical evidence and
misrepresents studies. He notes that the so-called experts relied on have been discredited and do
not treat transgender patients. He noted that no one on the panel was a transgender Medicaid
recipient in Florida, and that singling out transgender Medicaid participants violates Equal
Protection and ACA § 1557.

LIS

A panelist at this point referred everyone to the appendices to the Florida Medicaid Report,
including Dr. Cantor’s reports cited to on page thirty-nine, which discusses each organization
that has supported gender-affirming care.

Ed Wilson spoke in support of the proposed rule, saying that it would “protect children who are
not mature enough to be comfortable in their own bodies™ from “making mistakes that will
destroy their lives.” He said that taxpayer money should “never be used to destroy innocent
lives” and that gender-affirming care “never actually succeed[s]” but does cause harm. He
characterized it as “mutilation” and an “atrocit[y]” to be banned, “not healthcare.”

Suzanne Zimmerman, a relative of a gender dysphoric youth, spoke next. She “pray[ed]” that the
state “not make it easy” for this youth’s parents to be persuaded towards gender-affirming care.
She pointed to the testimony of detransitioners to state that “God doesn’t make mistakes™ (the
audience said “amen”). She urged them to support the changes.

Jean Halloran also supports the changes. She said that Medicaid should not be supporting or
paying for gender-affirming care. She likened gender-affirming care to cosmetic changes to
make her look younger, receiving audience applause and laughter.

Ezra Stone, a clinical social worker, pointed to research that medical transition is safe and
effective. They pointed to clients who have “expressed tremendous relief” and an increased sense
of safety when they are able to access medical care. They said that “understanding and being
seen as [one’s] true sel[f] creates a sense of belonging, which is a fundamental human need.”
They pointed to the political climate in Florida as causing harm and anxiety to “transgender,
nonbinary, questioning, and gender-diverse Floridians.” Their patients “worry about their access
to medical care” and experience fear of violence daily, which supports the minority stress model
that says that expecting harm and violence has a negative impact on mental health and well-
being. They said that this proposed change will create an atmosphere of fear and take away
medically necessary care.
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Peggy Joseph shared the thoughts of Ryan T. Anderson, author of When Harry Became Sally.
She cited to the Obama Administration’s refusal to mandate coverage of gender-affirming
surgeries under Medicaid, which said that there was “not enough evidence” to determine whether
it improved health outcomes. She said that studies with positive outcomes were exploratory,
without follow-up, which “could be pointing to suicide.” She cited to the Swedish study
regarding suicide rates, as well. She said the “minimal standard of care should be with a standard
of normality” and that gender dysphoric thoughts are “misguided and cause harm.”

A panelist again interjected to note that the report on pages 35-36 and 4245 discusses the
international consensus.

Jack Walton with the Christian Family Coalition is a pastor. He said he has counseled queer
individuals for thirty-seven years. He believes that “gender dysphoria should be labeled as child
abuse” and the doctors who prescribe gender-affirming care are “tear{ing] the child apart and
call[ing] it health care.” Walton says that gender-affirming care is “not science™ and that any
such procedures “should be labeled criminal.” He said that “nearly 90 percent of those that
escape from that life do it by the time they reach the end of puberty because they come back to
their senses that they were created male and female by God.” Walton expressed that suicide
happens when a transgender person transitions but “still do[es]n’t find the completion that they
thought they felt.” He said that many individuals transition because of child abuse they faced as
children or because they were not accepted by others. He closed by saying there are “two
genders, male and female; women bear children, women breastfeed, women have menstrual
cycles, men do not.” He said he “would not provide the anorexic with food and [he] would not
say give money to do something that would harm a child.”

Another member of the Christian Family Coalition, Jose, also supported the changes. He
characterized gender-affirming care as “mutilation” and said that transgender individuals need
“counseling” and should not be given a “destructive choice.” He said that everyone will have to
“stand before our living God and give account for where we stand on this and other issues.” He
thanked Chloe Cole and Sophia Galvin for their testimonies.

The panel then asked that members of the same organization be mindful of their time.

Bob Johnson, an attorney, spoke next. He thanked the agency for putting together the report,
noting that it 1s “thorough,” and said the “case 1s compelling.” He strongly supports the rule
change, and this is in large part due to the report making the case. He noted that the “FDA does
not approve any medication as clinically indicated for gender dysphoria” and lamented the lack
of randomized controlled trials and long-term data for puberty suppression medication.

Sandy Westad also spoke on behalf of Christian Family Coalition. She said that her heart is
“breaking for what these kids are going through™ and that “the parents need to stay in control.”
She said that kids “play house™ and “pretend,” but they “don’t want to be or understand or even
know what it is to change from one sex to another.” She said, “children cannot make those kinds
of decisions” and “cannot decide who they are.”

Gayle Carlins also spoke from Christian Family Coalition. She said her beliefs are based on the
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Bible, which is “the only truth that there is,” and which says that “God created male and female.”
She went on to “bring science into it,” stating that females have two X chromosomes and males
have an X and a Y chromosome, and that “it’s an impossibility to change from one to the other”
“no matter what kind of mutilation or anything is done to a person.”

Dorothy Barron spoke next, also from Christian Family Coalition. She first thanked Florida’s
“great governor,” eliciting audience cheers and applause, and thanked Chloe Cole and Sophia
Galvin for not “going along with what you were trying to be brainwashed into” (also eliciting
audience cheers and applause). She said “they’re definitely targeting our youngest,” and
lamented that “we can’t seem to find baby formula anywhere but yet Medicaid can fund this
nonsense.” Barron said it “*has to be left up to the parents,” and that “whatever you choose to
practice in the privacy of your own home is your business™; she is “not discriminating against
any genders or whatever.” She said that it needs to be “taken out of the schools.” She said
Michael Haller’s testimony was “shameful” and is “why we’re in this bloody mess right now,” to
which the audience also cheered and applauded.

The panel reminded the public to be focused on the rule and respectful of other speakers.

Troy Peterson, the president of Warriors of Faith, supported Christian Family Coalition, and
came from the Tampa Bay area. He said that he represents “thousands that stand in agreement”
with the proposed change. He thanked the doctors for the report and said that “when [he] saw the
evidence, [he] could clearly see that we need this rule.” He quoted from Genesis and said that
God created male and female, and he is opposed to Michael Haller as well. He said that “if [he]
had any authority in the medical field, [he] would have [Michael Haller’s] license revoked.” The
audience whistled and verbally approved. He said that the most thorough follow-up of
transgender individuals in Sweden said that “the suicide rate is twenty times that of the
comparable peers” and that “50 percent of the gender identity confused children have thoughts of
suicide.”

Janet Rath spoke next. She said that “fifty years ago, as parents, we were smarter than what’s
going on today,” and that parents are being left out of their children’s lives. She said some of this
is the fault of parents and some is the fault of teachers. She said her granddaughter, a teacher, has
told her that “if she has a child that comes in and identifies as a cat, she must have a litterbox
there and a bowl of water.” Rath said that our country is going “absolutely insane,” and the
audience murmured in agreement. She said that Dr. Fauci is “nothing but a money-grabbing liar”
and “we have been hoodwinked ever since.” Rath went on to say that “Chinese children in third
grade are learning advanced calculus™ but “our third graders are learning which bathroom to
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use.

Gerald Lomer drove 3.5 hours to attend the hearing. He supported the proposed rule and *the
best governor in the United States,” to which the audience cheered and applauded. He told
“stories” of a girl who wanted to spend more time with her father and thought that being a boy
was the best way to do so and a boy who wanted to spend more time with his mother and thought
that being a girl was the best way to do so. He said that thirteen-year-olds cannot drive a car,
drink a beer, or smoke a cigarette, but are able to take hormones and obtain surgeries for gender-
affirming care. He characterized gender-affirming surgeries as “mutilating.”

14
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A pastor from Florida spoke next on behalf of Protect Our Children Project, Duval Country
Charter House, and Christian Family Coalition. She supported the rule prohibiting funding for
“unnatural therapies” and does not want taxpayers to subsidize transgender care. She said that
“transgenderism is driven by unethical pharmaceutical companies enriching themselves with
puberty blockers™ and that this is child abuse. She cited to Swedish psychiatrist Dr. Christopher
Gillberg, who has said that “pediatric transition is possibly one of the greatest scandals in
medical history.”

Paul Aarons, a physician, spoke next. He said he has transgender patients and friends. He said
that he opposes the proposed change, because it “conflicts with the preponderance of medical
science and practice and would do irreparable harm™ to transgender Floridians of all ages. He
said that the American Academy of Pediatrics and its Florida chapter have directly refuted the
agency’s report. Aarons said that, “contrary to an earlier comment, the Endocrine Society has
stated, ‘medical intervention for transgender youth and adults, including puberty suppression
hormone therapy, and medically indicated surgery, has been established as their standard of care.
Federal and private insurers should cover such interventions as prescribed by a physician.”” He
said gender dysphoria is “very real” and that people should meet and speak to transgender
individuals, which will help them realize that denial of care “at any age would be inhumane and
a violation of human rights.” He said that gender-affirming care is “generally accepted
professional medical standards™ and that this rule would put the health and lives of transgender
people in danger. He said that “it feels like Medicaid is crossing into a political lane by seeking
to preempt provider/patient/family decision-making.” He said that, if the agency still wants to
address this topic, they should *at least convene an appropriate panel of experts including
transgender community members to inform yourselves and the public about the overwhelming
evidence against denying coverage for gender affirming care.”

A doctor on the panel then encouraged everyone to read the report and its attachments. He said
that the report focuses on studies which have been brought up, and “specifically the flaws” in
those studies. He also encouraged audience members not to interrupt when others are speaking.
He went on to say that the Endocrine Society’s 2017 guidelines “are guidelines, just that,” and
they “do not guarantee an outcome™ and “do not establish a standard of care.” He also referred to
international reviews which “all came to the same conclusion™ that “this should not be going on
in minors at all,” to which the audience applauded. He said that children need “strong
psychological support” and that four decades of literature point to the “overwhelming probability
of mental health problems after these childhood events™ and “problems like autism spectrum
disorder.” He said that in other nations, having “psychological instability . . . blocks you from the
transition pathway” and that “those things be taken care of first because transition simply won’t
fix them.” He said that the report is a “very well-researched document™ and addresses a lot of the
concerns raised in comment letters.

Another panelist then referred everyone to Attachment C of the report and Dr. Hruz’s
Deficiencies in Scientific Evidence for Medical Management of Gender Dysphoria.

January Littlejohn, a mental health counselor, spoke next. Her child expressed that they were
experiencing gender dysphoria in 2020, shortly after three of their friends had started identifying
as transgender. She said that the middle school had *socially transitioned [her child] without
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their knowledge or consent”? and that her child’s “mental health spiraled.” She said that she has
worked with a psychologist to help address her child’s low self-esteem and anxiety, and has
“given [her child] more one-on-one time, in-person activities away from trans influences, limited
[her child’s] internet use, and declined to affirm [her child’s] newly-chosen name and pronouns.”
She said that they set “appropriate boundaries™ and allowed her child to choose hairstyle and
clothing but “denied harmful requests such as breast binders, puberty blockers, cross-sex
hormones, and surgeries.” She said it was “clear from [their] conversations” that her child was
uncomfortable with their developing body and had “an intense fear of being sexualized.”
Littlejohn said that her child was “filled with self-loathing and was in true emotional pain,” but
“had been led by peers and influencers to believe that gender was the source of [their] pain.” She
said that her child needed to be “remind[ed] that hormones and surgeries can never change
[their] sex or resolve [their] issues.” She said that she “shudder[s] to think what could have
happened if [they] had affirmed [her child’s] false identity and consented to medical treatment”
as opposed to “lovingly affirm [her child] as [they are], beautifully unique and irreplaceable and
undeniably female.” She said that her child has “desisted and is on a path to self-love” but
unfortunately gender dysphoric children are “being encouraged to activism peer pressure to
disassociate from their bodies and to believe their body parts can be simply removed, modified.
or replaced.” Littlejohn said that “the irreversible consequences of medically transitioning,
including loss of sexual and reproductive function, cannot be fully understood by children or
teens who lack the necessary maturity or experience.”

Kendra Barris, a mental health attorney, spoke next. She first addressed the comment about the
lack of peer-reviewed standards of care, saying that this lack means that ““a lot of people who are
harmed or experience bad outcomes from these surgeries or other interventions have no ability to
sue.” She said that “they have had decades to create peer-reviewed standards of care and they
have not,” and she suspects that some people do not want to standards because it would open
them up to lawsuits, which is not currently happening. She went on to say that “when you put a
female on testosterone, within about five years [they are] going to have to have a hysterectomy,”
which for teens could mean a potential hysterectomy before the age of twenty. She said that
“hysterectomy is correlated with negative mental health outcomes and cognitive decline” and
that this 1s worse the earlier a hysterectomy is performed. She said that “essentially, the earlier
you do the hysterectomy, the earlier the onset of dementia.” She is “very concerned about™” how
in a few decades “we’re going to have an absolute wave of young females, 40-50 years old, with
early-onset cognitive decline” in assisted-living facilities. She said that “some people who are
trans and have dementia forget that they’re trans” and if they don’t have written consent to
continue their transition, they “might be cut off.” She worries that “we have not considered all of
the implications of this.”

The next speaker was Nathan Bruemmer, Florida’s LGBTQ Consumer Advocate. He opposed
the proposed rule “on behalf of healthcare consumers,” saying that consumers “must be provided
with accurate information, education, choice, safety, representation, and regress.” He said that

* Note that news organizations have reported that Ms. Littlejohn was aware of her child’s choice to change names
and pronouns at school and told the school she would not stop them from doing so. She later filed a lawsuit against
the school. See, e.g., Leyla Santiago, Fact Check: Emails Show One of Desantis's Stories Backing the Rationale for
So-Called ‘Don 't Say Gay ' Law Didn’t Happen as the Governor Says, CNN Politics (Apr. 6, 2022),
https://www.cnn.com/2022/04/06/politics/fact-check-desantis-dont-sav-gay-familv-narrative/index.itml.
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“documented, well-researched standards of care have been established, are based on a wide
range of evidence, and conclude that gender-affirming medical care is medically necessary and
safe and effective.” In other words, “gender-atfirming care is the standard of care.” Bruemmer
said that the proposed rule would “deny health care consumers . . . access to the standard of
care.” He said that agencies must defend the rights of all Floridians, including transgender
Floridians, and that this includes the right to non-discriminatory healthcare coverage. He said we
should work to increase access to healthcare, not lessen or remove it. Bruemmer said that he 1s
“one of . . . tens of thousands of transgender Floridians™” who have had access to gender-
affirming care, and who are “happy, and successful, and thriving.” He said that transgender
Floridians “deserve the rights and benefits afforded to all.”

The next speaker’s name was inaudible, but he also spoke in support of the proposed rule. He
told examples of his fifteen-year-old son making bad decisions, including speeding on his dirt
bike and wanting to leave home, as proof that “these kids can[’t] make a decision on what they
want that’s going to be with them for the rest of life.” He said that the doctors who spoke
previously “are despicable,” “need to have their licenses taken away,” and “are a disgrace to the
human race.”

A panelist thanked him for his comment and said, “we respect everybody’s comments, including
the doctors that you referenced.”

Dottie McPherson spoke next on behalf of the Florida Federation of Republican Women. She
said that even at the age of eighteen “children don’t have the maturity to handle certain
responsibilities given them” like driving and alcohol, and that “even older adults don’t.” She said
that state programs include “programs for abused and neglected children, but not gender
decisions.” She urged the panel to “prevent funding the destruction of children’s genitalia and
hormonal balance.” McPherson urged the panel to consider unintended consequences, such as
“taxpayer money that will need to be used for lawsuits by those whose lives were ruined from
surgeries that they got while they were immature or too young to understand,” parents whose
“parental rights were denied to protect their children’s future.” She said that “life isn’t fair” and
we have to “stop giving in to the ‘poor pitiful me’ syndrome.” McPherson said that government
“has no business funding these things.”

Maria Caulkins spoke next in support of the proposed rule. She said that taxpayer money should
not be spent on funding surgeries that are “unnecessarily and tremendously harmful.” She said
that there is “a war on our children” and that we need to “protect our children” and “support our
governor” by being on the “right side” of this war.

James Caulkins also spoke in support of the rule, saying that we’re “in a battle in this country.”
He said that the people of Florida “have spoken” by electing “the greatest governor in the United
States,” to which the audience cheered and applauded. Caulkins said that we “don’t need this
stuff, this evil, this Medicaid funding for transgender surgery” and that Florida should lead other
states against “this evil.”

The final speaker, whose name was also inaudible, spoke in support of the proposed rule. She
said that, years ago, she was told by a doctor that she needed to undergo hormone therapy, but
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she “saw the risks involved.” She said that hormone therapy is an attempt to “prevent . . . natural
things from occurring,” such as menstruation, and we can’t expect it not to have any problems.
She cited to Bill Maher, who pointed out that transgender procedures were only occurring in
major cities where “social engineering is happening and where people are being influenced” but
not in the rest of the country. She lamented that she can’t go to the media and say anything
against transgender individuals because it will be “criticized and condemned™ which “isn’t fair.”
She said that “the government should not be involved in supporting any kind of procedure to
these young kids.”

A panelist thanked everyone for their comments and then clarified the purpose of the rule. He
said that it is not “a ban on treatment for gender dysphoria,” but rather lack of Medicaid coverage
for services mentioned in the proposed rule. He also said that “there are other comprehensive
coverage of services for gender dysphoria currently in the Florida Medicaid program” before
reading some of those services (community-based services, psychiatric services, emergency
services and inpatient services, and behavioral health services in schools).
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Noonan, Timothy {OS/OCR) fO=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
From: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=12EB3EEBCED84516902AC690558270EF-NOONAN, TIM
<Timothy.Nochan®hhs.gov>

de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) fo=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=0bdec12ad0974eacababe032f2b37c91-Dekervor, D
<Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>;

Rainer, Melanie Fontes (OS/0CR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=9¢7242f10a494d45bab72c452ecd9f80-Rainer, Mel
<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>;

Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR) fo=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=dc5a273e16824884903f0d2afcBcb225-Jee, Lauren
<Lauren.Jeel @hhs.gov>;

Gordon-Nguyen, Marissa (HHS/CCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=df972908cd4c4422945243f7db2 18a8f-Gordon-Nguy
<Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: POLITICQ: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities
Date: 2023/01/19 12:31:53
Priority: Normal

To:

Type: Note

Thanks.

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 12:22 PM

To: Noonan, Timothy (OS/OCR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Rainer, Melanie Fontes {(0S/OCR)
<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; lee, Lauren {HHS/QCR) <Lauren.leel@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen, Marissa
{HHS/OCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

Also, here is the memao that was sent: https://subscriber.politicopro.com/f/?id=00000185-c6e5-ded4-
a7bf-eef78e920000

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esg., MSW (she/her)
Senior Advisor to the Director

Phone: (202) 699-1884

Email: dylan.dekervor@hhs.gov

From: Noonan, Timothy (05/0CR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 9:20 AM

To: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/0OCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/QCR)
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

To: Noonan, Timothy (O5/0CR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR)
<Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR) <Lauren.leel@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen, Marissa
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

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>; Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/QCR)
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

(b)(5)

Thanks.

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov:

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 8:38 AM

To: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (05/0CR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR)
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>; Noonan, Timothy (OS/0CR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen,
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

Sent: Wednesday, lanuary 18, 2023 9:26 PM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR)
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>; Noonan, Timothy (OS/0OCR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen,
Marissa {HHS/OCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: Re: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

Given its schools but likely health systems do we think there is a hook? Let’s look into this,

Get Outlook for i0OS

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, January 18, 2023 9:24:30 PM

To: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/0OCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/QCR)
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>; Noonan, Timothy (0S/0OCR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen,
Marissa {(HHS/OCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

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
significant role in shaping state funding in Florida's upcoming legislative session as state
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

200 Independence Ave. 5.W., Room 523E

Washington, D.C. 20201

Phone: {202) 699-1884

Email: dylan.dekerver@hhs.gov
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Noonan, Timothy {OS/OCR) /O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
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<Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>
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Rainer, Melanie Fontes (OS/0OCR) /o=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
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Ron DeSantis

Mission: Gavermor

To protect, promote & improve the health

of all people in Florida through integrated T aws ol 4
state, county & community efforts. L- 10T10dA Joseph A. Ladapo, MD, PhD

H EALTH State Surgeon General

Vision: To be the Healthiest State in the Nation

Treatment of Gender Dysphoria for Children and Adolescents
April 20, 2022

The Florida Department of Health wants to clarify evidence recently cited on a fact sheet released by
the US Department of Health and Human Services and provide guidance on treating gender dysphoria
for children and adolescents.

Systematic reviews on hormonal treatment for young people show a trend of low-quality evidence,
small sample sizes, and medium to high risk of bias. A paper published in the International Review of
Psychiatry states that 80% of those seeking clinical care will lose their desire to identify with the non-
birth sex. One review concludes that "harmonal treatments for transgender adolescents can achieve
their intended physical effects, but evidence regarding their psychosocial and cognitive impact is
generally lacking."

According to the Merck Manual, “gender dysphoria is characterized by a strong, persistent cross-
gender identification associated with anxiety, depression, irritability, and often a wish to live as a gender
different from the one associated with the sex assigned at birth.”

Due to the lack of conclusive evidence, and the potential for long-term, irreversible effects, the
Department's guidelines are as follows:

» Social gender transition should not be a treatment option for children or adolescents.

¢« Anyone under 18 should not be prescribed puberty blockers or hormone therapy.

s (Gender reassignment surgery should not be a treatment option for children or adolescents.

o Based on the currently available evidence, "encouraging mastectomy, ovariectomy,
uterine extirpation, penile disablement, tracheal shave, the prescription of hormones
which are out of line with the genetic make-up of the child, or puberty blackers, are all
clinical practices which run an unacceptably high risk of doing harm."

« Children and adolescents should be provided social support by peers and family and seek
counseling from a licensed provider.

These guidelines do not apply to procedures or treatments for children or adolescents born with a
genetically or biochemically verifiable disorder of sex development (DSD). These disorders include, but
are not limited to, 46, XX DSD; 46, XY DSD; sex chromosome DSDs; XX or XY sex reversal; and
ovotesticular disorder.

The Department’s guidelines are consistent with the federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Services age requirement for surgical and non-surgical treatment. These guidelines are also in line with
the guidance, reviews, and recommendations from Sweden, Finland, the United Kingdom, and France.

Parents are encouraged to reach out to their child’'s health care provider for more information.

Florida Department of Health

Office of the State Surgeon General Accredited Health Department
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Jee, Lauren {(HHS/OCR) /O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
From: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=DC5A273E16824884903F0D2AFC8CB225-1EE, LAUREN
<Lauren,Jeel @hhs.gov>

de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) fo=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
To: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=0bdecl2ad0974eacababe032f2b37c51-Dekervor, D
<Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Barraon, Pamela {(HHS/OCR) fo=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=d55f83440f074842ac94e1f27f11fa%e-Barron, Pam
<Pamela.Barron@hhs.gov>;
Kumar, Vatsala {HHS/OCR) /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

CC: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=fc510606a903493%ac2eb2c237ddBcf3-Kumar, Vats
<Vatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov>;
Huggins, Michael (HHS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=9597596b8c4d4b8d9faf4922101a611b-Huggins, Mi
<Michael.Huggins@hhs.gov>

RE: FOR FRIDAY - Background memo on Florida's General Medicaid Policy proposed rule {limiting
gender affirming care)

Date: 2022/07/27 14:36:06
Priority: Normal

Subject:

Type: Note

()5}

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, luly 27, 2022 12:56 PM

To: Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR) <Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>

Cc: Barron, Pamela (HH5/OCR} <Pamela.Barren@hhs.gov>; Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/OCR)
<Vatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov>; Huggins, Michael {HHS/OCR) <Michael. Huggins@hhs.gov>

Subject: FOR FRIDAY - Background memo on Florida’s General Medicaid Policy proposed rule {limiting
gender affirming care)

Hi Lauren,

In anticipation of ocur call with CMS regarding propesed amendments to Florida’s General Medicaid
Policy to limit coverage of gender dysphoria treatment, | am sharing the attached informational memo
for the Director prepared by Vatsala Kumar. The memo provides a summary of the rule and its current
status. The memo itself is five pages, and the following 12 pages provide a summary of the July 8, 2022
public hearing on the proposed rule.

Please let us know if you have any questions.

Best,
Dylan

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esqg., MSW {she/her) | Section Chief
Office for Civil Rights
U.S. Department of Health &Human Services
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Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/OCR) /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
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DELIBERATIVE

DATE: July 22, 2022

TO: Melanie Fontes Rainer, Director, Office for Civil Rights
THROUGH: Dylan de Kervor, Section Chief

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
agency “‘shall adopt any rules necessary to comply with or administer” Medicaid *“and all rules
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
(July 11, 2022). No further developments have yet ensued on the rule.

b. Florida Medicaid Report

In order for services to be covered under Florida Medicaid, they must be “medically necessary.”
Agency for Health Care Admin., Florida Medicaid: Definitions Policy 7 (2017). Part of this
definition includes being “consistent with generally accepted professional medical standards”
and not being “experimental or investigational.” Id.

Shortly before the proposed rule was published, the Division of Florida Medicaid issued a report
(“Florida Medicaid Report”) concluding that gender-affirming care is not medically necessary
because it is not “consistent with generally accepted professional medical standards” and it is
“experimental or investigational.” See Div. of Fla. Medicaid, Florida Medicaid: Generally
Accepted Professional Medical Standards Determination on the Treatment of Gender Dysphoria
(June 2022). In making this conclusion, the report opened the door for the Medicaid exclusion.
The Florida Medicaid Report incorporates literature reviews on the etiology of gender dysphoria,
desistance of gender dysphoria and puberty suppression, cross-sex hormones as a treatment for
gender dysphoria, sex reassignment surgery, and the quality of available evidence and bioethical
questions. Id. at 1. It also explores coverage policies domestically and in western Europe, and
includes several attachments, including articles in support. Id. at 1-2.

The Florida Medicaid Report claims that “[a]vailable medical literature provides insufficient
evidence that sex reassignment through medical intervention is a safe and effective treatment for
gender dysphoria” and that studies focusing on the benefits “are either low or very low quality
and rely on unreliable methods.” /d. at 2. It claims that current evidence around gender-affirming
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
Report (“Critical Review”). See Meredithe McNamara et al., (July 8, 2022). The Critical Review

! Faculty members were from Yale Law School, Yale School of Medicine Child Study Center, Yale School of
Medicine Department of Psychiatry, Yale School of Medicine Department of Pediatrics, University of Texas
Southwestern, and University of Alabama at Birmingham. See Meredithe McNamara et al., A Critical Review of the
June 2022 Florida Medicaid Repori on the Medical Treatment of Gender Dysphoria (July 8, 2022),
https://medicine.vale.edu/lgbtgi/research/gender-atfirming-
care/florida%20report%e20final%20july%208%202022%20accessible 443048 284 55174 v3.pdf.
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states that the Florida Medicaid Report “purports to be a review of the scientific and medical
evidence but is, in fact, fundamentally unscientific” as it “makes false statements and contains
glaring errors regarding science, statistical methods, and medicine.” Id. at 2. The Critical Review
1s structured in five parts. It argues that “medical care for gender dysphoria is supported by a
robust scientific consensus, meets generally accepted professional medical standards, and is
neither experimental nor investigational”; that the Florida Medicaid Report is “a flawed analysis
that ignores the scientific evidence and relies instead on pseudo-science” including experts who
have been disqualified in court; that the Florida Medicaid Report “makes unfounded criticisms of
robust and well-regarded clinical research and . . . cites sources with little or no scientific merit™;
that the Florida Medicaid Report’s “linchpin” is an analysis which is “extremely narrow in
scope, inexpert, and so flawed it merits no scientific weight at all”; and that the Florida Medicaid
Report “erroneously dismisses solid studies as ‘low quality,” which if followed regularly would
mean that widely-used medications and common medical procedures would also have to be
denied coverage. /d. at 3.

The Florida Agency for Health Care Administration responded to the Critical Review, stating
that it is “‘another example of the left-wing academia propaganda machine arrogantly demanding
you follow their words and not the clear evidence-based science sitting right in front of you™ and
that it 1s a “hodgepodge of baseless claims™ without authority or credibility. Dara Kam, Expert
Report Condemns Florida s Plan to Ban Medicaid Coverage for Transgender Care, Palm Coast
Observer (July 17, 2022).

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
(July 8, 2022).

The hearing included a “panel of experts” consisting of Dr. Andre Van Mol, Dr. Quentin Van
Meter, and Dr. Miriam Grossman. Dr. Van Meter has been found by a court unqualified to be an
expert on the subject of gender-atfirming care. See Stephen Caruso, A Texas Judge Ruled This
Doctor was Not an Expert. A Pennsylvania Republican Invited Him to Testifv on Trans Health
Care, Penn. Capital-Star (Sept. 15, 2020). He is also the president of the American College of
Pediatricians, an advocacy group whose primary focus is to advocate for conservative policies in
medicine, which has been categorized by the Southern Poverty Law Center as a hate group. See
American College of Pediatricians, Southern Poverty L. Ctr. (last visited July 22, 2022). Dr. Van
Mol is also a member. Andre Van Mol, Pub. Discourse (last visited July 22, 2022). The panelists
spoke at several times during the hearing, primarily to point the audience towards the Florida
Medicaid Report. See Appendix.

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
Rule No. 59G-1.050: General Medicaid Policy (July 8, 2022). The letter highlights similar
concerns, noting that the “complete absence of scientific foundation for the Proposed Rule
renders it an arbitrary and capricious use of rulemaking power” and that it “cannot [be]
characterize[d] . . . as a valid interpretation of the existing Florida regulations on generally
accepted professional medical standards, because the [Florida Medicaid] Report fails to satisfy
Florida’s own regulatory requirements for scientific review.” Id. at 2. It reiterates concerns about
the Florida Medicaid Report, including the cited experts” bias and lack of expertise, errors about
scientific research and medical regulation, and lack of scientific weight. /d. passim, 20.

Disability Rights Florida submitted a comment also opposing the proposed rule. See Letter from
Peter P. Sleasman to Simone Marstiller re Proposed Amendments to Rule 59G-1.050. The letter
focuses primarily on how this proposed rule “will cause unnecessary and disproportionate harm
to individuals with disabilities living in Florida,” especially those who are low-income. /d. at 1.
It notes that transgender individuals “are more than twice as likely as the general population to
live in poverty,” and transgender individuals with disabilities are four times as likely. /d. at 2.
Disability Rights Florida goes on to raise concerns about the agency’s “apparent failure to take
even minimal steps to ensure that the rulemaking workshop . . . is accessible to the very people
with disabilities it will directly impact,” citing to the lack of accommodations, contact

information for seeking accommodations, and response regarding livestreaming. /d. at 3.

As did the Endocrine Society. See Letter from Ursula Kaiser to Agency for Health Care
Administration re 59G-1.050: General Medicaid Policy (July 8, 2022). They note that their
guidelines, “while not standards of care that clinicians are legally bound to follow, . . . provide a
framework for best practices, and deviations must be justified.” /d. at 1-2. They expound on how
their guidelines were developed—using a “robust and rigorous process that adheres to the
highest standards of trustworthiness and transparency™ and with a “systematic review of the
evidence that supports [clinical] questions”™—in contrast to the Florida Medicaid Report, which
“did not include endocrinologists with expertise in transgender medicine,” “makes sweeping
statements against gender affirming medical care that are not supported by evidence or
references provided,” and “does not acknowledge the data showing harm reduction and
improvements in behavioral health issues™ that result from gender affirming care. /d. at 2-3. The
letter goes on to state that this proposed rule would cause irreparable harm to transgender youth,
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including putting their lives at risk. /d. at 6.

Equality Florida advocated against the rule as well. Equality Florida, Press Release, Equality
Florida Decries Proposed Rule to Eliminate Medicaid Coverage for Gender Affirming Care
(June 17, 2022). They note that this will affect approximately 9,000 transgender Floridians
insured with Medicaid, and that “major medical and mental health associations recognize the
critical importance of gender affirming care.” /d.

The Florida Coalition for Trans Liberation has also put together a short policy brief around the
proposed rule. See Fla. Coal. for Trans Liberation, Stop Rule 59G-1.050 (2022). They note that
this proposed rule contravenes all major medical advice, pushes a political agenda, and can be
life-threatening. Id.

Florida Policy Institute also submitted a comment. See Letter from Anne Swerlick to Thomas
Wallace re Proposed Rule 59G-1.050, Florida Administrative Code (July 7, 2022). They note
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
political agenda.” Id.

While the majority of public comments during the July 8 hearing were in support of the rule, few
comments posted online seem to be, and Florida Medicaid has not made all of the comments
publicly available. Christian Family Coalition, who was also heavily represented at the July 8
hearing, did make a public statement, stating that this rule was “important and necessary™ to
protect Floridians, “especially minors, from harmful transgender surgeries, hormone blockers,
and other unnatural therapies.” CFC Florida to Testifv in Support of DeSantis Administration
Rule Banning Medicaid Funding for Transgender Surgeries and Puberty Blockers, Best Things
Fla. {(July 8, 2022).

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
ready to defend the rights of transgender people in Florida.” LGBTO Groups to Fight Florida
Over Medicaid Ban for Trans Treatments, CBS Miami (June 6, 2022).

One potential avenue for doing so may be seeking an administrative determination. Florida law
says that any person “substantially affected by a . . . proposed rule may seek an administrative
determination of the invalidity of the rule on the ground that the rule is an invalid exercise of
delegated legislative authority. Fla. Stat. § 120.56 (2022). If a complaint is properly filed, the
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

2 Several news sources alse reported on Chloe and her testimony. See, e.g., Tyler O'Neil, California Ex-Trans Teen
Backs Florida Ban on Medicaid Funds for Transgender Medical interventions, Fox News (July 10, 2022),
https://'www.foxnews.com/health/california-ex-trans-teen-backs-florida-ban-medicaid-funds-transgender-medical-
interventions. In one article, she urged individuals to “wait until you are a fully developed adult™ prior to
transitioning. /d. Notably, the Florida proposed rule is not only a prohibition on gender-affirming procedures for
minors, but prohibits Medicaid funding for any gender-affirming procedures regardless of age.

6
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
characterized it as “mutilation™ and an “atrocit[y]” to be banned, “not healthcare.”

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

LY



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

k|

use.

Gerald Lomer drove 3.5 hours to attend the hearing. He supported the proposed rule and “the
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
[their] sex or resolve [their] issues.” She said that she “shudder(s] to think what could have
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
lack of peer-reviewed standards of care, saying that this lack means that “‘a lot of people who are
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
So-Called "Don 't Say Gay' Law Didn’t Happen as the Governor Says, CNN Politics (Apr. 6, 2022),
https://www.cnn.com/2022/04/06/politics/fact-check-desantis-dont-sav-gay-familv-narrative/index.hitml.
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
should work to increase access to healthcare, not lessen or remove it. Bruemmer said that he is
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
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lonathan Schwarz
Angelea Mejia
lean Koehle
Rogena Pancake
Frank Pecarara
RG

Charles Peters, MD
Angnymaus
Anonymeous
Lindsey Ockers

5 Larson

_ Patrich Hayes

Sally Melnmis
Angnymeaus
Lizbeth Carney
Kate OBrier
FRobert Englert
Mary Kay Wegensr
Marilyn O'Brien
ANonymous
Martln Croxtan
Heidi Carrell
Dennis Fleming
Stephanle Stewart
Kat Duesterhaus
Kitty Snead
Cheryl Bercier
Deana Spencer
Lisa Freund
Katle Klng

CE Durfee
Fredrick Charles
Cheryl Cristello
Russell Dover
Gary Howell
Kadi Jah Spence
Debarah Flood
Lynn Hardield
Kenny Williams



HH5-05-2022-0012-0755
HHS5-05-2022-0012-075%
HHS-05-202 20012 0761
HHS-05-2022-0012-0762
HH5-05-2022-0012-0767
HH5-052022-0012-0770
HHS-05-2022-0012-0771
HHE-05-2022-0012-0772
HH5-05-2022-0012-0773
HHS5-05-2022-0012-0774
HHS-05-2022-0012-0775
HH5-052022-0012-0782
HH5-05-2022-0012-0786
HH5-05-2022-0012-0787
HHS-D5-2022-0012-0788
HH5-05-2022-0012-0789
HHS5-05-2022-0012-0791
HHS-05-2022-0012-0792
HH5-05-2022-0012-0793
HH5-05-2022-0012-0794
HHS-05-2022-0012-0795
HH5-05-2022-0012-0798
HHE5-05-2022-0012 0802
HHS-05-2022-0012-0B03
HHS-05-2022-0012-0804
HH5-05-2022-0012- 0805
HHS-05-2022-0012-0606
HHS5-(5-2022-0012-080%
HHS-05- 202 20012 0814

HHS-05-2022-0012-D816

HHS-05-2022-0012-0820
HHS-05-2022.0012-0830
HHS-05-20220012-0835
HH5-05-2022-0012-0836
HHS-05-2022-0012-0840
HH5-05-2022-0012-0842
HH5-05-2022-0012-0843
HHS-052022-0012 0843
HH5-05-2022-0012-0850
HHS-05-2022-0012-0851
HH5-05 2022-0012-0352
HH5-05-2022-0012-0865
HH5-05-2022-0012-0870
HHE-05-2022-0012-08T72
HH5-05-2022-0012-0874

HHE5-05-2022-0012-0685

HH5-05-2022-0012-0899
HH5-05-2022-0012-0917
HH5-05-2022-0012 0918
HH5-05-2022-0012-0932
HH5-05-2022-0012-0933
HH5-052022 00120934
HHS-05-2022-0012-0936
HHS-05-2022-0012-0840
HH5-05:2022-0012-0942
HH5-05-2022-0012-0946
HHS5-05-2022-0012-0954
HHS-05- 202 2-0012-095%
HHS-05-2022-0012-0960
HHS5-05-2022-0012-0863
HHS-05-202 20012 0966
HH5-05-2022-0012-0973
HH3-05-2022-0012-0975
HH5-05-2022-0012-0982
HHS-(15-2022-0012-0983
HHE-05-2022-0012-0984
HHS-05-2022-0012-0986
HHS5-05-2022-0012-0987
HH5-05-2022-0012-0988
HHS-05-2022-0012-0989
HH5-05-2022-0012-D992
HH5-05-2022-0012-0996
HHS-05-2022-0012-1001
HH5-05-2022-0012-1002
HHE5-05- 2022-0012 1003
HHS-05-2022-0012-1004
HH5-05-2022-0012-1005
HHS-0%-2022-0012-1006
HHS-D5-2022-0012-3047
HHS5-05-2022-0012-3067
HHS:05:2022-0012-3065
HHS-05-2022-0012-3073
HH5-05-2022-0012-3115
HHS-05-2022-0012-3144
HHS-05:2022-0012-3150
HH5-05-2022-0012-3151
HHS-05.2022-0012-3166
HH5-05-2022-0012-3185
HH5-05-2022-0012-3186
HH5-05 20220012 3187
HH5-05-2022-0012-3185
HH5-05-2022-0012-3189
HHS-05-2022-0012-3180
HH5-05-2022-0012-3191
HHS5-05-2022-0012-3192
HHS-05-2022-0012-3193
HH5-05-2022-0012-3194
HH5-05-2022-0012-3195
HH5-05-2022-0012-3196

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-0760
HHS05-2022-0012-DRAFT-0764
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-0766
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-0767
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-0772
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 0775
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-0776
HHS0%5-2022-0012-DRAFT-0777
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-0778
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-0779
HHF-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-0780
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT DB??
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-0881
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-D282
HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-03E3
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-0384
HH5-045-2022-0012-0731

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-0387
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT (362
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-02E9
HHS-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-0990
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-1043
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-1081
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-1084
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-1110
HH3-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-1112
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-1118
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-1152
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-1255
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-1267
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-1331
HHS-0%-2022-0012-ORAFT 1429
HH5-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-1509
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-1518
HHS- 05 2022-0012-DRAFT-1574
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-1584
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-1604
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-L638
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-1641
HH5-5-2022-0012- DRAFT-1657

HHS—CPS—ZDZZ 0012-DRAFT- 1592.

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-1865
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-1813
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-1957
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-1861
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-2104
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-2192
HHS-015-2022-0012-DRAFT-2345
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-2351
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-2547
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-2576
HHS-0%-2022 0012- DRAFT 2563
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-2597
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-2663
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-2673
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-2726
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-2770
HHS-0%-2022 0012-DRAFT-2851
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-2861
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-2873
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-2882
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-2370
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-2978
HHS-0%-2022 0012 DRAFT-3102
HHS-0%5-2022-0012-DRAFT-3108
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3110
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3120
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-3122
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3132
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3152
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3174
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3222
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3248
HHS-(15-2022-0012-1002

P O MG

HH5-05-2022-0012-1004

HHS-05-2022-0012-1005

HHS-05-2022-0012-1006

HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3263
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3254
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-3285
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3290
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3332
HHS-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT 3363
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3365
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3370
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3385
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3404
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3405
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 3406
HH5-05-2022-0012-DIRAFT-3407
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3408
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3408
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3410
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3411
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3412
HHS-05-023-0012-DRAFT-3413
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3414
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3415

Lavon Youlns
Lorraine {ranston
Ann Hearden
Meike Babel
Anonymaous
Robert Pruden
Jalyn Girardot
Ananymous
Anonymous

LF

Eathleen Gaoryl
Anonymous
Dorothy Harmington
Anonymaous

Chriz An:lres
a\nclnymaus

Erik Wolf

David Behrle
Angnymaus
lennifer Yeung
Julia Nelsan

Kami Easlick-Cpp
Pamela Kallmyer
Sallye Eveland
Donna Farrell
Motria Stachur
Wictoria Damba
Thomas Chleboski
Sara Dodsen
Brian Hennessey
Abigail Leali
Themas Wil
Barbara Dodson
Karen Kosiarek
Anthony Slebers
Kellie Boyden
Sharon Trinastich
Sharon Wiehe
Kathleen & Halley
Brian Belanger
Connie Wasan
Elizabeth Cassidy
Susan Newman
Melanie Marshall
Delaney Faas
Patricia Thedinger
David Currie
Marie Ebiner Gavit
Robert Roller
Mary 5t George
Bridget Taro
Randall Johannes
Patricia Cermne
Linda Baron
David Gauthler
Laura Dibichael
Erian YWalser
Isayshelow Mettosubomitths
Dennis Duveliug
Leslie Gola

Anne M Brumrmer
Lynn Hamiltan
Christine Masleid
Ananymaous.

Jodi Wilkie

Heidi Denzler-Halsey
Kerri Green
Debarah Attaway
Mary Ryan
Ananymaus
Margaret Cagk
Gigl Sarenson
Mary Dowd

Wisconsin Bureau af Aging and Disability Resources in the Department of Health Services

URAC
Dayana Fidtero-LAElon
Mark Humble

Glenn Creamer

Richard Holdener
Anonymaous

_Anonymous

Charles Sebastian
ANoRymous

Phillp H Nlelson
Spruce Patalon

Ellen Wadsworth
Sharon Montgormery
Margaret Strode
Susan Kelly
Raymond Barrett
Leslie Eisman
Christine Bamberger
Eva Treving

Rhyrus Falcone
Claudia Krich

Airy Knch-Brinton
Sarah Williams
Anoosh lerjorian
lasper Ganzalez



HHS-05-2022-0012-3157
HH5-05-2022-0012-3198
HHE-05-2022-0012-321%
HHE-0S-2022-0012-3267
HH5-05-2022-0012-3263
HH$-05-2022-0012-3278
HHE-DS-2022-0012-3269
HH5-05-2022-0012-3357
HHS-05-2022-0012 3403
HHS-(5-2022-0012-3461
HHS5-05-2022-0012-3463
RH5-05-2022-0012-3515
HH5-05-2022-0012-3574
HH5-05-2022-0012-3621
HHS5-05-2022-0012-3636
HHS-05-2022-0012-3813
HH5-05-2022-0012-3832
HH5-0S-2022-0012-3866
HH5-05-2022-0013-3884
HH5-05-2022-0012-3933
HHS5-0S-2022-0012-4278
HHS-(05-2022-0012-4283
HHS-05-2022.0012-4302
HHS-0S-2022-0012-4314
HH5-05-2022-0012-4319
HH5-05:2022-00124324
HH5-D5-2022-0012-4325
HH5-05-2022-0012-4335
HHS-052022.0012-4361
HHS-05-2022-0012-4362
HH5-05-2022-0012-4367
HH5-05-2022-0012 4371
HHS-0S-2022-0012-4372
HH5-05-2022-0012-4374
HH5-05-2022 00124384
HHS-05-2022-0012-4413
HH5-05-2022-0012-4433
HHS-05.2022-0012 4435
HHS-05-2022-0012-4437
HH5-05-2022-0012-4947
HHS-DS-2022-0012-4566
HHS.-(5-2022-0017-4565
HHE-05-2022-0012-4575
HHS-0S-2022-0012 4623
HH5-05-2022-0012-4726
HH5-05-2022-0012-4776
HHS-DS-2022-40012-4813
HH5-05-2022-0012-1845
HH5-05- 202200124846
HHS-05-2022-0012-4903
HH5-05-2022-0012-2912
HHS-05-2022-00124926
HHS-DS-2022-0012-4934
HH5-05-2022-0012-4943
HHS-05-2022-0012-4954
HHS-DS-2022-0012-4966
HH5-05-2022-0012-4983
HH$-05.2022-0012:5002
HHS-0S-2022-0012-5003
HH5-05-2022-0012-5008
HH5-052022-0012-5010
HHS.-(5-2022-0012-5029
HH5-05-2022-0012-5045
HHS 05- 2022-0012 5049
HH5-05-2022-0013-5067
HH5-05-2022-0012-5072
HHS-0S-2022-0012 5073
HHE-05-2022-0012-5077
HH5-05-2022-0012-5078
HHS-05-2022-0012 5084
HH5-05-2022-0012-5085
HH5-05-2022-0012-5086
HHS5-05-2022-0012-5092
HHS-015-2022-0012-5093
HH5 0520220012 5054
HH5-05-2022-0012-5106
HH5-05-2022-0012-5110
HH5-05-2022-0012-5111
HHS-05-2022-0012-5114
HH5-05-2022-0012-5115
HH5-052022-0012 5115
HHS-0S-2022-0012.5134
HHS-05-2022-0012-5142
HH5-05-2022-0012.5145
HHS5-DS-2022-0013-5151
HH5-05-2022-0012-5153
HH5-052022-0012-5154
HH5-05-2022-0012-5157
HHS-05-2022-0012-5166
HH5-05-20220012.5172
HHS5-05-2022-0012-5181
HH5-05-2022-0012-5182
HHS-DS-2022-0012-5183
HHS-05-2022-0012-5184
HH5-05-2022-0012-5191
HH5-0S-2022-0012 5185
HHS5-05-2022-0012-5196
HH5-05-2022-001:2-5_203
HHS-DS-2022-0012-5214

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3416
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3417
HHS-0%-2022- 0012 DRAFT-3437
HH5-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-3487
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3489
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-3492
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3583
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3617
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-3623
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3682
HHS-5-2022-0012-DRAFT-3640
HHS 05 2022 0012 DFAFT 3736
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3799
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-3898
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-3863
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4043
HH5-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-4062
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4097
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4115
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4164
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4180
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-42(1
HH3-05-2022-0012-ORAFT-4204
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4216
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4221
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-42 26
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4227
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4237
HHS 0%-2022.0012-DRAFT 4264
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 4265
HHSO%5-2022-0012-DRAFT-4270
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT4274
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4275
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4277
HHS-05%- 20220012 -DRAFT-4 287
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4317
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4337
HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-4333
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4341
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4354
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4498
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4500
HHS-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-4507
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4555
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-2661
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4711
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4750
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4783
HH3-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-4784
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT4343
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4851
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-4B65
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4873
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4882
HHS-0%-2022-0012- ORAFT 4894
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4906
HHS-5-2022-0012-DRAFT-4924
HH5-05-2022.0012- DFAFT49‘I3
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4544
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4549
HHE-0%-2022- on1z- DRAFT 4851
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4370
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4986
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-4590
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5008
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5013
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-5014
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 5018
HHS-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-5019

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5025

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5026
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5027
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5033
HHS-05-2027-0012-DRAFT-5034
HHS- 03-2022-0012- DRAFT 5035
HHS—GS—ZDZZ 0012-DRAFT-5047
HHS-015-2022-0012-DRAFT-5051
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-5052
HH5-05-20232-0012-DRAFT-505%
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5056
HHS-03-2022 0012- DRAFT-5060
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5077
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5085
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-5092
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5094
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5096
HHS-05-2022-0012-ORAFT 5097
HHS—OS—ZDZZ-ODlZ-DH.IFT-E‘lDO
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5109
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-S115
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5124
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5125
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5126
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5127
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5134
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5138
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-5139
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5146
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5157

Cind;; Tharpe
Maurzen Blasic
Carolyn Hathaway
Ellen Ravelin
ANonymous
Theresa Hofer
Fatrick Kiefer
Shane Switzer
Mike Smith
Marco Calgmbini
Crew Hansen
Mal(hew Tobhen
a\ncmymaus
ANCRYMous
Ananymaus
Adele Ruszak
Micholas Seiter
Donnalean Gifford
Ananymaus
WILLIAM ZIMMER
Catherine Smetona
Jane Ruck

Richard Vickery
Carale Hart

Lee Mayers
Anonymous
Gabriela Bagden
Eugens Weber
Anonymous
Leanard Ba\n:h
Mark Wieber
lames Everatt
Anonymous

SM Flgisch

Sara Yamngton
EMILIA BLASER
Rebecca Hoven
Sr. Jackie Sardina
Richard Schneider
Erin Washut
Elizabeth Magnes:
Cathering Smythe
Robert Shiley
Zachary Standig
Ananymaus
ANQnymous
Ananymaus
Glenn Bristal
Roberta Hosler
Crystal Kerian
Ananymaus
Anompmous
Ananymaus
ANonymous
Connle Burket
Marla Hess
GREGDRY KRECZRD
Anonymous
Ananymaus

John Womack

Peter Braza

Patricia Baecker
Anonymeous
Casmy Hagedam
Ananymaus
Dennis Hallisey
Alex Stauff
Cynithia Gulya
Dawid Lyons

Sarah-Marie Beleastra

Daniela Alban
Caitlin Gildrien
Rebecta Minser
Angnymaus

Josh Feldblyum

Ananymaus
Weszley Wamnke

lohn O'Brlen

Anonymaus
ANQnymous
Daniel Hoyle-Aguon
Ananymaus
Anonymous
Anonymous
Anonymaus

O Barengo
lessica Kem
Patricia Camphbell
Anonymous
Anonymaus
Fobert Kally
Irma Schneider
Celeste Martin
Anganymaus

A McDaniel

Arna Derby
Mike Newman
Marianne Dudley
Sarah Lichtenwalter



HHS-05-2022-0012-5217
HHS-05-20220012-5222
HHS-05-202 200125230
HHS-05-2022-0012-5232
HH5-05-2022-0012-5234
HHS-05 20220012 5235
HHS-05-2022-0012-5237
HHS-(5-2022-0012-5251
HH5-05-2022-0012.5263
HHS-05-2022-0012-5267
HH5-05-2022-0012-5263
HH5-052022-0012 5272
HH5-05-2022-0012-5284
HHE5-05-2022-0012-5290
HHS-D5-2022-0012-5234
HH5-05-2022-0012-5298
HH5-05-2022-0012-5301
HHS-05-2022-0012-5202
HH5-05-2022-0012-5307
HHS5-05-2022-0012-5313
HHS-05-2022-0012-5314
HH5-05-2022-0012-5317
HHS:05-2022-0012-5320
HHS-05-2022-0012-5321
HH5-05-2022-0012-5328
HH5-05-2022-0012-5333
HHS-05-2022-0012-5340
HH5-05-2022-0012-5346
HH$-05.2022-0012-5354
HHS-05-2022-0012-5355
HH5-05-2022-0012-5362
HH5-05-2022-0012-537%
HHS-05-2022-0012-5384
HH5-05-2022-0012-5386
HHS-05-2022-0012-5385
HH5-05-2022-0012-5395
HH5-05-2022-0012-5474
HHS-05-2022-0012-5524
HH5-05-2022-0012-5525
HH5-05-2022-0012-5548
HHS-05-2022-0012-5630
HH5-05-2022-0012-5657
HH5-05-2022-0012-5792
HHS-05-2022-0012-5799
HHS-05-2022-0012-5896
HH5-05-2022-0012-5951
HHS-05-2022-0012-6001
HH5-05-2022-0012-6010
HH5-05-2022-0012-61398
HH5-05-2022-0012-6272
HH5-05-2022-0012-5489
HH5-05-2022.0012-6454
HHS-05-2022-0012-6548
HHS-05-2022-0012-6558
HH5-05-2022-0012-6571
HH5-05-2022-0012-6624
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HH3-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-10282
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10292
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10293
HHS-08-2022.0012-DRAFT- 10298

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10299

HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10310
HHS-05 2022-0012-ORAFT-10312
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10214
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10315
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-10317
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10319
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10320
HHS-0%-2022-0012- ORAFT-10323
HHS-06-2023-0012-DRAFT-10327

HH5-05-2022-0012- DF.AFT 10328

HHS—CPS—ZDZZ 0012- DHAFT 10343
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10360

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10371

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10272
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT- 10389
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10395
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-104 18
HH5-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-10421
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10443
HH5-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-10445
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT- 10443
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10454
HH5-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-1M55
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10464
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10465
HH5-05-20232-0012-DRAFT-10475
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10477
HHS 052022 0012-DRAFT 10474
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT- 10479
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10481
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10423
HHS5-05-2023-0012-DRAFT- 10488
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10490
HHS-05-2022 0012 DRAFT-10504
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10522
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10536
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10537
HHS5-(15-2023-0012-DRAFT-10556
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10557
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10569
HHS-05-2022-0012-10597

HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-10572
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10583
HHS5-05-2023-0012-DRAFT- 10586
HH3-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-10588
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10583
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10590
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10593
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10559
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10602
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10613
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10618
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10621
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10624
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10625
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-10628
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10629
HHS5-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-10630
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10633

HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10634

HHS-06-2023-0012-DRAFT-10641
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10646
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10651
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10658
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HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-10666
HHS-05-2022-0012-ORAFT- 10672
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10687
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-L0705
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HHS-05-2022-0012-10759
HHS-05-2022-0012-10762
HHS-05-2022-0012-10776
HHS-05-2022-0012- 10750
HHE-05-2022-0012-1078%
HH$-05-2022-0012-10704
HHS-05-2022-0012-10796
HHS5-05-2022-0012-10901
HH$-05-2022-0012-10804
HH5-05-2022-0012-10815
HHS-05-2022-0012-1081%
HH5-05-2022-0012- 10826
HH5-05-2022-0013-10834
HH5-05-2022-0012-10837
HHS-05-2022-0012-10842
HH5-05-2022-0012-10843
HHS-05-2022-0012-10848
HHS-05-2022-0012-10851
HH5-05-2022-0012-10858
HH5-05-2022-0012-10964
HH5-05-2022-0012-10867
HH5-05-2022-0012- 10858
HH5-05-2022-0012-10873
HHS-05-2022-0012- 10886
HH5-05-2022-0012-10890
HH5-05-2022-0012-10853
HH5-05-2022-0012-10835
HHS-05-2022-0012-1089%
HHS-052022.0012 10901
HHS-D05-2022-0012-10905
HHS-05-2022-0012-10908
HH5-05-202 2001210911
HH5-05-2022-0012-10920
HH5-05-2022-0012-10922
HHS-05-2022-0012-10930
HH5-05-2022-0012-10931
HH5-05-2022-0012-10934
HH5-05-2022-0012-10935
HHS5-05-2022-0012-10941
HH5-05-2022-0012-1094%
HHS-D5-2022-0012-10351
HH5-05-2022-0012-10952
HHS-05-2022-0012-10956
HH5-05-2022-0012-10574
HH5-05-2022-0012-1097%
HHS5-05-2022-0012-10584
HH5-05-2022-0012-10986
HH5-(5-2022-0013-11007
HHS-0%-2022-0012-11025
HHS-D5-2022-0012-11034
HH5-05-2022-0012-11045
HHS:05-2022-0013-11047
HH5-05-2022-0012-11055
HH5-05-2022-0012-11067
HHS-05-2022.0012-11068
HHS-05-2022-0012-11069
HHS5-05-2022-40012-11074
HHS-05.2022:0012-11088
HHS-05-2022-0012-11092
HH5-05-2022-0012-11102
HHS-05-2022-0012-11103
HH5-05-2022-0012-11110
HHS-05-2022-0012-11123
HH$-05-3022-0012-11131
HH5-05-2022-0012-11135
HH5-05-2022-0012-11137
HHS-05-2022-0012-11143
HH5-05-2022-0012-11178
HHS-05-2022-0012-11180
HH5-05-2022-0012-111590
HH5-05-2022-0012-11202
HH5-05-2022-0012-11205
HH5-05-2022-0012-11215
HH5-05-2022-0012-11216
HHS.052022-0012-11218
HH5-05-2022-0012-11221
HH5-05-2022-0012-11223
HHS-05-202 2001211225
HHS-05-2022-0012-11231
HHS5-05-2022-0012-11235
HHS-052022.0012-11240
HH5-05-2022-0012-11241
HHS-05-2022-0012-11242
HH5-05-20220012-11243
HH5-05-2022-0012-11244
HHS-05-2022-0012-11247
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HHS-05-2022-0012-11261
HH5-05-2032-0012-11265
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HHS-05-2022-0012-11274
HHS5-05-2022-0012-11275
HH5-05-2022-0012-11276
HH5-05-2022-0012-11277
HHS-05-2022-0012-11280
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HHS-05-2022-0012-11282

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10736
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10739
HHS-0%-2022-0012- ORAFT-10753
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10757
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT- 10766
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-10771
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10773
HH5-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-10780
HHS-05-2022.0012-ORAFT-L0783
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10754
HHS-0%-2022-0012- DRAFT-10798
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10605
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10814
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10817
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-10822
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10824
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10829
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10832
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10839
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10845
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10848
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10843
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10854
HHS-05-2022.-0012-DRAFT- 10868
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10872
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-10875
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10877
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10881
HHS 05-2022-0012-DRAFT 10883
HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT. 10887
HHS5-2022-0012-DRAFT- 10890
HH5-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-108393
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10803
HH-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10612
HH3-05%- 20220012 -DRAFT-10913
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10814
HHS0%5-2022-0012-DRAFT-10817
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT- 10915
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10024
HHF-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-10833
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10835
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10936
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10942
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10961
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10066
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10672
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10974
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10957
HH3-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-11015
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11024
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11035
HH5-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-11037
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11045
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11058
HHS-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-11059
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11060
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11065
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-11077
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11083
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11093
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HH5-(15-2022-0012-DAAFT-11266
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11269
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11303
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11204
HHS-0%-2022.0012-DRAFT-11424
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11462
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HH5-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-11553
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HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11563
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11564
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-11565
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11566
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11569
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 11575
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11573
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11585
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-11594
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-11532
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11599
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11603
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11604
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11605
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11606
HHS-15-2023-0012-DRAFT-1160%
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11610
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11611
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HH5-05-2022-0012-11283
HHS-05-2022-0012-11226
HHS-05-202 2001211287
HH5-05-2022-0012-11290
HH5-05-2022-0012-11231
HH5-0520220012-11292
HHS-05-2022-0012-11293
HHS-(5-2022-0012-112%4
HH5-05-2022-0013-11300
HHS-05-2022-0012-11302
HH5-05-2022-0012-11303
HHS-O5- 302 2-0012-11306
HH5-05-2022-0012-11307
HHS-05-2022-0012-11308
HHS-D5-2022-0012-1130%
HH5-05-2022-0012-11310
HH5-05-2022-0012-11311
HH5-05-2022-0012-11314
HH5-05-2022-0012-11315
HH5-05-2022-0012-11316
HHS-05-2022-0012-11324
HH5-05-2022-0012-11325
HHS:05-2022-0013-11330
HH5-05-2022-0012-11335
HH5-05-2022-0012-11336
HHS-05.2022.0012-11337
HHS-05-2022-0012-11344
HH5-05-2022-0012-11345
HH$-05.2022:0012:11351
HHS-05-2022-0012-11352
HH5-05-2022-0012-11353
HH5-05-2022-0012-11354
HH5-05-2022-0012-11357
HH5-05-2022-0012-11358
HH$-05-2022-0012-11362
HH5-05-2022-0012-11364
HH5-05-2022-0012-11365
HH5-052022-0012-1136%
HH5-05-2022-0012-11375
HHS-05-2022-0012-11377
HHS-D5-2022-0012-11380
HH5-05-2022-0012-11381
HH5-05-2022-0012-11384
HH5-05-2022-0012-11387
HH5-05-2022-0012-11389
HH5-05-2022-0012-11390
HHS-05-2022-0012-11391
HH5-05-2022-0012-11400
HH5-05-2022-0012-11402
HH5-05-2022-0012-11406
HH5-05-2022-0012-11407
HH5-05-2022 0012 11408
HH5-05-2022-0012-11411
HHS-05-202240012-11416
HH$-05.2022-0012-11417
HH5-05-2022-0012-11413
HHS-05-2022-0012-11425
HHS- 05 2022-0012-11426
HHS-05-2022-0012-11428
HHS-05-2022-0012-1142%
HH5-05-2022-0012-11438
HH5-05-2022-0012-11342
HH5-05-2022-0012-11444
HH5-05-2022-0012-11446
HH5-05-2022-0012-1144%
HHE5-05-2022-0012-11451
HHS-05-2022-0012-11453
HHS5-05-2022-0012-11461
HH5-05-2022-0012-11466
HHS-05-2022-0012-11467
HH5-05-2022-0012-1146%
HHS-05-2022-0012-11470
HH5-05-2022-0012-11471
HH5-05-2022-0012-11472
HH$-05-2022-0012-11473
HHS-05-2022-0012-11475
HH5-05-2022-0012-11476
HHS-05-2022-0012-11478
HHS-D5-2022-0012-11480
HHS5-05-2022-0012-11481
HHS:05-2022-0012-11482
HH5-05-2022-0012-11483
HHE-05-2022-0012-11486
HH5-05-2022-0012-1148%
HHS-05-2022-0012-11430
HHS5-(5-2022-0012-11493
HHS-05.2022-0012-11498
HH5-05-2022-0012-11500
HH5-05-2022-0012-11502
HH5-05-2022-0012-11503
HH5-05-2022-0012-11505
HH5-05-2022-0012-11507
HHS-05-2022-0012-11508
HH5-05-2022-0012-11511
HH5-05-2022-0012-11514
HH5-05-2022-0012-11517
HH5-05-2022-0012-1151%
HHS-05-2022-0012-11522
HH5-05-2022-0012-11524
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HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11619
HHS-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-11620
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11621
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11622
HHS0%5-2022-0012-DRAFT-11624
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-11631
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11634
HHF-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11635

HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 11639

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11640
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11641
HHS-05-2022.-0012-DRAFT- 11642
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11643
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11644
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11647
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11648
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-11643
HHS-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-11657
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11658
HHS-05-2022.0012. DRAFT- 11663
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11668
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11669
HHS-03-2022-0012-DRAFT-11670
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11677
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11678
HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT- 11684
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11685
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11686
HHS-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT 11687
HHS-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-11690
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-11692
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT- 11695
HHS-05-2022-0012-11364

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11698
HHS-0%-2022-0012- DRAFT-11702
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11708
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11710
HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT. 11713
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11714
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11717
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11720
HHS-06-2022-0012-DRAFT-11721
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-11723
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11724
HHS-0S-2022-0012-DRAFT-11733
HHS-03-2022.0012- DRAFT-11735
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-11740
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11741
HHS-05-2022-0012- ORAFT-11742
HHS-08-2022-0012-DRAFT-11745
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11750
HHS-05-2022.0012. DRAFT- 11751
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11754
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11761
HHS-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT 11762
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11764
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11765
HH5-05:2022-0012- DRAFT-11774
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11778
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11780
HHS-0%-2022 0012 DRAFT 11782
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11785
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-11787
HHS-05-2022.0D12-DRAFT- 11783
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11787
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11802
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11803
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT- 11805
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-11806
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11807
HHS-(5-2022-0012-DRAFT-11808
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-11609
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11B11
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11812
HHS-08-2022-0012 DRAFT-11814
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11816
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-11817
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-11818
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HHSC5-2022-0012-DRAFT-17935
HHS-08-2002.0012-DRAFT- 17936

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-17940

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-17945
HH3-03-2022-0012-ORAFT-17946
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-17947
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-174950
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-17951
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-17954
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-17956
HH5-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-17958
HH5-0%5-2022-0012-DRAFT-1 7960
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-17962
HH5-05-20232 -0012-DRAFT-17966
HHS-015-2022-0012-DRAFT-17967
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-17968
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-17970
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-17971
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-17972
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-17976
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-17978

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-17979

HH5-05-2022-0012-ORAFT-17980
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-1T986
HHS-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-17988
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-17980
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-17991

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-17952

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-17994
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-179%7
HH3-03-2022.0012-DRAFT-17993

HHS-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-18000

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18003
HH5-05-2022.001 2. DRAFT-18006

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18007

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18010
HHS-05-2022-0012-ORAFT-18011
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18012
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18013
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18015
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-1201E
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18017
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18018
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-18019
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18021
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18022

Anénymaus
Donna Carlin
Jeryee Mangino
lames Lyons
Jean Bendick
Ananymaus
Johin Gibbans
John French i
Gordoh Goetz
Ananymaus
Linda FRIETISCHE
Amanda Rlehmer
Sandy Sassa
Rich Dufty
Ananymaus
Kathryn Jordan
Mike Hansell
Christine Diehl
James McPhee
Susan Provost
Ananymaus
Mary Marchese

Anonymous

Charles ¥olz
Sandra Gardan
Anonymaus
Mike MeCauley
Anonyrmous
Thomas MeKeman
Evelina Kertay
ANOnymous.
Barbara Kelley
Michael Dwyer
Maureen Davis

_Anonymous

Margaret Cranin
Anonymous
ANonymaous.
Ananymaus
Regina lppolite
Diana Bogatiuk
Dan 5chall

Liam Randall
Fatricia Whalen
Angnymaus
Diane Dailey
Colleen Brady
James Taft

Brian Lewls

Anonymaus
Patrich Kiefer
Wilbur Moreland
Debarah Lautzenheiser
THOMAS BRANDT
lahn Slsak

Douglas Elker
ANOnYmous.
loseph Morns
Ananymaus
william winters
Juan Mendez
Frank Melson

Carol Cote

Towy Previty

gloria calabr
Edward kolla
Ananymaus

lohn Brence
ANonymous.
Ananymaus
hargaret Fontenot
lohn Cole.

Mark Hoch, MD, MDiv
lenny Gaff

Franels Capald|
Anonymaus
Anganymaus
Michael poroeltz
Hadine Mead

John Bosio

Mary Scarboreugh

Joseph Kaminsky
Anonymous.
lohn Ryan

Piul Mazade
Michele Marotta
Richard Vrabael
Ananymaus
ANonymous

;i Carles Quesada

Gina Keener
Anonymeous
David Stivers
lane Doe
Anonymous
Gregory Piepel
Scott Polski
leff Schreiber
Walter Knysz



HHS-05-2022-0012-17576
HHS-05-2022-0012-17577
HHE-05-2022-0012-17578
HHS-05-2022-0012-1757%
HHE-05-2022-0012- 17580
HH$-05-2022:0012-17581
HHS-05-2022-0012-17582
HHS5-05-2022-0012-17584
HHS-05-2022-0012-17588
HH5-05-2022-0012-17589
HHS-5-2022-40012-175%1
HH5-05- 2022-0012 17545

HH5-05-2022-0012-17597

HH5-05-2022-0012-17600
HHS 05-2022-0012- 1?502
HHG- 05 -2023-0012- 17503
HHS-05-2022-0012-17606
HH5-05-2022-0012-17607
HH5-05-2022-0012-17610
HH5-05-2022-0012-17612
HHE-05-2022-0012-17614
HHS5-05-2022-0012-17616
HHS-05-2022.0012-17617
HHS-05-2022-0012-1761%
HH5-05-2022-0012-17621
HHS-05-2022-0012-17622
HH5-05-2022-0012-17623
HHS-05-2022-0012-17627
HHS$-052022.0012 17632
HH5-05-2022-0012-17636
HH5-05-2022-0012-17646
HHS-05-2022-0012-17647
HHE-05-2022-0012-17650
HHS-05-2022-0012-17651
HHS-052022-0012-17652
HH5-05-2022-0012-17654
HHS-05-2022-0012-17656
HHS-05-2022-0012-17656
HH5-05-2022-0012-1765%
HHS-05-2022-0012-17663
HHE-05-2022-0012-17665
HH5-05-2022-0012-17666

HHE-05-2022-0012-17668

HHS-05-2022-0012-17670
HH5-05-2022-0012-17671
HH5-05-2022-0012-17673
HH5-05-2022-0012-17676
HH5-05-2022-0012-17678
HHS-0%-2022-0012-17679
HHS-05-2022-0012-17650
HH5-05-2022-0012-17684
HHS:05-2022-0012-17685
HHS-05-2022-0012-17687
HHS-05-2022-0012-17688
HHS-05-2022-0012-17683
HHS-05-2022-0012-17693
HH5-05-2022-0012-17654
HHS-05- 2022001217657

HHS-05-2022-0012-17698

HHS-05-2022-0012-17699
HHS052022-0012-17701
HH5-05-2022-0012-17704
HH5-05-2022-0012-17705
HHS-05-2022-0012-1770%
HH5-05-2022-0012-17712
HH5-05-2022-0012-17715
HHE-D5-2022-0012-17716
HH5-05-2022-0012-17718
HHS-05-2022-0012-17720
HHS-05. 2022-0012 17724
HH5-05-2022-0012-17725
HH5-05-2022-0012-17726
HHE-05-2022-0012-17727
HH5-05-2022-0012-17728
HHS05-2022-0012-17730
HH5-05-2022-0012-17732
HH5-05-2022-0012-17733
HHS-05-2022-0012-17741
HHE-05-2022-0012-17742
HHS-05-2022-0012-17743
HHS-052022-0012-17745
HH5-05-2022-0012-17747
HHS-05-2022-0012-1774%
HH$-05-2022-0012-17751
HH5-05-2022-0012-17752
HHS-05-2022-0012-17755
HHS$-052022.0012 17756
HHS-05-2072-0012-17760
HH5-05-2022-0012-17761
HH5-05-2022-0012-17764
HH5-05-2022-0012-17765
HHS5-05-2022-0012-17770
HHE-05-2022-0012-17774
HH5-05-2022-0012-17777
HH5-05-2022-0012-17788
HHE-05-20220012-1778%
HH5-05-2022-0012-17790
HHS5-05-2022-0012-17793
HH5-05-2022-0012-17794

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18023
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-184024
HHE-0%-2022-0012-ORAFT-18025
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18026
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18027
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT- 18028

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18029

HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18031
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-18033
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-18036
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18041
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-18042
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT- 18044
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18047
HHS—OS—ZDZZ 0012 DHRAFT- lSCIdB
HHS—OS—ZOZZ 0012 DRAFT- 13050
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-16053
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18054
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18057
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18059
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18061
HH5-05-2022-0012-DAAFT- 18064
HHS-05-2022 0012-ORAFT-18065
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18067
HHS-015-2022-0012-DRAFT-18070
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-18071
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-17478
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18074
HHS-05-2022.0012-ORAFT-18079
HH5-05-20232-0012-DRAFT-13083
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18093
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-18054
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18097
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18098
HHS-03-2022-0012 DRAFT-18099
HHE-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-13101
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18103
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-18105
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-18106
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18110
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18112
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18113
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-16115
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18117
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-18118
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18120
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18123
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-18125
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18126
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18127
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-18132
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-18133
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18136
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18137
HHS-0%-2022-0012-ORAFT-18138
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18142
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18143
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18146
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18147
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18148
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18150
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-12153
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-18154
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT- 18158
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18161
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18164
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18165
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18167
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18169
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18173
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18174
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18175
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18176
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-13177
HHS 0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-18179
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18181
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18182
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-181390
HH5-05-20232-0012-DRAFT-18191
+H$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18192
HHS 03-2022 0012-DRAFT-18195
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18186
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18198
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-18200
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18201
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18204
HHS-05-2022-0812-DRAFT 18205
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18203
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-16210
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-18213
HHS-15-2023-0012-DRAFT-18214
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18219
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18223
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-12226
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18238
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18239
HHS-(15-2023-0012-DRAFT-18240
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18243
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18244

Ananymaus
Susan Okamoto

_AnOanuS

David Flynn

Patricia Marguctio
M

leanne La Montagne
lustina Semuta
Frank Gallenstein
AL

Maurice LaMontagne
loseph Connery
Michael MckKay
David Cooper

John Fackelman
Angnymeaus

Mary Peragine
Michael Ryan
Ananymaus

Gerard Thomas
Beatriz Sosa-Frade
Terrie Kallal

loAnn Paslawsky
lozeph Tazzi Ir
Melissa lohnson
Anonymous
community parents united
Iill Stedronsky
Savannah Lujan N
THOMAS BECKENBALIER
ANQnymous

(sear Gloor
Ananymaus

Rafael Pubillones
Ananymaus.
Michele Pubillones.
Anonymeous

Gwen Clonlnger
PERCY LARSEN
EBradley McCloskey
Ananymaus
Angnymaus

Edward Maher, M5, OTR
Pat Riddle
Ananymaus

Chad Moeller
Merrit walfertz
Thamas Trinko
FRANEK ZITZMAN
Thamas Bresnan
Cindy Shamban

Lorl Wagner
Barbara Bacon
Amanda Hudson
lan Dedenck
Terrence Thompson
Bishop loseph Coffey
B W Ward

Eugens Wirkus
Anonymous
Michelle Trupke
David Delita
Barbara Lucas
Danald & Connar
a\ncmymaus
Rnonyrﬁou's_

Louis Shapra

Diana Briggs

Cheryl Hammerschrmict
Ananymaus

Sharan Keller
ANQRYMous

Tory Sims
Angnymaus
Friendship Village of Tempe
Hico Moorisio Belo
Ananymaus
Ananymous
Anonymaus

Donald Mackowski
Mary Maes

Aretta Bunnell
Kevin Staab
Anonymous
Ananymaus

Peg Hyland
Elizabeth Croke
Angnymaus

Diane Frank

lehn Kolimaga
William OHara

dick fister
Anonymaus

o

leffrey MoGovern
Arthur MeClelland
William Ruth
Monica Sherony
Lillian Yurcho



HH5-05-2022-0012-17802
HHS-05-2022-0012-17808
HHS-05- 2022001217810
HHS-05-2022-0012-17816
HH5-05-2022-0012-17818
HH5-0520220012-1781%
HHS-05-2022-0012-17820
HHS-05-2022-0012-17832
HHE5-05-2022-0012-17840
HHS5-05-2022-00132-17843
HH5-05-2022-0012-17853
HHS 05 202 2-0012-17855
HH5-05-2022-0012-17856
HHE-05-2022-0012-17857
HHS-05-2022-0012-17858
HH5-05-2022-0012-17859
HHS5-05-2022-0012-17863
HH5-05-2022-0012-17864
HH5-05-2022-0012-1785%
HHS-05-2022-0012-17871
HHS-05-2022-0012-17875
HH5-05-2022-0012-17877
HHS:05.2022-0013-17880
HHS-05-2022-0012-17883
HH5-05-2022-0012-17884
HH5-05-2022-0012-17886
HHS-05-2022-0012-17890
HH5-05-2022-0012-17851
HHS-05.2022-0012:17892
HHS-05-2022-0012-17837
HHS-05-2022-0012-17839%
HHS-052022-0012-17900
HH5-05-2022-0012-17903
HHS5-5-2022-0012-17905
HHS-05- 2022-0012 17311
HH5-05-2022-0012-17913
HHS-05-2022-0012-17915
HHS-05.2022-0012-17940
HH5-05-2022-0012-17941
HH5-05-2022-40012-17942
HHS-05-20220012-17345
HH5-05-2022-0012-17955
HH5-05-2022-0012-17961
HH5-05-2022-0012-17964
HH5-05-2022-0012-17972
HHE5-05-2022-0012-17976
HH5-05-2022-0012-17984
HH5-05-2022-0012-17994
HH5-05-2022-0012-18025
HH5-05-2022-0012-18030
HHS-05-2022-0012-18075
HH5-0520220012 16081
HHS-05-2022-0012-18087
HHS-05-2022-0012-18161
HH$-05.2022-0012-18163
HH5-05-2022-0012-18199
HH5-05-2022-0012-18208
HHS-O5- 20220012 18215
HHS-05-2022-0012-18222
HH5-05-2022-0012-16226
HH5-05-20220012-18231
HH5-05-2022-0012-18260
HH5-05-2022-0012-18273
HH5-05-20220012-16282
HH5-05-2022-0012-18307
HHE-05-2022-0012-168318
HHS-05-2022-0012-18451
HH5-05-2022-00132-18465
HHS5-05-2022-0012-18481
HHS-05-2022-0012- 18485
HH5-05-2022-0012-18486
HHE5-05-2022-0012-16487
HH5-05-2022-0012-18510
HH5-05-2022-0012-18522
HHS- { 15 2022-0012 18523
HHS-05-2022-0012-18532
HH5-05-2022-0012-18553
HH5-05-2022-0012-18554
HHS-D5-2022-0012- 18555
HH5-05-2022-0012-18556
HH5-05-2032-0013-18557
HHS-05-2022-0012-18558
HHE-05-2022-0012-1R55%
HHS-05-2022-0012-18560
HHS-05-2022-0012-18561
HH5-05-2022-0012-18562
HHS-05.2022-0012-18563
HH5-05-2022-0012-18565
HH5-05-2022-0012-18566
HHS- 05 2022 0012-18568
HH5-05-2022-0012-18570
HHE5-05-2022-0012-18577F
HHS-05-2022-0012- 18578
HH5-05-2022-0012-18579
HHS5-05-2022-0012-18580
HHS-05-2022-0012-18581
HHS-05-2022-0012-18583
HH5-05-2022-0012-168584
HH5-05-2022-0012- 18585

HHS-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-18252
HHSQ5-2022-0012-DRAFT-18258
HH5-05-2002.0012-DRAFT- 18260
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18264
HH5-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-18265
HH3-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-18266
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18267
HHS05-2022-0012-DAAFT-18273
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-18278
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT- 18280
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18289
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18291
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18292
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18293
HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT- 18234
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18295
HH5-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-18299
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18200
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT- 18305
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-16307
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18309
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18311
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-18314
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18217
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-18318
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18321
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18325
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18326
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-18327
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18230
HHF-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18332
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18333
HHS-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-18336
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18232
HHS- 05 2022-0012-DRAFT-18344
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18346
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18348
HH5-05-2022-0012-ORAFT 18864
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18372

HH5-05-2022-0012- DRAFT- 18373

HHS—GS—ZDZZ 0012 DRAFT-18376
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18383
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18390
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18B85
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18396
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18398
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-13857
HHS-015-2022-0012-DRAFT-18413
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-18440
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18935
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18477
HHS-05-2022 0012-ORAFT-18974
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-134E7
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18535
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-18537
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18569
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18070
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-19078
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-19082
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18591
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-19031
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-19108
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18621
HHS 0520220012 DRAFT-19123
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-1813%
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18647
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-15262
HHS-(15-2023-0012-DRAFT-19269
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-19287
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-19291
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-13262
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-19293
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT- 20006
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-20018
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-20019
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-2026
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20046
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20047
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT- 20048
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20049
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-20050
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20051
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20052

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20054

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20055
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-2 0056
HH5-05-2032.0012- DPAFT 20057
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-19380
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20059

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 20060

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20061
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-20067
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20068
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20069
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20070
HH5-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-20071
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20073
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-20074
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20075

Catherine Sii)pel
Eric Ciliberti
Effie Selberg
Ananymaus
ANonymous.
lae Adams

Buy sudana
Beth Novak
Jemanne Nagy
lames Lewis
Robert James
Matthew MeCormick
GG

lade anahan
Ananymaus
William Chawvey
David Morgan
Fobert Conway
Rita Detweiler
Lori Marting
Joteph Truax
David Lee

_Catherlne Donovan

Jacqueline Lusignan
Robert Koonce
Jane Dumke
Ananymaus
l_)uﬂnne Pasquini
Chelsea Bratz
Daniel Haggerty
Richard F Kless

Massachusetts Transgender Pelitleal Coalltlon

Amanda Chappell
Amanda Chappell
Tony Bouchat

Faula Fanepinto
Wayne Vander Heiden
Anonymous
Angnymaus
Anonymaous
Ananymaus

Wictoria Young
Anonymous

Walerie Litalien
Rosemary Barbera
Anonymaous
Stephenie Baldassarre
Amanda Chappell
Marla Garcla

lo Anna MoSeaghegan
Joseph Dunn

lohn Gilkey
Ananymaus

Winge Toolen

Kent Borges
Ananymaus

Kai Yuan

stephanl harewood
K Danowski

Micole Miller

Carll Dulgerian
Ananymaus

Michael Loughlin
Ananymous.

Caralyn Laabs
Anonymous

lody Geenen
Christopher Egenes
james Mac Donald
Mike Mccallum
Frangis Shemman
Anonymous
Jessica Sanchez
Brian Schmidt

Scokt Pe_nd:letor!
Sally Orlopp
Angnymmaus
Kathleen YanArnhem
Ken Cheatharn
Pichael Caughron
Anonymous

Kyle Myers

David Chen

Frank Rosenbloom, MO
Heather Anderson
Gwenna Weshinskey
Anonymous.

Charles Warburton
ANonymous.

Monica Stuhlreyer
Ann R

Richard Vigh

Rubert Raspa
Catholichedical&ssociation
Michael ¥Donnell
Derek Seifert
Angnymaus

_Damian Birchess

Lori Letner



HHS-05-2022-0012-1B587
HHS-05-2022-0012-1858%
HHS-05-2022-0012-18590
HHS-05-2022-0012-18594
HHE5-05-2022-0012-18598
HH$-05.2072:0012-18600
HHS-05-2022-0012-18602
HHS5-05-2022-0012-18605
HH$-05-2022-0012-18607
HHE-(15-2022-0012-1860%
HHS-05-2022-0012-18627
HH5-05-2022-0013-18628
HH5-05-2022-0012-18630
HHS5-05-2022-0012-18632
HHS-05-2022-0012- 18634
HH5-05-2022-0012-18636
HHS-05-2022-0012-18638
HH5-05-2022-0012-18640
HH5-05-2022-0012-18642
HH5-05-2022-0012-18646
HH5-05-2022-0012- 18648
HH5-05-2022-0012- 18650
HH5-05-2022-0012-18651
HH5-05-2022-0012-18652
HH5-05-2022-0012-18654
HH5-05-2022-0012-18655
HH5-05-2022-0012-18663
HHS-05-2022-0012-18664
HHS.-052022.0012 18668
HH5-05-2022-0012-18670
HHS-05-2022-0012-18672
HH5-05-20320012-18673
HH5-05-2022-0012-18674
HH5-05-2022-0012-18675
HHS-05-2022-0012- 18675
HH5-05-2022-0012-18678
HHS-05-2022-0012-18680
HHE5-05-2022-0012-18652
HHS5-05-2022-00132-18684
HHS5-05-2022-0012-18685
HHS-05-2022-0012- 18688
HH5-(5-2022-0013-18639
HHE-05-2022-0012-18651
HH5-05-2022-0012-18692
HH5-05-2022-0012-18693
HH5-05-2022-0012-18659
HH5-05-2022-0012-18695
HH5-05-2022-0013-18696
HHS-05- 2022001218704
HHS-05-2022-0012-18707
HH5-05-2022-0012-18709
HHS:05:2022-0012-18711
HHS-05-2022-0012-18713
HHS5-05-2022-0012-18715
HHS-05-2022-0012-18716
HHS-05-2022-0012-18717
HHS5-O5-20220012-18724
HHS-05.2022-0012-18725
HHS-05-2022-0012-18727
HH5-05-2022-0012-18728
HHS-O5 2022-0012-187259
HH5-05-2022-0012-18731
HHS-05-2022-0012-18733
HHS-05-202 2001218735

HHS5-05-2022-0012-16737

HH5-05-2022-0012-16741
HHS-05-2022-0012-18743
HH5-05-2022-0012-18744
HHS-05-2022-0012-18745
HH5-05-2022-0012- 18747
HH5-05-2022-0012-1874%
HH5-05-2022-0012-16751
HHE-05-2022-0012-1E753
HH5-0O5-2022-0012-18756
HHS 05-2022.0012 18758
HHS5-05-2022-0012-1E760
HH5-05-2022-0012-18761
HHS-05.2022-0012-18768
HHE-05-2022-0012-1ET70
HHS-05-2022-0012-18771
HHS-05-2022-0012-18772
HHS-05-2022-0012-18774
HHS-05-2022-0012-18776
HHS-05-2022-0012-18777
HH5-05-2022-0012-1E778
HHS-05-2022-0012-18779
HHS-052022.0012 18780
HHS-05-2072-0012-18787
HH5-05-2022-0012-16788
HHS-05-2022-0012-1878%
HH5-05-2022-0012-18790
HH5-05-2022-0012-18791
HHE-05-2022-0012-18792
HH5-05-2022-0012-18733
HH5-05-2022-0012-18794
HHE-05-20220012-18795
HH5-05-2022-0012-18796
HHS5-05-2022-0012-16797
HHE-05-2022-0012-1E798

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20077
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20:073
HHE-0%-2022-0012-0RAFT-20080

HHS-052022-0012-DRAFT-20082

HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-20084
HHS-05-2022.0013- DRAFT-20085
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20EG
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20098
HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-20089
HHS-05-2023-0012-DIRAFT-20050
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20105
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-20106
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20107
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20108
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20109
HH5-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-20110
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20111
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20112
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-20113
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20115
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20116
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20117
HHS-03-2022-0012-ORAFT-19445
HHS5-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-20118
HHS-015-2022-0012-DRAFT-20119
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-20120
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20125
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20126
HHS 05-2022.0012-ORAFT-20129

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-15459

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20132
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-19961
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20133
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-15a62
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20134
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20135
HH5-Q%-2022-0012-DRAFT-20136
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-20137
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-20138
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-10468
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20140
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18470

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20141

HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20142
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-20143
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20144
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20145
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20146
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20153
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20155
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-20156
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-20157
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20158
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20159
HHS-0%-2022-0012-ORAFT-19491
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20160
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20165
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20166
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20167
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-19499
HHS-05-2022-0012-ORAFT-20163
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-20163
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-20170
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-20171
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20172
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20174
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20175
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-13507
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20176
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20177
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20178
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20179
HH5-05-20232-0012-DRAFT-201E0
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-18515
HHS-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-19517
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-201E5
HHS-05-20232-0012-DRAFT-2018E
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-20152
HH5-05-20232-0012-DRAFT-20193
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-19527
HHS 03-2022 0012-DRAFT 20194
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20155
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20196
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-20197
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20198
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20199
HHS-05-2022-0812-ORAFT-20200
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20203
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20204

HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-20205

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20206
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20207
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20208
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20209
HHS05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20210
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20211
HH5-(5-2033-0012-DRAFT-20212
HHF05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20213
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20214

Tracy Muscari
Robert McDonald
Dawd Stansileld
Michael Stiennon
Christing Chan
Anonpmous
Gordon Harvieusx
Sara Guinan
Michael Price
Joan Barten

Kite Ross

Andrew Joseph
Ananymaus

sam shepard
Thompson Usiyan
Angnymeaus
Alexander Samudio
bryan wenzel
Chloe na
Stephan Kyriacou
Mel Vargas
Landie Fagg
Willlam McCrale
Gwen Nighswander
Ammar Hussain
Anonymaus
George Dutton
Anonymaous
Robert Perelra
Frances nowak
ANQnymous
Mary Saydilk
Jahn Belois
Eenneth Delong
Danny Ceon
Finley Rogers
Rebecca Talbott
Sllvio de Melo
Ewnymnie b hale

M McCutchen
Gawin Strawn
Cheryl fanes
Lycorys Qcha
Dayna Ingram-Farms
Daylon Young
Senua Lewis
Emily Giovannucci
Zachary Smith
Anonymous

Sara Gunter

Eri Fultcn

Michsile Baker

lesse lones
lacob Smith
Anonymous
Christapher Ryan
Heather [
Marcus Lisnberg
Eric Fivash
Lenore Kos
Christopher Short
Cl Allman

Sarm Price

Wate Schulz

les Reed

Brinda Gurumoorthy
Gabriel sciallis
Mey Eravich

Zach D

lohn Tafolla

Ananymaus
lulian Applebaun
Caitlin Cahalane
Roberta Envin
Dawd Klinge
Ananymaus
Boris Dirnbach
John Resse

Alex Prestia
Dorothy Karpien
Shayna ZoA« Redstone-Rothsteln
realta memahan
Anonymous
Mary Hudson
Tony Mealer
Stering Moss
Caleb Paul

Alfred McKinley
Anonymous
Fhillp Leos
Amanda Cortese
Trent Husser
Ananymaus
Kristin Hass
SUSANNAH MORLOCK
Caraline Cateil
lan Persson
Sarah Clegg
Aidan McChristie



HHS-05-2022-0012-1879%
HHS-05-202240012-18800
HHS-05- 202 20012 18801
HHS-05-2022-0012-18802
HHS5-05-2022-0012-18203
HHS-052022.0012 18804
HHS-05-2022-0012-18805
HHS-05-2022-0012-16806
HHE5-05-2022-0012-18807
HHS-05-2022-0012-18808
HHS5-05-2022-0012-1880%
HHS 05 202 2-0012- 18510
HH5-05-2022-0012-18211
HH5-05-2022-0012-16812

HHS 05 2022-0012 -1E813

HH5-05-2022-0012-18814
HHS-05-2022-0012-18815
HHE-05-2022-0012-1BE16
HH5-05-2022-0012-18817
HHS-05-2022-0012-18818
HHE-05-2022-0012-1E81%
HH5-05-2022-0012-18820
HHS.05-2022-0012-18831
HHE-05-2022-0012-1B8322
HHS-05-2022-0012-18823
HHS-05-2022-0012-18824
HH5-05-2022-0012-18825
HH5-05-2022-0012-16826
HHS-05.2022-0012-18827

HHS-05-2022-0012-18828

HHS-05-2022-0012-16829
HHS052022.0012-18830
HHE-05-20220012-18831
HH5-05-2022-0012-18833
HHS-05-2022-0012-16834
HH5-05-2022-0012-18835
HHS-05-2022-0012-16836
HHS-05-2022-0012-18837
HH5-05-2022-0012-18838
HHS-05-2022-0012-18833
HHS5-05. 2022-0012 18840
HH5-05-2022-0012-18841
HH5-05-2022-0012-18842
HHE-05-2022-0012-1B843
HHS-05-2022-0012-18844
HHS-05-2022-0012-18845

HHS5-05-2022-0012-18846

HH5-05-2022-0012-18847
HHS-05-2022-0012-18848
HHE-05-2022-0012- 18850
HH5-05-2022-0012-18252
HHS-052022.0012 18853
HH5-05-2022-0012-18854
HHS-05-2022-0012-18855
HHS-05-2022-0012-188558
HHE5-05-2022-0012-1B857
HHS-05-2022-0012-16858
HHS 0520220012 18859
HHS5-05-2022-0012-1EE60
HHS-05-2022-0012-18861
HH$-05-2022-0012-18862
HH5-05-2022-0012-13863
HHS-05-2022-0012-16864
HHS-05-2022-0012-18865
HH5-05-2022-0012-18866
HH5-05-2022-0012-16867
HH5-05-2022-01012-18868
HH5-05-2022-0012-18863
HHS-05-2022-0012-18870
HHE-05-2022-0012- 18571
HH5-05-2022-0012-18872
HHS-05-2022-0012-18873
HH5-05-2022-0012-18875
HH5-05-2022-0012-13876
HHS-05-2022-0012-18877
HH5-05-2022-0012- 18578
HHS-05-2022-0012-1887%
HHS-05-2022.0012 18880
HHS- 05-2022-0012- 18881
HHS-05-2022-0012-18882
HHS-05-2022-0012-16283
HHE-05-2022-0012-1E824
HH5-05-2022-0012-16885
HHS-05-2022.0012 18885
HHE-05-2022-0012-1E887
HH5-05-2022-0012-16888
HHS-05.2022-0012-1888%
HH5-05-2022-0012-12830
HHS-05-2022-0012-18892
HHS052022-0012-18893
HH5-05-2022-0012-18234
HHS-05-2022-0012-18895
HHE-05-2022-0012-18E96
HH5-05-2022-0012-18897
HHS-05-2022-0012-16898
HHE-05-2022-0012-18535
HHS-05-2022-001 2-1 8900
HHS-05-2022-0012-18901
HH5-05-2022-0012-18902

HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-20215

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20216
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-20217
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-202 18
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20219
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20301
HHS5-05-20232-0012-DRAFT-20302
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20303
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-20304
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20223
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20224
HHS 05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20225
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20225
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20227
HH5-05-2023 -0012-DRAFT-20228
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-20229
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20230
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20231
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20232
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20233
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20234
HHS-(15-2023-0012-DRAFT-20235
HHS-05-2022-0013- DRAFT-20136
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20237
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-20319

HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20238

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20220
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20239
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-20240
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20321
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20322
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 20323
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20224
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-20244
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-20245
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20246
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20247
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20245
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20243
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20250

HHS—CPS—ZDZZ 0012- DRAFT- 20251

HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20252
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20253
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20235
HHS-06-2022-0012-DRAFT-20254
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20255
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20256
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20257
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-20339
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20340
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20260
HHS-05-2022 0012-ORAFT-20341
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20342
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20343
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-20345
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20263
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20264
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 20265
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20266
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20267
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-20068
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20269
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20270
HHS 0520220012 DRAFT-20271
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20272
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20273
HH5-05-20232-0012-DRAFT- 20274
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-20357
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20275
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-2D358
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20276
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20359
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20278
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-20361
RH e U T eie )
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-2D2E0
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20362
HHS-05-2022 0012 DRAFT-20363
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20364
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20365
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-20283
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20284
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20285
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 20286
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-202E7
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20288
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-20049
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-20250
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20292
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 20293
HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-20264
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20295
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20236
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20257
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20298
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20299
HHS-0%5-2022-0012-DRAFT-20300
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-20383
HH5-05-2023 -0012-DRAFT-20284

Ciera Caronada
Anonyrmous
AROnymaus
Simean Aitken
Iridlescent Riffel
Alex Colson
Alan Hull

Kyle Stephens
An MeDanneall
Liky Dalconza
Anonymous

~ Marllyn Necel

Angnymaus

Alex Mchride
Beth Fullar )
lared Leiderman
ANonymous.

Holly Westhraak
Angnymaus
Rande Beidel

Ray Dermpsey

lim Gruman
Janathan Harman
MD

Jose Reyes
Febecca McHood
Ananymaus
Mikayla Balch
will Agudo
Devan Cherneski
ANonymous.
Samantha Slgmon
willow LeaF
Francesca Ossi
Klrsten Ross

G Lummins
Prince Singh
Anonymous.
Angnymaus
Timathy Vandover
losefine Green
Alexander Farmer
Paula Knier

Isaiah Maldanado
Katelyn Hartley
Ann Beatus
Ananymaus
Ananymaus
Amanda Michal
Trei Lee

Tyler Stewart
Ananymaus.
Ananymaus

Ken Lukken
Hathanlel Marckwardt
Ananymaus

Lia Elwonger
Kathryn Kehrer
David Wikt

Tayler Holt

Elolse Powers
Maonigue Farent
Maomi LIl
Rebecea Bryson
Luke Myers
Megan Massa
John Urbaneic
Ananymaus
Carobyn Miller
Adanis Muscari
Angnymays
Vinson Sparks
Ananymaus

Mash Hall

Hora Mardirossian
Ricky Welch

Kra Davis

Erianna Tomaskowch-valdez

Darren Keast
Betsy Shimberg
Matthew Marrero
Evan Young
Anonymous.
Susan Bryant

1 Sather

lordan Howen
Kathleen McGosy
Courtney Dan
Anonymous

_Anon_'.mous

Heidi Dragneff
Tham Washburn
Ella Wood
Ananymaus
Anonymous
Aiden Mieto

Ant Harkin
Chris Cliffard
Kellen Urban



HHS-05-2022-0012-18903
HHS-05-2022-0012-18%04
HH5-05-2022-0012-18905
HHS-05-2022-0012-18906
HHE-05-2022-0012-18907
HHS-05-2022:0012-18908
HHS-05-2022-0012-18309
HHS5-05-2022-0012-18910
HH$-05-2022-0012-18911
HH5-05-2022-0012-18912
HHE5-05-2022-0012-18913
HH5-05-2022-0013-18914
HH5-05-2022-0012-18915
HH5-05-2022-0012-18916
HHS-05-2022-0012- 18317
HH5-05-2022-0012-18918
HHS-05-2022-0012-1891%
HH5-05-2022-0012-18920
HH5-05-2022-0012-18921
HH5-05-2022-0012-18922
HH5-05-2022-0012-18923
HH5-05-2022-0012-18924
HH5-05-2022-0012-18925
HHS-05-2022-0012- 18926
HH5-05-2022-0012-18927
HH$-05.2022-0013-18928
HH5-05-2022-0012-18930
HHS-05-2022-0012-18%31
HHS.052022.0012 18932
HH5-05-2022-0012-18933
HHS-05-202240012-18934
HHS-05- 202 2001218935
HH5-05-2022-0012-18936
HH5-05-2022-0012-18937
HH5-05-2022-0012-18938
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HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-33492
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-33507
HHS-05-2022 0012-DRAFT-33524
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-33527
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-33541
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-33571
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-33579
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-33581
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 33590
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-33599
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-33620
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-33690
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-33722
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-33767
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-33E28
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-33835
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-33838
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-33839
HHS-(15-2023-0012-DRAFT-13869
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-33677
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-33E24

lames Rose
ANonymous.
lohn Castanon
Kevin Durmala
Raobert Phillips
Colette Matthews
Jeanine Schmolt
Donna Zuehlk
Russell Card
Lindsay Mielsan
Anne Theriault

lohn Lemley

Lucifer D3E™ambrosic
Marion radomsli

Jackie Elder

Jeanie Targac
Fern Parent
Andrew Bishap
Phoebe Brawn
Anonymous
Anonymaus
Angnymmaus

Eve Chaurand
Cara Buskmiller
Drake Hoffman
Fobart Autchison
Rita Kemme
Michelle DeFiore
Elizabeth Costello
Margaret Frank
Mdichael Yest
Linda Richelsen
Fanny Feldman
Caral Stephens

Hilltown Community Health Centers, Inc.

Anixandre Bataille Agnant
ichael Warren
Aleta Worns

Amal Ahmed
Chioe Adama
Fatrick Howard
Fatricia Banks
ANQOYous
Ananymaus
Herman Jung
Betiy Kissilove
Ruth Ann Filney
Mary Paynter
Alma Golden )
Waleria M Diaz Hernandez
Robert Borowski
Loralal Silva
Domimc Petan
Betty Brooking
Anonymous

Paul Ternme
Kristel Behrend
Amalia Kay
Mkeiruka Bakke
ANNE VAM DER LINDEN
loan Craft

Mark Fairless
Patricia Bennett
Maurlce Glende
Stephanie Sawyer
Fatrich Schlachter
Jeanne Murray
Joseph Heintz
mary k hill

Debra Braun
lanice Campbell
Dalz Cox

Mancy Tipton

Erin Gaffney

Seott Spiegelberg
Hollie Chessman
Theresa Jaksetic
Anonymous
Fatrick Russzell
Clive Gomez
Thomas lwanowski
Ananymaus
Matthew Solyntjes
Justin Maksim
Bernardine Nitz
Mary Steele
Fatrlcia Larzelere
Hallg Lisetve Pierce
lames Christensen
Taml Soleye

Cathy Laibl

Debra Witek-Caldwell
Aarcn Reeder
Steven Wood
Shinobu Christian
Westa Malykhina
Edward Smith
Theodore Conrath
Elena Rumiantseva



HH5-05-2022-0012-32101
HHS-05-2022-0012-33151
HHS05- 2022001233177
HHS-05-2022-0012-33179
HH5-05-2022-0012-33183
HHS-05 2022001233200
HHS-05-2022-0012-33256
HHS-(5-2022-0012-33260
HH5-05-2022-0012-33274
HH5-05-2022-0012-33299
HHS5-05-2022-0012-33318
HH5-05-2022-0012-33355
HH5-05-2022-0012-33360
HH5-05-2022-0012-33364
HHS-05-2022-0012-32375
HH5-05-2022-0012-33386
HHS5-05-2022-0012-33388
HH5-05-2022-0012-33398
HH5-05-2022-0012-3339%
HHE5-05-2022-0012-33420
HHS-05-2022-0012-33431
HH5-05-2022-0012-33433
HH5-05-2032-0013-33424
HH5-05-2022-0012-33453
HH5-05-2022-0012-33154
HH5-05-2022-0012-33463
HHS-05-2022-0012-33464
HH5-05-2022-0012-33467
HHS-05.2022-0012-3346%
HH5-05-2022-0012-33471
HHS-05-2022-0012-33484
HHS-052022-0012.33491
HHS-05-2022-0012-33493
HHS5-5-2022-0012-33500
HHS-05- 2022-0012 33523
HH5-05-2022-0012-33531
HHS5-05-2022-0012-33543
HHS 05-2022-0012-33562
HH5-05-2022-0012-3356%
HH5-05-2022-0012-33572
HHS-05-2022-0012-33577
HH5-05-2022-0012-33579
HH5-05-2022-0012-33504
HH5-05-2022-0012-33617
HH5-05-2022-0012-33632
HHS5-5-2022-0012-33645

HHS-05-2022-0012-33662

HH5-05-2022-0012-32666
HH5-05-2032-0012-33650
HH5-05-2022-0012-33707
HH5-05-2022-0012-33710
HHS-05 2022001233730
HHS-05-2022-0012-33744
HH5-05-2022-0012-33747
HH5-05-2022-0012-33751
HHE5-05-2022-0012-33780
HH5-05-2022-0012-33792
HH5-05-2022.0012-33796
HHS5-05-2022-0012-33802
HH5-05-2022-0012-33803
HH5-05:20220012.33811
HH5-05-2022-0012-338328
HH5-05-2022-0012-33853
HH5-05-2022-0012-33858
HH5-05-2022-0012-33835
HHE-05-2022-0012-338%8
HHS5-05. 2022-0012 33500

HHS-05-2022-0012-33903

HHS-05-2022-0012-33912
HHE-05-2022-0012-32514
HH5-05-20220012-33516
HHS-05-2022-0012-33918
HH5-05-2022-0012-33924
HH5-05-2022-0012-32528
HHS-05-2022-0012-33938
HHE-05-2022-0012-325941
HH5-05-2022-0012-32945
HHS-05-2022.0012 33964
HHE-05-20220012-33977
HHS-05-2022-0012-33986
HHS-05-2022-0012-34010
HHE-05-2022-0012-34036
HH5-05-2022-0012-34046
HHS-05-2022.0012 34048
HHE-05-20220012-34062
HH5-05-2022-0012-34063
HHS-05.2022-0012-34065
HH5-05-2022-0012-34068
HHS-05-2022-0012-34081
HHS-052022.0012 34085
HH5-05-2022-0012-34093
HHS-05-2022-0012-34098
HHS- DS -2022-0012-34108
HH5-05-2022-0012-34138
HH5-05-2022-0012-34143
HHE-05-2022-0012-34153
HH5-05-2022-0012-24162
HHS-05-2022-0012-34176
HH5-05-20220012-34178

HHS-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-33908
HHSQ5-2022-0012-DRAFT-33961
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-33987
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-33959
HH5-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-33093
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34010
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34066
HHS05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34070
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-34084
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34109
HHS-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-34128
HHS-05-2022 0012-DRAFT 34165
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34170
HHS-0%-2022-0012- DRAFT-34174
HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-34185
HHS-(5-2022-0012-DRAFT-34196
HH5-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-34198
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34209
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT- 34210
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34231
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34242
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34244
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-34245
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34265
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34 266
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34278
HHS-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-34279
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34282
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34 224

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34286

HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34300
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34307
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34309
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-34317
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-34340
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRLFT-34348
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34360
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 34379
HHS—OS—ZOZZ 0012 DRAFT- FIEG
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34390
HHS—GS—ZDZZ a012- DHAFT 34395
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34397

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34913

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34438
HH5-05-2022-0012-DAAFT-34453
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-34466
HH5-05-2022-0012-DAAFT-34483
HH5-05-2022-0012-DALFT-34487
HH5-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-34511
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34528
HHS-05-2022-0012-DAAFT-34531
HH5-05-2022.0012-0RAFT-34551
HH5-05-2022-0012-DAAFT-34565
HHS05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34568
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-34572
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34602
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34614
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34613
HH5-05-2022-0012-DAAFT-34624
HHS-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-34625
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34633
HHS-05-2022-0012-DAAFT-34650
HHS-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-34675
HH3-05-2022-0012 DMFT-M?IZ
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-24719
HH5-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-34722
HHS—G‘S—ZDZZ-UDJZ-DHAFT-B«I?ZG
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34727
HH5-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-34736
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34738
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34740
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34742
HHS—GS—ZDZZ 0012-DRAFT-. 34?!18
HH5-05-2022-0012-DAAFT-34752
HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-34762
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34765
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34769
HH5-05- 20220012 -DRAFT-34788
HH5-052022-0012-DAAFT-34803
HHS05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34814
HHS- (52022 0012 DRAFT- 34833
HHS OS ZDZZ 0012-DRAFT-34E64
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34874
HH3-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-34878

HHS-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-34833

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34894
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-34896
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-34900
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34914
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34919
HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-34526
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-34931
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34942
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34973
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34378
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-34988
HH5-05-2022-0012-DAAFT-34958
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35013
HH5-05-20232 -0012-DRAFT-35016

Ananymaus

Marcia Marhefka
MarlAnn Walte
Heather Benz

Lee Andarson

Lynn Bartan
Cathering Pollnow
Jamnes Simpson
Erlstan Cooper
Ananymaus

Traci Brooks
Mellssa Fox
Angnymays

leffrey Boutin
Jasan Lemieus
Susan Dillard

Karen Bennett
Hydy Cates

Riobert Kztcham
Robert selomon
Lesles Simms
Mancy FRANKLIN-HICKS
Anonymaous

K Danowski

John Naughtan
lennifer Petro
Elizabeth Hart Whelan
Py Hame Py Last Name
Fatrlcia Pekarek
MB

Faula Martin

Dawid Seth Wegner
Karen Kaffenberger
Andrea Densham

_Mary Weytych

Rhonda Brown
Stephen Matlock
Emlly Boundaone
Cynthia Lafortune
Rachel Yogeltanz
Wendy Durantes
Aileen Malneritch

Adrianna Bernardo-Freaman

Ananymaous

Delia Hogan

Anne Egan

Daniel Weiss MO
Charles Lortie
Bylle Klingaman
Laura Aldir
Colleen Conngrs
Colette Melken
Barbara Cutrone BN,
Rey Justin MoCreedy
Antony B

Ellissa Jones

Lee Digdrick
Dorls Desroslers
Shari Rogers
AnQnyrmous
Marle Lewls
Daniel ORourke
ANCRYMous
Hollis $toddard
ReElle Crawell
Laurence Faulks
Aurara Martinez
Caralyn Hathaway
ANORYMous
Ananymaus
Angnymays
AnQnymous
Ananymaus
Windy Dolan
JAMES DEPEW
Gres Burke

Emily R.

Laura Mann
Tarnrmy Beaven
Alex Garcia
_Karinna Waddeups
LW Sutton, Jr.
Sushil Iha

David Hull
Michael Boles
Christine Le Blanc
Anonymous
Megan Myers
_Angela Owsianiecki
Anonymous
Angnymaus
LeahE
Concerned Citizen
loshua Klopper
lulia Kovatch
Troy Zabel

Jeanne Brooks
Ray & Cindy Fields
Ananymaus



HHS-05-2022-0012-34181
HHS-05-2022-0012-34182
HH5-05-2022-0012-34189
HHE-0S-2022-0012-34191
HHE5-05-2022-0012-34205
HHS:05.2022-0012-34216
HHE-DS-2022-0012-34221
HH5-05-2022-0012-34222
HHS-05-2022.0012-34229
HHS-05-2022-0012-34236
HHS-05-2022-0012-34240
HH5-05-2032-0013-34247
HH5-05-2022-0012-34256
HH5-05-2022-0012-34260
HHS-0S-2022-0012-34261
HHE-05-2022-0012-34266
HHS-05-2022-0012-34268
HHS-05-2022-0012-34270
HH5-05-2022-00112-34281
HH5-05-2022-0012-34283
HHS-05-20220012 34297
HHS-05-2022-0012-34298
HHS-05.2022.0012-34302
HHS-05-20220012-34308
HH5-05-2022-00113-34313
HH5-05-2022-0012-34320
HHS5-DS-2022-0012-34324
HH5-05-2022-0012-34326
HHS052022.0012-34341
HHS-05-2022-0012-34345
HH5-05-2022-0012-34350
HH5-05:20220012-34357
HHS-0S-2022-0012-34364
HH5-05-2022-0012-34366
HH5-05 2022001234387
HHS-05-2022-0012-34202
HH5-05-2022-0012-34423
HHS-05:2022-0012-39426
HHS-05-2022-0012-34460
HH5-05-2022-0012-34465
HHS-05-2022-0012 34467
HHS-05-2022-0012-34475
HHS-05-2022-0012-34494
HHS-0S-2022-0012-34501
HHS5-05-2022-0013-34515
HH5-05-2022-0012-34516
HH5-DS-2022-0012-345325
HH5-05-2022-0012-34526
HH5-05-2022-0012-34527
HHS-05-2022.0012-34530
HH5-05-2022-0012-34541
HH5-05-2032-0013-34551
HHS-05-2022-0012 34558
HH5-05-2022-0012-34567
HHS.05-2022-0012-34577
HHS-05-20220012-34578
HH5-05-2022-0012-34583
HHS-05.2022-0012-34585
HHS-05-2022-0012 34587
HH5-05-2022-0012-34598
HH5-05-2022-0012 34604
HHE-05-2022-0012-34612
HHS-05-2022-0012-34637
HHS-05-2022-0013-30642
HH5-05-2022-0013-34655
HH5-05-2022-0012-34657
HHS-05-2022-0012-34658
HH5-05-2022-0012-34663
HHS-05-2022-0012-34670
HH5-0S-2022-0012-34671
HH5-05-2022-0012-34675
HHS-05-2022-0012-34676
HHS5-DS-2022-0012-34624
HHS-(5-2022-0012-34704

HHS-05-2022-0012-34713

HHS5-05-20220012-34715
HH5-05-2022-0012-34718
HHS-05-2022-0012-34722
HHE-05-2022-0012-34731
HHS-05-2022-0012-34740
HHS-05-2022.0012-34756
HHS-05-2022-0012-34760
HHS-05-2022-0012-34767
HHS-05-2022-0012-3476%
HH5-05-2022-0012-34776
HHS-05-2022-0012-34790
HHS-052022.0012-34795
HHS-05-2022-0012-34802
HH5-05-2022-0012-34834
HHS-05-2022-0012-34835
HH5-05-2022-0012-34891
HH5-05-2022-0012-34955
HHE-05-2022-0012-345957
HHS-05-2022-0012-35045
HHS-05-2022-0012-35051
HHE-05-20220012-35133
HH5-05-2022-0012-35178
HHS-05-2022-0012-35189
HHE-O5-2022-0012-35202

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35019
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-350:20
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35027
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35029
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35043
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-35054
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35061
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35062
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT 35070
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-35078
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35082
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-35083
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35099
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35103
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-35104
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35110
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35112
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35114
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35125
ﬂHFO}jOZJ-UOlZ-DMFT-iSIZ?
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35142
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35144
HH3-05- 2022 Q012-DRAFT-35147
HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT.35153
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35164
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-35165
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35170
HHF-05-2022-0012-DIRAFT-35172
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT 35167
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35198
HHSQ5-2022-0012-DRAFT-35199
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-35 206
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35213
HHS-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-352 16
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35238
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35253
HHS05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35277
HH5-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-35280
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35317
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35222
HHS-05.2022-0012- DRAFT-35224
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35334
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35352
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35359
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35373
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35374
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35283
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35384
HH- 0520220012 -DRAFT-35385
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35388
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35399

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35410

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35418
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35427
HH5-03-2022-0012-DRAFT-35438

HHS-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-35439

HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-35444
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35447
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35448
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35459
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35465
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35473
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35500

HHS-05.2022-0012-DRAFT-35505

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35518
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35520
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-35522
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-35526
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-35533
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35534
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35538

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35539

HHS-C05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35547
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35567
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35576
HH5-05-2072.0012-DRAFT-35578
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35582
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-35586
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35595
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35605
HH3-05-2022 0012-DRAFT-35621
HH5-05-2012.0012-DRAFT-35626
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35633
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-35635
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35642
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35657
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35662
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35669
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35701
HH5-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-35703
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35 758
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35822
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35624
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-35813
HH5-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-3591%
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-36001
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-36046
HHF-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-36057
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-36070

lulie Welch

Edna Livingston

Citizens With Mikhail Alterman
Ananymaus

Jeannette Reinecker LCSWC
Abigall Mesebarg

leanne Richmond

ANonymous.
ANanymous.

Julie Major-Frunz
Farvin Felli

Faul Gallaghar
Malanie Alleen
Lievy

Ananymaus
Angrymeaus

Ellena Linden
Dorothy Hobart
Stella Starfield

Tw

Gwean Morgan
Angnymaus
Tamsin Davis-Langley
Frank Pecarara
Benjamin Davis
Fatrlck Hamick
Samantha Plurm
ANonymous

lose Montey
Kathryn Carnell
Anonyrnous
Francls Collattl
Alex Davit

Anne McGuire
Raymond Schembri
Angnymaus
Anonymaous
Andrew Youpa
Marie-fndre Wilson
Anne-Marig Welsh
Ananymaus
Stephen fcGee
Anonymaous
Therese Sander
Luna Goodwin
R KR
American Dental Assaciation

American College of Emergency Physicians

Sarah Rudd
Elizabreth Mariam
Ananymaus
Anonymous

lose Lacaya

Claire Wilcox

M. ML

Hilda Mathieu

Mew York $tate Catholic Conference
Maxine German
Diane Gowski
Kathaleen Moynihar
Morgan Schewerman
Gina Hinterschied
Carolyn Dean
Thomas Gormarn
Bridget Faulkenberry
Rnon_\_ymbus_ .
Jleanmie Pietrzyck
Angnymaus

Sister Johanna Marie Melnyk, 056
Temple University Health System
Francene Shiffler
Theresa Carmak
Sandra Mavhew
Hick Donofrin

N/A N/A

HEIND F L MEYER-BAHLBLIRG
DEIDRE MCLECD
Anonymous

Julian Davies

David Qippinger

Tim Garemore

Diane Parente
Sydney Simitz
Robert Cousens
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HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53504
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HH5-05-2022-0012-54173
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HHS-05-2022-0012-54214
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HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-54793
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HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-54B58
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-54853
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HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-S4865
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-54869
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HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-54968
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-54973
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HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-55003
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55005
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-55010
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-S5018
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55020
HH5-05-2022-0012 DRAFT 55036
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 55040
HH505-2022-0012-DRAFT-55046
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-55049
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55079
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55081
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HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 55083
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55090
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55051
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55093
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55095
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55096
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55145
HH53- 0520220012 -DRAFT-55162
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55174
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HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55224
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55225
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HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55227
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55228
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HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 55282
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HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55339
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HH5-05-2022-0012-54391
HH5-05-2022-0012-54403
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HHS-05-2022-0012-54555
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HHS-05-2022-0012-54600
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HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 55563
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HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55568
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HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55622
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HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55677
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55683
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-556284
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55685
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55687
HH3-05-2022 UDlZ-DRAFT_SSbSB
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55653
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 55695
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-85717
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-55719
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55720
HHS 0520220012 DRAFT 55723
HHE-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55726
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55729
HH5-05-20232-0012-DRAFT-55730
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-55731
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55736
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55737
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55758
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55761
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55763
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-55 764
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-S5772
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55774
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55823
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 55673
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55853
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HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-55924
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55925
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55331
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 55933
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55934
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55948
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-55949
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-56035
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56052
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 56053
HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-56060
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56076
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56086
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56101
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HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56221

Parhara éi}iﬁer
richard mccain
AROnymaus

Fichard Jehnzon
Frank Block, Jr., M.D.
Austin Oshorn

Evan Krichevsky
Jeanette Watson
Robert Meenan
Anneke Vandenbroek
Chris Kaihatsu
Erystal Kelleher
Michael Artiguss
Mrand Mrs Charles H Fifield
Steven Wahls

M. Wirginia Leslie
ANONYMous
Anonymaus
Angnymaus

Karl Moore

Diane Chew

Ron Price

Salvatore Mancuso
Micah Luben sky FhD
Camilo Diaz
Anonymous
Ananymaus
Anonyrmous

loseph DIZogho br.
Mar#-a Baker
Wizient, Inc.

_Anonymous

Project Guardianship
Anonyrnons
Mguyen Tran
Beau Dusseault
Anonymous
lordan Emont
Diana Tardoff
Kerri Bruss
Ehza beth Kelly
Robert Peters
Anonymous
Tania felvin
Russell Navkov
Anonymaous
Paula Bargiel
Liz Lundguist

Ananymous.

American Heart Aszociation
James Klein
BRENDA 5COTT -

Laura Mammae, Thomas More Society, Christian Legal Society, Mational Assaciatian of als and
Pargaret McCurdy

Anonymous

Ananymaus

Anonymous

Susanna Levin

Ananymaus

bruce leibert

Edgar Meyar

Texas Health Action

Thomas Nigland

Denise Lytle

Angnymaus

Southern Tier Independence Center, Int.
William Jordan

Tania Maklen

Bobhie Pang

Women Lawyers On Guard Action Network, Inc.
Angnymaus

Cincinnati Children's Hospital Medical Center
Ananymaus

Concerned Fhysician

Ahé_riyrpays

Mindy Johnsan

Angnymaus

Thamas Glesler

Caml\rn Hieland

Thomas Nieland

Children's Health Fund

Betty Saba

Lumeris

Wva Health, Inc

Ananymaus

Helen Carter

Sharon Shinarmiya

Mike Zeller

Eruce Hlodnicki

_A__non'.m_ous

Ed Doprohgim

Mational Council of Jewish Waemen
Edward Read MD

Cathiolic Health Care Leadership Alliance
Ronald Young

Enc Hernandez

Donna Cox

Charles Verheyden

Cassandra Armea-Wamen

Freadom Alliance



HHS-05-2022-0012-55093
HH5-05-2022-0012-55110
HHS-05.2022-0012-55175
HHE-0S-2022-0012 55235
HH5-05-2022-0012-55267
HHS-05:2022:0012-55273
HHE-DS-2022-0012-55342
HH5-05-2022-0012-55344
HHS-05-2022-0012-55348
HHS-05-2022-0012-55366
HH5-05-2022-0012-55377

HHS-05-2022-0012-55382
HH5-05-2022-0012-55394

HH5-05-2022-0012-55400
HHS-05-2022-0012-55403
HH5-05-2022-0012-55405
HHS-05-2022-0012-55407
HHS5-05-2022-0012-55420
HH5-05-2022-0012-55428
HHS-05-2022-0012-55444
HHE-05-2022-0012-55474
HH5-05-2022-0012-55475
HHS-05 2022.0012-55482
HHS-05-2022-0012-55496
HH5-05-2022-0012-55497
HHS-05-2022-0012-5551%

HH5-05-2022-0012-55549

HHS-05-2022-0012-55554
HHS 05 2022.0012-55575
HH5-05-2022-0012-55531
HHS-05-2022-0012-55621
HHS-05-2022-0012-55622
HHE-05-2022-0012-55629
HHS5-05-2022-0012-55636
HHS-05 2022.0012 55647
HHS-05-2022-0012-5564%
HHS-05-2022-0012-55654
HHS-05-2022-0012.55674
HH5-05-2022-0012-55675
HHS-05-2022-0012-55688
HHE-05-2022-0012-55706
HH5-05-2022-0012-55707
HHS-05-2022-0012-55708
HHE-05-2022-0012-55722
HH5-05-2022-0012-55723
HHS-05-2022-0012-55733
HHE-05-2022-0012-55741
HH5-05-2022-0012-55752
HHS-05-2022.0012 55753
HHE-05-20220012-55765
HH5-05-2022-0012-55766
HHS-05.2022-0012-85783
HHE-05-2022-0012-55785
HHS-05-2022-0012-55788
HHS-052022-0012 55805
HHE-05-2022-0012-55806
HHS-05-2022-0012-55808
HHS-05-2022-0012-5580%
HHE-05-2022-0012-55812
HHS-05-2022-0012-55827
HHS-052022-0012 55833
HHS-05-2022-0012-55836
HH5-05-2022-0012-55845
HHS-05-2022-0012-55853
HH5-05-2022-0012-55856
HH5-05-2022-0012-55858
HHS-05-2022-0012-55859
HHS-05-2022-0012-55861
HHS-05-2022-0012-55864
HH5-05-2022-0012-55867
HH5-05-2022-0012-55871
HH5-05-2022-0012-55872
HHE-05-2022-0012-55874
HHS-05-2022-0012-5587%
HHS05-2022.0012 55884
HHS5-05-20220012-55885%
HH5-05-2022-0012-55503
HHS-05-2022-0012-55907
HHE-05-2022-0012-55910
HHS-05-2022-0012-55911
HHS-052022.0012-55914
HH5-05-2022-0012-55515
HHS-05-2022-0012-55919
HHS-05-2022-0012-55920
HH5-05-2022-0012-55525
HHS-05-2022-0012-55926
HHS-052022.0012 55931
HHS-05-2022-0012-55934
HH5-05-2022-0012-55935
HHS-05-2022-0012-55540
HH5-05-2022-0012-55544
HH5-05-2022-0012-55945
HHS-05-2022-0012-55547
HHS-05-2022-0012-5594%
HH5-05-2022-0012-55953
HHE-05-20220012-55555
HH5-05-2022-0012-55963
HHS-05-2022-0012-55964
HHE-05-2022-0012-55573

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56231
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56248
HHS-03-2022-0012-DRAFT-56314
HH5-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-56375
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56407
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56413

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56484

HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56486
HH3 05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56450
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAAFT-56508
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56520
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-56525
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56537
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56543
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-S6536
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56548
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56550
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56563
HHS-015-2022-0012-DRAFT-56571
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56589
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56619
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56620
HHS-05-2022 0012-ORAFT 56627
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5664 1
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-56642
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-SE666
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56637
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56702
HH3-05-2022-0012-ORAFT 56723
HHS5-05-20232-0012-DRAFT-56739
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56769
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-S6770
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56777
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56784
HHS- 0520220012 DRAFT-56795
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56757
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56802
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-56823
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-56824
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56837
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56E55
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5 6856
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56857
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5BE7L
HHS-(15-20232-0012-DRAFT-56579
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56883
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56831
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56902
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 56903
HHS-05-2027-0012-DRAFT-56915
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-56916
HHS-05-2022-0013- DRAFT-56936
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56938
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56841
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 57054
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5705%5
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57057
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-S 7058
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57061
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57076
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57082
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5 7085
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57094
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57102
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57105
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57107
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57108
HH5-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-57110
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57113
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57116
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57120

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57121

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57123
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57128
HHS 05-2022-0012-DRAFT 57133
HH5-05- 2023 001 2-DRAFT-57138
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57152
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-57156
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57159
+H§-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57160
HHS-05-2022 0012-ORAFT 57163
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57164
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57168
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-57160
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57175
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57176
HH305-2022-0012-0RAFT-57181
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57184
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57185
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-S7190
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-57194
HH$-05-1022-0012-DRAFT-57195
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57157
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-571599
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57203
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57205
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-57213
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57214
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57223

Ananymaus
Jester Purtteman
ANOnymous.
Karen Grinfeld
Danielle Hancock
Rebecca Yamada
Stephanie Saitz
Michadas Wil kowski
Enc Beachy
Margie Lyons
Matthew Jeffers
Hikhil Jaln

Oracle Cerner
Richard Gregory
Allison Chstrer
Marta Hemandez
Anonymaous

Lisa Marcus
Marvales Richardson
llana Stout
Minna Zelch
James Limbach
Katie vo

Craig Buckley
Daniel Brulinski
Masrur Khan

DC Health Benefit Exchange Authority

‘William Powers
Lowell Reed
Aceess Ready
John Mulling D
Ezra Cukor

Kevin 5t lohn MO

Harrishurg Guild of the Catholic Medical Association

Kristen Ollvero

The Bigtechnalogy Innovation Grganization {B10]

Evan Young
Chane| Hearmann
Ariana Toriz

21 state insurance comnnissioners in support of adopting Gl antidiscimination protections

Craig Evans

EK

Tyna Gaylor
Community Catabyst, Inc.
Ellen Keating
Pooja Gehi
Charlotte Lee
Anganymaus
Samantha Urlch
Jocelyn Fan
Ananymaus
Heather Banks
Debbie Wilks
Eric K

Fod Serranzana
len McKee
Katheryn Baysore
Melanle Mokinn
Timathy Bryan
Jud Pag

_Andnymous

Angnymaus
Caral Peters
Anonymous
Ananymaus
Maritza Clmedo
lennifer Dwyer
Dan Lawrence
Gerald lehnsen

'Traney Rzepka'AFRN

T Franklin
Becky Wright
KX

Marilyn Kendall

Pamela Ashworth

Pat Davis

FRAMCES BALDWIN
Suzetts Sand

Mary Angela Knauss MD
Evie Chell

Pammie Ramsey
Kathryn Buchanan
Anonymous

Dlna Costleras

Deb Hillis
ANQnYMous
Anarymaus.

HP

Cindy Burke
Shannon Martinsan
Ananymaus
Marisa Figueroa
Caden Truscia

Sue hwens
Anonymous
Michele Chambers
Ananymaus

Doup Marsee

Gary Wolfe



HHS-05-2022-0012-55975
HHS-05-2022-0012-55973
HHS5-05-202 240012 55985
HHS-05-2022-0012-55986
HH5-05-2022-0012-55950
HHS-052022-0012-55892
HH5-05-2022-0012-55993
HHS-(5-2022-0012-559%6
HHS5-05.2022-0013:55997
HH5-05-2022-0012-56004
HHS-05-2022-0012-56007
HH5-05 20220012 56014
HH5-(5-2022-0012-56015
HH5-05-2022-0012-56022
HHS-D5-2022-0012-56023
HH5-05-2022-0012-56028
HHS-05-2022-0012-5602%
HHS-05-2022-0012-56032
HH5-5-2022-0012-56034
HH5-05-2022-0012-56038
HHS-05-2022-0012-56054
HH5-05-2022-0012-56056
HH5-05-2022-0012-56057
HH5-05-2022-0012-56058
HH5-(5-2022-0017-56053
HH5-05-2022-0012-56061
HHS-05-2022-0012-56064
HHS-05-2022-0012-56070
HH$-05.2022-0012:56075
HHS-05-2022-0012-56083
HHS-05-2022-0012-56084
HH5-05-2022-0012 56093
HHS-05-2022-0012-56098
HHS5-5-2022-0012-56101
HHE-05- 2022-0012 56105
HH5-05-2022-0012-56108
HH5-05-2022-0012-56100
HH$-05-2022-0012 56111
HH5-05-2022-0012-56114

HH5-05-2022-0012-56121

HHS- 05 2022-0012 -56124
HH5-05-2022-0012-56125
HH5-05-2022-0012-56126
HHE-05-2022-0012-56128
HH5-05-2022-0012-56130
HH5-05-2022-0012-5613%
HH5-05-2022-0012-56142
HH5-05-2022-0012-56144
HHS-05-2022-0012-56145
HHE-05-2022-0012-56 160
HHS5-05-2022-0012-56164
HHS-05-2022.0012 56165
HHS-05-2022-0012-56168
HHS-05-2022-0012-56176
HHS-05-2022-0012-56177
HH5-05-2022-0012-56188
HHS-05-2022-0012-56195
HHS-052022-0012 56198
HHS-05-2022-0012-5619%
HHS-05-2022-0012-56200
HHS-05-2022-0012-56218
HH5-05-2022-0012-56223
HHS-05-2022-0012-56231
HHS-05-2022-0012 56232
HHS-05-2022-0012-56238
HH5-05-2022-0012-56241
HH5-05-2022-0012-56243
HH5-05-2022-0012-56247
HHS-05-2022-0012-56253
HHE-05-2022-0012-56261
HH5-05-2023-0012-56262
HHS-05-2022-0012-56264
HH5-05-2022-001 2-56265
HH5-05-2022-0012-56267

HHS-05-2022-0012-5626%

HHE-05-2022-0012-5627 0
HH5-05-2022-0012-56275
HHS-05-2022.0012 5627%
HHS-05. -2022-0012-56281
HHS-05-2022-0012-56282
HHS-05-2022-0012-56283
HHE-05-2022-0012-56290
HHS-05-2022-0012-56293
HHS-05-2022-0012-56304
HHS-05-2022-0012-56308
HH5-05-2022-0012-56312
HHS-05-2022-0012-56314
HH5-05-2022-0012-56316
HHS-05-2022-0012-56317

HHS-05.2022-0012 56319

HH5-05-2022-0012-56323
HH5-05-2022-0012-56325
HHS-_DS-2022-0012-56326
HH5-05-2022-0012-56328
HHS-05-2022-0012-56329
HHS_-DS-2022-0012-5633IJ
HH5-05-2022-0012-56335
HH5-05-2022-0012-56341

HH5-05-2022-0012-56342

HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-57225

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57228
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57235
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57236
HHE-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57240
HHS-03-2022.0012 DRAFT 57242
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-57243
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57246
HHS-05-2022-0013- DRAFT-S 7248
HHS-05-20232-0012-DRAFT-57255
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57258
HHS-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT 57265
HH5-05-2022- 0012 DRAFT- 57265
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57273
HHS—GS—ZDZZ 0012- DHAFT S?Z?ﬂ
HHS-CI5-2022-0012-DRAFT-57280
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57281
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57284
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-5 7285
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57290
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57308
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-57210

HHS-05.2022-0012- DRAFT-57311 :

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57312
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57313
HH3-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT 57315
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57318
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57324
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-57330
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57238
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57339
HH3-0%-2022-0012-0RAFT 57343

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57253

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57 256
HHS- 05 2022-0012-DRAFT-57360
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57363
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57364
HHS: 0%-2022- 0012-DRAFT 57366
HHS-05-2022-0012- DH.IFT 57269
HH5-5-2022-0012- DPAFT 57376
HHS—GS—ZDZZ 0012 DHAFT 573'1"9
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57380
HHSO&IOZI_-OOH-DMFT-_S?SS‘L

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57283

HHS-06-2022-0012-DRAFT-57385
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57395
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57358
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57400
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-S 7401
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57418
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57422
HHS-05-2022-0012- ORAFT-57423
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57426
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57434
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-57435
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57446
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57453
HHS 0$-2022 0012-DRAFT 57456
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57457
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57458
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-S7477
HHS-015-2022-0012-DRAFT-57482
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57490
HHS-0%-2022 0012 DRAFT 57491
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57498
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57500
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57502
HHS-015-2022-0012-DRAFT-57506
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57512
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57521
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57522
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57524
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57526
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-57528

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFTS7530

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57531
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-57536
HHS-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT 57540
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57542
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57543
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-57544
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57551
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57554
HHS-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-57565
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57570
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-57574
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57576
HHS-(15-20232-0012-DRAFT-57578
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57579
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57581
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT 57585
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57587

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57588

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57550
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57591
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57592
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57557
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57603
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57604

tim simanson
ANQnymous
Anonymaue
Dawid Pyle
ANONMOUS.
Ananymaus

Larry Heater
Kathleen Fox
Kathy Respess
Ananymaus
Walquidia Delesus
Communlty Church of Emanuel
Ardene Thomas
Laurie Reynolds
Mar\r Soltis

Linda and 41 Smith
Anonymous.
Elizabeth Waaten
charles mascarella
Denize Schmidt
Cannie Ferris
Kandee Malaisan
Barbara Rehnborg
Liza Thayer
Debarah West
Anonymous
Ananymaus
Anonyrnous
Anonymous
\ictona DelYore
Eonnie Eubanks
Janna Davis

Karla Lavell
Anonymous
lacok Oshunnuga
Ananymaus

Patty Albert
Elizabeth Relghard
Debarah Wadsworth
Kelly Lavett
Ananymaus
Ananymaus
LB

Janet lett
Angnymeaus

Julie Wyatt
Ananymaus
Fhylliz Bighes
Jaff Johnson
Barbara Waissling
Terri Trepanier
Judy Kollstedt
Ananpmaus
Shargn Bellers
Anonymous
Debbie Vangilder
Eill Kellas

Harry Lewis
Ananymaus
ANQnyrmous
Cynthia Thampson
Charles Walkup Ir
ANOnYmous
Kendall Tashle
Ruth Sullivan
Cathy Costelle
Walerie Wesley
Toni Meinke
DeAnne Harris
Catherine Grubb
Angnymaus

Patricia Miller

Darrell Bantrager
K Watson

Patty Fahrray
Barb Smalley
DUIANE HAYASH|
Llsa Stanley
Ananymaus

Leri Harrison
Anonymous
Rachel Cooney
Margot Hedlin
Staphanle Davls
Ananymaus
ANQnymous
Elaine Snellgrove
Bud Livers

Katie Bowers

Alan Ray

Linda Bulpitt

3 Clark

Chriz Thomas
Malcalm Wilscn
Carlene Anson
Lupe Reyas
Angnymaus

Dean Sthumacher
John Maciace



HHS-05-2022-0012-56358
HHS-05-2022-0012-56362
HH5-05.2022-0012-56364
HHS-05-2022-0012-56366
HHE5-05-2022-0012-56367
HHS-05-2022:0012-5636%
HHS-05-2022-0012-56371
HHS-05-2022-0012-56374
HHS-05-2022-0012 56378
HHE-5-2022-0012-56381
HHS5-5-2022-0012-56382
HHS- OS 2022-0012 56383
HH5-05-2022-0012-56384
HH5-05-2022-0012-5638%
HHS-05-2022-0012-56391
HH5-05-2022-0012-56392
HH5-05-2022-0012-56402
HHS-05-2022-0012-56405
HHS-05-2022-0012-56406
HH5-05-2022-0012-56415
HH5-05-2022-0012-56420
HH5-05-2022-0012-56425
HH5-05-2022-0012 56431
HHS-05-2022-0012-56437
HH5-05-2022-0012-56438
HHE5-05-2022-0012-56444
HH5-05-2022-0012-56445
HHS-05-2022-0012-56452
HHS-052022.0012-56453
HHS-D05-2022-0012-56454
HHS-05-2022-0012-56455
HH5-05-2032-0012-56456
HH5-05-2022-0012-56458
HH5-05-2022-0012-56450
HH5-05-2022-0012-56460
HH5-05-2022-0012-5645%9
HHS-05-2022-0012-56472
HH5-05.2022-0012:56477
HHS5-05-2022-0012-56480
HH5-05-2022-0012-56486
HHS-05-2022-0012-56490
HH5-(5-2022-0012-56491
HHS-05-2022-0012-56507
HH5-05-2022-0012-56513
HH5-05-2022-0012-56516
HH5-05-2022-0012-56520
HH5-05-2022-0012-56522
HH5-(5-2022-0013-56523
HHS.05.2022.0012 56524
HHS-05-2022-0012-56527
HH5-05-2022-0012-56530
HH5-05-2022-0013-56532
HH5-05-2022-0012-56535
HHS-05-2022-0012-56536
HHS-05-2022-0012-56541
HHS-05-2022-0012-56543
HHS5-(5-2022-0012-56547
HHE-05- 2022-0012 56548
HHS-05-2022-0012-56557
HH5-05-2022-0012-56562
HHS-05- 20220012 56565
HH5-05-2022-0012-56558
HHS5-05-2022-0012-56576
HHS OS 2022-0012 56551

HH5-05-2022-0012-56582

HHS-05-2022-0012-56584
HHE-05-2022-0012-56585
HHS-05-2022-0012-56586
HHS-05-2022-0012-56593
HH5-05-20220012-56594
HH5-05-2022-0012-56597
HH5-05-2022-0012-56598
HHE-05-2022-0012-56600
HH5-05-2022-0012-56602
HHS 05-2022-0012 5660
HH5-05-2022-0012-56608
HH5-05-2022-0012-56612
HHS-05-2022-0012-56624
HH5-05-2022-0012-56625
HHS-05-2022-0012-56617
HHS-05-2022.0012 56632
HH5-05-2022-0012-56633
HHS-05-2022-0012-56634
HHS-05-2022-0012-56635
HH5-05-2022-0012-56636
HHS-05-2022-0012-56638
HHS-052022.0012 56638
HH5-05-2022-0012-56640
HHS-05-2022-0012-56645
HHS-05-2022-0012-56647
HH5-05-2022-0012-56648
HHS-05-2022-0012-56654
HHE-05-2022-0012-56655
HH5-05-2022-0012-56657
HH5-05-2022-0012-56658
HH5-05-2022 001 2-5665%
HH5-05-2022-0012-566E7
RHS-05-2022-0012-56668
HHE-05-2022-0012-56679

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57620
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57624
HHE-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT 57626
HHS-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-57628
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57629
HHS-08-2022-0012- BRAFT-57631
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57633
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57636
HHS-05-2022.0012-ORAFT-57641
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 57643
HHS-5-2022-0012-DRAFT-57644
HHS 05 2022 0012 DFAFT 57645
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57646
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57651
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-S7653
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57655
HH5-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-57665
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57668
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57669
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57679
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57684
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5 7680
HHS-03-2022.0012- ORAFT 57696
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57703
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57704
HH5-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-57710
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-S7711
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57718

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 57719

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57720
HHSO5-2022-0012-DRAFT-57721
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-57722
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57724
HH5-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-57725
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 57726
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57735
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57738
HH5-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-57743
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57746
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57753
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57757
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 57758
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57774
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57780
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57783
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57788
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57730
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 57791
HH3-0%-2022-0012-ORAFT-57752
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57795
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57798

HH5-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-57800

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57E03
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57804
HH3-0%-2022-0012-ORAFT 57609

HHS-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-57811

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57815
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57816
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57625
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57830
HHS-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT 57833
HHS—05—2022 0012 DRAFT- 5TE36
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-57844
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-57849

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57850

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57851
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57853
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57854
HHS-05-2022-0012- IRAFT-5786 1

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-S 7662

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57E65
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57866
HH5-05-20232-0012-DRAFT-57EGE
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57870

HH3 05-2022-0012-DRAFT 57874

HHS-05-2022.-0012-DRAFT-S7E76
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57880
HH5-05.2022.0012- DRAFT-57652
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 57893
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57895
HH3-05-2022 0012-0RAFT 57900
HHS-05-2022- 0012 DRAFT-57901
HH5-0%5-2022-0012-DRAFT-57402
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57903
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57904
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57906
HH3-03-2022.0012-ORAFT-57907
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57508
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57913
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-57915
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57916
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57922
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57923
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57525
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57926
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57927
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57935
HHFO}Z@ZI-UO;Z-DMFT-S?QSS
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57947

Debarah Visser
ANQRYMous
AnOnymous ]
Lavigne Kirkpatrick
Anonymous
Roseanne Agonlas
loseph Klein
Susan Curd
Caralyn Harrls
Ananymaus
Anonymeous

Sue Bolenbaugh
Andre Yan Mal, MD
M. A A Everest
Ananymaus
Wanda Natwood
Daniel Albritten
Genmhr Ishnsan
Edie Wilson
Anonymaous
Carol Shepard
Luinn Ragle
Terrye Adams
Cindy Havens
David Killian

K Danowskl
Ginger Charles
Rebecca Dahms
Anonymous
Diane Cox

Il

Anonymous

.Bridget A libarn

Anonymaus

Mark Flon

Murray Bulpitt
Monica Reyes
Anonymous

Merle Petrovich
Yannell Selman
Ananymaus

Judy Brown
Ananymous
Ananymaus

lames Stalians
Aleta Gordon-Brown
Leslie 1.
Angnymaus
Robert Baker
James loransen
Mational Nurses United
Kay Belgum
Christina McKenzie
Roderick Card

Pam Lewis

Monica Canfield-Lenfest
MARY YOUNG
Peggy Snall

Henry Zaok

1 Tomes

Michael Hughes
Karvin Snydar
Lisa Schuch
Anonymous

Susan Phipps

Eva McLaysr_lrin
Christina Cirueci
Richard Chester
Betty Stalians
Margaret Pattersun
Scott Pearson
Anonymous
Dorine Dpwora
Alice Emersan
Anonymous

Len Philpal
Ananymaus
Katherine Frisdrlch
Felix robles
Edmundo Hernandez
Kendall Klase
Thamas Mulligan
Shayne Fawcett
Marvin & Shirrell Fischer
LH

Fatricia Trent
ANanymous.
Angnymaus

Mark Barbee
Laurle Vrba-Bos
Ananymaus

Stacy Cerone
dmarz

Christine Dominiak
Stephen Lane
Ananymaus

Paul Rockswold
Anonymous

Janith Corkill



HHS-05-2022-0012-56681
HHS-05-202240012-56684
HHS05- 202 20012 56657
HH5-05-2022-0012-56689
HHS5-05-2022-0012-56693
HH5-05 20220012 56709
HH5-05-2022-0012-56718
HHS-05-2022-0012-56721
HHS-05.2022-0012-56728
HHS5-05-2022-0012-56741
HHS-05-2022-0012-56755
HHS 05 20220012 56776
HH5-05-2022-0012-56787
HHE-05-2022-0012-56793
HHS-05-2022-0012-56796
HH5-05-2022-0012-56800
HH5-05-2022-0012-56803
HH5-05-2022-0012 56810
HH5-05-2022-0012-56815
HH5-05-2022-0012-56826
HHS-05-2022-0012-56828
HH5-05-2022-0012-56834
HH5-05.2022-0012-56838
HH5-05-2022-0012-56839
HH5-05-2022-0012-56848
HH5-05-2022-0012 56853
HHS-05-2022-0012-56857
HHS-05-2022-0012-56862
HHS:05.2022-0012-56864
HHS-05-2022-0012-56865
HHS-05-2022-0012-56873
HHS-05.2022-0012-56874
HHS-05-2022-0012-56875
HHS5-5-2022-0012-56877
HH$-05-2022-0012-56881
HH5-05-2022-0012-56882
HHS5-05-2022-0012-56285
HHS 05-2022-0012 5688?
HHS-05-2022-0012-56838
HHE5-05-2022-0012-56882

HHS-05 2022-0012 56831

HHS-05-2022-0012-56892
HH5-05-2022-0012-56894
HHE-D5-2022-0012-56838
HH5-05-2022-0012-56902
HH5-05-2022-0012-56904
HHS5-05-202240012-56205
HH5-05-2022-0012-56914
HH5-05-2022-0012-56315
HHS5-05-2022-0012-56918
HHS5-05-2022-0012-5691%
HHS-05-2022 0012 56920
HH5-05-2022-0012-56524
HH5-05-2022-0012-56927
HH5-05-2022-0012-56930
HH5-05-2022-0012-56546
HH5-05-2022-0012-56954
HHS 05-2022-0012 56556
HH5-05-2022-0012-5655%
HH5-05-2022-0012-56962
HH5-05-2022-0012 56564
HH5-05-2022-0012-56973
HH5-05-2022-0012-56974
HHS-05-2022-0012-56975
HHS-05-2022-0012-56977
HH5-05-2022-0012-56980
HH5-05. -2022-0012- ELELE]
HHS- 05-2022-0012- 56984
HH5-05-2022-0012-56986
HHE-05-2022-0012-57005
HHS-05-2022-0012-57011
HH5-05-2022-0012-57012
HHS-05-2022-0012-57015
HH5-05-2022-0012-57016
HHS-05-2022-0012-57018
HHE-05-2022-0012-57019
HH5-05-2022-0012-57020
HHS-05-2022-0012 57022
HHS-05-20220012-57024
HH5-05-2022-0012-57026
HH5-05-2022-0012-57028
HHE-05-2022-0012-57029
HH5-05-2022-0012-57033
HHS-05-2022-0012 57036
HHS-05-20220012-57041
HH5-05-2022-0012-57045
HHS5-05-2022-0012-57045
HH5-05-2022-0012-57048
HH5-05-2022-0012-57053
HHS-05 2022 0012 57060
HH5-05-2022-0012-57063
HH5-05-2022-0012-5 7064
HH5-05-2022-0012-57065
HH5-05-2022-0012-57067
HH5-05-2022-0012-57072
HHE-05-20220012-57076
HHE-05-2022-0012-5707%
HH5-05-2022-0012-57081
HH5-05-2022-0012-57082

HHS-05-2072-0012-DRAFT 57943

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 57952
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-57955
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57957
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57961
HHS- 0520220012 DRAFT 56963
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-56972
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56976
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-SE9%1
HHS-015-2022-0012-DRAFT-56997
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57011
HHS 052022 0012-DRAFT 57032
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57963
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 57969
HHS-05-2022- 0012 DHAFT 579?2
HHS-C15-2022-0012-DRAFT-57976
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-57979
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-579E6
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5 7991
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58002
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58004
HHS-(15-2023-0012-DRAFT-52010
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-S8014
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58015
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-58024
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 58029
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-SE033
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58038
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-SB040
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-! 1
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58049
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58050

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58051

HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-58053
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-S8057
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRLFT-58058
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58061
HHS-05-2022 0012 DRAFT 56063
HHS5-0%5-2022-0012-DAAFT-5B06d
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58065
HHS—GS—ZDZZ 0012 DHAFT SE.UG?
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58068
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58070
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58074
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5B078
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58080
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58081
HHS-015-2022-0012-DRAFT-58090
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-S805L
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58024
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58095
HHS-05-2022 0012-ORAFT-58096
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53100
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58103
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-58106
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58123
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58131
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 58133
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58136
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58140
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-58142
HHS-5-20232-0012-DRAFT-58151
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58152
HHS 0520220012 DRAFT 58153
HHE-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53155
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58159

HHS—G’S—ZDZZ-UDJZ-DHAFT-SEIGZ_

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55163
HH5-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-5R165
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58185
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 58191
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58192
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58195
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58196
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-58138
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58139
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58200
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58202
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-58205
HHS05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58207
HHS- 052022 0012 DRAFT-58209
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58210
HH505-2022-0012-DRAFT-58214
HHS-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT 58217
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 58222
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58226
HH5-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-58227

HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58229

HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58234
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58241
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58244
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56245
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58246
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58248
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58253
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58257
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-52260
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58262
HH5-05-2023 -0012-DRAFT-58263

Anclnvrﬁclus
Linda Pering
Dawn Bolen

Jane Sundberg
Pat Hummel
Christopher Argyros
FRC

Carol Alden
Callfornla Departmeant of Insurance
Bonnie M McCullough
Ruby Dopp
Ananymaus.
Jerilyn austin
lacki lohnson
Ananymaus
Erian Bell

Elaing korby

Foe Young

Tam Shartzer
Cindy Wagner
Robert Thomas
Anne Margaret Wright
Anonymous
Ananymaus
Genise Audersan
Anonymous
Robert Currey
Paul Timm

5 Morrls
Ananymaus
ANOnymous
Ward Harris
Redney and Donna Cabb
Robert Whisnant
Ay Mlller
Claudia dgburn
Kelli Mittrucker
ANonymous.

Jack Hannum
Anonymaous
Krista Wisters
Scott allen

Agata Wang
Patti Hansan

Dan Fountain
Anonymous
Jimmi Wilson

A Leuschner
Ananymous
Anonymaous
Linda Weader
ANGNymaus.

Baja Irvin
Stephanie Baker
Judith Dowmey
KB

Maryellen Westmark
R Villa

Billie Huebner
Cynthia Harris
Annette Zampatt!
Tara Andrews
Alice Tedrow
Ananymaus
Carralyn Campbell
Mark Adams
Ananymaus

Dan DeHart
Shannon Stahl
Michael Dunn
Graciela Castillo
Anonymous
Caral Prudhon
Ananymaus
Brlﬂget Brame
Steve eltiste
Cheryl Clew
Ananymaous.
Ananymaus
Anita Hansen

_Anonymous

Gary Folk

Tammy Pietrowsk
Sharon Johnson
Teresd |slas

Stan Quinn
Josllen Bindar
Ananymaus
lennifer Ramage
sam marshall
Daniel Rees

Cindy Laurance
Ananymaus
Ananymaus

Emily Olschki
Jody Bozza
Ananymaus
Cynthia McCormack
Kark Schrmidt



HHS-05-2022-0012-57098
HHE-05-2022-0012-5703%
HH5-05-2022-0012-57101
HH5-05-2022-0012-57112
HHE5-05-2022-0012-57113
HH$-05-2022:0012-57115
HHS-05-2022-0012-57121
HHS5-05-2022-0012-57128
HHS-05-2022-0012 57138
HH5-05-2022-0012-57142
HHS-05-2022-0012-57148
HH5-05:2022-0013-57150
HH5-05-2022-0012-57152
HH5-05-2022-0012-57150
HHS-05-2022-0012-57161
HH5-05-2022-0012-57162
HHS-05-2022-0012-57167
HHS-05-2022-0012-57174
HH5-05-2022-0012-57175
HH5-05-2022-0012-57187
HH5-05-2022-0012-57192
HH5-05-2022-0012-57202
HH5-05-2022-0012-57205
HH5-05-2022-0012-57207
HH5-05-2022-0012-57211
HH5-05-2022-0012-572113
HH5-05-2022-0012-57226
HHS-05-2022-0012-57228.
HHS-052022.0012-57235
HH5-05-2022-0012-57245
HHS-05-2022-0012-5724%
HH5-05-20320012-57251
HH5-05-2022-0012-57252
HH5-05-2022-0012-57254
HH5-05-20220012-57255
HH5-05-2022-0012-57258
HHS-05-2022-0012-5725%

HH5-05-2022-0012.57264

HHS5-05-2022-0012-57268
HHS5-05-2022-0012-57271
HHS-05-2022-0012-57274
HH5-05-2022-0012-57276
HHS-05-2022-0012-57277
HH5-05-2022-0012-57280
HH5-05-2022-0012-57281
HHS5-05-2022-0012-57283
HH5-05-2022-0012-57285
HHE-05-2022-0013-57257
HHS-05- 2022001257 25%
HHS-05-2022-0012-57303
HH5-05-2022-0012-5730%
HH5-05-2022-0012-5731%
HHS-05-2022-0012-57320
HHE-05-2022-0012-57324
HHS-05-2022.0012 57325
HHS-05-2022-0012-57326
HH5-05-2022-0012-5732%
HH$-05.2022-0012:57331
HHS-05-2022-0012-57333
HH5-05-2022-0012-57334
HH5-052022-0012-57334
HH5-05-2022-0012-57338
HHS5-05-2022-0012-5733%
HHS 05- 2022-0012 5?34?
HH5-05-2022-0012-57351
HH5-05-2022-0012-57354
HHS-05-2022-0012-57355
HH5-05-2022-0012-57356
HH5-05-2022-0012-57358
HH5-05-2022-0012-57367
HH5-05-2022-0012-57371
HH5-05-2022-0012-57376
HH5-05-2022-0012-57387
HH5-05-2022-0012-57390
HHS-05-2022-0012 57352
HH5-05-2022-0012-57394
HH5-05-2022-0012-57396
HHE5-05-2022-0012-57403
HH5-05-2022-0012-5 7407
HHS-05-2022-0012-57408
HH5-052022-0012 57405
HH5-05-2022-0012-57411
HHS-05-202240012-57416
HHS05-20220012-57433
HH5-05-2022-0012-57439
HH5-05-2022-0012-57446
HH5-05-2022-0012 57458
HH5-05-2022-0012-57465
HHS-05-2022-0012-57466
HH5-05-2022-0012-57467
HH5-05-2022-0012-57468
HHS5-05-2022-0012-57469
HHS-05-2022-0012-57476
HH5-05-2022-0012-5747F
HHE5-05-2022-0012-57478
HH5-05-2022-0012-57482
HHS-05-2022-0012-57486
HH5-05-2022-0012-57488
HHS-05-2022-0012-57491

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58279

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58280
HHS-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT 58282
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58253
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58294
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-58296
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58302
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58309
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT 58320
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-58323
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58329

HH5- o5 2022 0012 DPAFT 58331

HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58333

HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5A340
HH5-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-58242

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58343
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 56348
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58355
HHS-015-2022-0012-DRAFT-5835E6
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58368
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58373
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58383
HHS-05-2022 0012-DRAFT-58386
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58388
HHS-015-2022-0012-DRAFT-58352
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-58354
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58408
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58410
HHS-05-2022.0012-ORAFT 58417
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58427
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58431
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-58434
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58435
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58437
HHS-05-2022-0012 DRAFT 58438
HHE-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5B441
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 58442
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-58447
HHS-015-2022-0012-DRAFT-5B451
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58454
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53457
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 58453
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58460
HHS5-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-53463
HHS-015-2022-0012-DRAFT-5B464
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58466
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58468
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58470
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 58472
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-534E8
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-58454
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-S8504
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58505
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58511
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58512
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58513
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58516
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-S8518
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58520
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58521
HHS-0%-2022-0012- DRAFT 58523
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT 58525
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 58526

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-56535

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58539
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58541
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58543
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58544
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-58547

HH5-05-2022-0012-DAAFT-58555

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58559
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58564
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58576
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58573
HHS 0%-2022-0012-DRAFT 58581
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58583
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5B585
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-585592
HH5-05-20232-0012-DRAFT-58556
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58597
HHS-03-2022 0012-ORAFT 58598
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58600
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58606
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-58623
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58629
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58636
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58643
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 58655
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58656
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-58657
HHS-015-2023-0012-DRAFT-5B658
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58659
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58666
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5B667
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58668
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58672
HHS-(15-20232-0012-DRAFT-5B676
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58678
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-586E1

Ananymaus
Laura McGrath
Gina Springer
Glenda Morris
Harry Trent

Julla Ubbengs
Karen Robbins
Mary Ann Reich
ANOnymous.
Angnymaus
Susan Wyant
Tony Hodge
Ananymaus

Jim Booker

Caral Chen
Donald Aldrich
Joy Pohl

Ronald Eby
Mancy Pieters
Patti Foley

Tracy Delanay
Elake Medlin
Kelly Langley
Johnnie Butler
Richard Penn
Fatrlcia Bellington
Mel Dyer

Clay Pinckney
Robert Wieneke
loanne Yerez
Loretta Sharp
Anonymaus
Hicole Busler

Jim Talbert
Mancy Gibsen
Karen Faseler
Anonymaous

i and Sue Cralg
Gloria Howarton
COHNIE GREEN

5 Salter

Tami Capassa
Ay Comibs
Beverly Regensherg
Ananymaus
Renee Kroiss
Anonymaus
Angnymaus
Dean Potts
Ananymaus

Kim Meuzil

Leslie Hinson
Diana Parham
Bernard Smith
Gabriel Gonzalez
CHRISTY INZICKER
loshuaZentz
Lynda Bryan
Charlanne Wilcoxson
National Bar Association Young Lawyers Division
1c

Magdalena Saramak
Becky Cofer
Anonymous
Walter Pirog
Anonymous
Community Clinic Association of Los Angeles County
Jill Ditlon
Anonymeous
Ananymaus
Debarah DelMonte
Gerry Larken
Anonymaous
Thelma Chan
Elizabeth Tallaferro
Arna Mudd

Scott lones.
Hicole Herrle
lane Happy
Lamar Davis
Laura Relghtler
ronald kuenzli jr
Anonymous
Helen Harless
CAral Adamsz

D Thomason
Richard Croley
Kelly Share
Marcia lohnston
AnOnymaus
Ananymaus
ANONYMous
Amber ©

Debi Adney
ANonymous

sue Muscarella
Ananymaus

M Troupe

Lucy Rimalower



HHS-05-2022-0012-57505
HHS-05-2022-0012-57511
HHS-0%5- 2022001257513
HHS-05-2022-0012-57522
HH5-05-2022-0012-57520
HH5-05 2022 0012-57531
HHS-05-2022-0012-57545
HHS-(5-2022-0012-57547
HH5-05.2022-0012-5754%
HH5-05-2022-0012-57552
HHS5-05-2022-0012-57555
HH5- 0520220012 57556
HH5-05-2022-0012-57561
HHE-05-2022-0012-57562
HHS-D5-2022-0012-57564
HH5-05-2022-0012-57573
HHS5-05-2022-0012-5757%
HHS-05-2022-0012-5 7581
HH5-05-2022-0012-57538
HH5-05-2022-0012-57600
HHS-05-2022-0012-57614
HH5-05-2022-0012-57623
HH5:05:2022-0012:57625
HH5-05-2022-0012-57628
HHS-(5-2022-0013-57632
HH5-05-2022-0012-57634
HHS-05-2022-0012-57635
HH5-05-2022-0012-5763%
HH$:05:2022-0012.57642
HH5-05-2022-0012-57644
HHE-05-2022-0012-576456
HHS-05 20220012 57650
HH5-05-2022-0012-57651
HHE5-05-2022-0012-57654
HHS-05-2022-0012-57658
HH5-05-2022-0012-5765%
HH5-05-2022-0012-57661
HH$-05-2022-0012 57665
HH5-05-2022-0012-57683
HH5-05-2022-40012-57687
HHS-D05-2022-0012-5768%
HH5-05-2022-0012-57698
HHS5-05-2022-0012-5769%
HH5-05-2022-0012-57700
HHS-05-2022-0012-57701
HHS-05-2022-0012-57703
HHS-05-2022-0012-57736
HH5-05-2022-0012-57737
HH5-05-2022-0012-57744
HH5-05-2022-0012-57745
HH5-05-2022-0012-57752
HH5-05-2022 0012 57754
HH5-05-2022-0012-57759
HHS-05-2022-0012-57762
HH5-05-2022-0012-57764
HH5-05-2022-0012-57770
HH5-05-2022-0012-57771
HH5-05-2022-0012 57779
HHS-05-2022-0012-57780
HHS5-05-2022-0012-57723
HH5-05-20220012-57704
HH5-05-2022-0012-57796
HH5-05-2022-0012-57797
HH5-05-2022-0012-57798
HH5-05-2022-0012-57807F
HHE5-05-2022-0012-5780%
HHS-05-2022-0012-57812
HHS5-05-2022-0012-57815
HHS-05-2022-0012-57816
HHS-05-2022-0012-57818
HH5-05-2022-0012-5781%
HH5-05-2022-0012-57822
HH5-05-2022-0012-57823
HH5-05-2022-0012-57824
HHS-05.2022-0013-57828
HHS-05-2022-0012-57833
HH5-05-2022-0012-57845
HH5-05-2022-0012.57847
HHS-05-2022-0012-57848
HHS5-05-2022-0012-57852
HHS:05:2022-0012-57854
HH5-05-2022-0012-57857
HHS-05-2022-0012-57861
HHS-05-2022-0012-57862
HHS-05-2022-0012-57870
HH5-05-2022-0012-57882
HHS-05.2022-0012.57883
HH5-05-2022-0012-57688
HH5-05-2022-0012-57830
HH5-05-2022-0012 57892
HH5-05-2022-0012-57893
HH5-05-2022-0012-57854
HHS-D05-2022-0012-57905
HH5-05-2022-0012-57908
HH5-05-2022-0012-57911
HHS-05-2022-0012-57912
HH5-05-2022-0012-57915
HH5-05-2022-0012-57917
HHS-D05-2022-0012-57526

HHS-05-2072-0012-DRAFT 53655
HHSQ5-2022-0012-DRAFT-58701
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-S8703
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58712
HH5S-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-58719
HH3-0%- 20220012 -DRAFT-58721
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58735
HHS05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58737
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-58739
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58742
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58745
HH3-0%-2022-0012- DRAFT 58746
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55752
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58753
HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-58755
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58764
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58770
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58772
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 58772
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58791
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58805
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58814
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-58617
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58819
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 5R823
HH3-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-58826
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58827
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5R831
HH5-05-2022.0012- DFAFT 53334
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58E36.
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5A838
HHS-0%-2022-0012-ORAFT 58842
HHS-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-58843
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5A845
HH5- - 2022- 0012 DRAFT-58850
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58851
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58453
HHS-0%-2022-0012- ORAFT-58857
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58875
HH5-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-58879
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-S8882
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58891
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58892
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58E33
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5R854
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58896
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58930
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58931
HHS-05.2022.0012- DRAFT-58939
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58940
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 58947
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5894%
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58954
HHS05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58457
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-58959
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-S8965
HH5-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-58966
HH3-0%-2022-0012-0RAFT 58975
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 58976
HHS05-2022-0012-DRAFT-584979
HH5-05-2002-0012-DRAFT-58931
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58993
HHS-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-58994
HH3-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-58995
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53004
HH5-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-55006
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53003
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58012
HHF-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-59013
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59015
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 53015
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5501%
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59020
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58021
HH5-05-2022-0012- DRAFT- 59025
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59030
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 53042
HH3-0%- 20220012 -0ORAFT 55044
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59045
HHS05-2022-0012-DRAFT-559)49
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55051
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58054
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55058

HH3-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-59059

HHS-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-59067
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5%)79
HH5-05-2022. 0012 DFAFT 59080
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53085
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-50087
HH-0%-2022-0012-0RAFT-5508%
HHS-05-2022 0012-DRAFT 55090
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59091
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 53102
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53105
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-52108
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59109
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 53112
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-55114
HHS-05-2022.-0D12-DRAFT-53123

David Valentine
Frances Diaz
Anonymaus
Marilyn Shere
Jam Haan

Sher| Rattai
Mithael Havey
Greg Savaie ||
Danle] Seybold
Bornne Daggett
Teri Camis
Georgla Harrls
Eve Buddemneier
ANQnymous
Tim Hauck .
Barbara Smurawa
Sharon Rector
Anonymaus
Garry Faugett
Debbie Goodger
Ananymaus
Ananymaus
Pattl James
Theresa Book
Jane Runnels
Glenn Bridges
Daniel Seybald
Anonymaous
Debbie Lindsey
Shannon Shurtz
Fredrick Yymer
Elleen taltchell
slaine smith
Amy Lauren
Alenandris Day
The Foundation &gainst Intalerance & Racism
Patricia Kostreva
Christa Flgueroa
Ananymauys
Regina keller
Debra Walker
Ananymaus
lohn Perovich
Anaonymaous
Thamas Miller

3. Nishimura
Christina Lai
Marybeth Kearney
lane Doe
Barhara Riley
Jim Infantine
Carmen Garcla
Ananymaus
Kathi lehnsen
Anonymous
Terry VanderWert
Debra Younking
ANanymaous.

1 Sauthrmayd
Cargn M
Anonymaus
Lynette Schossau
Mary Gasior
lean Maes
Ananymaus
Reyola Carlisle
Katie Maylar
Ananymaus
Mancy Cardisle
Kaycesa Turner
Val Benet

Lynne Divis
Gary Pottér
Alyssa Martinez
Anonymous
Anonymaus
Angnymaus
Susan Reeder
Terase Humme|
Thamas Langan
Russ States

.Judy Gorel

Cargle Fullagar
Anonymous.
Laura Smith
Angie Olson
Tamra Modland
Gloria Cacheiro
ANQRYMous
Tom Carnahan
Shannan Purdum
Anonymous
Kathryn Egly
Karen Testerman
Kristin Parker
Kathryn Moore
Lynn Keltz
Andrea K

Sandy Comans



HHS-05-2022-0012-57930
HHS-05-2022-0012-57931
HH5-05-2022-0012-57932
HHS-05-2022-0012-57939
HH5-05-2022-0012-57941
HHS-05-2022:0012-57945
HHS-05-2022-0012-57364
HHS-05-2022-0012-57968
HHS-05-2022-0012-57971
HHE-(5-2022-0013-57980
HHS5-05-2022-0012-57981
HHS- OS 2022-0012 5?932
HH5-05-2022-0012-58000
HH5-05-2022-0012-58001
HHS-05-2022-0012-58005
HH5-05-2022-0012-58010
HHS5-(5-2022-0012-58013

HHS5-05-2022-0012-58014

HH5-05-2022-0012-58020
HH5-05-2022-0012-58024
HH5-05-2022-0012-58031
HH5-05-2022-0012-58043
HHS-05-2022.0012 58043
HH5-05-2022-0012-58055
HH5-05-2022-0012-58056
HH$-05-2022-0012-58063
HH5-05-2022-0012-5B067
HHS-05-2022-0012-58073
HHS-052022.0012 58093
HHS5-05-2022-0012-58102
HHS-05-2022-0012-58104
HHS-05-2022-0012-58114
HHE5-05-2022-0012-5B128
HHS-05-2022-0012-58128
HHS- 0520220012 58131
HHS-05-2022-0012-58142
HH5-05-2022-0012-58144
HHS-05-2022-0012-58155
HH5-05-2022-0012-581E5
HHS-05-2022-0012-58166
HHS-05-2022-0012-58168
HHS-05-2022-0012-5816%
HHS-05-2022-0012-58170
HH5-05-2022-0012-58172
HH5-05-2022-0012-58173
HHS-05-2022-0012-56183
HHE-05-2022-0012-58185
HHS-05-2072-0012-58194
HHS-05-2022.0012 56208
HHE-05-2022-0012-58211
HH5-05-2022-0012-5821%
HHS-05-2022-0012-58200
HHE-05-2022-0012-56231
HH5-05-2022-0012-56233
HHS-05-2022.0012 56245
HHE-05-2022-0012-58258
HH5-05-2022-0012-58262
HHS-05-2022-0012-58268
HH5-05-2022-0012-58273
HHS-05-2022-0012-56274
HHS-052022-0012 56284

HH5-Q5-2022-0012-56286

HH5-05-2022-0012-58291
HHS-05-2022-0012 58202
HHS-05-2022-0012-58234
HH5-05-2022-0012-58306
HHS-05-2022-0012-58309
HHS-(05-2022-0012-58321
HH5-05-2022-0012-58322
HHS-05-2022-0012-58331
HHS-05-2022-0012-58342
HH5-05-2022-0012-56343
HHS-05-2022-0012-58346
HHS-(15-2022-0012-58348
HHS-05 2022-0012 58352
HHS-05-2022-0012-58366
HHS-05-2022-0012-58367
HHS-05-2022-0012-58370
HHS-05-2022-0012-58374
HHS-05-2022-0012-56390
HHS-05-2022 0012 58303
HHS-05-2022-0012-58395
HH5-05-2022-0012-58399
HHS-05:2022-0012-58400
HHS-05-2022-0012-58402
HHS-05-2022-0012-58407
HHS-05 2022 0012 58400
HHG-05-2022-0012-58413
HH5-05-2022-0012-58424
HHS-05-2022-0012-58427

HH5-05-2022-0012-58432

HH5-05-2022-0012-55433
HHS-05-2022-0012-58434
HHS-05-2022-0012-58436
HHE-05-2022-0012-5843%
HH5-05-2022-0012-58450
HH5-05-2022-0012-5845%
HH5-05-2022-0012-58460
HHE-05-2022-0012-58463

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59127
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-52128
HHE-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-55129
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59136
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58138
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-59142
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59163
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-52167
HHS-05-2022.0012-ORAFT-58170
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53173
HHS-%5-2022-0012-DRAFT-52180

HH5- o5 2022 0012 DPAFT 59181'

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53200
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59201
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55205
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53211

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58214

HHS-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-58215
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58221
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53225
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59232
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 53244
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55250
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53256
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58257
HH5-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-55264
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59268
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55274
HHS 05-2022.0012-DRAFT 59295
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59304
HHS - 2022-0012-DRAFT-53306
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-59316
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59230
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55231
HH3-05%- 20220012 DRAFT-55333
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53344
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55346
HH5-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-58358
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58368
HHFO}ZOZI-UO_IZ-DMFT-SQSGQ
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59371
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 53372
HHS-0%-2022-0012- DRAFT-59373
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59375
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58376
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-50386
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59288
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 53357
HH3-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-55411
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59414
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58422

HHS-O;-ZOZZ-OD:Q-DFAFT-SB-IZS ]

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55434
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5336
HHS-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-55443
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-50463
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58467
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-S3473
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59478
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55479
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-5483
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT 53481
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55496
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-S5497
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53453
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59511
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59514
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53526
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59527
HH5-05-20232-0012-DRAFT-53536
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53547
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59548
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58551
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53553
HHS 0%-2022-0012- DRAFT 59557
HH5-05- 20022 -0012-DRAFT-53571
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53572
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-56575
HH5-05-20232-0012-DRAFT-59579
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-54597
HHS-0$-2022 0012-ORAFT-59600
HHS-05-2022-0012- DHRAFT- 59602
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59606
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-55607
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59609
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58614
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 53516
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58620
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 59631
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-53634
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-53639
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53640
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59641
HHS-0%5-2022-0012-DRAFT-553643
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 59646
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59657
HHS-(15-2023-0012-DRAFT-5366E6
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53667
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59670

Tom Thomas
Candice Dowed

_Anonymous

Mike Ray

Glen Godfrey
David Wright
Medical Partners International
Kristy Henderson
Holly .

Jessica fgss
Roxie Gates
Falth Bauerlein
Crystal Anderson
Patricia Krohn
Ingrid Corbin
John Wissmann
Anonymous
Ananymaus
lohn Holden
lillian Gordieh
Paul Magnussen
Angnymaus.
Donald Anderson
Ananmpmaus
Walter Felder
Corlnne w. C_jha_ffe'e
Anonymaus
ANONYMous.
Rhonda Rlee
Ywonne Shumaker
ANQnymous
Brand: Skipalls
Ananymaus
Sarah Miller
Beth Smith
Doreen Swansan
1]

Larlsss Meyer

Randy Kingsbury
Anonymous )
L5 Elisabeth Swiriduk
Roxanne Snadgrass
KM

Liza Avila

Susan Dixon
Ananymaus.

Debhis Murray
Lyndon Connell, BA; MA; IURIS DR
Rhonda Tarter

RG Yamba
ANonymous.
Ananymaous

Eileen Haffman
Lawra Rodriguez

TR

.Vlr.glnia Cidom

Anonymous

_Anonymous

DALLAS ERICKSON
Daniel Dyer
Da\nd Sr.aplemn
T\r o

Karen Olsen
Liza Fulks

Kary Gilliam
Daniel Waters
Ryan Guan
Meyer Marie
Carey Stegall
Anonymaous
Mora Maluch
Anonymous
Ananymaus
Ananymaus
Faul O'Gonnell
Anonymaus
David wheatley
Ananymous
Kristi Labitz
Susanna Hall Reberts
Kathy Dunaway
Ananymaus
Tommyh james
Theodere Hills
Angnymaus
Gayla Schene
Sherr\r Schromm
Ananymaus
ANOnYMous
Ananymaus
Anganymaus
Anonymaous
Ananymeaus
Ananymaus
Ann Robbins
Cindy Lederman



HHS-05-2022-0012-58467
HH5-05-2022-0012-58470
HH5:05:2022-0012-58404
HHS-05-2022-0012-58437
HHS-05-2022-0012-58439
HHS-05 2022 0012 58515
HH5-05-2022-0012-58516
HH5-05-2022-0012-58517
HHS-05:2022-0012.58518
HH5-05-2022-0012-58519
HH5-05-2022-0012-58521
HHS.05-2022-0012 58522
HH5-(5-2022-0013-58523
HH5-05-2022-0012-58524
HHS-05-2022-0012-58525
HH5-05-2022-0012-58527
HH5-05-2022-0012-58533
HH5-05-2022-0012 58537
HH5-05-2022-0012-58541
HH5-05-2022-0012-58543
HHS-05-2022-0012-58545
HH5-05-2022-0012-58553
HHS-05:2022-0012 58555
HH5-05-2022-0012-58562
HHS-(5-2022-0013-58564
HHS 052022 0012 58565
HHS-05-2022-0012-58566
HH5-05-2022-0012-58576
HHS-05:2022-0012.58577
HHS-05-2022-0012-58579
HHS5-05-2022-0012-58582
HHS-05 2022 0012 58588
HHS-05-2022-0012-58596
HH5-05-2022-0012-58599
HHS-05:2022-0012-58600
HH5-05-2022-0012-58601
HHS-05-2022-0012-58602
HHS-05-2022-0012 58603
HHS-(5-2022-0012-58606
HH5-05-2022-0012-58607
HHS-05-20220012-58608
HH5-05-2022-0012-58611
HH5-05-2022-0012-58617
HH5-05-2022-0012-58618
HHS-(5-2022-0012-5861%
HH5-05-2022-0012-58624
HHS-05-2022-0012-56625
HH5-05-2022-0012-58626
HH5:05:2022-0012.58627
HH5-05-2022-0012-58635
HHS-05-2022-0012-58636
HHS-05-2022 0012 58638
HH5-05-2022-0012-58639
HH5-05-2022-0012-58640
HHS-05:2022-0012-58641
HH5-05-2022-0012-58644
HH5-05-2022-0012-58646
HHS.©5-2022-0012-58647
HH5-05-2022-0012-58648
HH5-05-2022-0012-58652
HHS-05:2022-0012-58656
HH5-05-2022-0012-58663
HHS-05-2022-0012-58664
HHS-05-2022 001258669
HHS-(5-2022-0012-58672
HH5-05-2022-0012-58675
HHS-05-2022-0012-58675
HH5-05-2022-0013-58677
HH5-05-2022-0012-58680
HHS-05-2022-0012-58681
HH5-(5-2022-0013-58684
HH5-05-2022-0012-58686
HH5-05-2022-0012-58691
HH5-05-2022-0012-58693
HHS-0$-2022-0012-586594
HHS-05-2022-0012-58698
HH5-05-2022-0012-58702
HHS-05-2022-0012 58709
HHS-05-2022-0012-56714
HH5-05-2022-0012-58715
HHS-05+2022-0012.58726
HH5-05-2022-0012-56730
HH5-05-2022-0012-56731
HHS-05.2022-0012-58732

HHS5-05-2022-0012-58737

HH5-05-2022-0012-56738
HHS-05-2022-0012-58741
HH5-05-2022-0012-53744
HHS-05-2022-0012-58746
HHS. 05 2022.0012 56748
HHS.05-2022-0012-58756
HH5-05-2022-0012-58757

HHS- 05 -2022-0012-58760

HH5-05-2022-0012-58765
HHS-05-2022-0012-58768
HHE-05-20220012-5E7 70
HHG-05-2022-0012-58772
HHE5-05-2022-0012-58775
HH5-05-2022-0012-58777

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 55674
HHSQ5-2022-0012-DRAFT-53677
HHS-05-2002.0012-DRAFT-55701
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58704
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55706
HH3-05-2022 0012 -DRAFT-58722
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 59723
HHS05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59724
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-58725
HHS-(5-2022-0012-DRAFT-58726
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-50728
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 55729
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58730
HHS-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-59731
HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-58732
HHS-(5-2022-0012-DRAFT-58734
HH5-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-55740
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59744
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 55748
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58750
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59752
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58760

HHS-OS-ZOZZ-_ODIIZ-DFAFT-SB?SZ i

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59772
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 58774
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 59776
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-S9777
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-50787
HHS-05.2022-0012- DRAFT-58748
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53730
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58793
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55799
HH5-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-59807
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53811
HHS- 05 2022-0012-DRAFT-55812
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58813
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58814
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58815
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53813
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-50822
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-S9824
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-50528
HH5-05-2022- 0012-DRAFT- 50834
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58835
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53835
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53841
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59842
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-50843
HH5-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-55844
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59854
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 53855
HH3-05- 20220012 -0RAFT-59858
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59859
HHS05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59860
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-55861
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53864
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-50866
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53867
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 59868
HHS05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59872
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55877
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-535884
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59885
HH3-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT 50850
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 53893
HH5-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-50896
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53857
HHS-(5-2022-0012-DRAFT-53898
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59901
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53902
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 52905
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-58907
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59912
HHS-(5-2022-0012-DRAFT-59914
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-56815
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59919
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53923
HHE-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59931
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-59936
HHS05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59037
HHS- 052022 0012 DRAFT-55048

HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59952

HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59353
HHS-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT 58954
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53959
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59960
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-56363
HHS-(15-20232-0012-DRAFT-50966
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59968
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59970
HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT 53978
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55980
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-55983
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-50988
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59391
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-59933
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-52995
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53998
HH5-05-2023 001 2-DRAFT-SNKI0

Bé\rerh' C‘Iaypocll
Maryin Marek
Lisa Wommack
Becky Buckman
Carol Merkin
lames Melaughlin
Jill lohnson
Deborah Arnold
Curt mlllar

Patti Kooi
RANDY PUCKETT
Arleen Williams
Angnymaus
Brenda mcaninch
Ananymaus.
Wynema Rimmer
leanette Whitlock
Ananymaus
Rebecca Alcala
lennifer Craft
Wirginia Baurn
MICHAEL AULT
Brlanne Robertson
Chriz Griffin
James Wright
Monica Brubaker
Ananymaus
Katie Filion

Ken Box
Ananymaus
Surya Manicham
Ananymaus
Clare Grassa
Rache| Herning

55

a\nénvmaus

Gaye Eveland
Corletta Barbee
Judy Carpenter
Lynn Leach

Boyee Wharton
lul Cos

Phyllis Hilkert
Winona Matthews
Kelly Stewart
Anonymaous

Mike Evans

Fortia Sharp
Datwa Warky
Gretchen Canterhury
Muriel Forsyihe
ANanymaus
Ananymaus

Risa Mansfield
Anonymous

Kathy Akins

Anita Young
Beatrice Pear|
Michael Dammann
Anonyrmous
Anonymaus
Ananymaus
Willow Kaulfman
Tom Wharton

Cari Haan
Anonymaous
Ananymaus

Leslie Hooks
Anonymous
Stephanie Toomhbs
Lee Mullen
Regina Mick

Jim Beeler
Reshelle Richard
Tarmimy Hamrlck
Anonymaus

1 Davig

Jeff Funk
Wa\mesvllle Churrh af the Nazarens
Darlene Thompson
Carn HI

7

Erika Cisler

lohn Ryng
Ananymaus

lan DeHerrera
Mary Jo Stemen
Sherri Bogard
Rachel Pitrage

_Anonymous

Angnymaus

Wanda Burkhalter
Elizabeth Lombardini
Ananymaus

laime Cverhalt
Andrew Sloan
Rodney Story D
Mancy Venuti
Kennett Tadd



HHS-05-2022-0012 5E778
HHS5-05-2022-0012-58779
HHS-05.2022-0012-58785
HHE-0S-2022-0012 56791
HHE5-05-2022-0012-58792
HH5-05-2032-0012-58704
i
HH5-05-2022-0012-58803
HH5-05-2022-0012 58807
HHS-05-2022-0012-58808
HHS-05-2022-0012-56812
HH5-05:3022-0013-588 14
HH5-05-2022-001 2-58816
HH5-05-2022-0012-56818
HHS5-DS-2022-0012 58821
HHE-05-2022-0012 56822
HHE5-05-2022-0012-58827
HHS-0S-2022-0012-58830
HH5-05-2022-0011 3-58832
HHS-05-2022-0012-5883%
HHS-05-2022-0012 58840
HH5-05-2022-0012-58842
HHS-0520220012-56844
HHS-0S-2022-0012 56852
HH5-05-2022-00113-58853
HH5-05-2022-0012-58855
HHS-05-2022-0012 5BE58
HH5-05-2022-0012-58850
HHS 0520220012 58862
HHS-0S-2022-001 358864
HH5-05-2022-0012-56865
HH5-05:2022-0012-58865
HHS-05-2022-0012 5867
HH5-05-2022-0012-55880
HH5-05 20220012 58882
HH5-05-2022-0012-58883
HH5-05-2022-0012-56885
HHS-05:2022-0012-56250
HHS5-05-2022-0012-58891
HH5-05-2022-0012-58833
HHS-DS-2022-0012 56834
HHS-05-2022-0012-58895
HHS-05-2022-0012-56896
HHS-0S-2022-001 258837
HHS-05-2022-0012-58908
HH5-05-2022-0012-58916
HHS-05-202241012 58526
HH5-05-2022-0012-58827
HH5-05-2022-0012-58530
HHS-0S-2022-0012 58931
HH5-05-2022-0012-58934
HHS:05.2022-0012-58935
HHS-05-2022-0012 58537
HH5-05-2022-0012-58938
HHS-052022.0012 58940
HH5-DS-2022-0012-58533
HH5-05-2022-0012-55944
HHS-05:2022-0012.58945

HHS-05-2022-0012-56946

HHS-05-2022-0012-56947
HHS052022-0012-58951
HHS.05-2022-0012-58952
HH5-05-2022-0012-58960
HHS-05-2022-0012-58963
HH5-05-2022-0012-58564
HH5-05-2022-0012-56965
HHS-05-2022-0012-585966
HHS-05-2022-0012-58957
HHS-05-2022-0012-58968
HH5-05-2022-0012-5836%
HH5-05-2022-0012-53572
HH5-05-2022-0012-58978
HHE-05-2022-0012-58579
HHS-05-2022-0012-58981
HHS 05 2022-0012 58985
HHS5-05-20220012-5E988
HH5-05-2022-0012-58991
HHS-05-2022-0012-58992
HHE-05-2022-0012-5E594
HHS-05-2022-0012-58996
HHS-052022.0012 58998
HH5-05-2022-0012-5859%
HHS-05-2022-0012-59000
HHS-05:2022-0012-59003
HH5-05-2022-0012-59006
HHS-05-2022-0012-58007
HHS-052022.0012-59013
HHS-05-2022-0012-58017
HHS-05-2022-0012-59023
HHS-05-2022-0012-59028
HH5-05-2022-0012-59030
HHS-05-2022-0012-58031
HHE-05-2022-0012-59033
HHS-05-2022-0012-59034
HHS-05-2022-0012-59033
HHE-05-20220012-59042
HH5-05-2022-0012-59044
HHS-05-2022-0012-58047
HHE-05-2022-0012-59048

5-2022-0012-56795

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60001
HHF-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60:001
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 50008
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60014
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60015
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-60017
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60018
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-B0026
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-60030
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-50031
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60035
HH5-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-60037
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60039
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-6004 1
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-60044
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 60045
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60050
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60053
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60055
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-G0062
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60063
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-G0065
HH5-05-2022 0012-DRAFT 60067
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60075
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60076
HH5-05-2022.0012. DRAFT-60078
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60081
HH5-05-2022-0012-DIRAFT-50082
HHS-05-2022-0012-ORAFT 60085
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60087
HHSQ5-2022-0012-DRAFT-60082
HH5-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-600853
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60030
HH5-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-50103
HH5-05-2022-0012 DRAFT-60105
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60105
HH505-2022-0012-DRAFT-60102
HH5-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-60113
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60114
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60116
HHS-05.2022-0012- DRAFT-60117
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-50118
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60119
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60120
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60131
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60139
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60149
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-50150
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 60153
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60154
HHS-(5-2022-0012-DRAFT-60157
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-60158
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60160
HH505-2022-0012-DRAFT-50161
HHS-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT 60163
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60166
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-60167
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-60168
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60169
HHF-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60170
HH3-05%-2022-0012-0RAFT-60174
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 60175
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60183

HH5-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-60126.

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRLFT-E0187
HHFO}JOZJ-UO}Z-DMFT-.GOISS
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-60159
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-E0130
HHS-08-2022-0012-DRAFT-60191
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60192
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60196
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60203
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-60204
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60205
HHS 05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60210
HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-60216
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60219
HH5-05.2022.0012- DRAFT-60220
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60222
HH5-045-2022-0012-DIRAFT-50224
HH5-05-2022 0012-DRAFT-60226
HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-60227
HHS05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60222
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-60231
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-60234
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-50235
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 60242
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 60245
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60252
HH5-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-60257
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60259
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-G0260
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-60262
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60263
HH5-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT-6G0268
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60271
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60273
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60276
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-60277

Constance Funk
ANOnymous.
Michelle Yermeulen
Ananymaus

Kurt Weidler
Marlan Breeze

Jeff Janes
Anonymous.

Laurle Janzen

Susan Dann

Dietra Box
Christine Burkhaltsr
Ananymaus
Timothy Kitchen

Ananymaous

Anganymaus
Anonymous
Ananymaus

Cleta Stanek

Lori Longenecher
Patry Schreck
Angnymaus
Fatrlcia Pettls
Karen Bauer
Stephanie Wheeler
I.I_uuui Diaz-Lanler
Anonymaus
ANonymous
Barbara Charping
Michele Leick
Abigail Hunt

Mrs, Wills

Ashley Owen

Silas Schmitzer
Fandy Ashley
BOB FAULK
Carroll Hawthorne
Lucinda Bedogne
Mary Mcalister
Clay and Teresa Sterrett
Fenny Charlesworth
Rodney Beasley

G. Soliman
Ananymaus

Frank Dolansky
Dewain Barker
Crandall Kloss
Laura Peters
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HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62549
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-62558
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62559
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-52561
HHA-0%-2022-0012 -ORAFT-62562
HHS-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-62566
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62582
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62523
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62588
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62598
HH3-0%- 20220012 -0RAFT 62598

HHS-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-62601

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62613
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-62614
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-E2616
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62620
HHS-05-2022-0012-ORAFT 62622
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 62623
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62629
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62634
HHS-05-20232-0012-DRAFT-E2635
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62642
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62643
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-52644
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62649

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62650

Gwen &lgler
lessie Madril
Kenys Scott
Brandi Halterman
Lisa Mercado
Lavonna MeNeer
DOTTIE KIRKLAND
Lillian Colleran
Lynn Bucy

AB Serving Others
Barbara king
lohn Lee

tenzin gyachen
Anonymous
Sandra lewett
Helen Lee

laney Mogres
Barh Labonte
Elizabeth Mcintyre
Stephanie Gregory
Gloria Mikelski
Donna Maurer

_Sharon DIPlazza

‘ictoria Lahey
CHARLES KOEHLER
Melanie Barthelomew
Irene Farris

Joan Stanton
Sonla Gedoy

Lance Pitts

Teresa Pregnall
wackl Ritchey
Pamela . Aleanter
Sarah Craigmyle
Brent Thompsen
Rachel Randall
‘Ywonne Dodson
Focus on the Family
Peggy Stern

Dale Kissner
Ananymaus

Ken Levin

Mike Myers

Donna Horowitz
Sandra Francis
Morgan Dickerman
Angela EICHER
Melissa Feeken
Nancy Walker
Matalie Hodapp
daniel ferguson
lames DeRoos
Dorothy Fuchs
Renes Show
Carolyn Studebaker
Matt Romer

loan Cordell

Linda Huber

Mary Wilhaoit
Anonymous

b H

Ananymaus
Anonymous

Sue Crocker

Kary Michael Townsend
Curt Mckay

Karen Beiser
Ananymaus Libertarian
Randy Koepke
Anna Bulkeley
Alexandra McPhee
lim Gilliam

Kathy Sowa
Rhonda LANCASTER
Michael Swisch Sr,
Michael Naowik
Diang Calderane
lessica Davls
Alanda Powell
Mary Perdue

Jean Davis-King
Marilyn Wright
Kay Hofiman
Darmian Powell
Leanna Fuhrer
Dawn Dhlendorf
Douglas Socha

Pat Olson

Sherry Myers
Maureen OConner
William Gaw

Mark lordan
Terr\r —Kenda Bartlett
Marsha larboe
lennifer Zaccagni
Leshe Porto

Anna Paulsen

Je KI

Lisa Cabello



HHS-05-2022-0012-51385
HH5-05-2022-0012-61386
HH5-05-2022-0012-61392
HHE-05-2022-0012-61337
HH5-05-2022-0012-61400
HH$-05.2022-0012-61403
HHE-DS-2022-0012-61414
HH5-05-2022-0012-61415
HHS-05-2022-0012-61417
HH5-05-2022-0012-61423
HHS5-05-2022-0012-61424
HH5-05-2022-0013-61425
HH5-05-2022-0012-6142%
HH5-05-2022-0012-61431
HHS-05-2022-0012 61434
HHS-05-2022-0012-61450
HHE5-05-2022-0012-61454
HHS-05-2022-0012-61458
HHS-05-2022-001 2-61453
HH5-05-2022-0012-61460
HHS-05-2022-0012-61466
HHS-(15-2022-0012-61457
HHS-05-2022-0012 61470
HHS 0520220012 61472
HH5-05-2022-0013-61477
HH5-05-2022-0012-61478
HHS-05-2022-0012-61486
HH5-05-2022-0012-61488
HHS-052022.0012-61501
HHS-0S-2022-0013-61504
HH5-05-2022-0012-61505
HH5-05-202 2001261512
HHS-0S-2022-0012 61514
HH5-05-2022-0012-6151%
HH5-05-20220012-61524
HHS-05-2022-0012-61534
HH5-05-2022-0012-61535
HHS-05-2022-0012-61538
HH5-05-2022-0012-61541
HH5-05-2022-0012-61542
HHS-DS-2022-0012 61544
HHS-05-2022-0012-61545
HHE5-05-2022-0012-61546
HHS-0S-2022-001 261557
HHS5-05-2022-0012-61558
HH5-05-2022-0012-61561
HHS-05-2022-0012-61567
HH5-05-2022-0012-61570
HH5-05-2022-0012-61572
HHS-DS-2022-0012 61573
HH5-05-2022-0012-61575
HH5-05-2032-0013-61578
HHS-DS-2022-0012 61582
HH5-05-2022-0012-61585
HHS-05-2022-0012-61586
HHS-0S-2022 001261585
HH5-05-2022-0012-61592
HHS:05.2022-0012-61598
HHS5-DS-2022-0012-61603
HH5-05-2022-0012-61605
HH5-052022-0012 61606
HHS.-(05-2022-0012-61607
HH5-05-2022-0012-61611
HHS OS 2022-0012 B1616

HH5-05-2022-0012-6161%

HH5-05-2022-0012-61620
HHE-05-2022-0012-61628
HH5-05-2022-0012-6162%
HHS-05-2022-0012-61630
HH5-05. 2022-0012 51632
HH5-05-2022-0012-61640
HH5-05-2022-0012-61641
HHE-05-2022-0012-61648
HH5-05-2022-0012-61651

HH5-05-2022-0012-61653

HH5-05. 2022-0012 51655
HH5-05-2022-0012-61661
HHS-05-2022-0012-61662
HHE-05-2022-0012-61664
HHS-05-2022-0012-61665
HHS-05-2022-0012 61665
HH5-05-2022-0012- 51557
HHS-05-2022-0012-61668
HHS-05:2022-0012-61670
HH5-05-2022-0012-61671
HHS-05-2022-0012-61675
HHS-052022.0012 61679
HHS-05-2072-0012-61680
HH5-05-2022-0012-61681
HHS-05-2022-0012-61684
HH5-05-2022-0012-61686
HH5-05-2022-0012-61687
HHE-05-2022-0012-61690
HHS-015-2022-0012-61694
HH5-05-2022-0012-61697
HHE-05-20220012-61702
HH5-05-2022-0012-61708
HHS5-05-2022-0012-61709
HH5-05-2022-0012-61719

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62651
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62651
HHE-0%-2022-0012-ORAFT-62658

HHS-052022-0012-DRAFT-62663

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62666
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-62660
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-626E0
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62681
HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT 62683
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62689
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62690

HHS o5 2022 0012- DPAFT 62691

HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62685
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62697
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62711
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-527 17
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62721
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62725
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-E272E6
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62727
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62733
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-52734
HHS-03-2022 0012-DRAFT-62737
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT- 62740
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62745

HH5-05-2022.0012.DRAFT-62 746

HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62754
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62756
HHS 05-2022.0012-0
HHS5-05-20232-0012-D1
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62773
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-62740
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62781
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62787
HHS-03-2022-0012 DRAFT-62792
HHE-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62802
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62803
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-62806
HHS-(15-20232-0012-DRAFT-E2E09
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62610
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62E13
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62814
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62815
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62E26
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-E2E27
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62630
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62E36
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-52840
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62642
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62843
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-E2E45

HHS-O;-ZOZZ-ODD-DMFT-6284S_

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62E51
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62855
HHS-0%-2022-0012-DRAFT 62856
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62E59
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62862
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-62666
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62873
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62675
HHS-05-2022-0012-ORAFT 62876
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62E77
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-62881
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-62628
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRLFT-E2889
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62690
HH5-05-20022 - 0012- DRAFT-52ESE
HHS—OS—ZOZZ Q012 DRAFT- 52399
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-62901
HH5-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-62903
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-E62911
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62912

HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62919

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-52922
HHS- 0% 2022-0012-DRAFT-62924
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62926
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62932
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-62933
HH5-05-20232-0012-DRAFT-62935
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62936
HHS-03-2022 0012-DRAFT-62937
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT- 52938
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62939
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-62941
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62941
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62946
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62950
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62951
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62952
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-62955
HHS-05-20232-0012-DRAFT-E2957
HHE-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62958
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62961
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62965
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62968
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62973
HHS-(15-20232-0012-DRAFT-E2973
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62980
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62930

Caralyn Klagt.
Beverley Houseworth
Doug Homstad Family
Brenna Kélly
Anonymous

Sarah Smith

Fatricia Harrison
Lawrence Allen
Missy DeSpaln

FH

Anonymous

Larry bertuceell]

E. Nathaniel Sullivan
Cathryn Rissinger

_Kenneth Maorris

Susan Douglas
Mariko lkemoto
Charles waldmp
K. Ricks

Daniel L

Mary Hermanzon
Karen Warner
Suzanne Bradley
Karen Ferpuson
BEryan Edmiston
Carol Hasking
Kathleen Kimball
Debbie Kirby
Sandra stake
Brian LuVisi

Mary Reddan
Sharon Vosburgh
Roxie clark.
Sharon Alewander
Marllyn Lee
Martha Hutts

loan Hopkins
Anonymaous
Ananymaus
Kathering Harmis
Launa Pierce
Teresa Ragusa
Rebecca Leach
therasa Finch
Robert and LaVierne Merrill
Herman Stanford
Margaret Hastings
Belisza Cohen
Charles and Mina Hoblitz
B Semehenko
Ginger Hudock
Faul Colling
Anonymaus

Mary Jo Laubacher
Anonymous

Mary Mortan

Rita windus

Susan Sheldon
Roxanne D. Nilszon
ANQRYTous

_ﬁnonyrnous

(LR TS

Gary Pritts

Marc Alsen
Megan Garg
Linda Regester
Anonymaus
Doug Paden
Rosalind James
Barry Burgess
Ananymaus
ANQRYMOusE
Cindy Anfindzen
Charlene Hart
Carol Vaught
Caral Endres
Sherry Thompson
charles morrls
Dawid Marks
Candice Anastasi
Kathy Horing
loge L
Paulette Kuta
1UDITH REESECKER
Theresa Collins
Maria Jaminet

Doreen and lames Reschard and Famlly

Janet Redmand
Thamas Van Havermaet
Paul Celentano
Christine Preston
Dorothy Amdt
Terri Conner

ha Hartwell

Ann Longacre
Betty Rotiler
Fatsy & Smith
Frances Unruh
Dawn Jarviz



HHS-05-2022-0012-61721
HHS-05-2022-0012-61723
HHS-05- 202 20012 51724
HHS-05-2022-0012-61725
HH5-05-2022-0012-61727
HHS-O5 2022 0012-61728
HH5-05-2022-0012-61730
HHS-(5-2022-0012-61734
HH5-05-2022-0013-61736
HHS-05-2022-0012-61737
HH5-05-2022-0012-61738
HHS-O5 2022001261742
HH5-05-2022-0012-51743
HHS-05-2022-0012-61746
HHS-05-2022-0012-61748
HH5-05-2022-0012-61755
HH5-05-2022-0012-61757
HHS-05-2022-0012-61759
HH5-05-2022-0012-51761
HHS-05-2022-0012-61763
HHS-05-2022-0012-61765
HH5-05-2022-0012-61778
HHS:05.2022-0012-61782
HHS-05-2022-0012-61784
HH5-05-2022-0012-61785
HH5-05-2022-0012-61792
HHS-05-2022-0012-61796
HH5-05-2022-0012-61798
HH5:05.2022-0012-61200
HH5-05-2022-0012-61804
HHS-05-2022-0012-61805
HHS-05.2022.0012-61815
HH5-05-2022-0012-61818
HH5-05-2022-0012-61820
HHS-05:2022-0012-61821
HH5-05-2022-0012-61823
HHS-05-2022-0012-61831
HHS-05-2022-0012 61837
HH5-05-2022-0012-51841
HH5-05-2022-40012-61847

HHS-05 2022-0012 51852.

HH5-05-2022-0012-61854
HH5-05-2022-0012-61860
HHE-05-2022-0012-61861
HHS-05-2022-0012-61866
HHS-05-2022-0012-61867
HH5-05-20220012-61873
HH5-05-2022-0012-61877
HHS-05-2022-0012-61885
HH5-05-2022-0012-61899
HH5-05-2022-0012-61901
HHS-05-2022.0012 61902
HHS-05-2022-0012-51503
HHS-05-2022-0012-61905
HHS-05-2022-0012-61908
HH5-05-2022-0012-61910
HHS-05-2022-0012-61912
HHS 05 2022.0012 61915
HHS-05-2022-0012-61917
HHS-05-2022-0012-61921
HH$-05-2022-0012-61922

HH5-05-2022-0012-61934

HHS-05-2022-0012-61937
HHS-05-2022-0012-61938
HHS-05-2022-0012-61943
HH5-05-2022-0012-61944
HH5-05-2022-0012-61545
HH5-05-2022-0012-61953
HHS-05-2022-0012-61954
HHE-05-2022-0012-61555
HHS-05-2022-0012-51956
HHS-05-2022-0012-61961
HH5-05-2022-0012-61962
HH5-05-2022-0012-61963
HHS-05-2022-0012-61967
HH5-08-2022-0012-61970
HH5-05-2022-0012-51982
HHS-05-2022.0012 61985
HHS- 05 -2022-0012-51986
HHS-05-2022-0012-61987
HHS-05-2022-0012-6198%
HHE-05-2022-0012-62000
HH5-05-2022-0012-62002
HHS-05-2022-0012 62003
HHE-05-20220012-62005
HH5-05-2022-0012-62006
HHE-05.2022-0012-6200%
HH5-05-2022-0012-62012
HHS5-05-2022-0012-62019
HHS 05 2022.0012-62022
HH5-05-2022-0012-52023
HH5-05-2022-0012-62028
HH5-05-2022-0012-62025
HH5-05-2022-0012-62031
HH5-05-2022-0012-62038
HHE-05-2022-0012-62040
HH5-05-2022-0012-62044
HHS-05-2022-0012-62046
HH5-05-2022-0012-62050

HHS-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-62932
HHS05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62994
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-62935
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-62936
HH5-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-62998
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 62999
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63001
HHS05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63005
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-63007
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63008
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63003
HH3-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 63013
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63014
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63017
HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT-63019
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63026
HH5-045-2022-0012-DRAFT-63028
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63030
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63032
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63034
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63036
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63049
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-63053
HHS-05.2022-0012- DRAFT-63055
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 63056
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63063
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63067
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63069
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-63071
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63075
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53076
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 63086
HH5-05-2072-0012-DRAFT-63089
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53091
HHS- 05 2022-0012-DRAFT-63052
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63094
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63102
HH5-05-2022.0012-DRAFT 63108
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53112
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63118

HHS—CPS—ZDZZ 0012-DRAFT- 53123 i

HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63125
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63131
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63132
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53138
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63139
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-£3145
HHS-015-2022-0012-DRAFT-63149
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-63157
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63171
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63173
HHS-05-2022 0012-ORAFT-63174
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-£3175
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63177
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-63178
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63182
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63184
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63187
HHS5-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-631E9
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63193
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-63194
HHS-05-2023-0012-DRAFT-E3206
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63209
HHS 0520220012 DRAFT 63210
HHE-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63215
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63216
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63221
HHS-(15-2023-0012-DRAFT-63225
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63226
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63227
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 63228
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63233
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63134
HHS-(15-2022-0012-DRAFT-63235
HHS.05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63239
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63242
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63254
HHS-05-2022 0012 -DRAFT 63257
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63158
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63259
HHS-05-2022-0012- DRAFT-63261

HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63273

HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63275
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT 63276
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63278
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63279
HHS-05-2022.0012- DRAFT-63282
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63285
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63292
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63295
HHS-05-2022.0012-DRAFT 53295
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63301
HHS5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63302
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63304
HH$-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63311
HH5-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-53314
HHS-05-2022-0012-DAAFT-63313
HHS-05-2022-0012-DRAFT-63320
HH5-05-20232 -0012-DRAFT-63324

Robert Hale
Anonyrmous
Deborah Flores
Faustina Halbur
Curtis Bizelli
Ananymaus.
Caral Caaper
Jeff Fauver
Janice Beechick
Erika Grumet
Lynda Holder
Gabwel Lautare
Dorothy Vince
Sharan Loveall
Victor Chang
Fred Bangeman
Shannon Lafkas
Caral Crouch
Becky Gann

Rita Wiese
Meha Lund

loan Ehrgott
Dlana Blackmer
Mancy Travizano
KeliiFaige Franklin
Anonymous.
Jennifer Richmand
Jennifer Hartman
Anonymous
Madeline Amalphy
Karen Stetler
lenifer Roberts
Barbara Dota
AnQnyrnons

. Schrare
Ananymaus
Howard Williams
Dawd Le Sueur
Sandra Kruse
CARQL BREMER

Nelie Tucker

Lorraine Zito
Anonymous

Matt Bjork
Dorothy Hobart
Joseph Abbruscato
Bob Hudson
Madeline Ashley
Alan Manrs
Maureen Mclonough
Ellen Mchaster
Concerned Citizen
Suzanne Riordan
Gayla gipson
Carren Blackwood
Mark Olsen

KL Dancwski
Loulse Cooke
Anne Mamues
Wincent Markle
Paul MeClanahan
lacquelyn Carr
loyce HEMDERSON
Tracy Zak

Rhonda Miller
Joseph Abbruscate
Ruger Burley

MY Meyers
Suzanne Renaud
Judith Kopka
Sandra Casteel
Bonnie Samantoni
Sheldon Smith
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Thanks for the conversations today. | was able to find the electronic versions of the Administrative LTC
Bill of Rights from SAGE and the draft legislation for Residents of LTC Facilities that Fenway mentioned
when Adrian convened a meeting with them. | look forward to hearing your thoughts and discussing a
path forward with Elliot.

Edwin L. Walker
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Administration for Community Living
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Advocacy &

Services for

LGBTQ: Elders
We refuse to be invisible

Understanding the Need for a Federal LGBTQ+ and HIV

Administrative Long-Term Care Bill of Rights
A Series of Listening Sessions with the White House and the Administration for Community Living

Objectives:

SAGE would leverage partnerships with federal agencies, state, and local community groups to either
host or work with the White House and ACL to support a series of listening sessions on the topic of a
federal LGBTQ+ and HIV Long-Term Care Bill of rights. Our goal is to protect and empower older adults
who receive long-term care, whether that be through home and community-based services or
institutional care, to fight discrimination on the basis of their sexual orientation, gender identity, and
HIV status. Listening sessions will open the policymaking process up to LGBTQ+ older adults and older
adults living with HIV, who have historically been excluded from the policy-making that impacts how
they age.

We propose a series of three in-person listening sessions {outlined below) that would take place on the
East Coast, the American South, and the Midwest. SAGE can facilitate partnerships with local groups to
hold the in-person sessions to ensure that elders from all backgrounds and identities are represented,
with a specific focus on our most marginalized elders: elders of color and trans elders.

SAGE also recommends holding a series of virtual, nation-wide listening sessions {outlined below)
framed around specific demographic groups. These sessions would be held on different days and times
to acknowledge that older adults have intersecting identities and they may be interested in attending
more than one listening session. Demographics represented in these sessions could include: Black
LGBTQ+ older adults, disabled older adults, older adults living with HIV, transgender older adults, Latine
older adults, Asian and Pacific Islander LGBTQ+ older adults, LGBTQ+ indigenous older adults, LGBTQ+
older adults who speak English as a second language, LGBTQ+ older adults in the territories, and LGBTQ+
older veterans. SAGE has deep connections to the Diverse Elders Coalition, of which it is a founding
member, and often partners with other organizations in these demographic groups.

We hope to invite Deputy Secretary Admiral Levine to our New York listening sessions to hold a
breakout session for trans older adult participants.

Potential In Person Listening Sessions:

Listening Session Number One: New York City, NY

SAGE operates a network of five LGBTQ+ older adult centers, called SAGE Centers, and provides services
at two LGBTQ+-welcoming elder housing developments in New York City. As such, we recommend
conducting a listening session at one of our SAGE Centers. This would also allow for a session specifically
focused on transgender and non-binary elders {TGNB) sharing their needs and experiences with Deputy
Secretary Admiral Rachel Levine.

Community Partners: Five SAGE Centers across the boroughs, the New York City LGBT Center, New Pride
Agenda, GRIOT Circle, the Ali Forney Center, and Callen Lorde

Contact Information
Emma Bessire, Manager of Civic Engagement
ebessire@sageusa.org | 646-699-7937
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Listening Session Number Twa: St Louis, MO

St Louis’ central location between the Midwest and the South positions it well to encempass multiple
rural areas and experiences. Hosting a listening session in 5t Louis could also draw in participants from
Northern Arkansas and Southern lllinois to represent rural issues. This would allow us to leverage
partnerships in a place rarely reached by national organizations and uplift the needs of rural elders.
Community Partners: PROMO, Metro Trans Umbrella Group, The GLO Center, Golden Rainbows of
Illingis South, and Northwest Arkansas Equality

Listening Session Number Three: Miami, FL

Florida has been a bellwether for LGBTQ+ equality in recent years; many of the anti-trans bills
introduced in the state have been copied in other states. It also has a high older adult population, as
well as a high immigrant and Latinx population. Holding a listening session in Miami, FL would allow
SAGE to engage with our closest partners who work with LGBTQ+ older adults in one of the states where
they are most under threat. It would also allow us to focus on the needs of LGBTQ+ older adults who
speak English as a second language or who are immigrants.

Community Partners: Miami Freedom Project, Equality Florida, Arianna’s Center, Florida Rising,
Transinclusive Group, TransSocial, Pride Center at Equality Park, Unity Coalition, Jewish Community
Services and Southerners on New Ground

Potential Virtual Listening Sessions:

To augment the in-person listening sessions and reach a deeper cross-section of the LGBTQ+ elder
community, SAGE proposes holding a series of virtual listening sessions focused on those living at the
intersections of multiple marginalized identities and those who bring unique lived experiences. LGBTQ+
elders of color, LGBTQ+ elders living with disabilities, veterans, and others experience aging differently
than their counterparts. As such, SAGE recommends hosting a series of virtual listening sessions with the
following demographic groups to ensure that any bill of rights the Administration advances is fully
inclusive of the diverse needs of all LGBTQ+ elders.

Black LGBTQ+ and/or Same-Gender Loving (SGL) Older Aduits
Community Partners: National Black Justice Coalition, National Caucus and Center on Black Aging, Griot
Circle, Affinity Community Services, Zami Nobla, Black Trans Advocacy Coalition, Brave Space Alliance

Disobled LGBTQ+ Older Adults
Community Partners: Milwaukee LGBT Center, National Center for Disability Rights

Transgender and Non-Binory Older Adults

Community Partners: National Center for Transgender Equality, Black Trans Advocacy Coalition, Trans
Latina Coalition, Silvia Rivera Law Project, Transgender Law Project, Transgender Legal Defense Fund,
Brave Space Alliance

Older Adults Living with HIV
Community Partners: AIDS United, Sero Project, Equality Federation, SAGEPositive

Latinx LGBTQ+ Older Aduits
Community Partners: Natienal Hispanic Council on Aging, Trans Latina Coalition, LULAC

Contact Information
Emma Bessire, Manager of Civic Engagement
ebessire@sageusa.org | 646-699-7937
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Indigenous LGBTQ+ Older Adults:
Community Partners: Natignal Indian Council on Aging, Native Movement

LGBTQ+ Older Adults Who Served as Veterons
Community Partners: Mingrity Veterans of America, Transgender American Veterans Association,
American Veterans for Equal Rights, SAGEVets, Modern Military Association of America

AAPI LGBTQ+ Older Aduits
Community Partners: National Asian Pacific Center on Aging, Southeast Asia Resource Action Center,
National Queer Asian Pacific Islander Alliance

LGBTQ+ Oider Adults in the Territories
Community Partners: Waves Ahead Puerto Rico

Bitingual/ESL Older Adults:
Community Partners: Diverse Elders Coalition, Justice in Aging

LGBTQ+ Older Aduits Who are immigronts:
Community Partners: Justice in Aging, Rush Center for Excellence in Aging, Immigration Equality,
Immigration Law Project at LA LGBT Center, Immigrant Justice

Conclusion and Timing:

The members of the Stonewall Generation are aging. They have the expertise, foresight, and the
experience to make meaningful contributions, yet they are often left out of conversations about both
aging and LGBTQ+ identity. The preceding listening sessions would provide these elders the opportunity
to speak to their needs in long-term care, not only as LGBTQ+ people, but also as Black, Indigenous, and
other people of color, as immigrants, people who have served as veterans, and more.

In order to build trust in these communities, it is important to allow time to partner with the
organizations listed above. Because these listening sessions would require deep and meaningful
partnership with leaders in the movement of each focus group, SAGE recommends a lead time of at
least three months to organize these virtual sessions. This would ensure that the listening sessions are
truly representative and informative for the White House. A fast-turnaround makes trust-building and
partnership difficult, and SAGE would like to uplift the leadership of movement partners for each of
these events.

For the in-person listening sessions in New York City, a goal of holding the sessions in March would allow
for proper outreach. For the sessions in Florida and St Louis, we recommend April as a target date. Older
Americans Month in May would offer a hook for each of the virtual listening sessions and offer enough
time for outreach.

We look forward to our partnership with you and welcome any feedback. Please refer any further
questions to Emma Bessire, SAGE's Manager of Civic Engagement, whose contact information can be
found at the bottom of this page.

Contact Information
Emma Bessire, Manager of Civic Engagement
ebessire@sageusa.org | 646-699-7937
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AN ACT

To establish a Bill of Rights for LGBTQ, Intersex, and HIV-Positive Residents of Long-Term Care
Facilities, and for other purposes.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States of America in
Congress assembled,

SECTION 1. FINDINGS.

(a) All long-term care facility residents have the right to competent, considerate, and respectful
care in a safe setting that fosters the resident’s comfort and dignity and is free from all forms of
discrimination, including discrimination wholly or partially based upon a person’s actual or
perceived sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, transgender status, intersex
status, or HIV status.

(b) LGBTQ older adults, intersex older adults, and older adults living with HIV frequently
experience discrimination in daily life, and are particularly vulnerable in long-term care facility
settings, where they must rely on others for the care and services they need, and have more limited
privacy. LGBTQ older adults have shared stories that illustrate the persistent discrimination they
face, which coupled with the lack of cultural competency at many facilities, has devastating and
troubling effects. Among other forms of discrimination, these stories include facilities and their
staft forcing individuals to wear clothing contrary to their gender identity and expression; refusing
to respect the name and/or pronouns the individual uses; traumatically cutting off an individual’s
access to necesary gender affirming medications; restricting medical decision-making to a
resident’s family of origin against that individual’s wishes; disrespecting residents’ rooming
requirements and visitation preferences; subjecting individuals to harassment because of their
sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, intersex status, or HIV status; lacking medical
understanding of the medications and treatments residents require, particularly those for treating
HIV or affirming a resident’s gender; and wrongfully discharging or refusing to accept residents.
These examples of discrimination against LGBTQ older adults, intersex older adults, and those
living with HIV are just a sampling, and often the discriminatory acts arise not only from facility
staff, but also the other residents living in these facilities.

{c¢) This discrimination against LGBTQ individuals and those living with HIV in long-term care
facilities has gone largely unaddressed. For example, according to a 2010 Justice in Aging study
reformatted in 2015 entitled “Stories from the Field: LGBT Older Adults in Long-Term Care
Facilities,” 43% of respondents reported personally witnessing or experiencing instances of
mistreatment of LGBTQ older adults in a long term care facility, including verbal or physical
harassment from other residents; being refused admission or re-admission or being abruptly
discharged; verbal or physical harassment from staff; staff refusal to accept medical power of
attorney from the resident’s spouse or partner; discriminatory restrictions on visitation; and staff
refusal to refer to a transgender resident by his or her preferred name or pronouns. 81% of
respondents believed that other residents would discriminate against an LGBTQ older adult in a
long-term care facility; 89% of respondents believed that staff would discriminate against an
LGBTQ older adult in a long-term care facility; and 53% believed that staff discrimination would
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rise to the level of abuse or neglect. In a study conducted by AARP, LGBT community members
indicated that when thinking about long-term care facilities, 67% were concerned with neglect,
62% were concerned with abuse, 61% were concerned with limited access to LGBT-specific older
adult services and 60% were concerned with verbal or physical harassment.

(d) Given these inadequacies, LGBTQ older adults, intersex older adults, and older adults living
with HIV are more reluctant than their peers to access medical care. LGBTQ individuals, including
those who identify as transgender or gender non-conforming, have some of the highest rates of
concerns surrounding the quality of healthcare they will receive and whether it will be impacted
by their sexual orientation or gender identity. This reluctance to receive services results in worse
health and social outcomes in our older adult communities. Those older adults who do receive
services commonly live in fear of discrimination and receive inadequate care in these facilities
where they are often mistreated.

(e) Discrimination against LGBTQ people, intersex people, and people living with HIV is already
prohibited in various long term care settings. Section 1557 of the Patient Protection and Affordable
Care Act (42 U.S.C. § 18116) prohibits discrimination in federally-funded or -administered health
programs on the basis of actual or perceived sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression,
transgender status, intersex status, or HIV status. The Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. § 3601 et seq.)
prohibits this same discrimination in housing. Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities
Act (42 U.S.C. § 12181 et seq.) and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. §
794) bar discrimination based on having or being regarded as having a disability, including HIV
status, gender dysphoria, and intersex traits, in government-funded or -conducted programs and in
places of public accommodation. However, many facilities fail to understand the scope of these
legal obligations and lack the training and experience to deliver high quality nondiscriminatory
care to LGBTQ, intersex, or HIV-positive older adults. As a result, these older adults continue to
face discrimination in long-term care settings. This Act addresses these shortcomings by
mandating affirmative requirements for long-term care facilities, prohibiting specific
discriminatory acts in the long-term care setting, and providing information and remedies to ensure
that LGBTQ residents, intersex residents, and residents living with HIV know their rights and have
the means to enforce them.

SECTION 2. AFFIRMATIVE REQUIREMENTS.

Every long-term care facility and its staff shall:

(a) refer to each resident using the resident’s chosen name and pronouns throughout the
course of care, in all medical records, and in all resident histories;

(b) assign each resident a room in accordance with the resident’s gender identity;

(c) permit every resident to use any restroom open to their gender identity;

(d) involve each resident in their own medical planning and decision-making;

(e) if power of attorney designations have not already been made, permit each resident to
designate one or more individuals—and to place conditions on or limit the extent of any
such authority—to instruct the facility about the resident’s medical planning and
decision-making when the resident cannot participate;

(H permit each resident to restrict or prohibit individuals, without limitation, from visiting
the resident;
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(g) permit each resident to identify individuals who would not otherwise enjoy family
visitation rights, and allow such individuals the same access to visit the resident as the
facility affords the next of kin;

(h) inform each applicant to become a resident in writing of the basis for every denial of
admission and shall maintain the records related to these decisions for a period of no less
than three years; and

(1) inform each resident in writing of the basis for every involuntary transfer, discharge, or
eviction from a facility relating to the resident and shall maintain the records related to
these decisions for a period of no less than three years.

SECTION 3. PROHIBITIONS.

(a) Prohibited actions. It shall be unlawful for a long-term care facility or facility staff to take any
of the following actions because of a person’s actual or perceived sexual orientation, gender
1dentity, gender expression, transgender status, intersex status, or HIV status:

() deny admission to the facility;

(2) discharge or evict a resident from the facility;

(3) transfer a resident within a facility or to another facility, or deny a transfer the
resident requested;

(4) deny a resident a room in accordance with the resident’s gender identity, or deny
the mutual request of residents to share a room;

{5) fail to accept a resident’s verbal or written attestation of their gender identity or
require any resident to prove their gender identity by the means of any form of
identification;

(6) willfully and repeatedly fail to use a resident’s chosen name and pronouns after
being reasonably informed of the resident’s chosen name and pronouns;

{7) deny a resident the right to wear or be dressed in clothing, accessories, or
cosmetics of the resident’s choosing;

(8) restrict a resident’s right to associate with other residents or with visitors,
including, without limitation, the right to consensual sexual relationships or
display of physical affection;

(9 discriminate against a resident in the terms, conditions, or privileges of residence
in the long-term care facility, or in the provision of medical or nonmedical care,
services, or facilities in connection therewith; and

(10) fail to take any action within the facility's power to stop discriminatory
harassment if the facility knew or should have known about such disciminatory
harrassment.

(b) Non-retaliation. It shall be unlawful for any person to take any adverse action against a person
because that person:

(1) has opposed any act or practice made unlawful by this Act;

(2) has invoked this Act or its enforcement for the purpose of supporting themselves

or others;

(3) has filed a complaint under this Act with the OCR or any court; or

(4) has testified, assisted, or participated in any investigation, proceeding, or litigation

under this Act.
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SECTION 4. STATEMENT OF RIGHTS

Each facility shall post the following notice in a prominent location in the facility accessible to
residents and in the materials provided to potential residents and their caregivers, next to any other
nondiscrimination policy:

“It 1s against the law for a long-term care facility, its staff, or other residents to discriminate
against residents on the basis of actual or perceived sexual orientation, gender identity,
gender expression, intersex status, or HIV status, or based on association with another
individual on account of that individual’s actual or perceived sexual orientation, gender
identity, gender expression, intersex status, or HIV status. You may file a complaint with
the HHS” Office of Civil Rights (1-800-368-1019; ocrmail@hhs.gov) if you believe that
you have experienced this kind of discrimination.”

SECTION 5. TRAINING.

(a) Requirement to provide training. Each long-term care facility shall ensure that the long-term
care facility staff, and any persons who contract to provide services to the long-term care facility,
receive training, at onboarding and thereafter at least once every two years, concerning:
(1) caring for LGBTQ older adults, intersex older adults, and older adults living with HIV;
and
{2) preventing discrimination based on sexuval orientation, gender identity or expression,
transgender status, intersex status, and HIV status.

(b) Training requirements. At a minimum, the onboarding training required by this section shall
include:
(1) the definition of the terms commonly associated with sexual orientation, gender identity
and expression, transgender status, gender-affirming care, intersex status, and HIV;
(2) best practices for communicating with or about LGBTQ older adults, intersex older
adults, and older adults living with HIV, including the use of a resident’s chosen name and
pronouns;
(3) an exploration of the health and social challenges historically experienced by LGBTQ
older adults, intersex older adults, and older adults living with HIV, including
discrimination when seeking or receiving care at long-term care facilities, and the
demonstrated physical, mental, and spiritual health effects within the LGBTQ community
associated with such discrimination;
(4) strategies to create a safe and affirming environment for LGBTQ older adults, intersex
older adults, and older adults living with HIV, including suggested changes to facility
policies and procedures, forms, signage, communication between residents and their
families, activities, and staff training and in-house services; and
(5) an overview of the provisions of this Act, and Section 1557 of the Patient Protection
and Affordable Care Act {42 U.S.C. § 18116), as each may be amended from time to time.

DOC ID - 38513726.15 4


https://38513726.15
mailto:ocrmail@hhs.gov

(c) Additional requirements for ongoing biennial training. At a minimum, the ongoing biennial
training required by this section shall include:
(1) A refresher course on best practices for communication with or about LGBTQ older
adults, intersex older adults, and older adults living with HIV, including the use of a
resident’s chosen name and pronouns; and
(2) A refresher course on strategies to create a safe and affirming environment for LGBTQ
older adults, intersex older adults, and older adults living with HIV.

(d) Requirements for training entity. The training required pursuant to this section shall be
provided by an entity that has demonstrated expertise in identifying the legal, social, and medical
challenges faced by, and creating safe and affirming environments for, LGBTQ older adults,
intersex older adults, and older adults living with HIV who reside in long-term care facilities.

(e) Record retention.
(1) Each long-term care facility shall retain records documenting the completion of the
training required pursuant to this section by each administrator and staff member at the
long-term care facility for a period of no less than seven years;
(2) Compliance records shall be made available, upon request, to the OCR.

(f) No entitlement of long-term care facility to federal funds for training implementation. Nothing
in this Act shall be construed as entitling any long-term care facility to federal funds to implement
the training required by this section, nor to prohibit any long-term care facility from spending
federal funds to implement the training required by this section to the extent consistent with the
documents governing the award or distribution of those federal funds.

(g) Publication of layperson’s handbook. Within one year of the effective date of this Act, the OCR
shall publish a layperson’s handbook to assist long-term care facilities in complying with this
Section and to suggest model practices to serve the needs of LGBTQ residents, intersex residents,
and residents living with HIV. The OCR shall also publish a list of medical providers available to
provide medical care to transgender residents of long-term care facilities and shall update this list
on an annual basis.

SECTION 6. RECORDKEEPING.

In addition to other records required to be kept under this Act, each long-term facility shall ensure
that a resident’s records, including those created at the time of admission, contain the resident’s
gender identity, preferred gender expression, chosen name, and chosen pronouns, as indicated by
the resident.

SECTION 7. ENFORCEMENT.

(a) Civil action.
(1) Any aggrieved person, the Attorney General of the United States, the attorney general
of any state, any organization whose members have suffered or are threatened with
violations of this Act, or any person designated in Section 2(g) of this Act may enforce the
provisions of this Act against a long-term care facility or its staff by means of a civil action
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in the federal district court embracing the location of the facility not later than 4 years after
the termination of an alleged violation of this Act.
(2) The computation of such 4-year period shall not include any time during which an
administrative proceeding under this section was pending with respect to a complaint or
charge under this subchapter.
(3) Any long-term care facility is liable under this subsection if
{A) 1t 1s found that the facility acted or failed to act, in a negligent manner, to cause
a violation of any provision of this Act; or
(B) it is found that the facility had actual or constructive knowledge that a resident
of the long-term care facility infringed any of the protections provided by this Act
or engaged in conduct prohibited by this Act, and the facility (x) did not take
substantial action designed to prevent or remedy such infringement or prohibited
conduct or (y) aided in such infringement or prohibited conduct.
(4) An aggrieved person, the Attorney General of the United States, the attorney general of
any state, any organization whose members have suffered or are threatened with violations
of this Act, or any person designated in Section 2(g) of this Act may commence a civil
action under this subsection whether or not a complaint has been filed under subsection
{(d) and without regard to the status of any such complaint.

(b) Relief which may be granted.
(1) In a civil action under subsection (a), if the court finds that a violation of this Act has
occurred or is about to occur, the court may award to the plaintiff
{A) a monetary award equal to three times the actual damages sustained as a result
of the violation;
(B) a civil monetary penalty not to exceed $1,000 per violation, considering each
day that a continuing violation persists a separate violation;
(C) emotional distress damages as the court may allow;
(D) punitive damages as the court may allow; and
(E) any permanent or temporary injunction, temporary restraining order, or other
order (including an order enjoining the defendant from engaging in such practice
or ordering such affirmative action as may be appropriate), as the court deems
appropriate, even if any plaintiff did not or will not personally suffer the violation
the plaintiff establishes.
(2) In a civil action under subsection (a), the court, in its discretion, may allow
the prevailing party reasonable attorney’s fees and costs.

(c) Administrative action.
(1) Any person who believes that a facility has committed an act in violation of this Act
may file a complaint with the OCR which shall be deemed a request to have the OCR
investigate and mediate the complaint.
(2) If it is determined that the complaint falls within the OCR’s jurisdiction, the OCR shall
investigate the allegations and provide the complainant in writing with its determination
regarding enforcement. If OCR determines it lacks jurisdiction, it shall so state in writing
to the person who filed the complaint.
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(d) Non-exculpation. Any provision in any contract with a resident is void to the extent that it
purports to restrict or eliminate or by operation of law would restrict or eliminate the causes of
action provided in this section, the ability of any person entitled to bring an action under this
section to do so in a class action or on a representative basis, or the amount of monetary relief the
resident may seek or receive under this section.

SECTION 8. OMBUDSMAN PROGRAM

(a) Designation of LGBTO+ liaison. If a long-term care facility operates in a state that has an
Office of the State Long-Term Care Ombudsman, then such long-term care facility shall designate
an independent entity who is not a member of the facility staff to serve as an LGBTQ+ liaison to
the State Long-Termm Care Ombudsman and shall submit the name and contact information of the
designated staff member to the OCR and the Office of the State Long-Term Care Ombudsman.
The LGBTQ+ liaison shall complete an annual training that fulfills the requirements of Section 5.

(b) Duties of the LGBTQ+ liaison. The LGBTQ+ liaison shall carry out the functions of the
ombudsman as defined in section 712(a)(3) of the Older Americans Act of 1965, as amended (42
U.S8.C. § 3001 ef seq.) and shall ensure that affirmative requirements and prohibitions are enforced,
that residents are aware of their rights in the long-term care facility setting, and that the LGBTQ+
liaison is equipped to protect such rights of residents.

{(c) Effect on other law. Nothing in this section shall be construed to prevent or exempt a long-
term care facility from designating, employing, or contracting with any ombudsperson otherwise
permitted or required by any other provision of applicable law.

SECTION 9. AMENDMENTS TO EXISTING STATUTES

Section 102(24) of the Older Americans Act of 1965, as amended (42 U.S.C. § 3001 ef seq.) is
amended to read as follows:

(24) The term “greatest social need” means the need caused by noneconomic factors,

which include—

(A)  physical and mental disabilities;

(B) language barriers; and

(O) cultural, social, or geographical isolation, including isolation caused by
racial, ethnic, LGBTQ, intersex, or HIV status that—
(1) restricts the ability of an individual to perform normal daily tasks; or
{i1) threatens the capacity of the individual to live independently.

SECTION 10. REGULATIONS
The Secretary of HHS may prescribe rules and issue orders and guidance, as may be necessary or

appropriate to administer and carry out the purposes and objectives of this Act, and to prevent
evasions thereof.
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SECTION 11. DEFINITIONS.
For the purposes of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply:

(a) “Gender expression” means a person’s gender-related appearance or behavior, or the
perception of such appearance or behavior, whether or not stereotypically associated with the
person’s sex assigned at birth,

(b) “Gender identity” means a person’s internal sense of their own sex, without regard to the
individual’s physical appearance, surgical history, genitalia, legal sex, sex assigned at birth, or
name and sex, as it appears in medical records, and without regard to any contrary statement by
any other person, including a family member, conservator, or legal representative. An individual
who lacks the present ability to communicate their gender identity shall retain the gender identity
most recently expressed by that individual.

(c) “(Gender-affirming care” means any process by which a person takes steps to live in
accordance with their gender identity. The precise steps of this process are particular to the
individual, and may include social, medical, and legal changes. Gender-affirming care may or may
not include medical interventions such as hormone therapy and surgery, depending on the medical
needs of the individual.

(d) “Gender-nonconforming” means a person whose gender expression does not conform to a
sex stereotype.

(e) “HHS” means the Department of Health and Human Services.

(D “HIV™ means the human immunodeficiency virus.

(g) “Intersex” means having sexual or reproductive anatomy or a chromosomal pattern that
does not fit historical definitions of male or female.

(h) “LGBTQ” means an individual who identifies as lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or is
questioning or exploring their sexuality, sexual identity, or gender identity, or is concerned about
applying a social label to themselves related to their sexuality, sexual identity, or gender identity.
(1) “LGBTQ+ liaison” means an individual who is selected from among individuals with
expertise and experience in the fields of long-term care, advocacy, LGBTQ issues and experiences,
intersex issues and experiences, and HIV status issues and experiences.

() “Long-term care facility” or “facility” means a licensed facility, regulated by the State, that
provides general nursing care to those who are chronically ill or unable to take care of daily living
needs. “Long-term care facilities™ include any long-term residential facility that receives Medicaid
or Medicare funding, nursing homes as defined under 12 U.S.C. § 1715w(b)(1), and any other
State-licensed facility providing similar services to older adult residents.

(k) “Long-term care facility staff” or “facility staff” means all individuals employed by or
contracted to work in the facility.

(H “OCR” means the Department of Health and Human Services” Office of Civil Rights.

(m) “Office of the State Long-Term Care Ombudsman” means the office of the ombudsman
established under the Ombudsman Program in the state in which a long-term care facility operates.
(n) “Older Adults” means an individual who is 60 years of age or older.

{(0) “Ombudsman Program” means the Long-Term Care Ombudsman program, established

under section 712 of the Older Americans Act of 1965, as amended (42 U.S.C. § 3001 et seq.).
(p) “Person™ means any individual, or long-term care facility or facility staff as these terms are
defined herein.

(qQ) “Resident” means a resident of a long-term care facility.
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(r) “Sex stereotype” means, but is not limited to, an assumption about a person’s appearance
or behavior, gender roles, gender expression, or gender identity, or about an individual’s ability or
inability to perform certain kinds of work based on the individual’s sex, including but not limited
to assumptions derived from myth, social expectation, or generalization about sex or gender.

(s) “Transgender” means a person whose gender identity differs from the person’s assigned or
presumed sex at birth, regardless of whether such person has undergone or in the process of gender-
affirming care.
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Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/OCR) /O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
From: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=FC51060649034939AC2EB2C237DDBCF3-KUMAR, VATS
<Vatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov>

de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
To: (FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=0bdecl2ad0974eacababe032f2b37c51-Dekervor, D
<Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: Justification Memo Draft
Date: 2022/08/19 15:20:08
Due Date: 2022/08/18 20:00:00
Priority: Normal
Type: Note

Hi Dylan,

(0)(5)

Here’s an updated memo.

(b)(5)

Please let me know if there’s anything further | can do on this! I'm excited that we're (hopefully) taking
action.

Have a great weekend!

Best,
Vatsala

From: Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/OCR)

Sent: Friday, August 19, 2022 9:06 AM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/QCR) <Dylan.Dekervor@hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: Justification Memo Draft

Yes! Can do.

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HH5/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>
Sent: Friday, August 19, 2022 9:05 AM

To: Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/QCR) <Vatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov>
Subject: Re: Justification Memo Draft

()5}

Dylan Nicole de Kervaor (she/her)
202-699-1884

From: Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/OCR) <Vatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov>
Sent: Friday, August 19, 2022 8:59:53 AM
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To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR} <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: Justification Memo Draft

Thank you so much! I'll make these edits and get you a revised draft by the end of today.

Best,
Vatsala

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR} <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>
Sent: Thursday, August 18, 2022 5:56 PM

To: Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/OCR} <Vatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: lustification Memo Draft

This looks amazing. | have attached my thoughts on your questions. <<File: 2022.08.18_DRAFT Florida
Medicaid Justification Memo_ddk.doc >>

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esq., MSW (she/her)
Phone: (202) 699-1884
Email: dy an.dekervor@nhs.gov

From: Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/OCR} <Vatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov>
Sent: Thursday, August 18, 2022 4:02 PM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HH5/OCR} <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>
Subject: Justification Memo Draft

Hi Dylan,

| hope your week is going well! Attached is a rough draft of the Florida Medicaid justification memao. It's
not fully polished yet, because | had some questions (noted here in comments) that | was hoping you
could answer before | finalize everything. Once some of this is clarified | should be able to get you a
more finished version pretty quickly.

Please let me know if you'd rather hop on a call to talk through some of this, or if | should consult with
Susie or someone else instead! | know you're busy ©

Best,
Vatsala

<<File: 2022.08.18_DRAFT Florida Medicaid Justification Memo.doc >>
Vatsala Kumar {she/her}

Intern

Office for Civil Rights
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L.S. Department of Health &Human Services
vatsala.kumar@hhs.gov

Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/OCR) /O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
Sender: (FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=FC510606A9034939AC2EB2C237DDBCF3-KUMAR, VATS
<Vatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov>»

de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR} fo=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
Recipient: (FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=0bdec12ad0974eacababe(32r2b37¢91-Dekervor, D
<Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent Date: 2022/08/19 15:18:34
Delivered Date: 2022/08/19 15:20:08
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DELIBERATIVE

DATE: July 22, 2022 (updated August 1, 2022)
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
comments as described infrra Part 2 and in external documents. Most comprehensively, faculty
members from Yale and other universities' drafted a report reviewing the Florida Medicaid
Report (“Critical Review”). See Meredithe McNamara et al., 4 Critical Review of the June 2022
Florida Medicaid Report on the Medical Treatment of Gender Dvsphoria (July 8, 2022). The
Critical Review states that the Florida Medicaid Report “purports to be a review of the scientific

! Faculty members were from Yale Law School, Yale School of Medicine Child Study Center, Yale School of
Medicine Department of Psychiatry, Yale School of Medicine Department of Pediatrics, University of Texas
Southwestern, and University of Alabama at Birmingham. See Meredithe McNamara et al., 4 Critical Review of the
June 2022 Florida Medicaid Report on the Medical Treatment of Gender Dyvsphoria (July 8, 2022),

2
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and medical evidence but is, in fact, fundamentally unscientific” as it “makes false statements
and contains glaring errors regarding science, statistical methods, and medicine.” /d. at 2. The
Critical Review is structured in five parts. It argues that “medical care for gender dysphoria is
supported by a robust scientific consensus, meets generally accepted professional medical
standards, and is neither experimental nor investigational™; that the Florida Medicaid Report is “a
flawed analysis that ignores the scientific evidence and relies instead on pseudo-science”
including experts who have been disqualified in court; that the Florida Medicaid Report “makes
unfounded criticisms of robust and well-regarded clinical research and . . . cites sources with
little or no scientific merit”; that the Florida Medicaid Report’s “linchpin” is an analysis which is
“extremely narrow in scope, inexpert, and so flawed 1t merits no scientific weight at all”; and that
the Florida Medicaid Report “erroneously dismisses solid studies as ‘low quality,”” which if
followed regularly would mean that widely-used medications and common medical procedures
would also have to be denied coverage. /d. at 3.

The Florida Agency for Health Care Administration responded to the Critical Review, stating
that it is “another example of the left-wing academia propaganda machine arrogantly demanding
you follow their words and not the clear evidence-based science sitting right in front of you” and
that it 1s a “hodgepodge of baseless claims™ without authority or credibility. Dara Kam, Expert
Report Condemns Flovida's Plan to Ban Medicaid Coverage for Transgender Care, Palm Coast
Observer (July 17, 2022).

2. Current Status

While no further actions have yet been taken on the proposed rule, several other developments
have ensued. First, the Florida Agency for Health Care Administration held a public hearing and
accepted public comments on the proposed rule, both of which are discussed below and in the
Appendix.

Additionally, the Florida Department of Health submitted a petition to the Florida Board of
Medicine, urging them to bar physicians from providing gender-affirming care to minors. See
Florida Medical Board to Weigh Blocking Treatments for Transgender Youth, CBS Miami (Aug.
1, 2022). The change would create a standard of care prohibiting individuals under the age of
eighteen from receiving gender-affirming surgeries and hormones; it would also mandate a
consent form and waiting period for older individuals. Id. The petition relied on guidance issued
by the Florida Department of Health which stated that gender-affirming care should not be a
treatment option for minors, Off. of State Surgeon Gen., Fla. Dep’t of Health, Treatment of
Gender Dysphoria for Children and Adolescents (Apr. 20, 2022), as well as the Florida Medicaid
Report discussed supra Part 1-b. Florida Medical Board to Weigh Blocking Treatments for
Transgender Youth, CBS Miami (Aug. 1, 2022). The next steps in this process are for the Board
of Medicine to draft a proposed rule and take public comment. /d.

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
Doctor was Not an Expert. A Pennsyvivania Republican fnvited Him to Testifv on Trans Health
Care, Penn. Capital-Star (Sept. 15, 2020). He is also the president of the American College of
Pediatricians, an advocacy group whose primary focus is to advocate for conservative policies in
medicine, which has been categorized by the Southern Poverty Law Center as a hate group. See
American College of Pediatricians, Southern Poverty L. Ctr., (last visited July 22, 2022). Dr.
Van Mol is also a member. Andre Van Mol, Pub. Discourse, (last visited July 22, 2022). The
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
renders 1t an arbitrary and capricious use of rulemaking power” and that it “cannot [be]
characterize[d] . . . as a valid interpretation of the existing Florida regulations on generally
accepted professional medical standards, because the [Florida Medicaid] Report fails to satisfy
Florida’s own regulatory requirements for scientific review.” Id. at 2. It reiterates concerns about
the Florida Medicaid Report, including the cited experts’ bias and lack of expertise, errors about
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
highest standards of trustworthiness and transparency” and with a “systematic review of the
evidence that supports [clinical] questions”—in contrast to the Florida Medicaid Report, which
“did not include endocrinologists with expertise in transgender medicine,” “makes sweeping
statements against gender affirming medical care that are not supported by evidence or
references provided,” and “does not acknowledge the data showing harm reduction and
improvements in behavioral health issues” that result from gender affirming care. /d. at 2-3. The
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
critical importance of gender affirming care.” Id.

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
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Fla. (July 8, 2022).
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
ready to defend the rights of transgender people in Florida.” LGBTQO Groups to Fight Florida
Qver Medicaid Ban for Trans Treatments, CBS Miami (June 6, 2022).

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
{1)(c). The ALJ may declare the proposed rule wholly or partially invalid, and the rule then may
not be adopted unless the judgment is reversed on appeal. Id. at (2)(b).
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
https://www.foxnews.com/health/california-ex-trans-teen-backs-tlorida-ban-medicaid-funds-transgender-medical-
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
audience cheered. She said she is thankful that Florida will “*stop the madness” for “the sake of
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
18 a “war on children and this 1s a crime against humanity.” Verdugo said that “groomers™ are
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
undeniably female.” She said that her child has “desisted and is on a path to self-love™ but
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

17



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
(FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=FC510606A9034939AC2EB2C237DDBCF3-KUMAR, VATS
<Vatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov>

de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) fo=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT}/cn=Recipients/cn=0bdec12ad574eacababed32f2b37c91-Dekervor, D
<Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

RE: FL proposed rule - banning FL Medicaid coverage of gender-affirming care
2022/08/10 15:24:55

Normal

Note

I’d requested a transcript of the hearing on the Florida rule back when | first started drafting the memo,
and | just finally received that. There shouldn’t be much in here that isn’t in my original appendix, but
I’'m attaching it anyway in case it's useful for us or CMS.

See you soon!

Vatsala

From: Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/OCR)

Sent: Friday, August 5, 2022 12:44 PM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.Dekervor@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: FL proposed rule - banning FL Medicaid coverage of gender-affirming care

Hi Dylan,

b){5)

Have a good weekend!

Best,
Vatsala

From: Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/OCR)

Sent: Wednesday, August 3, 2022 3:01 PM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.Dekervor@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: FL proposed rule - banning FL Medicaid coverage of gender-affirming care



mailto:Dylan.Dekervor@hhs.gov
mailto:Dylan.Dekervor@hhs.gov
mailto:Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov
mailto:Vatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov

Yes, can do! I'll get you this (and the updated Medicaid denials memo) tomorrow by EOD,
Have a safe flight!

Best,
Vatsala

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, August 3, 2022 3:00 PM

To: Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/QOCR) <Vatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: FL proposed rule - banning FL Medicaid coverage of gender-affirming care

Thank you! | sent this to myself to read also!

(0)(5)

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esq., MSW (she/her)
Phone: {202) 699-1884
Email: dylan.dekervor@hhs.gov

From: Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/OCR) «<Vatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, August 3, 2022 2:58 PM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: FL proposed rule - banning FL Medicaid coverage of gender-affirming care

Hi Dylan,

Vice published this article today where 10 authors of studies cited in the Florida Medicaid Report said
that their work was distorted, misrepresented, etc.

(b)(5)

Thanks!

Best,
Vatsala

From: Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/OCR)

Sent: Monday, August 1, 2022 4:33 PM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/QCR) <Dylan.Dekervor@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: FL proposed rule - banning FL Medicaid coverage of gender-affirming care

Updated version attached; | also made the tweak that Lauren had in track changes.
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Happy to move it elsewhere if you'd prefer!

Best,
Vatsala

From: Kumar, Yatsala (HHS/OCR)

Sent: Monday, August 1, 2022 3:39 PM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.Dekervor@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: FL proposed rule - banning FL Medicaid coverage of gender-affirming care

No worries! Florida is doing a lot of things these days so | get it!
Yes, can do; I'll send it back your way shortly.

Best,
Vatsala

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Monday, August 1, 2022 3:36 PM

To: Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/OCR) <Vatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: FL proposed rule - banning FL Medicaid coverage of gender-affirming care

Hi Vatsala,

Sorry about the snafu on Friday — apparently CMS thought we were talking about an immigration status
EO that Florida issued last year!

Would you mind updating your memo to also mention the below:

FL medical board to weigh blocking treatments for transgender youth

CBS News Miami, 08/01/2022

The FL Board of Medicine posted 1,113 documents related to gender-dysphoria
treatment in preparation for their meeting. The state Department of Health filed a petition
asking the board, which regulates medical doctors, to start a rulemaking process on the
proposal by Gov. Ron DeSantis' administration to bar physicians from providing
treatments such as hormone therapy and puberty-blocking medication to transgender
youths.

Thank you!
Dylan

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esq., MSW (she/her)
Phone: {202) 699-1884
Email: dylan.dekervor@hbhs.gov
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From: Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/OCR) <Vatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov>

Sent: Friday, July 22, 2022 2:58 PM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/QCR) <Dylan.deKervaor@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: FL proposed rule - banning FL Medicaid coverage of gender-affirming care

Hi Dylan,

Please find attached a memo about the Florida proposed rule. While the document is pretty long, note
that the memo itself is only the first six pages, and the rest is a rundown of the public hearing that was
held.

This focuses primarily on public and written comments | was able to find and some of the major issues
that have come up therein, but I’'m keeping an eye on the news to see if there are any other
developments.

Please let me know if | can do any follow-up on this today or next week!

Have a great weekend!

Best,
Vatsala

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/QCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, July 20, 2022 11:15 AM

To: Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/QCR) <Vatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: FL proposed rule - banning FL Medicaid coverage of gender-affirming care

Yup!

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esg., MSW (she/her)
Phone: {202) 699-1884
Email: dylan.dekervor@hhs.gov

From: Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/OCR) «Vatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, July 20, 2022 11:14 AM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: FL proposed rule - banning FL Medicaid coverage of gender-affirming care

Hi Dylan,
Yes! Can do. Is Friday an okay timeline for this?

Best,
Vatsala

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, July 20, 2022 11:12 AM
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To: Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/OCR) <Vatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov>
Subject: FW: FL proposed rule - banning FL Medicaid coverage of gender-affirming care

Hi Vatsala,

We are meeting with CMS to discuss the below FL proposed rule next week; are you able to do some
research to find out the latest? Maybe there is a transcript or recording of the public hearing as well?

If you can draft up the information as a briefing memo for the Director, that would be great. | have
attached a sample for format of the header, and for the body you can include the headers of
Background, Current Status, and maybe next steps? Also if there is any information about organizations
working in FL on the issue that would be good to know,

Once we have a time, I'll send you the invite,

Thank you!
Dylan

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, June 21, 2022 9:32 AM

To: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/10S) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR)
<LaurenJeel@hhs.gov>; Katch, Hannah (CMS/0A) <Hannah.Katch@cms.hhs.gov>

Cc: Barron, Pamela (HHS/OCR) <Pamela.Barron@hhs.gov>

Subject: FL proposed rule - banning FL Medicaid coverage of gender-affirming care

Good morning all,

| am sure you have all seen the news, but | am flagging the State of Florida’s proposed rule 59G-1.050,
published in the Florida Administrative Record on Friday (6/17/2022), to prohibit Florida Medicaid
coverage of the below services “for treatment of gender dysphoria”: 1. Puberty blockers; 2. Hormones
and hormone antagonists; 3. Sex reassignment surgeries; and 4. Any other procedures that alter primary
or secondary sexual characteristics. Proposed 59G-1.050(7){a). The proposed rule futher states that for
the “purpose of determining medical necessity, including Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis, and
Treatment (EPSDT), the services listed in subparagraph (7){a) do not meet the definition of medical
necessity in accordance with Rule 59G-1.010, F.A.C. Proposed 59G-1.050{7)(b). | have attached the
notice here for ease of reference.

There is a public hearing scheduled for July &, 2022 from 3:00 — 5:00 p.m. in Tallahassee, FL.

I'm not sure if calls are already happening on this, but since they implicate both CMS and OCR equities it
seems like coordination would be beneficial.

Best,
Dylan

Dylan Niccle de Kervor, Esg., MSW (she/her) | Section Chief
Office for Civil Rights
U.S. Department of Health &Human Services
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200 Independence Ave. 5.W., Room 532E
Washington, D.C. 20201

Phone: (202) 699-1884

Email: dy an.dekervor@nhs.gov

Please note | will be out of the office with no email access July 4 — 18, 2022.

Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/OCR) /C=EXCHANGELABS/QU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
Sender: (FYDIBCHF23SPDLT)Y/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=FC510606A9034939AC2EB2C237DD3CF3-KUMAR, VATS
<VYatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov>

de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR}) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
Recipient: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=0bdecl2ad0974eacababe032f2b37c91-Dekervor, D
<Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent Date: 2022/08/10 15:24:50
Delivered Date: 2022/08/10 15:24:55
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TAPED PROCEEDINGS

MS. COLE: My name is Chloe Cole, and I am a
17-year-old detransitioner from the Central Valley
of California. I was medically transitioned from
ages 13 to 16. My parents took me to a therapist
to affirm my male identity. The therapist did not
care about causality or encourage me to learn to be
comfortable in my body because of -- partially due
to California's conversion therapy bans. He
brushed off my parents' concerns about that because
he had hormones, puberty blockers, and surgeries.
My parents were given a sulcide threat as a reason
to move me forward in my transition.

My endocrinologist, after two or three
appointments, put me on puberty blockers and
injectable testosterone. At age 15, I asked to
remove my breasts.

My therapist continued to affirm my
transition. I went to a top surgery class that was
filled with around 12 girls that thought they were
men -- I thought that they were men. Most were my
age or younger. None of us were going to be men.
We were just fleeing from the uncomfortable feeling
of becoming women.

I was unknowingly physically cutting off my

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING, INC. 850.222.5491
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true self from my body, irreversibly and painfully.
Our transidentities were not gquestioned.

I went through with the surgery. Despite
having therapists and attending the top surgery
class, I really didn't understand all of the
ramifications of any of the medical decisions I was
making. I wasn't capable of understanding it, and
it was downplayed consistently.

My parents, on the other hand, were pressured
to continue my so-called gender journey with the
suicide threat.

I have been forced to realize that T will
never be able to breastfeed a child, despite my
increasing desire to as I mature. I have blood
clots in my urine. I am unable to fully empty my
bladder. I do not yet know 1f I am capable of
carrying a child to full term. In fact, even the
doctors who put me on puberty blockers and
testosterone do not know.

No child should have to experience what T
have. My consent was not informed and I was filled
by {(inaudible} .

A VOICE: Thank you for your comment.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: The next speaker will be Sophia

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING, INC. 850.222.5491
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Galvin,

M5, GALVIN: My name i1s Sophia Galvin, I am a
detransitioner. I began detransitioning at 17 and
a half socially. At 18 was when I began
detrans- —-- I mean transitioning medically.

I had a history of mental illness. I had
suicidal ideation and I would self-harm. And my
wanting to transition was all in an effort to
escape the fear of being a woman in this society
and because of traumas that I had been through in
my life,

So I continued down the process, and then I
ended up removing my breasts at 19 years old
because I was trapped, afraid to go back to my
original ideo- -- to my original sex, and basically
look crazy to the people around me.

When I detransitioned -- after I
detransitioned, it was very difficult because I
didn't have any support. The doctor basically just
told me to stop the hormones. I didn't have anyone
to speak to about it, I didn't go to a mental
health counselor, and I didn't prepare anything. I
just really want to say that this is not good for
children., T was harmed by this, and it should not

be covered under Medicaid.

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING, INC. 850.222.5491
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A VOICE: Thank you for your comments.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: The next speaker is Katie Caterbury.

MS. CATERBURY: At the age of 14, my once
healthy and happy daughter was convinced by the
Gay-Straight Alliance at school that she was my
son. At the age of 16, a physician injected her
with testosterone without my consent and without my
knowledge. At the age of 17, Medicaid paid
surgeons to perform a double mastectomy and a
hysterectomy as an outpatient. At age 19, Medicaid
paid for her to undergo a phalloplasty.

She had and still has private insurance that
was bypassed. I fought against what happened to my
daughter every step of the way, but to no avail.

How can any raticonal adult, much less a
physician, not know that it is impossible to change
one's biological sex? Why are there doctors
convincing trusting parents to affirm the lie that
biological sex is changeable? They prescribe
irreversible puberty-blocking drugs and powerful
wrong-sex hormones and amputate healthy breasts and
remove reproductive organs from children against
the protests of their parents.

Affirming the false notion to a child that it

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING, INC. 850.222.5491
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is possible to change one's sex is child abuse.
Administering powerful hormones that cause
irreversible changes to their bodies and their
brains is child abuse. Amputating the healthy body
parts of a child whose brain has not reached full
decision-making maturity is simply criminal.

Why are these doctors not criminally charged?
Why 1s this being funded with taxpavyer dollars?
This must be stopped.

Three years ago, I traveled to Washington,

DC -- Washington, DC, to speak to federal
lawmakers. T begged their staff to do something.
Democrats and Republicans, no one seemed to care.
But T will not give up trying until this medical
experiment on children is over.

To every single person fighting for the health
and lives of our children, I am profoundly
grateful. Thank you.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Just so we get through all the
speakers, we'd ask that you hold your applause
until the end of the program.

Next speaker will be Jeanette Cooper.

MS. COOPER: My name 1s Jeanette Cooper, and I

am here on behalf of Partners for Ethical Care, a

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING, INC. 850.222.5491
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nonpartisan, nonprofit organization that has no
pald staff.

No therapy is better than bad therapy, and
children are suffering because parents cannot find
professionals to serve the psychological needs of
their families and children, and they are being met
with a medical treatment for a psychological
condition. We need to make space in the public
sphere for ethical therapists by removing the
medical treatment option.

Nearly every therapist who publicly speaks is
a cheerleader for gender identity affirmation,
gluing that poisoned bandage on the skin of
children, causing permanent psychological and
physical harm by scolidifying an i1dea that maybe you
were born in the wrong body.

We are here to state the obvious. No child
can or ever will be born in the wrong body.
Everyone knows what a woman 1s, but some people are
afraid to say it. We are not afraid.

Our organization was founded by a handful of
mothers who realized that no one was coming to
protect these children. We could not wait any
longer for help to arrive.

Families are desperate to find actual support.

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING, INC. 850.222.5491
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They do not want a polsoned bandage that
cosmetically covers a wound that grows deeper when
covered and left untreated. Affirmation is a
poisoned bandage that does not help to heal, but
hides a deep need that will not be helped by
injections and surgeries.

The state has no business using taxpayer
funding to turn children into permanent medical
patients. The state has no business assisting
doctors in selling disabilities to wvulnerable,
suffering children by prescribing puberty blockers,
cross—-sex hormones, and extreme cosmetic body
modification. These so-called treatments are not
real health care.

The state should, however, fund legitimate and
proven care. For many children, a transidentity is
a crutch. It 1s a placeholder that stands in for
real suffering that hasn't been named. If they can
find a pediatrician, family therapist, or other
professionals who will address their actual needs,
children discard theilr transidentity and move
forward with self-actualization, rather than
staying in a state of stunted psychological and
physical growth, surviving with superficial,

short-term validation like a street drug that needs

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING, INC. 850.222.5491
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to be injected every day. ©Our Jjob 1s to protect
children, and we have to step 1n because the
medical field is failing these families.

Thank you for stepping in now before it costs
the State of Florida much more than dollars. Thank
yvou for this proposed rule. We support you.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Thank you for your comments.

Next speaker, Donna Lambart.

MS. LAMBART: Hello. My name 1s Donna
Lambart. I am here on behalf of concerned parents
to speak in support of the rule to stop allowing
Medicald to pay medical transition of children in
Florida.

Today I appeal to you on behalf of over 2,600
parents in our group. As parents, we know our
kids. As people, we know right from wrong. But
the health care professicnals are presenting many
of us with a false and painful cholce: Accept what

we know will permanently harm our children or lose

them to suicide. These false ideas are being
stated in the presence of children. This is not
only cruel, it's simply not true. There 1s no data

to prove that medically transitioning minors

prevents suicide.
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Society, the Internet, media, schools, and
government convince kids that theilr parents que- --
if their parents question -- 1f their parents
question their identity, 1t is because their
parents hate them. Parents who are unwilling to
drop all rational thinking and surrender to the
affirmation-only model of care pay a social,
emotional, and custodial price no parent should
ever have to pay.

Parents lose thelr children every day to
people who help them transition, leading them down
a dangerous medical path that permanently --
permanently harming their healthy bodies with
off-label drugs and experimental surgeries.

I interact with parents on a -- every day
whose children are instantly derailed as a result
of adopting a transgender identity. These children
become angry and hostile and resentful. They begin
lashing out at anyone who will not agree with their
new—-found identity. Parents are left -- have been
forced to rely on each other to figure out how best
to navigate this destructive social phenomenon.

The current one-size-fits-all affirmation
model cuts parents out of the equation, charging

forward with a rigid, transition-only course of
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action,

A VCICE: Ma'am, excuse me, your time is up.
Could you please wrap it up?

M5, LAMBART: Yes,

I would just like to say that on behalf of

thousands of loving parents, we ask Florida -- the
health -- to stand up for the protection of
children and teens who are under -- who are being

offered a magic fix. Parents deserve support and
children deserve sound care.

Thank you for your support and your time,

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Thank you for your comments,

The next speaker i1s Gerald Buston.

MR. BUSTON: Ladies and gentlemen, I am here
as a Christian pastor. 71 years ago, I gave my
life to Jesus Christ and chose to live my life
according to the Word of God, the Bible. The Bible
teaches that God makes people male and female, and
it says that repeatedly. Jesus said that himself,
And for us to try to transition people away from
what God did should be -- well, it definitely is a
sin, but it should be a criminal abuse of children,
especially when they're not at the age where they

can properly process what they're doing to
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themselves or allowing to be done to themselves.

I urge Medicald don't support this. I urge
the State of Florida to pass laws against it and
not allow our children to be abused the way they
are being abused by people that have one goal in
mind, and that 1is depopulating the world by cutting
back on the birth rate and by cutting back on the
population we have in our world right now.

So I support the bill that we do not pay for
this kind of stuff, and I would say let's go
further and pass laws against it and make that
extreme child abuse to do that to children that
don't have the right to know.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: The next speaker is -- I believe
it's Brady or perhaps Brandy Andrews.

MS. ANDREWS: Hey there, Brandy Andrews. I'm
here to speak in support of banning Medicaid
funding for transgender surgeries and treatments.

Transgender surgeries, puberty blockers, and
cross—-sex hormone treatments have been shown to be
extremely harmful, especially to minors, causing
sterility and irreversible physical and
psychological damage.

Physically healthy, gender-confused girls are
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being given double mastectomies at 13 and
hysterectomies at 16, while males are referred for
surgical castration and penectomies at 16 and 17,
respectively.

How have we reached this point in life where
we're allowing this at such a young age, but yet
you have to be 16 to drive a car, 18 to buy a pack
of clgarettes, where we're allowing children to
change their genders before they've even reached
puberty or shortly after?

Pharmaceutical companies are unethically
enriching themselves off the destruction of
countless young lives that are being fed puberty
blockers, which these companies are advertising
children. It's just straight-up child abuse, and
it's preying on our society's most vulnerable
youth.

Let kids be kids. I am asking Medicaid to
stop funding experimental medical treatments on
minors. Thank you.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: If I could remind folks to please
state your name before you start your comments.

Next speaker 1s Sabrina Hartsfield.

MS. HARTSFIELD: Good afterncon. My name 1is
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Sabrina Hartsfield, and I am speaking just from my
own oplinions. I am an alumni of Florida State
University and I am a born-again Christian.

Because of this conviction, I bellieve we as
human beings have an obligation to ensure poor and
marginalized people of all ages have adequate
medical care through the Medicaid program.

Without gender-affirming health care,
transgender and gender nonconforming individuals
will die. According to every major legitimate
medical organization, gender affirming care is the
treatment for gender dysphoria.

I am here today to speak against Rule
59G-1.050, the Florida Medicald trans and medical
care ban, from being put into place.

Gender-affirming care 1s medically necessary
and life-saving treatment that should be decided
between a patient, thelr caregivers, and a health
care professional, not big government.

Florida is about freedom from big government
overreach. Medicaid should cover all
medically-necessary treatment, and under the right
to privacy found in Florida's constitution, this
is, again, a decision that should be hands -- in

the hands of the patient and their health care
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providers.

This rule also violates the nondiscrimination
protections for people of all gender ildentities
found in the Affordable Care Act and the Medicaid
Ackt..

Transgender and gender nonconforming people
who have gender dysphoria are already at increased
risk for negative health outcomes, such as being
diagnosed with anxiety or depression, battling a
substance use disorder, and attempting suicide.
Denying medical care that has been determined to be
the best practice by every major medical
assoclation from the American Psychological
Assoclation to the American Medical Assoclation to
the Endeocrine Society will be life-threatening.
Denying transgender and gender nonconforming people
medical care can lead to depression, self-harming,
social rejection, and sulcidal behavior.

If the trans medical care ban 1s enacted, 1t
will be putting the lives of over 9,000 transgender
Floridians 1in danger.

Flease block proposed Rule 593G-1.050.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: The next speaker is Simone Chris.

MS. CHRIS: Good afterncoon. My name 1s Simone

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING, INC. 850.222.5491
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Chris and I'm an attorney. I'm the director of the
Transgender Rights Initiative Southern Legal
Council. We are a statewide, not-for-profit,
public interest civil rights law firm that utilizes
federal impact litigation policy reform and
individual advocacy to ensure communities that we
serve have access to justice and freedom from
discrimination.

We wvehemently oppose the proposed rule based
both on the science and evidence supporting the
medical necessity of treatment for gender dysphoria
and our own extensive experience working with
hundreds of transgender adults and minors and
witnessing the tremendous benefits that access to
such care provides.

In effect, the proposed rule creates a blanket
exclusion for coverage of medically-necessary
health care for one of the most vulnerable
populations in our state, eliminating the right of
all transgender Floridians with Medicaid to even
have their health care needs subjected to a
medical-necessity analysis. The insidiocusness of
this rule is exacerbated by the fact that it places
in its cross-hairs the individuals in our state who

are already disproportionately likely to experience
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poverty, homelessness, unemployment, poor mental
and physical health outcomes, and to have the least
access to resources 1n health care as it 1is.

We urge AHCA to reject these proposed changes
to the rule excluding the coverage for all
medically-necessary gender-affirming care because
it directly contravenes the widely accepted,
authoritative standards of care and the consensus
of every major medical association in our country.
It will cause significant harm to the individuals
that we serve by depriving them of critical,
life-saving medical care. It interferes with and
substitutes the state's judgment in place of the
doctor/patient relationship, the rights of the
individual, and the fundamental rights of a parent
to determine appropriate medical treatment for
their own child, and it 1s a shameful waste of
state resources.

Similar exclusions have been enjoined or
struck down by courts across the country as
inconsistent with the rights guarantee to Medicaid
recipients under the Medicaid Act, under the equal
protection clause of the 14th Amendment, the
Affordable Care Act. And this litigation that the

state will certainly find itself embroiled in is
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wasting valuable state resources that could be
better utilized enhancing the lives of Floridians
rather than attacking them.

Thank you.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Matthew Benson.

DR. BENSON: My name 1s Matthew Benson. I'm a
board-certified pediatrician and pediatric
endocrinologist in the state, and I agree with this
rule. T think the data on which the gender
affirmative model is based is not scientific.

The National Board of Health and Welfare of
Sweden has recently enacted in that country pretty
significant restrictions. And if we're going to do
this type of care, 1t needs to be under an
IRB-approved protocol and it needs to be based on
the best data.

I'm used to prescribing these medications in
the sense of puberty blockers. And one of the
largest studies that came from Sweden was published
around 2016, and basically what they showed 1s that
in those individuals who are transgender and
recelive these types of procedures, the rates of
overall mortality compared to the general

population was three times that of the general
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population; completed suicide, 19 times that of the
general population; five times sulcide attempts of
the general population. Similarly, in Denmark, out
of a 20-year period, by the time a similar study
was done, 10 percent of the population had died.

We need better data. We need long-term
perspective trials where we can look at adverse
effects. We need much more robust data to justify
these kinds of wvery aggressive therapies. And
we've already seen two 1ndividuals, Chloe and
Sophia, testify here today about how they were
harmed by these procedures.

Thank you for your time.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Next speaker, Karen Shoen.

MS. SHOEN: My name is Karen Shoen. I'm with
the Florida Citizens Alliance and I'm a former
teacher.

I would like to know why .03 percent of the
population is dictating to 99.937 percent of the
population to accept and pay for an elective
surgery. Kids change their minds. I can tell you
as a teacher, one day they want to be a fireman,
the next day they want to be an engineer, and then

they go into being something else.
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The problem is we are not explaining the
wonders of what it is to be comfortable in your
body with both our parents and in our biology and
hygiene glasses. So kids become fearful. It's our
job to take that fear away as a teacher, not to
force them into something else.

The children may be afraid of maturing, they
may be afraid of a lot of things, but we're not
looking for the root cause, we are now suggesting
and implanting in thelr brains that they're not
comfortable in their body.

I'd like to leave you with this thought: Can
I drive a car? No, you're 13. <Can I have a drink?
No, you're 13. Can I shoot a gun? No, you're 13.
Can I change my gender? Yes, you're in charge.

How 1s that possible?

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Next speaker, Bill Snyder.

MR. SNYDER: Thank you. Bill Snyder. I
{inaudible) Monticello.

I want to talk about a disease that has
infected society today called reality disease.
Charlie had reality disease. He woke up one
morning and wouldn't get out of bed and go to work.

His wife said, "Charlie, you'wve got to get up,
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you've got to go to work." He said, "I can't, I'm
dead.”" His wife said, "You're not dead, you're
talking to me. I can see you breathing." Charlie

says, "I can't get up and go to work, I'm dead.™
The wife called in a psychologist. Psychologist
gave Charlie a lengthy interview. At the end of
the interview, the psychologist said, "Charlie,
come on, we're going to go downtown."™ They went
downtown to the morgue. The psychologist opened a
locker, (inaudible) out a cadaver on a tray, pulled
the sheet back over the feet of the cadaver, said,
"Charlie, dead people's hearts don't beat, they
don't have circulation, they do not bleed.™ He
took the toe of the cadaver, stuck a pin in it. HNo
blood came out. The psychologist said, "See,
Charlie, dead people don't bleed. Now, give me
yvour thumb." Took Charlie's thumb, stuck a pin in
it, out came bright, red blood. The psychologist
said, "See, Charlie, you're not dead. That's
blood."™ Charlie said, "What do you know? Dead
people do bleed.™

The further we live from reality, the further
we move from morality, the further we move from
virtue, the more secular we become. The more

secular we become, the less freedom we have.
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Please approve this proposed rule change. Thank
you.

{Applause.,)

A VOICE: Next speaker, Ingrid Ford.

MS, FORD: Yes. Good afternoon. I'm Ingrid
Ford. Thank you for the opportunity. I'm with
Christian Family Cecalition. I've been a college
counselor 15 years, and I'm here in support -- I'm
to speak in support of Rule 59G-1.050 to ban
Medicaid funding from transgender surgeries and
treatments,

This rule will protect Florida residents,
especially minors, from harmful transgender
surgeries, harmful blockers, and other unnatural
therapies being promoted by radical gender ideals
and with no basis in science.

This rule also will protect taxpayers from
being forced to subsidize these highly unethical
and dangerous procedures, which can cost upwards of
$300,000.

Thank you.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Next speaker, Richard Carlins.

MR, CARLINS: Hello, my name is Richard

Carlins and I am in support of the rule and I'm

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING, INC. 850.222.5491

22




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

1.9

20

2l

22

23

21

25

Jjust going to speak from the heart a little bit. I
feel like I'm walking in a house of mirrors or
something or it's just -- 1it's surreal, the world
that I live in today from the world that I grew up
ir.

I had a traditiconal family, a mother and
father. We're saying the Pledge of Allegiance in
schools and having prayer in schools. We were
founded upon Biblical principles. ©Our constitution
goes hand in hand with that. We're battling with
each other right now, you know, over things that
were clearly right and wrong before.

Seriously, a kid has no idea. They're being
indoctrinated. They're being indoctrinated even
through commercials, Disney World, Coca-Cola
commercials, the restaurants they go to. And then
when they want to be what it is that they were
pushed to be, we mutilate their bodies and it's
irreversible. It's horrendous. It's a horrendous
evil.

And with that, I go. I just can't believe
where we're at. And we're -- God raises up nations
and he brings down nations, and we are in judgment
right now. This is wrong, we need to be able to

admit that it is wrong and to help the children to
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have wholesome lives that history prior to us --
this 1s just recent this -- what we're battling
with right now. I'm just -- you know, not
well-studied or anything, but I think it's 1,500
years that we've been living in Judeo-Christian
principles, you know, and it's just recently that
we're throwing any mention of God, the Bible, under
the bus. They're not allowed to hear it. They're
not allowed to know it. If you feel like you want
to have pleasure this way or that way, with this,
with that, you can and we're going to support it
and do whatever 1t is so that you can never change
your mind again and give you nothing wholesome to
hold onto. That's all.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Amber Hand. Amber Hand.

MS. HAND: Hi, I'm Amber Hand and I am just
with the body of Christ.

So I come today because I represent -- well, I
come from a family, my mom was gay and my dad was
gay. He struggled with his identity his whole
life, but he fought against it because he was a
Christian. And I was taught by my dad I was a
little girl, and by mom, I was a little boy. And

so I got real confused, you know what I mean, and
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I'm 36 today and I just realized -- last year I was
thinking about getting a sex change still. I've
always thought about it. And when I was a kid, I
was like, "When I get boobs, I'm going to cut them
off with a butter knife,"™ you know what I mean?

And when we're kids, we're so impressionable.
I remember my sister going and seeing my dad use
the bathroom, and she went to use the bathroom like
him, but he corrected her, you know, because we
have to teach these kids right from wrong. And
it's wrong to take kids and teach them, "Hey, you
can make whatever decision you want and you don't
even know mentally what you're really goling through
as a child.™ We need to take Medicaid and treat
people for psychiatric problems and depression and
teach them like you can be a female, it's okay to
be a female today and say that you're a woman, you
know, like -- and I just realized now at 36 that I
want to have a baby, and if I had done that, I
would have never been able to have a child.

And I just have to say that the Bible says,
"Beloved, I wish above all things that thou mayest
prosper and be in health even as thy soul
prospers.”™ And when we struggle with identity, our

souls are in turmeil. And if we just begin to
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realize that we just need to teach these kids right
from wrong and that it's not okay to change your
identity when God made you a male or a female, and
when a little boy puts on a high heel because he
sees his mother wearing a high heel, it's just
play, like it's okay, but that's not what you wear,
and teach him what to wear. We just don't
understand as kids what's going on until somebody
teaches us. We have learned behavior. We're
programming kids these days with everything --

A VOICE: Time's up. Please wrap it up.

MS. HAND: -- {(inaudible) around us to be
somebody we're not. God bless.
{(Applause.)

A VOICE: Shauna Peace.

MS. PEACE: Hi, my name is Shauna Peace, and I
am just am here to speak in support of Rule
59G-1.050 to ban Medicaid funding on transgender
surgery and treatment.

Children are being pressured and socialized at
a very young age to identify as transgender. Much
of the pressure is coming from on-line social
networking sites that celebrate and encourage
transgenderism while denying normal heterosexual

behaviors. It accounts for much of the metric rise
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in the children's identifying as transgender in the
recent years. It has doubled since 2017, according
to the news sensors for the Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention.

The most thorough followup of sex reassignment
people, which was conducted in Sweden, documented
that 10 to 15 years after surgical reassignment,
the suicide rate is twenty times to comparable
peers. The alarmingly high suicide rate among
post-operative transgender demonstrates the deep
regret that may feel after irreversible mutilating
their bodies with these barbaric procedures.

I am here today because I have had children
that have battled with identity and sexual
identity, and that my stepson 1s now identified as
female. He wanted to when he was younger in years,
to change, but now that he has gotten into his 20s,
he has now decided that he wants to have children,
and 1f you mutilate these children's bodies at an
early age, they don't understand that they will
never be able to procreate ever again. Whether you
go female or male or male or female, neither sex
will be able to procreate ever again. And I just
think it's mutilating and it's not right.

Thank you very much.
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{Applause.)

A VOICE: The next speaker, Leonard Lord.

MR. LORD: My name is Leonard Lord. I am much
in favor of the bill,

Even as a boy, I wasn't comfortable in my body
because I didn't know why I was here. So when I
got the age to say, "I want to find out why I'm
here," I spent three days fasting, praying, seeking
God. He brought me to his Word, and I found out
that the only way I got comfortable in my body was
to know what I was created for,

And so what I found, either we're playing
games, or if we really believe there's a God and
the Bible is true, we find cut this whole problem
happens because we do not retain the knowledge of
God in our conscience and are given over onto our
own deception.

And now I hear all of the mental problems
we're having. Well, it's real simple. God's
spirit is the answer to what's missing in our
lives. We're only complete in Jesus Christ. And
the scripture says in Timothy 1:7, God has not
given us a spirit of fear, we ought to fear man or
woman, but he's given us power, love, and a sound

mind. You take the Bible out of school, you take
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God out of school, you take prayer out of school,
and what have you got? You have no power, you have
no love, and you have no sound mind.

So I'm just saying let's go back to getting
mentally right is the only way I can at 75 is to
know God created me, his Word 1s true, live 1in
supernatural peace and joy and know where you'll
spend eternity and don't live confused.

A VOICE: Thirty seconds.

MR. LORD: The devil is the author of
confusion. Get a pure heart and live in peace and
Joy and enjoy things. If you spend your life
trying to find out if you're a man or a woman,
you'll never know why you're here.

All I can say, God bless you, I'm in support
of the bill, and hopefully America will wake up and
be a shining city on a hill for all the nations one
more time. Lord bless you.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Pam Olsen. Pam Olsen.

A VOICE: Dan or Pam?

A VOICE: FPam.

MS. OLSEN: It's me, Pam Olsen.

Thank you for this proposal. I've read all

the pages. It's excellent. I am for stopping
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Medicaild from paying for children and teenagers to
have sex changes.

I've talked to a lot of kids that are
confused, and they are confused. That's what's
going on today. There 1s so much onslaught against
these kids, and you'we got kids saying, "I'm a boy,
I'ma girl; no, I'm a girl, I'm a boy."™ You have
kids today saying, "I'm a furry animal.”™ Are we
going to start paying for them to have furry animal
body parts put into them? I mean, where does this
stop?

And T am so thankful that this has been
proposed, that we will stop the madness in Florida
and we will not do this. I hope that you guys do
approve this today because it matters for the sake
of the children. You know, I've got 12 grandkids
and I'm going to fight tenaciously, not only for my
grandkids, but for their friends and for all the
children across our state, our nation. We need to
say stop the nonsense and let's do what is right.
There are boys, there are girls, there are men,
there are women.

Thank you so much for approving this. I
believe you will do that. Thank you.

{Applause.)
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A VOICE: Jon Harris Maurer,.
MR. MAURER: Good afternoon. My name is Jon
Harris Maurer and T'm the public policy director

for Equality Florida, the state's largest civil

rights organization based on securing full equality

for Florida's LGBTQ community.

The proposed change to Rule 59G-1.050 is

without sound scientific basis, 1t is without legal

basis, and it is clearly discriminatory. The
agency should reject it.
The proposed rule is about politics, not

public health. We urge you to listen to the

numerous medical professionals opposed to the rule.

Experts from the country's and the world's leading
health organizations disagree with the fundamental
premise of the proposed rule. They endorse
gender-afforming [sic] care. These organizations
represent millions of medical professionals, and
they recommend gender-affirming care. We're
talking about the American Academy of Pediatrics
and its Florida chapter, the American Medical
Association, the American College of Obstetricians
and Gynecclogists, the American College of
Physicians, the American Psychiatric Association,

the American Psychological Association, the
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American Academy of Family Physicians, the American
Academy of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry, the
Endocrine Society, the Society for Adolescent
Health and Medicine, the Pediatric Endocrine
Society, the World Professicnal Health Association
for Transgender Health, and others; again,
representing millions of medical professionals.

Furthermore, AHCA lacks the specific delegated
rulemaking authority to adopt the proposed rule.
The statutes that AHCA names as its authority to
make this proposed rule --

A VOICE: Thirty seconds,.

MR. MAURER: -- grant no authority for
{inaudible) patient of the individual role for
health care practitioners to make decisions with
their patients.

The rule is simply discriminatory, it
undeniably targets the transgender community. You
may not understand what it's like to be
transgender --

A VOICE: Fifteen seconds.

MR. MAURER: -- or to be a parent of a
transgender kid just trying to find the best care
for your kid, but transgender Floridians are here

in this audience and they're telling you about how
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harmful this rule would be toc the more than 2,000
transgender Floridians on Medicaid. We know these
theraplies are safe because the agency is not
opposing them for all Floridians.

A VOICE: Sir, please wrap 1t up. Your time
is up.

MR. MAURER: 1In conjunction with the state
willingly ignoring the body of scientific evidence
that supports gender-affirming care, there's no
question of the politically-calculated animus
behind this proposed rule. FPlease reject the
proposed rule.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: I appreciate your comments. T would
Just ask for decorum in the crowd. We want to give
everybody equal opportunity to speak.

A VOICE: Next speaker, Anthony Verdugo.

MR. VERDUGO: Thank you. Good afterncon. 1
want to start off by thanking all of you for being
here today and for your public service.

My name is Anthony Verdugo. I am the founder
and executive director of the Christian Family
Coalition. We are a leading human rights and
social justice advocacy organization of Florida,

and we're here to strongly support Rule 59G-1.050
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to ban Medicaid funding for transgender surgeries
and treatment.

They call it gender-affirming care. They
don't care and it's not affirming. Let's get that
straight. And we know that because of heroces who
are among us here today, folks like Chloe Cole and
Sophia Galwvin. They are heroes because they've had
the courage to come out and speak the truth in
love.

And everyone needs to be respected and treated
with dignity, but this is a war on children. These
are crimes against humanity. Groomers are using
their authority as adults to pressure children and
ruin their lives,

I'm going to share with you about a brand, the
No. 1 prescribed puberty blocker in America. It's
called Lupron. And they themselves list on their
package that "Emotional instability is a side
effect and warrants prescribers to monitor for
development or worsening of psychiatric symptoms
during treatment."

These so-called medical organizations which
were just listed —

A VOICE: Thirty seconds,

MR. VERDUGO: =-- have been discredited.
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World-renowned organizations such as the Royal
College of General Practitioners in the United
Kingdom, Australian College of Physicians, and the
American College of Pediatricians -- and I will end
with their quote -- say, "Americans are being led
astray by a medical establishment driven by a
dangerous ideology and economic opportunity, not
science and the Hippocratic cath."™ The suppression
of normal puberty, the use of disease-causing
cross—-sex hormones, and the surgical mutilation and
sterilization of children constitute atrocities to
be banned, not health care. Let kids be kids.

Thank you.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Next speaker, Roberto Rodriguez.

MR. RODRIDGUEZ: Thank you very much for this
opportunity. I love America as a veteran,
ex-police officer, father, grandfather -- let me
see what else, you know, and a father of a veteran
who 1s serving in the Navy today as a pilot. And
first of all, I wanted to thank you. You guys made
me cry. Why? Because, you know, I have a
question. Has -- you know, anybody can answer it.
Has a doctor ever been wrong? You know, has a

parent ever been wrong? Has teachers ever been
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wrong? Have scientists ever been wrong? But,
then, why are we listening and waiting for
scientists and doctors to talk different to what we
have evidence here today?

We have the evidence right here today. They
came walking in this place and we're being blind to
them, and I want to recognize you and I want you to
let you know that the true dream is interwoven in
every atom of your existence. God will fulfill his
true dream to you, no matter what man try to do to
you. You have a purpose, you have a reason, and
today proves it.

And I'm here to tell you that this rule, we
need to go ahead, I support it. We need to stop
being ignorant to what faces us and listening to
people.

I am from the Centers of God and I have
multiple churches that will stand here today. So
I'll tell you what, we're bilgger than any
organization there is right now and represent that
we are for this rule.

God bless you and thank you. We love you guys
for serving. Thank you.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Next speaker, Michael Haller, M.D.
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All right. Michael Haller, M.D.

DR. HALLER: Good afternoon, everyone. My
name is Michael Haller and I am a graduate of the
University of Florida's College of Medicine,
pediatric residency, and the pediatric
endocrinology fellowship. I hold a Master's in
clinical investigation and I am the professor and
chief of the Pediatric Endocrineology Division at
the University of Florida. The views expressed
here are, however, my own.

I have trained thousands of medical providers,
participated in the development of national
guidelines, and have treated tens of thousands of
children, including many transgender youth.

I provide this background with full humility,
but also to establish myself as an actual expert,
both in the management of gender-diverse youth and
as one who can review and analyze relevant
literature.

The Gapums document and proposed rule change
seeking to remove Medicare -- medical -- Medicaid
coverage for gender dysphoria makes numerous false
claims, uses a blased review of the literature, and
relies on more so-called experts who actually lack

actual expertise in the care of children with
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dysphoria.

While there are a number of flaws, the state's
plan following deserves specific commentary.

First, the state's primary assertion that
gender-affirming therapy has not demonstrated
efficacy and safety 1s patently false. Nearly
every major medical organization that provides care
for children, as you heard previously, have
provided well-evidenced guidelines supporting
gender-affirming care as the standard of care. The
assertion from the state, the data included in
those guidelines, are not as robust as the state
would like them to be --

A VOICE: Thirty seconds.

DR. HALLER: -- 1s at best a double standard,
and 1s at worst discriminary [sic] political fear.
The state 1s eilther unwilling or willfully chooses
to ignore the totality of evidence in support of
gender-affirming care, and the latter seems most
likely.

Second, the state's use of --

A VOICE: Fifteen seconds.

DR. HALLER: -- (inaudible) experts as
{inaudible) advisers seeking to discredit evidence

used {inaudible) of care is laughable. Several of
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the state's own experts have been legally
discredited from testifying as such in cases
regarding gender-affirming care, while others have
acknowledged publicly that they have never provided
gender-related care to children.

A VOICE: Wrap it up.

DR. HALLER: The proposal to limit
gender-affirming care to those dependent on
Medicaid is poorly conceived, is likely to cause
significant harm to Floridians dependent on
Medicaid, and should be rejected. Thank you.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: HNext speaker, Robert Yules,

Jason, did you want to comment?

A VOICE: I'm sorry, we have -- the panel has
one comment to that. I'm going to refer this to
Dr. Van.

DR. V: So just some insight into the support
of gender-affirming care by the large societies,
medical societies in the United States. The
American Academy of Pediatrics has actually made a
statement against this -- this, and the Florida
chapter as well,

These are not standards of care. Standards of

care by definition are an arduous process of
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listening to all input from every side, every
aspect, of a medical condition, and these

individuals get together and they agree on

someplace 1in the middle that they can all live with

as a then standard of care.

These are merely guidelines. The guidelines
from the Endocrine Soclety specifically state they
are not standards of care. They're just
guidelines. They are the opinions of the
individuals who wrote the guidelines, The
Endocrine Society guidelines were written by nine
people in the first go-round and ten in the second
go-round, all of which were ideologues from the
World Professional Association of Transgender
health.

That group -- that interest group excluded
world renowned experts in the field and did not
listen to their input, didn’'t include their input
on purpose. And so it's not surprising that you
come up with one view that does not really
represent any kind of standards of care.

So we have to stop using the term "standards
of care™ when there are absolutely no standards of
care 1n this instance that have been addressed.

{(Applause.)
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A VOICE: Mr. Yules. Mr. Yules.

DR. HALLER: T would also --

A VOICE: Sir, you've spoken already. If you
have further comments, please submit them in
writing.

A VOICE: No, I'm sorry, Dr. Haller. I you
have further comments, you can -- you can refer
them in writing. You can refer them in writing,
Dactorn:

A VOICE: Robert Yules.

MR. YULES: Yes, my name 1s Robert Yules.
It's an honor and privilege to be here. I was born
and ralsed in St. Petersburg, Florida, and my, how
things have changed. Forty-three years ago, my
senior high school class came here to view the
legislature, and the topic of the day was about
dog-catching rules in the state of Fleorida. My,
how far we'wve come.

This was not even in the purview of anyone at
that time. This was not in the purview of anyone
ten years ago. This was not in the purview really
of anyone five years ago to bring it to the state
level, the city level, the classroom level, to be
driven by the teachers' unions with all of their

idecology, and really it begins and ends when man
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proclaims himself as God. The truth begins with me
and it ends with me. And our country is in a lot
of trouble because people aren't willing to say
"No, that's not your truth.™ There is a truth.
That might be your perspective of the truth, but
there is not your truth, your truth, your truth, my
truth, his truth. It's not the way it works, and
we're going down -- just even philosophically and
morally, we're going down a very, very slippery
road when we start delving into these things.

It's interesting to me also how a child cannot
own this or own that or own this, and the thing
we've been told for the last ten years, "Well,
their brain's not fully developed until around 25."
Everybody says that, right? Thelr brains aren't
developed until they're 25, and now our governor
caught such flack because he said don't teach
kindergarteners --

A VOICE: Thirty seconds.

MR. YULES: -- about transgendering, leave it
out till third grade. I think they should leave it
out till 12th grade and let parents have those
conversations with people. Put it back where
parents talk to their own kids, and let's -- let's

make school about science, technology,
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engineering --

A VOICE: Fifteen seconds,

MR. YULES: -- and mathematics and get back
where we need to be,

Thank you so much for your time., Thank you.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: At this time, we would like to
remind everyone that they can submit comments in
writing to medicaidrulecomments@ahca.myflerida.com.
Information i1s provided on cards at the exit when
we are finished, as well as up on the screen.

We'll continue with the speakers.

A VOICE: Flaugh. Keith Flaugh.

MR. FLAUGH: Good afternocon., My name is Keith
Flaugh. I am one of the founders of an
organization called Florida Citizens Alliance,
which is a not-for-profit organization of almost
200,000 parents and grandparents, and we focus on K
through 12 education.

We have recently completed a detailed study in
all 67 county school districts based on 58 novels
that we found throughout. I've left a copy with
Cole, I would encourage you to read it.

Twenty of those are LGBTQ and gender --

promoting gender dysphoria. Some of these
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materials are actually designed for pre-K.

Children in our public schools are being
purposefully confused, desensitized, and even
pressured into abnormal sexual behavior. Gender
idealogues are coaching kids to be into this
dysphoria, and even telling them to threaten
suicide.

There is a considerable debate in the
psychiatric and medical circles about whether the
transgender condition is biological or
psychological. In numerous public schools, staffs
and even teachers are aiding this dysphoria and
purposely hiding what they're doing from the
parents. Further, taxpayers shouldn't have to pay
for this.

Fleorida Citizens Alliance strongly supports
the rule of 59G-1.050, especially to protect minors
from the harmful transgender surgeries, hormone
blockers, and other unnatural therapies. Thank
you.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Robert Roper.

MR. ROPER: Hi, my name 1s Robert Roper. I'm
here to speak in support of the rule to ban

Medicaid funding for transgender surgeries and
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treatments. The most important aspect of this rule
is that it serves to protect the children of the
state of Florida.

Gender confusion is the only disorder that
comes with a false assertion that a child can
actually be born in the wrong body. They are led
to believe that some day they'll actually become a
member of the opposite sex. That's impossible.
Maybe that's why they call 1t "transgender.™ You
never actually arrive at the desired outcome.

Gender confusion i1s the only disorder that the
body is mangled to conform to the thoughts of the
mind.

Gender confusion 1s the only disorder that the
child actually dictates his or her medical care to
medical and -- medical professionals and
counselors, instead of the other way around.

Gender confusion 1s the only disorder that the
parent can be completely excluded from determining
what is best for their own child.

Gender confusion 1s the only disorder that the
treatment takes the child down a dead-end road
literally. What we are seeing in Florida and
across the nation is a soclal media-driven epidemic

manufactured by social media influencers making a

FOR THE RECORD REPORTING, INC. 850.222.5491

45




10

it

12

13

14

15

16

1)

18

1.9

20

2.

22

23

21

25

lot of money off the very vulnerable element of our
society —-- that's our children.

While most counselors somehow have been
convinced that affirmation is the only way, even
the APA would be the first to affirm that a child
simply does not have the capacity to make these
kinds of long-range decisions. In fact, you don't
need to be a doctor --

A VOICE: Thirty seconds.

MR. ROPER: -- of psychology to know this,.
Ask any parent., They will tell you that a child
wants what they want, and they want it now.

What some -- some will call on their faith,
some will call on a counselor, but all do so toc be
delivered from the disorder, not to be sent deeper
inta it.

A VOICE: Fifteen seconds.

A VOICE: You don't give drugs to a drug
addict, alcohol to an alcoheolic, porn to someone
addicted to pornography. This is not a form of
treatment.

In closing, transgender regret is among the
fastest-growing movements on social media today --

A VOICE: {Inaudible) .

MR. ROPER: -- on Reddit this morning. I
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found a thread with 35,600 entries of people
regretting their transgenderism., It increased to a
hundred more while I drove here today.

Watchful waiting from loving parents yields an
exponentially higher success rate of resclving
gender disorders than any prescription drugs or
surgery, 90 plus percent. This rule will protect
Florida residents.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Carl Charles,

MR. CHARLES: Good afternoon. My name is Carl
Charles and I'm a senior attorney in the Atlanta,
Georgia, office of Lambda Legal, the nation's
oldest and largest legal organization fighting for
the rights of LGBT people and everyone living with
HIV.

We are here today to share that we strongly
oppose and are deeply disturbed by AHCA's notice of
proposed rule, which if approved will remove
coverage of medically-necessary care for
transgender youth and adults from the Florida
Medicaid program. This essential and in some cases
life-saving care is clinically effective, evidence
based, and widely accepted and used by medical

professionals across the country to treat gender
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dysphoria.

Unlawful exclusions of this kind cause
significant harm to a state's most wvulnerable
residents. Indeed, should this proposed rule be
adopted, it will cause serious, 1lmmediate, and
irreparable harm to transgender Medicaid
participants in Florida who already experience
well-documented and pervasive stigma,
discrimination in theilr day-to-day lives, including
significant challenges, if not all-out barriers to
accessing competent health care services.

We are especially concerned by the
administration's characterization of this care as
experimental and ineffective. This 1s contrary to
all available medical evidence and relies on
misrepresentations of the findings of various
studies, as well as reports by so-called experts,
one of whom is on this panel, who have been
discredited and notably do not treat transgender
people --

A VOICE: Thirty seconds.

MR. CHARLES: -- in their medical practice.

Finally, I would like to note for the record
as to whether or not this was a negotiated

rulemaking process and who on the panel is a
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transgender Medicaid recipient in Florida. Okay,
there's no one.

Finally, singling out transgender Medicaild
participants for unequal treatment by denying them
coverage for services that non-trans Medicaid
participants access plainly viclates the equal
protection clause of the U.S. Constitution and
federal law.

A VOICE: Time. Please wrap up your comment.

A VOICE: Furthermore, Section 15-57 of the
Affordable Care Act prohibits discrimination on the
basis of sex by any health program or activity
receiving federal financial assistance.

Finally, shame on you all for proposing this
rule.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Jason, did you want to comment?

A VOICE: Just gquickly, I would like to refer
everyone to the Gapums report, in particular the
numerous appendices that we attached to that
report. There have been references to the numerous
clinical organizations that have endorsed these
procedures, and in particular, I would refer you to
Dr. Canter's report, pages 27 through 28 -- I'm

sorry, pages 32 through 42, which go through each
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one of those organizations. Thank you.

A VOICE: Speaker Ed Wilson.

MR. WILSON: Ed Wilson. I've traveled here
today to speak in support of Rule 59G-1.050 to ban
Medicare funding from being used for transgender
treatments and surgeries.

This rule will protect children who are not
mature encugh to be comfortable in their own body
or to have sexual desires that they have not gone
through puberty yet from making mistakes that will
destroy their lives.

Children are being misguided into believing
that they're transgender. Taxpayer money should
never be used to destroy innocent lives.

Transgender treatments and surgeries never
actually succeed in changing someone to the
opposite sex, but do cause permanent harm to the
people who undergo such treatments.

Health care professionals need to focus on
healing the mind of confused and/or abused people,
not mutilating their bodies. As Anthony already
quoted, I'm going to skip part of the quote from
the American College of Pediatrics, but it ends
with, "The suppression of normal puberty, the use

of disease-causing cross-sex hormones, and the
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surgical mutilation and sterilization of children
constitute atrocities to be banned, not health
care.

Please take their advice. Ban these
atrocities --

A VOICE: Thirty seconds.

MR. WILSON: -- and keep Medicaid about health
care. Thank you very much.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Speaker Suzanne Zimmerman.

MS. ZIMMERMAN: I'm Suzanne Zimmerman, and I
am merely a mother, grandmother, great-grandmother,
aunt, great-aunt, and specifically great great-aunt
of a young child who 1s going through the throes of
gender dysphoria from the age -- a young age. He
is now 8 years old, and I pray that our state
doesn't make it easy for her parents to be
dissuaded toward gender change.

I listened to the young people here who have
gone through this, and I think they speak volumes
more than any of the rest of us could say because
they've been through the difficulties and they'wve
learned through the difficulties.

And my bottom line is God doesn't make

mistakes. We're all created equal and different,
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each 1in His image, and there are many, many
different people in this world and we are to love
them all. It's a commandment, it's God
commandment, and He loves us all.

I urge you to support this ban to make it easy
through Medicaid to have --

A VOICE: Thirty seconds.

MS. ZIMMERMAN: -- the surgery for children
who are children with very young brains. Have a
heart and please pass this ban. Thank you.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Judy Hollerza, H-o-l-l-e-r-z-a.

MS. HOLLERIN: I'm Judy Hollerin, poor work --
poor penmanship apparently.

I support -- I support that we ban -- that we
ban this. I -- every day, of course, we wake up
seeing new things that we can't believe are
happening to us today. And I support everything
that's been said -- everything in support of that
has been said today.

The idea that Medicaid should be doing --
should be supporting this or paying for it --
again, this expansion of us paying for these kinds
of critical things without further thought. My,

I -- I would like to look 20 years younger, but I
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do not expect Medicald to be paying for it. Enough
said.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: HNext speaker, Ezra Stone.

MR. STONE: Good afternocon. My name is Ezra
Stone and I'm a licensed clinical social worker.

Social work is a profession with a long
history of valuing human dignity and autonomy, and
according to the values of my profession, I have an
ethical obligation to support my clients in
reaching their fullest potential, problem-solving
barriers to treatment with them, and collaborating
with other professionals.

Additionally, we have a professional
obligation to provide evidence-based treatment, and
there 1s significant research that medical
transition 1s safe, effective at relieving symptoms
of dysphoria, and improves mental health.

In my private therapy practice, my clients
express tremendous relief at being able to access
medical care, which decreases their anxiety and
depression and increases their feelings of safety,
comfort, and joy as their bodies and minds become
more congruent. Understanding and being seen as

their true selves creates a sense of belonging,
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which is a fundamental human need.

On the other hand, the current poclitical

climate in the state i1s causing significant harm to

transgender, nonbinary questioning and gender

diverse Floridians. My clients report increases in

anxiety with each proposed anti-LGBT measure the

state takes, fear violence in their daily lives,

and worry about their continued access to medical
care.

These observations from my c¢linical practice
support the research on the minority stress model,
which demonstrates that expecting experiences of
harm, marginalization, and rejection have a
negative impact on people'’'s mental health and
overall well-being.

Passing this change to Medicaid --

A VOICE: Thirty seconds.

MR. STONE: -- will not only take away
medically-necessary care from several thousand of
the most vulnerable Floridians, but it will also
further create a climate of fear for LGBT people
and their health care providers across the state,

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Jason. Speaker Peggy Joseph.

MS. JOSEPH: Hello. I'm Peggy Joseph, and 1
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would just like to share some thoughts from an
author and doctor, Ryan T. Anderson, who wrote
about -- a book called, "When Harry Became Sally."

So in 2016, the Obama administration and the
Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services revisited
the question of whether sex reassignment surgery
would have to be covered by Medicare plans. It
refused on the grounds that we lack evidence that
it benefits patients. They stated, "Based on a
thorough review of the clinical evidence available,
there 1s not enough evidence to determine whether
gender reassignment surgery 1lmproves health
outcomes."

There were conflicting study results, and the
quality and strength of evidence were low. Many
studies that reported positive cutcomes were
exploratory-type studies with no confirming
follow-up. The author says, "The lack —-- the lost
of follow-up could be pointing to suicide.™

The largest and most robust study, a study
from Sweden, found a 19 times greater likelihood of
death by sulicide and a host of other poor outcomes.

To provide the best possible care serving the
patient’'s interest requires an understanding of

human --
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A VOICE: Thirty seconds.

M5, JOSEPH: -- wholeness and well-being. The
minimal standard of care should be with a standard
of normality. Our brains and senses are designed
to bring us into contact with reality. Thoughts
that distort ==

A VOICE: Fifteen seconds.

MS. JOSEPH: -- {inaudible) are misguided and
cause harm. Okay.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: HNext speaker, Jack Barton.

A VOICE: Actually, I have one comment with
respect to that, so as a partial addendum to my
earlier answer focusing on some of the clinical
organizations in the United States, but I wanted to
also mention because it has come up a couple times
here, that the Gamus report on pages 35 and 36 also
talks about international consensus as also talked
about in Dr. James Canter's report on pages 42
through 45. So I would encourage people to look at
that as well,.

A VOICE: Go ahead.

MR. BARTCN: My name i1s Jack Barton. I'm here
with the Christian Family Coalition. I'm an

Assembly of God pastor. The 37 years I have
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counseled, among them T've counseled lesbians,
gays, and bisexuals. I believe in First
Corinthians 6:9, that people can escape from that
life. Unfortunately for the transgender, they
suffer. These young people have made that clear.

I believe that gender dysphoria should be
labeled as child abuse, it 1s not something that
should be happening to our children, and with the
doctors that will participate in this, it's not so
unlike the doctor who tears a child apart in
abortion and calls it health care.

These are the issues: The puberty blockers,
the hormone manipulations, that's not science. The
only name that was left out before was Anthony
Fauci. I kept waiting to hear them to say that.

Every -- any procedure like this should be
labeled criminal. You have a child that at that
age doesn't know 1if they like vanilla ice cream or
if they like chocolate ice cream, and yet they're
going to let them march in and either make that
decision to be led down that path. Nearly
90 percent of those that escape from that life do
it by the time they reach the end of puberty
because they come back to their senses that they

were created male and female by God.
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Suicide that we talk about so much comes when
a person has followed up on these things, has done
it, and now they are confused because they still
don't find the completion that they thought they
felt.

Among those that go through these processes,
many of it comes from child abuse that happened
when they were kids, some who have wanted to have
acceptance by others and were rejected. One man,
his grandmother wanted a granddaughter. She
dressed him like that, and so he adopted that life.

A VOICE: Thirty seconds.

MR. BARTON: TI'll close with this. There are
two genders, male and female. Women bear children,
women breastfeed, women have menstrual cycles. Men
do not. I would not provide the anorexic with food
and I would not say give money to do something that
would harm a child.

A VOICE: Fifteen seconds.

MR. BARTON: TIt's a terrible thing to do and I
ask you to stand your ground.

{(Applause.)

A VOICE: Jose Martin.

MR. MARTIN: Good afterncon. Thank you for

letting me speak. I'm also with the Christian
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Coalition, and I'm here to speak in support of Rule
59G-1.050. I am a father and a grandfather, and I
am here to stand agalinst mutilation that we all are
asked to fund. The people we are talking about
need counseling, not promotion to a destructive
choice.

I also want to remind that one day we will all
stand before a living God and give account for
where we stand on this and other issues. And I
also want to thank you brave people, who I think
are more qualified than all the other experts that
came up, because you are living and you lived
through it and you know the results of that, and I
thank you. Thank you very much.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Folks, we have a number of speakers
coming up from the same organization. We Jjust ask
that you be respectful of others' time. We've got
a number of speakers to get through before 5:00
p-m., so 1f you could just be brief and support
comments of others, 1f possible. Thank you.

Next speaker, Bob Johnson.

MR. JOHNSON: Good afterncon, Bob Johnson. I
am a retired and recovering attorney, but I am --

and I'll be wvery brief.
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I say thank you to the Florida Division of
Medicald for putting together this report. I've
read the whole report. It's not my area of
expertise, but I've had significant experience
working with the development of agency rules,
statements of need, and reasonableness as we call
them in the state that I come from, and I just want
to compliment the agency. I've read through it. I
think the case 1s compelling for the rule change.
I strongly support the rule change.

There 1s specifics in there again that's not
an area that I studied, but in reading the report
and looking how thorough that it was put together,
the case has been made for the need to adopt this
rule change, the case has been made for the
reasonableness of what you're proposing. I Jjust
found it compelling the fact that the FDA does not
approve any medication as clinically indicated for
gender dysphoria. The fact that there's no
randomized, controlled trials for the use of these
puberty suppression, that's the gold standard, I
know, 1in medical studies, and there are no
randomized, controlled trials, and the fact that
there's no long-term data. I Jjust think there is

so much concrete, substantial evidence that totally
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Justifies it, and I would just echo many of the
others that have testified here today. I urge you
to go forward, adopt these rules, changes --

A VOICE: Thirty seconds.

MR. JOHNSON: -- {inaudible) we need them, we
need them in the state of Florida. Thank you.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Next speaker, Sandy Westad,
W-e-s-t-a-d, I believe.

MS. WESTAD: My name 1s Sandy Westad and I'm
also here with CFC, Christian Family Coalition.

I -- I want to speak from the heart. I'm a
mother, I'm a grandmother, I'm a sister, whatever,
and my heart is breaking for what these kids are
going through. It just seems to me that 1f the
parents -- the parents need to stay in control.
They need to stay in the authority of their
children. They need to be able to speak to their
kids about the sex and the transgender.

Kids play house. They pretend. You know,
they do things in a play world, but they don't want
to be or understand or even know what it is to
change from one sex to another. They pretend. I
remember my sons playing and pretending they were

girls and sometimes they would pretend they were
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boys, but they were boys and they grew up to be
boys. They didn't want to be girls. They felt
that that was what they were supposed to be. Jesus
made them boys, and they were going to stay boys.
But the thing is we -- we need to understand that
children cannot make those kinds of decisions.

They cannot --

A VOICE: Thirty seconds.

A VOICE: -- decide who they are. The parents
need to be their guide, and the parents -- God gave
children parents for a reason.

So I just support this bill, this rule, and I
thank you so much for everyone that's here.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Gail Carlins.

MS. CARLINS: Good afternoon. I'm Gail
Carlins and I'm with CFC also. &And I am 1in favor,
I support this rule change here with not having the
funds -- the Medicaid funds go to supporting these.

My beliefs are based on the Bible, and the
Bible, I believe, 1s the only truth that there is.
And the Bible says, as was mentioned a couple
times, God created male and female. If you want to
bring science into it, females have two X

chromosomes, males have an X and a Y chromosome.
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It's an impossibility to change from one to the
other., That cannot be done. And so no matter what
kind of mutilation or anything is done to a person,
they can't change it,

So, again, I am in support of this bill and I
thank you for your time.

{(Applause.)

A VOICE: Dorothy Berring.

MS. BERRING: Good afterncon. My name is
Dorothy Berring, also with the Christian Family
Coalition, I also live in The Villages, Florida.

First of all, I would like to thank our brave
governor once again for bringing this to the
forefront. We are -- Florida definitely is going
to make change, and thank you to these brave people
and to Amber for not going along with what you were
trying to be brainwashed into believing.

Again, it's strange, you know, they're
definitely targeting our -- our youngest. We can't
seem to find baby formula anywhere, but yet
Medicaid can fund this nonsense.

Again, this has to be left up to the parents.
Whatever you choose to practice in the privacy of
your own home is your business. I'm not

discriminating against any genders or whatever. I
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just -- it needs to be taken out of the schools,
and this doctor that was from UF or USF or
whatever, it's shameful, shameful what you are
trying to teach our students, and that's why we are
in this bloody mess right now. Okay? And this
needs to be changed --

A VOICE: Thirty seconds.

MS. BERRING: -- and you all need to listen.

And thank you, doctors, for being here and for
giving us this forum. Thank you.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: We would ask that the comments be
focused on the rule and be respectful of other
speakers, please.

Troy Peterson.

MR. PETERSON: Good afterncoon, Troy Peterson.
I come supporting Anthony and Christian Family
Coalition. I'm also the President of Warriors of
Faith here in Florida. We brought a few people
with us from the Tampa Bay area, and really we come
representing thousands that stand in agreement with
this rule,

And I want to thank you, doctors. I read the
40-page report. I'm not a doctor, I'm a pastor,

But when I saw the evidence, I could clearly see
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that we need this rule,

In the book of Genesis, in the beginning God
created man in his own image, male and female, and
then he said, "Be fruitful and multiply the earth.”
So that's why I'm here is because I'm opposed to
even that doctor back there. And I appreciate you
said that because if I had any authority in the
medical field, I would have his license revoked.

The most thorough follow-up of sex reassigning
people, which was conducted in Sweden, documented
that 10 to 15 years --

A VOICE: Thirty seconds.

MR. PETERSON: -- of surgical reassessment,
that the suicide rate is 20 times that of the
comparable peers.

I also read in the medical evidence that
50 percent --

A VOICE: Fifteen seconds.

MR. PETERSON: -- of the gender
identity-confused children have thoughts of
suicide.

Thank you for your time,

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Janet Rath.

MS. RATH: Hi, my name 1s Janet Rath. I'm a
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mother, a grandmother, and a new great-grandmother.
And I think 50 years ago as parents, we were
smarter than what is going on today. Parents are
left out of their children's lives. Some of 1t is
the parents' fault, and some of it's the teachers'
faults.

I have a granddaughter that's a teacher who
has said that if she has a child that comes in and
identifies as a cat, she must have a litter box
there and a bowl of water.

We are as a country golng absolutely insane,

absolutely insane. We all bought into Dr. Fauci,
who was nothing but a money-grabbing liar -- pardon
my French -- and we have been hoodwinked ever

since. We have got to stop this.

Chinese children in third grade are learning
advanced calculus. Our third graders are learning
which bathroom to use. I'm sorry, but I do not
want my great granddaughter growing up in this
world if this i1is what it's golng to turn into. We
have got to change, and we had best do it now.
Thank you.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Gerald Loomer, L-o-o-m-e-r, Gerald.

MR. LOOMER: Good afterncoon. My name 1is
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Gerald Loomer. I drove three and a half hours from
Lady Lake, Florida, to be here because I want to
support Rule 59G-1.050. Especially I want to
support the best governor in the United States, Ron
DeSantis who also supports this.

{Applause.)

MR. LOOMER: But I'd like to share three gquick
stories with you. The first i1s the little girl who
saw her brothers go fishing with their dad, out in
the backyard playing catch with a football, says,
"You know, I'd like to spend more time with Dad.

If T were a boy, I could spend more time with Dad.™

Or the boy who said, "You know, those girls,
they're in the kitchen cooking with Mom, they go
shopping with Mom, they're doing makeup with Mom.

I want to spend more time with Mom. I think I
should be a girl, then I can spend more time with
Mom.™ Well, those things passed.

Remember the child who said, "Can I drive the

car?™ "Cf course not, you're 13 years old.™
"Well, can I drink a beer?" ™"Of course not, you're
13 years old."™ "Can I smoke a cigarette?"

A VOICE: Thirty seconds.
MR. LOCMER: "Of course not, you're 13 years

old.™ "Can I take hormones to block puberty?™
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"No, you're 13 years old. O©Of course, you can. You
know what you want."™ "Can I take cross-sex
hormones?™"

A VOICE: Fifteen seconds.

MR. LOCMER: ™"You're 13 years old. Of course,
you can. You know what you want." ™Can I have
gender sterilizing surgery?" "You're 13 years old.
Of course, you can, you know what you want.™ "Can

I have body-mutilating surgery" --

A VOICE: Time. Please wrap up your comment.
MR. LOCMER: -- "that's golng to alter my
sex?™ "Cf course, you can, you's are 13 years old,

you know what you want."

A VOICE: Sir, your time 1s up. Please wrap
it up.

MR. LOOMER: How absurd is all of this?
Continue to keep this resolution.

Thank you.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: FPastor Marta Marcano.

MS. MARCANC: Good afternoon. I'm Pastor
Marta Marcano from {(inaudible) Jacksonville,
Florida. 1I'm a director of Protect our Children
Project, Duval County chapter, and an organizer of

the Christian Family Cealition in Jacksconville too.
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I'm here to let you know that I'm support of
the Rule 59G-1.050 to ban Medicaid funding for
transgenders, surgeries, {inaudible) blockers, and
other unnatural therapies.

Also, this rule protect taxpayers from being
forced to subsidize the {inaudible) is driving by
unethical pharmaceutical companies enriching
themselves with the puberty blockers. That is an
atrocity of children abuse.

World-renowned Swedish psychiatric,

Dr. Christopher Gilbert, has said that pediatric
confusion 1s possibly one of the greater --

A VOICE: Thirty seconds.

MS. MARCANC: -- scandal in medical history
and call for an immediate moratorium.

As a pastor --

A VOICE: Fifteen seconds.

MS. MARCANO: -- I want to remind you that doc
do not been a stumbling block for the little one,
because Hebrews 10:31 said --

A VOICE: Time. Please complete your comment.

MS. MARCANO: -- "It's a fearful thing to fall
into the hands of the living God.™

Please protect our children. Thank you very

much for this time.
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{Applause.)

A VOICE: Paul Arrans.

MR. ARRANS: Good afterncon. My name is Paul
Arrans. I'm a physician. In practice, I've had
transgender patients, and I have transgender
personal friends with whom I discuss their medical
care at length.

With profound respect for the young people who
testified earlier, I still oppose this amendment
{inaudible) the preponderance of medical science
and practice when we do irreparable harm to the
health and well-being of thousands of transgender
Floridians of all ages and their families.

The American Academy of Pediatrics and its
Fleorida chapter representing thousands of
board-certified pediatricians have directly
reviewed many controversial assertions in your
publication on gender dysphoria, and the Florida
Department of Health's statement responded.

Contrary to an earlier comment, the Endocrine
Society has stated, "Both medical intervention for
transgender youth and adults, including puberty
suppression, hormone therapy, and
medically-indicated surgery has been established as

the standard of care. Federal and private
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insurance should cover such interventions as
prescribed by a physician,"™ end quote.

Gender dysphoria is very real. You can learn
this for yourselves by meeting with transgender
people. You will then realize that denial of
appropriate gender-affirming care at any age would
be inhumane and a wviolation of human rights. These
medically-necessary treatments are the generally
accepted professional medical standards,
{inaudible) authoritative opposition to the
proposed rule.

A VOICE: Thirty seconds.

MR. ARRANS: {Inaudible) to just rush this
through, thereby putting the health and lives of
trans people in danger.

It feels like Medicaid 1is crossing into a
political lane by seeking to preempt
provider/patient/family decision-making here, and I
urge you to withdraw this proposal.

A VOICE: Fifteen seconds.

MR. ARRANS: This represents knowledge and
practice regarding gender-affirming care. If you
are still determined to address this topic, at
least convene (inaudible) panels of experts,

including transgender community members, who inform
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yourselves and the public about the overwhelming
evidence --

A VOICE: Time.

MR. ARRANS -- against denying coverage for
gender-affirming care.

Thank vyou for the opportunity to testify.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Thank you for that comment. I'm
going to refer for further comment to Dr. Van.
VANMOLE, VANMO, VENMO?

DR. V: I would encourage everybody just to
read the Gaplins report, and particularly the
attachment to it. A great deal of attention has
been put in there into evaluating the science. And
some of the studies that have been brought up, both
pro and con, are involved -- they're specifically
the flaws that are in so many of these studies.
Specifically --

A VOICE: Hold on.

A VOICE: {Inaudible) while Dr. Vanmo speaks.

DR. V: Yeah, and by the way, I like the idea
that everybody lets everybody speak. 8So it kinds
of bothers me when I'm hearing speakers shout it
down because they're saying something you don’'t

like. How we treat other people with whom we
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disagree is a reflection of our own character, not
theirs. 8o, please, let -- due decorum.

First of all, the Endocrine Society's 2017
guidelines are guidelines, just that. And it
states specifically page 38935 that they do not
guarantee an outcome and they do not establish a
standard of care. It's in black and white there.

I would refer you also, as 1s mentioned in the
Gaplins report, the histories in the United
Kingdom, Sweden, Finland, France, four nations that
were leading this from quite some time, they did
national-level reviews 1nvolving scientific
organizations, divisions of governments, medical
professionals. And mind you, these are nations
that were leading it. And after review, they all
came to the same conclusion, this should not be
going on in mineors at all under 16, and only
between 16 and 18 under tightly-requlated studies,
the kind of which we really don't see happening.

And they also came to the conclusion that
strong psychological support is what's needed when
we talk about evaluating kids for this. We have
four decades of literature showing the overwhelming
probability of mental health problems, adverse

childhood events, neuropsychological problems like
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autism spectrum disorder, and other things that
need to be addressed. And, in fact, also for these
nations, somebody strongly demonstrating
psychologic instability -- quite specifically, you
say you're suicidal -- blocks you from the
transition pathway. They insist that those things
be taken care of first because transition simply
won't fix them. The underlying problems of a
transgender youth become the underlying problems of
an adult who identifies as transgender. That's
what is going on here,

So, again, I'd refer you to the report and
some of the other letter, complaints, that I'wve
seen come in in the past 24 hours from the AAP, as
well as from the Endocrine Society, what they're
complaining about is actually addressed here,
including some of the studies they bring up, and
there too, it's a very well-researched document.
The State of Florida put a lot of effort into this.

You're free to disagree, but please make sure
you've read it and understand it before you do.

A VOICE: Just to be a little bit more
specific with respect to the report, I'd refer you
to Dr. Rigner (inaudible) Peterson's report, which

is Attachment C to the Gaplins report, and also a
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doctor named Paul Hruz, H-r-u-z. Title of his
publication 1is, "Deficiencies in Scientific
Evidence for Medical Management of Gender
Dysphoria.”" He did not provide an expert report
for purposes of this report, but he is published in
medically reviewed literature, and I would
encourage you to read that as well.

Thank you.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: January Littlejohn.

MS. LITTLEJOHN: My name 1is January
Littlejohn. I am a mother of three children and a
licensed mental health counselor.

In the spring of 2020, our 13-year-old
daughter told us that she was experiencing distress
over her sex and that she didn't feel like a girl.
She had expressed no previous signs of gender
confusion, and three of her friends at school had
recently started identifvyving as transgender.

As we tried to understand our own observations
and seek professional help, we discovered that her
middle school had soclally transitioned her without
our knowledge or consent. Her mental health
spiraled. We worked with a psychologist to help

our daughter explore and resolve co-occurring
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issues, including low self-esteem and anxiety. We
also gave her more one-on-one time, in-person
activities away from trans influences, limited her
Internet use, and declined to affirm her
newly-chosen name and pronocuns. We set appropriate
boundaries and allowed her to choose her hair style
and clothing, but denied harmful requests such as
breast binders, puberty blockers, cross-sex
hormones, and surgeries.

Tt was clear from our conversations that our
daughter was uncomfortable with her developing body
and had an intense fear of being sexualized. She
was filled with self-locathing and was in true
emotional pain, but had been led by peers and
influencers to believe that gender was the source
of her pain.

What she really needed was for us to help her
make sense of her confusion and remind her that
hormones and surgeries could never change her sex
or resolve her issues,

A VOICE: Thirty seconds.

MS, LITTLEJOHN: I shudder to think what could
have happened if we had affirmed her false identity
and consented to medical treatment as opposed to

what we did, which was to lovingly affirm her as
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she is: Beautifully unique and irreplaceable and
undeniably female.

A VOICE: Fifteen seconds.

M5, LITTLEJOHN: Our daughter has desisted and
is on a path to self-love, but, unfortunately,
gender-dysphoric children are being encouraged
through activism and peer pressure to disassociate
from their bodies and to believe their body parts
can be simply removed --

A VOICE: Time. Please finish your comment.

M5, LITTLEJOHN: -- modified, or replaced.

The irreversible consequences of medically
transitioning, including loss of sexual and
reproductive function, cannot be fully understood
by children or teens who lack the necessary
maturity or experience. These children need love
and therapy, not hormones or surgery.

Thank you.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Next up, Kendra Paris.

MS., PARIS: Hi there, my name i1s Kendra Paris.
I still suffer from being an attorney. I'm a
mental health attorney, and I wanted to follow up
on the comment about the lack of peer-reviewed

standards of care, because as an attorney, the lack
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of peer-reviewed standards of care mean that a lot
of people who are harmed or experience bad outcomes
from these surgeries or other interventions have no
ability to sue, and I find that problematic as an
attorney. They've had decades to create
peer-reviewed standards of care, and they have not.
And I suspect some people don't want those
standards of care because 1t would open them up to
lawsuits for bad outcomes, which i1s not happening
right now and it really frustrates me.

You all are so brave. I'm so proud of you for
coming and telling your stories.

We just don't know, and I want to talk about a
particularized thing that we don't know yet. When
you put a female on testosterone, within about five
yvears, she's going to have to have a hysterectomy,
though you passed most recent standards of care,
recommend hormone -- cross-sex hormone therapy for
females at 14. So we're talking about a potential
hysterectomy before she turns 20. We have known
for a very long time that hysterectomies correlated
with negative mental health outcomes and cognitive
decline. And we know that the earlier a
hysterectomy 1s performed, the worse mental health

and cognitive decline is. Essentially, the earlier
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you do the hysterectomy, the earlier the onset of
dementia.

And so what I am very concerned about is in, I
don't know, 10, 20, 30 years, we're going to have
an absolute wave of young females, 40, 50 years
old, with early-onset cognitive decline --

A VOICE: Thirty seconds.

MS. PARIS: -- or dementia in our assisted
living facilities.

And in surveys and anecdotal experience is
starting to indicate that some individuals who are
trans and have dementia forget that they're trans.
In a state like Florida, we have substituted
Jjudgment.

A VOICE: Fifteen seconds.

MS. PARIS: So if they don't have written
documentation allowing for their medical proxy to
allow for detransition, they might be cut off. And
I really worry that we have not considered all of
the implications of this,

So I appreciate the rulemaking and I thank
YOu ==

A VOICE: Time.

MS, PARIS: -- for your time. Thank you.

{(Applause.)
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A VOICE: Nathan {inaudible).

MR. BRUMER: My name 1s Nathan Brumer. I am
Florida's LGBTQ consumer advocate as appointed by
Commissioner of Agriculture Nikki Fried. ©One of
FDACS' many critical roles here in the state
includes serving as Florida's consumer protection
agency.

On behalf of health care consumers, I provide
the following comments in opposition to the
proposed changes to Rule 59G-1.050: As a state
agency, FDACS encourages all consumers to remain
aware, vigilant, and act when necessary, but to do
so, we know consumers must be provided with
accurate information, education, cholce, safety,
representation, and redress.

Documented, well-researched standards of care
have been established, are based on a wide range of
evidence, and conclude gender-affirming medical
care 1s medically necessary and safe and effective.
In other words, gender-affirming care 1s the
standard of care, and the proposed rule as it
stands would deny health care consumers in the
state of Florida access to the standard of care.

State agencies must serve and advocate for all

Fleridians. We should not deny any Floridian the
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ability to thrive. We serve the public good and we

must defend the rights of every Floridian,

including transgender Floridians, and this includes

the right to nondiscriminatory health care
coverage. We must work to increase access to
health care, not lessen 1t or remove 1t all
together.

A VOICE: Thirty seconds.

MR. BRUMER: ©On a personal note, Florida is my

home state. I am one of thousands, tens of
thousands of transgender Floridians here in our
state who have had the privilege to have access to
gender-affirming health care --

A VOICE: Fifteen seconds.

MR. BRUMER -- for decades who are happy and
successful and thriving. I'm an attorney, I'm an
advocate, and I work for and very hard and I'm
proud to serve the State of Florida. We are part
of the fabric of this nation --

A VOICE: Time. Please wrap up your comment.

MR. BRUMER -- and of this great state, and we
deserve the rights and benefits afforded to all.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: HNathan Bremmer.

MR. NEWELL: Hi, I'm Nathan Newell. I think
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we got the Nathans mixed up. Here (inaudible) for

support. Tell you a little bit, I have a son, I

have four children. My son, 15, 1s -- doing
everything we can to keep him straight. He doesn’t
make good decisions. ©One of the things lately, you

know those little things on the side of the road
that flashes and tells you your speed? Well, we
had one of those near our house. So he decides to
take his dirt bike in pitch black and with his
friends out there and go 80 miles per hour down the
road. We know this because of the ring. He was
bragging to his friends, so we watched the ring and
saw that.

Then a couple days ago, he was upset with us
and said he was leaving. So we sald, "Where are

you going to go, Hunter?™ He goes, "I'm going to

St. Teresa, I got friends down there."” "How are
you going to get there, Hunter?" "I'm going to
ride my bike.™ I said, "It's going to take you

forever,"™ and he goes, "It's going to take me four
hours.™

So, anyways, this 15-year-old, he's not making
good decisions. And to sit here and to even think
that these kids can make a decision on what they

want that's going to be with them for the rest of
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life is child abuse. These doctors are despicable.

They need to have their license taken away. They
are a disgrace to the human race. It's Jjust
despicable to think that these people are taking
care of us and taking care of our children, and I
appreciate what vy'all are doing.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: We'd ask that you please be
respectfiul to the other speakers.

A VOICE: Thank you for your comments. We
respect your comment, we respect everybody's
comments, including the doctors that you
referenced.

A VOICE: Nathan Brumer.

Dotty McPherson.

MS. MCPHERSON: Hi there, I'm Dotty McPherson.

I'm speaking as the District 2 representative for
the Florida Federation of Republican Women.
The age of majority 1is 18, but even at 18,

children don't have the maturity to handle certain

responsibilities given them, like driving, alcohol.

Even older adults don't.

Your agency's safety net programs include

programs for abused and neglected children, but not

gender decisions. Please prevent funding the
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destruction of children's genitalia and hormonal
balance.

Please consider unintended consequences of,
No, 1, is taxpayer money that will need to be used
for lawsuits by those whose lives are ruined from
surgeries that got -- that they got while they were
immature or too young to understand, also by
parents whose parental rights were denied to
protect their children's future.

I grew up in a low-income neighborhood on the
low-income side of town, When I got to junior high
school, I saw how rich kids were, and a lot of them
were just real brainiacs, and I felt so inadequate.
I had a terrible inferiority complex, but I got
over it. I graduated with honors from FSU. I had
a good job and made a good life for myself and my
four children. Life isn't fair. We'wve got to stop
giving in to the poor, pitiful me syndrome. People
need to get their brains right and --

A VOICE: Thirty seconds,

M5, MCPHERSON: -- get straight. Government
has no business funding these things. Our elected
governor has authority to make this rule, which
should be upheld. Please support our governor's

rule. Thank you.
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{Applause.)

A VOICE: I'm golng to get this first name
wrong, but I think it's Marjorie Caulkins.

MS. CAULKINS: Hello, my name 1s {(inaudible)
Caulkins and I am from Milton, Florida, and I came
in support of the ban of Medicaid funding for
transgender surgeries and treatments.

I believe that Floridians do not need our
taxpayers' money to be spent in this funding of
surgeries that are both unnecessarily and
tremendously harmful.

As a mother of two, I believe there 1is a war
on our children and we need to stand on the right
side of this war and protect our children, support
our Governor DeSantis. We are blessed with our
governor, and I think we should be on the right
side and support this rule and ban Medicaid funding
for transgender surgeries.

Thank you so much, and thank you for your
service.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: James Caulkins.

MR. CAULKINS: Hi. I'm James Caulkins from
Milton, Florida, and I just want to say we really

need this rule passed to support Rule 59G-1.050 to
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ban Medicaid funding for transgender surgery and
treatment.

We are in a battle in this country, and I'd
like to thank all the people who showed up today,
because your voice matters. Our state -- the
people have spoken. They elected the greatest
governor in the United States, Ron DeSantis. They
put Republicans in office in this state to stand
for what's right, and this rule change is what's
right;

We don't need this stuff, this evil, this
Medicaid funding for transgender surgery. We don't
need this in our state of Florida. We need to lead
in Florida, we need to lead the other states in
Florida against this evil transgender surgeries.

So please pass this rule. Thank you all so
much for your public service and God bless the
state of Florida. Thank you.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Tuana Aman.

M5, AMAN: Thank you for the opportunity for
us to be here. I am in support of the ban to the
Medicaid funding for transgender surgeries and
treatments. And let me say that years ago, I was

told that I needed to go on hormone therapy, and 1
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had one doctor tell me that it was the right thing
to do, but as I did more and more surg- -- more and
more study and research, I saw the risks involved
to hormonal therapy. And when someone tries to
tell you there isn't any risk to these kinds of
procedures and these kinds of things that are
happening to young people, to young kids -- I mean,
I'm an adult who's fully developed, right, as a
human being now, right, and they say 25 generally,
look at these kids and their development, the
process.

And what T think is even more sad is that
they're born like the young girl with a certain
amount of eggs that will be released every month
from the time she starts puberty, and here we're
trying to prevent those natural things from
occurring and expect 1t not to have any problems.

I was watching Bill Mayer, which he's not a
favorite of conservatives, right? And he came out
a couple of weeks ago and was slammed by the LGBT
community because he said, "Isn't it
interesting™ -- and this is him, right -- "Isn't it
interesting that if you look at Los Angeles and New
York and Miami and all these different hubs, that's

where this transgender service -- these surgeries
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said they wanted him off the air, and, I mean, he
had -- they had a campaign against him --

A VOICE: Thirty seconds.

MS. AMAN: -- because it was focused on the
fact that he was Jjust saying, "Isn't there
something ironic about the fact that you look at
the rest of the country and these things aren't
going on, and then you look at these hubs where
social engineering 1s happening and where people
are being influenced that I" --

A VOICE: Fifteen seconds.

MS. AMAN: -- "can't go out into the media and
say anything against transgender, because what will
happen? I will be criticized and condemned.™ It
isn't fair. I think it's right to be here and have
the opportunity to give our voices, but I believe
that the government should not be involved in
supporting any --

A VOICE: Time. Please wrap up your comment.

MS. AMAN: -- kind of procedure for these
young kids. Thank you. Amen.

{Applause.)

A VOICE: Jason, do you have a follow up?

A VOICE: Just wvery quickly. We appreciate
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your comments, Jjust like we appreciate the comments
of everyone in this room and all the people that
have made comments on-line and otherwise.

I just wanted to make sure -- clear, Jjust so
we're crystal-clear about the purpose of this rule
is that we're not talking about a ban of treatment
for gender dysphoria. We're talking about not
covering through reimbursement in the Florida
Medicaild program for the services that are
enumerated in the rule itself.

I also want to make clear that there are other
comprehensive coverage of services for gender
dysphoria currently in the Florida Medicaid
program, and I just want to read a couple of those:
"Community-based health services provided by an
array of provider types; psychiatric services
provided by a physician or other qualified health
care practitioner in office settings, clinics, and
hospitals; emergency services and inpatient
services in hospital settings; behavioral health
services provided in schools and by school
districts.™

So I just wanted to make sure that everyone
was crystal-clear about the purpose of this rule.

I very much appreciate your comment and the
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comments of everybody else.

A VOICE: Thank you, everyone, for
participation in this hearing. We will
written material or comments until 5:00
Monday, July 11, 2022. Comments may be

by e-mail to

medicaidrulecomments@ahca.myflorida.com.

your
accept
p.m. on

submitted

That being our time, this hearing 1is now

closed. Thank you.

{(Whereupon, the hearing was concluded.)
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COUNTY OF LEON )
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under my direction;
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represent a true, correct, and complete transcript of
the tape-recording;

And I further certify that I am not of kin or
counsel to the parties in the case; am not in the
regular employ of counsel for any of said parties; nor
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Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=9c7242f10a494d45bab72c452ecd9f80-Rainer, Mel
<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>;
Jee, Lauren {(HHS/OCR) /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

To: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=dc5a273e16824884903f0d2afcBcb225-Jee, Lauren
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>;
Perez, Luis (HHS/OCR) /fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=eb4f62687d764a40a5c4e52f94b8354a-Perez, Luis
<Luis.Perez@hhs.gov>

Subject: TODAY: WH/HHS Listening Session
Date: 2023/04/10 11:06:16
Importance: High
Priority: Urgent
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
that | cannot reschedule. | hope this will be an informative, and no doubt impactful, discussion.

Please find attached the run of show, participant list, and background.

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

Rainer, Melanie Fontes {OS/OCR) fo=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
{FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=9c7242f10a494d45bab7 2c452ecd3f80-Rainer, Mel
<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>;
Jee, Lauren {HHS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

Recipient: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=dc5a273e16824884903f0d2afcBcb225-Jee, Lauren
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>;
Perez, Luis (HHS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=eb4f62687d764a40a5c4e52f94b8354a-Perez, Luis
<Luis.Perez@hhs.gov>

Delivered Date: 2023/04/10 11:06:16
Message Flags: Unread Unsent
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Rainer, Melanie Fontes (O5/0CR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
To: (FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=9c7242f10a494d45bab72c452ecdSf80-Rainer, Mel
<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities
Date: 2023/01/19 09:21:51

Priority: Normal
Type: Note

It doesn’t really

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esq., MSW (she/her)
Senior Advisor to the Director

Phone: (202) 699-1884

Email: dylan.dekervor@hhs.gov

From: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0OS/0OCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 9:09 AM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR)
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>; Noonan, Timothy (OS/OCR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen,
Marissa (HHS/OCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov=>

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

To: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0OS/OCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>: Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR)
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov=; Noonan, Timothy (0S/0CR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen,
Marissa {HHS/OCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

|(b)(5) | Happy to chat through.

Dylan Nicole de Kervar, Esq., MSW (she/her)
Senior Advisor to the Director

Phone: (202) 639-1884

Email: dylan.dekervor@hhs gov

From: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (OS/OCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>
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

Get Outlook for iCS

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/QCR} <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Thursday, January 19, 2023 8:37:58 AM

To: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/QCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR)
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov=; Noonan, Timothy (0S/0QCR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen,
Marissa (HHS/QCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: RE: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

b}(5}

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esq., MSW (she/her)
Senior Advisor to the Director

Phone: {202) 699-1884

Email: dy an.dekervor@nhs.gov

From: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (CS/OCR) <Melanie.Rainer @hhs.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, January 18, 2023 9:26 PM

To: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/QCR} <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren {(HHS/QOCR)
<lLauren.Jeel@hhs.gov=; Noonan, Timothy (0S/OCR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen,
Marissa {HHS/QCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: Re: POLITICO: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

(D)5}
Let’s look into this.

Get Outlook for i0S

From: de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) <Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, lanuary 18, 2023 9:24:30 PM

To: Rainer, Melanie Fontes (0S/OCR) <Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>; Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR)
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>; Noonan, Timothy (O5/0CR) <Timothy.Noonan@hhs.gov>; Gordon-Nguyen,
Marissa (HHS/QCR) <Marissa.Gordon@hhs.gov>

Subject: POLITICC: DeSantis targets trans health care in Florida universities

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
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From: Caitlin Panarella <action@nwic.org>
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To: Ltd. HF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=dc5a273e168248849030d2afcBcb225-)ee, Lauren
<Lauren.Jeel @hhs.gov>

Subject: BREAKING: Students in Florida won't have to report their menstrual history to be allowed to play sports
Date: 2023/02/10 14:46:27

Priority: Normal
Type: Note

Fighting for gender justice in the courts, in public policy, and in our society.
Justice for her. Justice for all.

NATIONAL

' WOMEN'S
e LAW CENTER
National Women's Law Center

Dear Lauren,

Florida student athletes will NOT be required to submit their menstrual history in

order to play school sports.

We asked you to submit messages to the Florida High School Athletics
Association (FHSAA) Board of Directors demanding they not implement this
harmful and dangerous policy. Because you acted so quickly, we delivered more
than 5,000 messages in less than 48 hours to the FHSAA Board of Directors,

which held an emergency vote on the policy on Thursday.

Thank you for taking action against Florida's gross attempt to force the

collection of student menstrual data. But the fight’s not over yet.

Even though the FHSAA Board decided against requiring students to submit their
menstrual history, they quietly moved from asking about a student’s sex to
specifying that students must attest their “sex assigned at birth.” The Board


mailto:Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov
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couldn’t be more clear: at the root of the proposed requirement was an

attempt to monitor trans students and violate their bodily autonomy.

So much is still at stake: we need to stay outraged and protect trans, nonbinary,
and intersex students who just want to play sports alongside their peers without
bullying and exclusion.

This work would not be possible without our state partners fighting against these
violations. Please consider supporting Progress Florida Education Institute,

which organized on the ground against the FHSAA'’s harmful policy proposal and

following Equality Florida for more ways to support LGBTQI+ youth.

Even though Florida students will not be required to report their menstrual history,

any attack on trans and nonbinary students is an attack on gender justice. We'll

never stop fighting for the rights of women, girls, and LGBTQI+ individuals.
Thank you for joining us in this fight.

In solidarity,

Caitlin Panarella

she/her/hers

Campaigns Associate

National Women's Law Center




Please forward this email to your friends and co-workers and encaurage
them to sign up to receive NWLC emails in their own inboxes and sign up
for text updates!
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Type: Note

Hi Melanie,

Here is a list of materials for you to review while you're out. | believe Lauren has also provided you a
printed copy of the documents. Let us know if you need anything else!

Thanks!

7/29, 2:00pm FL Medicaid
¢ See attached:
o FL Proposed Memo

8/1, 9:30am 1:1 Linda — Eastern & Caribbean Region
e See attached:
o E&C Region Memo to OCR Director

8/1, 3:30pm 1:1 Jamie- Mid-Atlantic
s See attached:
O Mid-Atlantic Region — Memo to Acting Director
O PowerPoint Slides
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8/2, 3:30pm 1:1 Barbara- Southeast
s See attached:
&) Requested Southeast Regional Memo
0! Staff Numbers for Barbara

8/3, 10:30am Steven- Midwest
¢ See attached:
o Midwest Region Status Report to Acting Director

8/3, 1:30pm Michael- Pacific
¢+ See attached:
o Pacific Region Workload Summary Memo

8/3, 3pm Marisa- Southwest
s See attached:
o) Memo te New Director

8/4, 2pm Andrea- Rocky Mountain

s See attached:
o Rocky Mountain Memo to the Acting Director

Language Access Steering Committee Materials
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HHS LA SC Relaunzh Plan

Steering Committee Visual
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Lauren A. Jee

Acting Chief Of Staff

Office for Civil Rights
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MEMORANDUM

TO: Melanie Fontes Rainer, Acting OCR Director
FROM: Barbara Stampul, Regional Manager, Southeast Region
DATE: July 19, 2022
SUBJECT: Requested Regional Memo
(D)5}




()5}

Current workload:

The Attached report has the exact workload per investigator. The region has:

» Total Open Complaints — 493
o Total Open Breach Cases — 154
e Total Open Review Cases — 2

(0)5)




MEMORANDUM

DATE: July 18, 2022

TO: Melanie Fontes Rainer, Acting Director

THROUGH: Shayla Moulton, Acting Deputy Director for Operations and Resources
Lauren Jee, Acting Chief of Staff
Michael Huggins, Senior Advisor

FROM: Jamie Rahn Ballay, Regional Manager, Mid-Atlantic Region
Alisha Welch, Acting Deputy Regional Manager, Mid-Atlantic Region

SUBJECT: Current Regional Concerns; Workload, and Headquarters Approval
Processes

(b)(5)
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B. Workload

Despite the Region’s continued inability to fully staff our office as indicated above, our
workload and output continues to increase as does the complexity and significance of that work
in the current political environment.

The region currently has 617 open cases in house. As of today, our average investigator case
load is 88. Each year we continue to face a significantly higher number of case receipts with no
commensurate staffing or budget increases. Instead, we have seen our staffing numbers go down
with no present ability to hire new staff to fill those vacancies. Our current regional workload
includes a mix of 162 civil rights cases, 330 HIP cases, and 125 breach cases:

Our current workload of 617 open cases has increased steadily despite declining numbers in our
investigator staffing, currently at 7. Toward the beginning of this year, in late January, we had
572 open cases divided among 8 investigators. In the fall of last year, in September, we had 537
open cases among 9 investigators. Looking at cases closed at those same data points, our
biweekly closures have increased from 64, to 69, to 104 at present. Our Region is proud of this
accomplishment and our ability to do more with less, but this pace is unsustainable for our staft
members.

Our work has continued to become more complex, as well as more politically significant, which
adds to the pressures that everyone is feeling. OCR continues to receive more and more large
breach reports for investigation, particularly reports regarding ransomware incidents, which
require highly technical and complex investigations that are very time consuming. In addition,
MAR currently has a wide range of publicly significant cases including in the areas of race and
national origin discrimination, gender identity, and Olmstead, many of which will result in
statewide high impact settlement outcomes in the Region. All the while, we continue to press
forward with investigating more HIPAA right of access cases than ever before under the Right of
Access Initiative. While this work is very important and meaningful, it is time consuming,
complicated, and increasingly difficult to do without commensurate staffing in the regions. As
an example, our region’s high impact/enforcement portfolio currently consists of the following
cases that we are actively working up, which does not include the cases that we currently have in
monitoring:

e 25 Civil Rights cases

e 8 Security Rule/Breach cases

e 8 Right of Access Initiative cases
¢ 2 Privacy Rule cases

To put it simply, our staff is drowning with no apparent relief in sight and with the prospect of
losing two more of our investigators by the end of the month. The regions are at a breaking point

Page 3 of 5




and the current workload, coupled with the anticipated increases in workload that the regions
will likely be asked to take on are not sustainable at current staffing levels.

(D)5}
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July 18, 2022

Mid-Atlantic Region

]

[aT]

mie Rahn Baliangg&%B?]I M?&E’gﬁrPIMRﬂ\i_orraine Dunston, Program Staff Asst*Michael R

Alisha WelchActing Deputy Regional Manager” Serving in dual capacity of Actjng DRM and SEOQS since July 2020

Alisha Welch, SEOSCathy Cushman, InvestigatgrCamille Easterbrook, [Investigator*Ester Blair, Investigator*Stephgn Holmes

, Investigator* { Separated March 2022John Haskell, Investigator*” S¢parated October 2021New hire selected in November, but did not pass back

EOS = Equal Opportunity Specialist PIMRA = Program Information Management Resources AnalystSEOS
= Supervisory Equal Opportunity Specialist * = Contractor 1




MEMORANDUM

TO: Melanie Fontes Rainer, Acting OCR Director

FROM: Steven M. Mitchell, Regional Manager, Midwest Region, OCR

cc: Lauren Jee, Acting Chief of Staff, OCR
Michael Huggins, Senior Advisor to the Director, OCR
Shayla Moulton, Acting Deputy Director, Operations and
Resources Division, OCR

DATE: July 19, 2022

RE: Midwest Region Workload Report, Procedures Outline and
Regional Concerns

Here is a summary of the Midwest Region’s workload in the current month as
of close of business on July 18, 2022:

Case Type Case  Staff Carry- Received Closed Open

SubType In
All 1563 98 155 1506
w Breach 322 8 4 326
w Complaint 1231 20 151 1170
« Compliance 10 0 0 10

Review

And a compilation of work in FY 2022 through the same date:

Case Type Case  Staff Carry- Received Closed Open

SubType In
All 1069 2936 2499 1506
« Breach 258 120 52 326
w Complaint 792 2810 2432 | 1170



Case Type Case  Staff Carry- Received Closed Open
SubType In

w Outreach 0 6

(il [+7]
= ©
o

w Compliance 19 0
Review
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Memorandum to the Director

To:

From:

CE:

Date:
Re:

Melanie Fontes Rainer, Acting Director, Office for Civil Rights

Michael Leoz, Regional Manager, Pacific Region, Yun-kyung (Peggy} Lee,
Deputy Regional Manager, Pacific Region

Shayla Moulton, Acting Deputy Director ORD, Lauren Jee, Acting Chief of
Staff, Michael Huggins, Senior Advisor

July 18, 2022

Pacific Region — Workload Summary

As requested, the following is a summary of our current workload and the process we
use to send documents for review/approval to OCR Headquarters (HQ).

Current Workload

We have 1450 active cases in the Pacific Region as of July 18, 2022:

At the beginning of this calendar year we had 146 open breach report cases. We
have since received 57 new breach reports. We have closed 64 breach report
cases this calendar year. We are currently investigating 139 active breach report
cases.

At the beginning of this calendar year we had 1,347 active complaints. We have
since received 2,205 new complaints this calendar year, which is more than any
other region has received. We have closed 2,270 complaint investigations this
year. Therefore, we are currently investigating 1,282 complaints.

The region is also actively investigating 12 compliance reviews.

The Pacific Region has completed 22 outreach events and still has 17 additional
scheduled outreach events that have yet to take place.

We are actively working on a total of 20 high impact Civil Rights and Health
Information Privacy (HIP) matters and we are actively monitoring 9 high impact
cases that have already settled with a Voluntary Resolution Agreement and
Corrective Action Plan.

(D)5}
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Q,V(h Office for Civil Rights, Rocky
e Mountain Region
Memorandum
Date: July 19, 2022
From: Andy Oliver, Regional Manager
To: Melanie Fontes Rainer

Acting OCR Director
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Current Workload

The RM Regional Investigators/EQSs carry an average caseload of 75 civil
rights and HIPAA cases, as well as 500+ breaches. In 2020, Denver
assisted the Mid-West Region by taking 250 older civil rights/HIPAA
complaints and 30 breaches; in 2021 the Region took another 40 breaches -
in an effort to ensure that Denver’s investigative staff caseloads were more
in line with the average [larger] Investigator caseloads nationally. Denver
hasn't assisted the Mid-West Region in 2022, because it had to re-distribute
over 110+ of its own cases when it terminated an investigator earlier this
year, and also because a high-performing investigator is currently on |leave
for 5 months.

Working with HQ

The Region sends all HIP high impact enforcement related
packages/documents to Emily Crabbe, Acting Senior Advisor for HIP
Compliance and Enforcement. We also contact Emily for HIP-related case
processing inquiries, requests for assistance, or to discuss unique or novel HIP
issues.

Carla Carter, Associate Deputy Director, and/or Pam Barren, Director, are
the Region’s contact for all high impact enforcement related
packages/documents, and Carta serves as my contact for civil rights
inquiries/requests for assistance.
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MEMORANDUM
TO: Melanie Fontes Rainer, Acting OCR Director
THROUGH: Shayla Moulton, Acting Deputy Director of Operations and Resources Division

FROM: Region 6- Marisa M. Smith, Regional Manager, Southwest Region
Emily Cameron, SEOS, Southwest Region
Leon Loggins, PIMRA, Southwest Region

CC: Lauren Jee, Michael Huggins

DATE: July 19, 2022

SUBJECT: Memos for Melanie

L. Concerns
a. Current Workload is overwhelming due to staffing issues described helow:
¢ Regional Staffing:
» 2 FTE Investigators, 2 Contractors for entire region
e 712 open cases and 4 investigators average out to
178 cases per investigator as of the date of this memo.

()5}
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DATE:
TO:
FROM:

SUBJECT:

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES Office of the Director » Humphrey Building

_/( = Ewsa i 200 Independence Ave, S.W.e Washington, D.C. z0201
Offlce for CIVII nghts Voice: {800) 368-1019  TDD: (8oo) 537-7697

Fax: {202) 619-1818 @ www.hhs.gov/ocr

July XX, 2022
Rachel Pryor, Counselor to the Secretary
Melanie Fontes Rainer, Acting Director, Office for Civil Rights

DECISION — Request [OS to notify OPDIV and STAFFDIV heads that the HHS
Lanpuape Access Steering Committee is responsible for leading Departmental
efforts to implement the language access provisions of the HHS Equity Action

Plan.

()5}
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U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Office for Civil Rights

Office of the Director # Humphrey Building

200 Independence Ave 5.W. ® Washington, D.C. 20201

ATTACHMENTS:

Memo — Acting Director Rainer to Deputy Secretary Palm

Memo — Deputy Secretary Palm to OPDIV and STAFFDIV Heads
Memo - Acting Director Rainer to OPDIV and STAFFDIV Heads
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/S/ Andrea Palm

Date
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HHS Language Access Steering Committee
Relaunch Plan

Steering Committee established Feb. 13, 2012, to
implement language dccess executive order from 2000.

b))




In 2022, OCR will
reconvene the HHS
Language Access
Steering Committee to
serve as the “office or
official responsible for
developing and
maintaining
anaccurate record of a
program that regularly
assesses and takes
necessary stepsto
improve and ensure
the quality and
accuracy of language
access
servicesprovided to
individuals with LEP.” —
Apr. 2022, HHS Equity
Action Plan

HHS Secretary

“Sasked OCR
to lead

/

HS Language Access Steering

Committee(established Feb. 13,
2012, staffed by representatives In 2022,

from each HHS component, and led T representatives
by OCR) needed from 11

ASPR Oftica of the Assistan! Eecretary for X ik StaffDivs
Preparedness & Response SAM’ﬁq

NI
ASPE \\ o )

OFFICE OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY Office of Medicare Hearings

FOR PLANMNING AND EVALUATION 14 OleVS and ._-—-'-"'"'-—_.—— &Appeals
' StaffDivs currently ———
HR Office of Global Affairs

*ACL 7 represented \\%
FOA

TG SoraEs l

i3]8 /ATSDR HRSA
| Ancv for Toxie: Substances and Disease Regrstry @ S ‘

i Prepared by HHS OCR July 2022




HHS Components on HHS Language Access Steering Committee

Type [ Count OPDIV/STAFFDIV Name
Led by the Office for Civil Rights
1 Administration for Children and Families (ACF)
2 Administration for Community Living (ACL)
3 Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality (AHRQ)
§ 4 Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry (ATSDR)
:%' Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC)
E 5 Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS)
% 6 Food and Drug Administration (FDA)
o
8 7 Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA)
3 Indian Health Service (IHS)
9 National Institutes of Health (NITH)
10 |Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA)
1 Assistant Secretary for Administration (ASA)
2 Assistant Secretary for Financial Resources (ASFR)
3 Assistant Secretary for Legislation (ASL)
4 Assistant Secretary for Planning and Evaluation (ASPE)
o Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response (ASPR)
6 Assistant Secretary for Public Affairs (ASPA)
E 7 Departmental Appeals Board (DAB)
E 8 HHS Chief Information Officer
E 9 Office of Intergovernmental and External Affairs (IEA)
10 |Office of the Assistant Secretary for Health (OASH) (including OMH)
11 Office of the General Counsel (OGC)
12 [Office of Global Affairs (OGA)
13 |Office of Inspector General (O1G)
14 |Office of Medicare Hearings and Appeals (OMHA)
15 |Office of the National Coordinator for Health Information Technology (ONC)

Prepared by the HHS Office for Civil Rights
Updated July 14, 2022
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Memorandum
To: Melanie Fontes Rainer, Acting OCR Director
Cc: Shayla Moulton, Acting Deputy Director of Operations and Resources Division

Lauren Jee, Acting Chief of Staff
Michael Huggins, Senior Advisor

From: Linda C. Colén, Regional Manager

Subject: Eastern & Caribbean Region (E&C) Concerns
Date: July 19, 2022

One of the most pressing concerns in the E&C Region is employee morale and burn-out. While
the E&C Region has continued to be productive and developed several high impact cases, both
staff personal issues and organizational challenges have affected the Region and its ability to
effectively manage its work. The caseload-of both complaints and breaches-with little relief has
impacted the workforce in engagement and output. Staff have identified and worked up high
impact cases which, for various reasons, once submitted to HQ, were not acted upon or
reviewed. Once they were, many of the cases “aged out” and the hard work that went into
working up an enforcement case and obtaining relief was lost. For other cases, additional data
requests were required and questions about issues that were thought to already have been
decided needed to be addressed. The push for high impact cases and then the stopping and
starting has been extremely frustrating to staff. It has also hindered effective case processing
and negatively impacted staffs’ ability to work on other cases. The sense of needing to close
cases has diminished some staffs’ sense of purpose and mission. Despite this and to their
credit, E&C regional staff continue to focus on the individuals who file the complaints with us,
their allegations and ways that they can be resolved expeditiously. More creative ways of
sharing the successes, even the small ones, and acknowledging regional work would be
significant in demonstrating support for our staff.

The Region is constantly challenged with finding the right balance-or any balance-addressing the
backlog of cases while maintaining quality and customer service and identifying high impacts
cases to address equity and privacy issues. Changes in processes without regional leadership
input and lack of communication about these processes and priorities have also challenged the
Region. While priorities will always shift and the regional offices” have always adapted, providing
more information and guidance and allowing for regional input and discussion would assist in
adjusting to the changing priorities. Further, where changes have been recommended (notably,
the detailed recommendations of a Case Processing Efficiencies Workgroup), they have, at
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times, been ignored or declined. The most recent change in leadership brings with it concerns by
staff about the impact of this change on the regional offices. In a time when some of their
colleagues have been notified of stop work orders and, concern about the sustainability of their
jobs and ability to accomplish the mission has weighed on them.

Aside from the workload, regional staff face numerous challenges during case processing. One
particular challenge is the lack of cooperation by covered entities during OCR’s investigations.
This may be a result of a lack of consistent and prompt enforcement action or strong messaging.

Another cause may be the decision to assign complaints irrespective of geographic area. While
this decision may have been made to distribute complaints more equitably (based on size of
regional investigative staff), there are significant challenges in working cases outside of our
geographic region-regional staff have not developed relationships with the covered entities and
we sometimes find ourselves addressing differences in regional case processing. This can hinder
effective case processing.

(b)(3)




Huggins, Michael (HHS/OCR) /O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
From: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=9597596B8C4D4B8D9FAF4922101A611B-HUGGINS, MI
<Michael . Huggins@hhs.gov>

Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
To: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT}/cn=Recipients/cn=dc5a273e16824884903f0d2afc8cb225-Jee, Lauren
<Lauren.Jeel @hhs.gov:>

Subject: DRAFT BRIEFING BOOK FOR REVIEW
Date: 2022/07/27 17:11:58
Priority: Normal

Type: Note

Let me know what you think.

Hi Melanie,

Here is a list of materials for you to review while you’re out. Lauren will also provide you a printed copy
of the documents. Let us know if you need anything else!

Thanks!

7/29, 2:00pm FL Medicaid
= See attached:
O FL Proposed Memo

8/1, 3:30pm 1:1 Jamie- Mid-Atlantic
¢ See attached:
o Mid-Atlantic Region — Memo to Acting Director
Q PowerPoint Slides

8/2, 3:30pm 1:1 Barbara- Southeast
¢ See attached:
o Requested Southeast Regional Memo
o] Staff Numbers for Barbara

8/3, 10:30am Steven- Midwest
e See attached:
o] Midwest Region Status Report te Acting Director
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8/3, 1:30pm Michael- Pacific
¢ See attached:
o Pacific Region Workload Summary Memao

8/3, 3pm Marisa- Southwest
¢ See attached:
O Memo to New Director

8/4, 2pm Andrea- Rocky Mountain
¢ See attached:
o Rocky Mountain Memo to the Acting Director

Lauren A. Jee

Acting Chief Of Staff

Office for Civil Rights

U.5. Department of Health and Human Services
Cell: 202-746-1049

Huggins, Michael (HHS/OCR) /O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
Sender: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=9597596B8C4D4B8DIFAF4922101A611B-HUGGINS, MI
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

Sent Date: 2022/07/27 17:11:24
Delivered Date: 2022/07/27 17:11:58
Message Flags: Unread
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Huggins, Michael (HHS/OCR) /O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
From: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=9597596B8C4D4B8DIFAF4522101A611B-HUGGINS, MI
<Michael . Huggins@hhs.gov>

Rainer, Melanie Fontes {05/105) /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
To: (FYDIBOHF235SPDLT}/cn=Recipients/cn=9¢7242f10a494d45bab72c452ecd9f80-Rainer, Mel
<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>

Jee, Lauren {HHS/OCR) fo=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=dc5a273e16824884903f0d2afcBcb225-Jee, Lauren
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>;

Frohboese, Robinsue (HHS/OCR) fo=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=57bB853f66da4cb99818c9e2632f77fB-Frohboese,
<Robinsue.Frohboese@HHS.GOV>;

Seeger, Rachel (HHS/OCR) /o=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=3090ef9b170d45969add4ff475a95583-Rachel Seeg
<Rachel.Seeger@hhs.gov>;

Clemencia, LaTanya {HHS/OCR) /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=ddcb1a258a28428e80db417c431ed29d-Clemencia,
<L aTanya.Clemencia@hhs.gov>

Subject: BRIEFING BOOK FRIDAY 7/29/22
Date: 2022/07/28 17:42:20

Priority: Normal

cc

Type: Note

Acting Director Melanie Fontes Rainer
Friday, July 29, 2022
Calendar
FYI- Zoom links are in the electronic calendar

11:00am - 11:30am (via Zoom)
s WH/HHS Microsite Follow-up

12:00pm = 1:00pm (via Zoom)
e Secretary Senior Leaders Meeting

1:30pm - 2:00pm (via Zoom)
e Touchbase: OGC/OCR
o] See attached:
o Agenda

2:00pm - 2:30pm (via Zoom)

¢ FL Medicaid
o See attached:
o FL Proposed Memo

Michael Huggins, Esq., M.P.P. (he/him/his)
Senior Advisor
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Agenda for OGC Meeting - 7/29/22

¢ Process of requesting OGC review

¢«  Priority Items
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+« Enforcement
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» HIPAA Tribal Memo- next step is for SB and MFR to check in on this.



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
glaring errors regarding science, statistical methods, and medicine.” /d. at 2. The Critical Review
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
robust and well-regarded clinical research and . . . cites sources with little or no scientific merit”;
that the Florida Medicaid Report’s “linchpin” is an analysis which is “extremely narrow in
scope, inexpert, and so flawed it merits no scientific weight at all”; and that the Florida Medicaid
Report “erroneously dismisses solid studies as ‘low quality,”” which if followed regularly would
mean that widely-used medications and common medical procedures would also have to be
denied coverage. /d. at 3.

The Agency for Health Care Administration responded to the Critical Review, stating that it 1s
“another example of the left-wing academia propaganda machine arrogantly demanding you
follow their words and not the clear evidence-based science sitting right in front of you™ and that
it is a “hodgepodge of baseless claims™ without authority or credibility. Dara Kam, Expert
Report Condemns Florida's Plan to Ban Medicaid Coverage for Transgender Care, Palm Coast
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
Cure, Penn. Capital-Star (Sept. 15, 2020). He is also the president of the American College of
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
organizations Maurer listed “have been discredited” and cited to “more renowned”™ organizations
who believe that “the suppression of normal puberty, the use of disease-causing cross sex
hormones, and the surgical mutilation and sterilization of children™ are “atrocities™ and “not
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
the school. See, e.g., Leyla Santiago, Fact Check: Emails Show One of Desantis s Stories Backing the Rationale for
So-Called "Don 't Say Gay ' Law Didn’t Happen as the Governor Says, CNN Politics (Apr. 6, 2022),
https://www.cnn.com/2022/04/06/politics/fact-check-desantis-dont-sav-gay-familv-narrative/index.itml.
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“documented, well-researched standards of care have been established, are based on a wide
range of evidence, and conclude that gender-affirming medical care is medically necessary and
safe and effective.” In other words, “gender-affirming care is the standard of care.” Bruemmer
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
From: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=9597596B8C4D4B8D9FAF4522101A611B-HUGGINS, MI
<Michael. Huggins@hhs.gov>

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
Date: 2022/07/27 18:20:56

Priority: Normal
Type: Note

Should | send this along?

Hi Melanie,

Here is a list of materials for you to review while you're out. Lauren will also provide you a printed copy
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
o) PowerPoint Slides

8/2, 3:30pm 1:1 Barbara- Southeast
¢ See attached:
o Requested Seutheast Regional Memo
Q Staff Numbers for Barbara

8/3, 10:30am Steven- Midwest
¢+ See attached:
o Midwest Region Status Report to Acting Director


mailto:Lauren.Jee1@hhs.gov
mailto:Michael.Huggins@hhs.gov

8/3, 1:30pm Michael- Pacific
s See attached:
& Pacific Region Workload Summary Memo

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

HHS LA SC Relaunch Plan

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
Sender: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=9597596B8C4D4BBDIFAF4922101A611B-HUGGINS, MI
<Michael.Huggins@hhs.gov:>

Jee, Lauren {HHS/OCR) /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
Recipient: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=dc5a273e16824884903f0d2afcBcb225-Jee, Lauren
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>

Sent Date: 2022/07/27 18:18:50
Delivered Date: 2022/07/27 18:20:56
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de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR} fO=EXCHANGELABS{OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
From: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=0BDEC12AD0974EACABABEO32F2B37C91-DEKERVOR, D
<Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Schuham, Aaron (HHS/OGC) /o=ExchangelLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=c4b426dc641841c0b8fc53bccdf4b5a2-Schuham, Aa
<Aaron.5chuham@hhs.gov:;

Wiggins, Audrey (HHS/OGC) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=ba0233584cf046d892c27f25674ff982-Wiggins, Au
<Audrey.Wiggins@hhs.gov>

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
(FYDIBOHF235SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=dc5a273e16824884903f0d2afcBcb225-Jee, Lauren
<Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>

Subject: State Medicaid docs
Date: 2022/08/31 08:55:25
Priority: Normal

cC:

Type: Note

Hi Aaron and Audrey,

)5
Please find attached as background two documents drafted by our amazing intern Vatsala. )

(0)(5)

(0)(5)

Thanks,
Dylan

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esg., MSW (she/her) | Senior Advisor to the Director
Office for Civil Rights

U.5. Department of Health &Human Services

200 Independence Ave. S.W., Roomn 532E

Washington, D.C. 20201

Phone: {202) 699-1884

Email: dylan.dekervor@hhs.gov

Upcoming leave: Sept. 30— QOct. 4

de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR} /O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
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<Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Schuham, Aaron {(HHS/OGC) /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
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<Audrey Wiggins@hhs.gov>;

Rainer, Melanie Fontes (O5/0CR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=9¢7242f10a494d45bab72c452ecd9f80-Rainer, Mel
<Melanie.Rainer@hhs.gov>;

Jee, Lauren (HHS/QCR) /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF235PDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=dc5a273e16824884903f0d2afcBcb225-Jee, Lauren
<Lauren.Jeel @hhs.gov>

Sent Date: 2022/08/31 08:53:39
Delivered Date: 2022/08/31 08:55:25
Message Flags: Unread
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de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
To: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=0bdec12ad0974eacababe032f2b37c91-Dekervor, D
<Dylan.Dekervor@hhs.gov>

Subject: Justification Memo Draft
Date: 2022/08/18 16:01:37
Priority: Normal
Type: Note

Hi Dylan,

| hope your week is going well! Attached is a rough draft of the Florida Medicaid justification memeo. It's
not fully polished yet, because | had some questions (noted here in comments) that | was hoping you
could answer before | finalize everything. Once some of this is clarified | should be able to get you a
more solid version pretty quickly.

Please let me know if you’d rather hop on a call to talk through some of this, or if | should consult with
Susie or someone else instead! | know you're busy ©

Best,
Vatsala

Vatsala Kumar (she/her)

Intern

Office for Civil Rights

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services
vatsala.kumar@hhs.gov

de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR} fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
Recipient: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=0bdecl12ad0974eacababe032f2b37c91-Dekervor, D
<Dylan.Dekervor@hhs.gov>

Delivered Date: 2022/08/18 16:01:37
Message Flags: Unread Unsent
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From: Colson, Max <Max.Colson@ahca.myflorida.com>

Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabsfou=Exchange Administrative Group
To: (FYDIBOHF235PDLT}/cn=Recipients/cn=fc510606a9034939ac2eb2c237dd8cf3-Kumar, Vats
<Valsala.Kumar@hhs.gov>

Subject: Public records request response
Date: 2022/08/10 15:16:22

Priority: Normal
Type: Note

The transcript of the public hearing is attached. The additional information you have requested is
available on the following websites;

Medicaid Rules Website: https://ahca.myflorida.com/medicaid/review/Rules.shtml

Florida Administrative Code: https://www.flrules.org/gateway/ruleNo.asp?id=59G-1.050

July 8, 2022 hearing: https://thefloridachannel.org/videos/7-8-22-agency-for-health-care-
administration-hearing-on-general-medicaid-policy-rule/

Max Colson -

AHCA Building 3; Room 3424D -
+1 850-412-3674 (Office) - Max.Colson@ahca.myflorida.com

Privacy Statement: This e-mail may include confidential and/or praprietary information, and may be used only by the person or entity to
which it is addressed. If the reader of this e-mail is not the intended recipient or his or her authorized agent, the reader is hereby notified
that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this e-mail is prohibited. If you have received this in error, please reply to the sender
and delete it immediately.

Sender: Colson, Max <Max.Colson@ahca.myflorida.com>

Kumar, Vatsala (HH5/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
Recipient: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=fc510606a9034939%ac2eb2c237ddBcf3-Kumar, Vats
<Vatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov>

Sent Date: 2022/08/10 15:15:28
Delivered Date: 2022/08/10 15:16:22
From: Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/OCR) <Vatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov>
To: PublicRecordsReq <publicrecordsreg@ahca.myflorida.com:
Subject: Reqguest for Records: 7/8/22 Notice of Proposed Rule Hearing
Date: 2022/07/20 11:42:22
Type: Note

Hello,
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I’'m writing to request any public records which are available concerning the public hearing held on July
8, 2022 from 3-5pm re the Notice of Proposed Rule 59G-1.050/General Medicaid Policy.

If there is a recording of this meeting, a meeting agenda or minutes, or any other relevant public
information, could you please provide those?

Thank you for your time,
Vatsala

Vatsala Kumar (she/her}

Intern

Office for Civil Rights

U.S. Department of Health &Human Services
vatsala.kumar@hhs.gov

Sender: Kumar, Vatsala (HHS/OCR) <Vatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov:>
Recipient: PublicReccrdsReq <publicrecordsreq@ahca. myflorida.com:>
Sent Date: 2022/07/20 11:42:15

Delivered Date: 2022/07/20 11:42:22
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de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR} {O=EXCHANGELABS{OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
From: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=0BDEC12AD0974EACABABEO32F2B37C91-DEKERVOR, D
<Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
To: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=dc5a273e16824884903f0d2afc8cb225-Jee, Lauren
<Lauren.Jeel @hhs.gov:>

Barron, Pamela {(HHS/OCR) fo=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=d55f83440f074842ac94e1f27f11fa%e-Barron, Pam
<Pamela.Barron@hhs.gov>;
Kumar, Vatsala {HHS/OCR) /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

CC: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=fc510606a9034939%ac2eb2c237dd8cf3-Kumar, Vats
<Vatsala.Kumar@hhs.gov>;
Huggins, Michael (HHS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=9597596b8c4d4bB8dSfaf4922101a611b-Huggins, Mi
<Michael.Huggins@hhs.gov>

FOR FRIDAY - Background memo on Florida’s General Medicaid Policy proposed rule {limiting gender
affirming care)

Date: 2022/07/27 12:56:17
Priority: Normal

Subject:

Type: Note

Hi Lauren,

In anticipation of our call with CMS regarding proposed amendments to Florida’s General Medicaid
Policy to limit coverage of gender dysphoria treatment, | am sharing the attached infermational memo
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

Dylan Nicole de Kervor, Esq., MSW (she/her) | Section Chief
Office for Civil Rights

U.5. Department of Health &Human Services

200 Independence Ave. S.W., Roomn 532E

Washington, D.C. 20201

Phone: {202) 699-1884

Email; dylan.dekervor@hhs.gov

de Kervor, Dylan (HHS/OCR} /O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
Sender: (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=0BDEC12AD0974EACABABEO32F2B37C91-DEKERVOR, D
<Dylan.deKervor@hhs.gov>

Jee, Lauren (HHS/OCR) /o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
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Recipient: <Lauren.Jeel@hhs.gov>;

Barron, Pamela (HHS/OCR) fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
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